
 

  

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
855 W. Base Line Road, Rialto, CA 92376 

PH: (909) 875-1804 
https://www.wvwd.org 

                                                                              

ADJOURNED REGULAR BOARD MEETTING 
AGENDA 

  

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2024 
6:00 P.M. 

  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Gregory Young, President 
Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

Estevan Bennett, Director 
Angela Garcia, Director 
Kelvin Moore, Director 

____________________________________________________________________________________  
"In order to comply with legal requirements for posting of agendas, only those items filed 
with the Board Secretary's oƯice by noon, on Wednesday a week prior to the following 
Thursday meeting, not requiring departmental investigation, will be considered by the 
Board of Directors." 
Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at 855 W. Base Line Road, Rialto, 
CA 92376, or you may join the meeting using Zoom by clicking this 
link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790. Public comment may be submitted via 
Zoom, by telephone by calling the following number and access code: Dial: (888) 475-4499, 
Access Code: 840-293-7790, or via email to administration@wvwd.org 

If you require additional assistance, please contact administration@wvwd.org. 

  

Page 1 of 405



  

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 

APPROVAL OF ANY BOARD MEMBERS REQUESTS FOR REMOTE PARTICIPATION 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

OPENING PRAYER 

ADOPT AGENDA 

CLOSED SESSION 

Public Participation on closed session matters  

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6  
Agency designated representatives: John Thiel, General Manager, Haydee Sainz, 
Human Resources Manager, Oliver Yee, Special Counsel  
Employee Groups: International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 12  

Report out of Closed Session 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Any person wishing to speak to the Board of Directors on matters listed or not listed on the 
agenda, within its jurisdiction, is asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the 
Board Secretary, if you are attending in person. For anyone joining on Zoom, please wait for 
the Board President’s instruction to indicate that you would like to speak. Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes. Under the State of California Brown Act, the Board of Directors 
is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda. 
Comments related to noticed Public Hearing(s) and Business Matters will be heard during 
the occurrence of the item. Public communication is the time for anyone to address the 
Board on any agenda item or anything under the jurisdiction of the District. Also, please 
remember that no disruptions from the crowd will be tolerated. If someone disrupts the 
meeting, they will be removed. 

PRESENTATIONS 

2024 Poster Contest Recognition 

  

Page 2 of 405



CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted 
by one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the 
Board of Directors, StaƯ Member, or any member of the public request a specific item(s) be 
removed for separate action. 

Consideration of: 
1.  October 3, 2024 and October 17, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

2.  Task Order with Michael Baker International, Inc for Design of Pump Station 7-2 

3. Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with Fontana 
Sierra Industrial, LLC for San Bernardino Gateway Business Park, APN: 0239-151-09 
and 0239-151-38 

4.  Purchase of a New 2024 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader 

5.  West Valley Water District Travel Policy 

6.  Treasurer's Report - September 2024 

7.  Cash Disbursements Report - September 2024 

8.  Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - September 2024 

9.  Transfer Report - September 2024 

10. Purchase Order Report - September 2024 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

Consideration Of: 

1. Change Order No. 6 with PCL Construction, Inc for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration 
Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project 

2. H.R. 7525/S.4673– Special District Grant Accessibility Act 

3. IE Works Contract Renewal 2024/25 

4. Professional Services Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for Master 
Planning Services for the Water Master Plan Update 

REPORTS 

1. Board Committee Reports 

2. Board Members 

Page 3 of 405



3. General Manager 

4. Legal Counsel 

• Updates on current legal topics/best practice 

5. Board Secretary 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

• November 19, 2024 – Engineering, Operations, and Planning Committee at 6:00 p.m.  
• November 20, 2024 - Policy Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
• November 21, 2024 - Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
• November 25, 2024 - External AƯairs Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
• November 26, 2024 - Executive Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.  
• November 27, 2024 - Finance Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

UPCOMING COMMUNITY EVENTS 
• November 16th 10 am-12 pm WVWD - Lawn Conversion Workshop  
• December 5th 4:30 pm - 7 pm Supervisor Joe Baca Jr.'s Holiday Open House  
• December 7th 5:30 pm - 9 pm (Same Day as WVWD Holiday Retreat)  
• December 14th 10 am - 1:30 pm Colton's Holiday Parade  
• December 14th 11 am - 4 pm Festival of Winter - Fontana  
• December 19th 6 pm- 8 pm Bloomington's Santa Photos/Tree Lighting at Ayala Park 

 
UPCOMING EDUCATIONAL & TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 

• December 3 - 5 - ACWA Fall Conference and Expo, Palm Desert  
• February 25-27 – ACWA D.C. 2025 

 
ADJOURN 

 

Please Note: 

 Material related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District’s oƯice located at 855 W. 
Baseline, Rialto, during normal business hours.  Also, such documents are available on the 
District’s website at www.wvwd.org subject to staƯ’s ability to post the documents before 
the meeting. 

  

Page 4 of 405



Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to attend or 
participate in the above-agendized public meeting should be directed to the Board 
Secretary, Elvia Dominguez, at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting to ensure 
availability of the requested service or accommodation.  Ms. Dominguez may be contacted 
by telephone at (909) 875-1804 ext. 703, or in writing at the West Valley Water District, P.O. 
Box 920, Rialto, CA 92377-0920. 

  

DECLARATION OF POSTING:  

 I declare under penalty of perjury, that I am employed by the West Valley Water District and 
posted the foregoing Agenda at the District OƯices on November 7, 2024. 

  

  

Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary  
Date Posted: November 7, 2024 
 

Page 5 of 405



MINUTES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

October 3, 2024 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Call to Order - President Young called the Regular Board Meeting of the West Valley Water 
District to order at 6:01 p.m. 
Roll Call of Board Members  
 

Attendee Name Present Absent Arrived 

Directors    

Angela Garcia    

Estevan Bennett   
6:10 P.M. 6:10 P.M. 

Kelvin Moore   6:10 P.M. 

Daniel Jenkins    

Gregory Young    

General Counsel    

Jeff Ferre    

Staff    

John Thiel    

Linda Jadeski    

William Fox    

 Haydee Sainz    

Joanne Chan    

Elvia Dominguez    

Socorro Pantaleon    

Rocky Welborn     

 
Approval of Any Board Member Requests for Remote Participation - None. 
Pledge of Allegiance - The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice President Jenkins. 
Opening Prayer - The Opening Prayer was led by Pastor Harold Patton. 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Public Participation on closed session matters 

President Young inquired if  anyone from the public would like to speak on closed session items. No 
requests were received to speak via email or in-person, or on Zoom, therefore President Young 
closed the public comment period. 
 

Page 6 of 405



The Board entered into closed session at 6:03 p.m.  
 
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS Pursuant to Government Code Section 

54957.6  

Agency designated representatives: John Thiel, General Manager, Haydee Sainz, Human Resources 

Manager, Oliver Yee, Special Counsel  

Employee Groups: International Union of  Operating Engineers, Local 12 

 Report out of Closed Session 

The Board adjourned the closed session at 6:30 p.m. to conduct the business portion of  the meeting 
which commenced at 6:43 p.m. with all Board members present. 
 
General Counsel Ferre reported that the Board discussed the closed session items and there was no 
reportable action taken.  

ADOPT AGENDA 

 Motion to adopt the agenda. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

SECONDER: Kelvin Moore, Director 

AYES: Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

President Young inquired if  anyone from the public would like to speak. No requests were received 
to speak via email or in-person, or on Zoom, therefore President Young closed the public comment 
period. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. GIS Program 
 

GIS Administrator Miller presented a PowerPoint on GIS program. There was discussion about the 
current partnership with McKenna Data Science Program, and whether the GIS data would be 
available for field application in case of  an emergency. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

General Manager Thiel provided background information for public awareness on Items #6, #7, 
and #10.  

Motion to approve Consent Calendar items #1 - #10. 

Page 7 of 405



RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

SECONDER: Angela Garcia, Director 

AYES: Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

 

1. Monthly Cash Disbursements Report - August 2024 

2. Fund Transfer Report - August 2024 

3. Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - August 2024 

4. Treasurer's Report 

5. Purchase Order Report - August 2024 

6. Approve an Agreement with Rubidoux Community Services District to Deliver Imported State 
Water Project Water 

7. Approve a Funding Agreement with San Bernardino County for Safeguarding Fontana Through 
a Fire Hydrant Retrofit Project 

8. Consider a Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with LPC 
Fontana North, LP for Parcels 2, 3, 4, and 5 of Parcel Map 20167 

9. Consider a Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO4, 
LLC for Ventana Duncan Canyon Road Backbone 3B. 

10. Consider a Professional Services Agreement with PBK Architects for Master Planning Services 
for the Facilities Master Plan 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

11. Water Professionals Appreciation Week 2024 

Manager of  Public Outreach and Government Affairs Pantaleon presented the report.  

 Motion to adopt the resolution declaring October 5 -13, 2024 as Water Professionals 
Appreciation Week. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Angela Garcia, Director 

SECONDER: Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

AYES: Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

 

 

Page 8 of 405



12. Committee Assignments 

The Board of Directors discussed the Committee and Board assignments and presented 
Director Bennett the option of serving on the Human Resources Committee, Finance 
Committee, or Safety and Technology Committee. Director Bennett selected the Human 
Resources Committee and Safety and Technology Committee, and also accepted the Board seat 
for the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District. 

 Motion to assign Director Bennett to the Safety and Technology Committee, in place of Vice 
President Jenkins; Human Resources Committee, in place of President Young; and to the Board 
seat for the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

SECONDER: Angela Garcia, Director 

AYES: Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Committee Reports 

Director Garcia reported on the External Affairs Committee and the Engineering, Operations and 
Planning Committee meeting.  
 
Vice President Jenkins reported on the Finance Committee meeting. 

2. Board Members 

Vice President Jenkins reported on his attendance at the Rialto Wastewater Presentation.  
 
Director Moore reported on his attendance at the Rialto Wastewater Presentation. 
 
Director Bennett reported on his attendance at the Rialto Wastewater Presentation.  
 
Director Garcia reported on her attendance at the Fontana’s Chill and Grill event and acknowledged 
City of  Fontana Mayor Warren who was in attendance at the Board meeting.  
 
President Young allowed public comment by Mayor Warren who commended the Board of  
Director’s for their work.  
 
President Young wished his mother a happy early birthday and Vice President Jenkins wished his 
eldest son a happy birthday.  

3. General Manager 

General Manager Thiel provided an update on recruitment and his attendance at the Rialto 
Wastewater Presentation.  

Page 9 of 405



4. Legal Counsel 

General Counsel Ferre presented an update on the Levine Act, Prop 218 bills that were signed, and 
SB 937. 

5. Board Secretary 

Board Secretary Dominguez provided an overview of  upcoming meetings and events and suggested 
the November 7th Regular Board meeting be moved to an Adjourned Regular Board meeting on 
November 14th due to a conflict with the Southern California Water Coalition annual meeting. The 
Board concurred. The Board also concurred with moving the November Engineering, Operations 
and Planning Committee meeting to the 19th, due to the Thanksgiving holiday.  

ADJOURN 

President Young adjourned the meeting at 7:48 p.m. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 

Page 10 of 405



MINUTES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

October 17, 2024 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Call to Order - President Young called the Regular Board Meeting of the West Valley Water 
District to order at 6:02 p.m. 
Roll Call of Board Members 
 

Attendee Name Present Absent Arrived 

Directors    

Angela Garcia    

Estevan Bennett   
6:10 P.M. 6:10 P.M. 

Kelvin Moore    

Daniel Jenkins    

Gregory Young    

General Counsel    

Jeff Ferre    

Staff    

John Thiel    

Linda Jadeski    

William Fox    

 Haydee Sainz    

Joanne Chan    

Elvia Dominguez    

Socorro Pantaleon    

Rocky Welborn     

Paola Lara    

Albert Clinger    

Robert Ramirez    

 
Approval of Any Board Member Requests for Remote Participation - None.  
Pledge of Allegiance - The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice President Jenkins. 
Opening Prayer - The Opening Prayer was led by Pastor Joseph Breaux Jr. 

CLOSED SESSION 

 Public Participation on closed session matters 

Page 11 of 405



President Young inquired if  anyone from the public would like to speak on closed session items. No 
requests were received to speak via email or in-person, or on Zoom, therefore President Young 
closed the public comment period. 
 
The Board entered into closed session at 6:07 p.m.  

 Report out of Closed Session 

The Board adjourned the closed session at 7:12 p.m. to conduct the business portion of  the meeting 
which commenced at 7:15 p.m. with all Board members present except Director Moore who was 
absent. 

 
General Counsel Ferre reported that the Board discussed the closed session items. There was 
direction to have a special meeting on October 24, 2024 to continue discussing closed session item 
#1. There was no reportable action for closed session item #2. 

ADOPT AGENDA 

General Counsel Ferre recommended the Board adopt the agenda with the addition to make the 
Cancer Awareness Proclamation, under Presentations, a Board action item to adopt the 
proclamation.  

 Motion to adopt the agenda with the addition of the following item as permitted under Government 
Code Section 54954.2(b)(2): Adoption of Cancer Awareness Proclamation. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Estevan Bennett, Angela Garcia, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Kelvin Moore 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

President Young inquired if  anyone from the public would like to speak. No requests were received 
to speak via email or in-person, or on Zoom, therefore President Young closed the public comment 
period. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Roemer Update 

Director of  Engineering Welborn presented a PowerPoint presentation on the progress of  the 
Roemer project.  

2. Cancer Awareness Proclamation. 

This item was made a Board action item to adopt Proclamation under Adoption of  the Agenda. 

General Manager Thiel introduced the proclamation and President Young read the Cancer 
Awareness Proclamation.  

President Young acknowledged his mother who is currently battling cancer.  

Page 12 of 405



 Motion to adopt the Cancer Awareness Proclamation declaring the month of October as Cancer 
Awareness Month. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Angela Garcia, Director 

SECONDER: Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

AYES: Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Motion to approve Consent Calendar item #1. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Angela Garcia, Director 

SECONDER: Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

AYES: Estevan Bennett, Angela Garcia, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Kelvin Moore 

1. September 19, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

2. Adopt Resolution Adopting a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Well No. 57 Project 

Director of  Engineering Welborn presented the item.  

President Young opened the public hearing.  

President Young inquired if  anyone from the public would like to speak. No requests were 
received to speak via email or in-person, or on Zoom, therefore President Young closed the 
public hearing. 

 Motion to approve the Initial Study, Notice of Determination, and Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND); Adopt Resolution No. 2024-09 adopting a MND for the new Well No. 57 
Project; and Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Daniel Jenkins, Vice President 

SECONDER: Estevan Bennett, Director 

AYES: Estevan Bennett, Angela Garcia, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Kelvin Moore 

3. Nitrates Study 

General Manager Thiel presented the item and the proposal for the Nitrates study received from 
WSC, and requested direction from the Board of  Directors on how to proceed.  

 

Page 13 of 405



The Board of  Directors discussed the study. President Young spoke in favor of  the study and 
the benefits of  having the information for lobbying efforts in Washington D.C. Director Garcia 
voiced concern with the District funding the study because the District’s service area is just a 
small portion of  the whole study area. She requested staff  reach out to other agencies to find 
funding partners to be able to present this as a collaborative effort when they go to Washington 
D.C.  

General Counsel Ferre opined that finding funding partners is ideal to ensure the District is not 
spending District funds outside of  our jurisdiction.  

Director of  Engineer Welborn stated that IEUA had verbally agreed to fund 50% of  the study. 
The Board of  Directors agreed to move forward with the study contingent of  an agreement 
with IEUA to fund 50% of  the study.  

Director of  Engineering Welborn pointed out a mathematical error on the spreadsheet included 
in Exhibit A attached to the staff  report.  

 Motion to approve the General Manager to move forward with the Nitrates Study, contingent of 
an agreement with IEUA to fund 50% of the study, and to continue to look for additional 
partners.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Angela Garcia, Director 

SECONDER: Estevan Bennett, Director 

AYES: Estevan Bennett, Angela Garcia, Daniel Jenkins, Gregory Young 

ABSENT: Kelvin Moore 

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Committee Reports 

President Young reported on the Policy Committee meeting.  
 
Director Bennett reported on the Human Resources Committee meeting.  

2. Board Members 

Director Garcia wished a happy heavenly birthday to her mother-in-law. 
 
Vice President Jenkins reported on his attendance at the Fontana Chamber Luncheon.  
 
President Young recognized those who are fighting cancer.  

3. General Manager 

General Manager Thiel provided a recruitment update, reported on the All Hands meeting this 
week, and on his attendance at Rialto’s Water Treatment Plant Tour.  
 

Page 14 of 405



4. Legal Counsel 

General Counsel Ferre reported on a bill going into effect which will update the Public Records Act 
requirements for 14-day extensions during a state declared State of  Emergency.   

5. Board Secretary 

Executive Assistant Lara provided an overview of  upcoming meetings and events. 

ADJOURN 

President Young adjourned the meeting at 8:24 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 

Page 15 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering
 

SUBJECT:   Task Order with Michael Baker International, Inc for Design of Pump Station 7-2
 

MEETING HISTORY:
 
10.24.2024 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD

BACKGROUND:

Pressure Zone (PZ) 7 is located to the north of Pressure Zone 6 in West Valley Water District’s (“District”) North
System. Storage for Pressure Zone 7 is provided by reservoirs R7-1, R7-2, R7-3, and R7-4 located on Lytle Creek
Road. Water is pumped from the Lower Pressure Zones 4, 5, and 6 into Pressure Zone 7 reservoirs. Currently
there is one existing pump station (PS 7-1), pumping water supplies to the pressure zone reservoirs. The proposed
Pump Station 7-2 is needed to supply future demands and provide redundancy in the event the other pump station
is out of service for maintenance or repair.

The District entered into a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Michael Baker International, Inc. (MBI) to
design the new Pump Station 7-2 (PS7-2) in preparation for the increased development that is projected to occur in
Pressure Zone 7.

The coordination with SCE regarding the new electrical service has been completed, and MBI has successfully
conducted the scope of work and provided deliverables as stated in the contract.

DISCUSSION:

Staff requested a proposal from MBI to update the design to include recently selected Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition (SCADA) and communications standards preferred by the District, confirm the pump selection, to
insure there are no negative impacts to the current infrastructure and verify the proposed changes to the project
meets regulatory requirements.

It is anticipated that with the added scope of work, the design services should proceed to develop a bid package for
construction. Attached as Exhibit A is the proposal from MBI for the proposed services.

This item is in support of the Districts Strategic Plan Goal to manage and deliver a safe, reliable, and sustainable
water supply and strategy of increasing system capacity for anticipated growth. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

Page 16 of 405



The cost to perform the service as proposed by MBI is $39,210.00. Staff is also requesting that a $20,000.00
contingency for any unforeseen future design service be approved by the Board. This project is included in the
Fiscal Year 2024/25 Capital Improvement Budget as W18021 Pump Station 7-2.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors:

1. Authorize entering into Task Order with Michael Baker International, Inc., in the amount of $39,210.00 for the
professional engineering services for the Design of Pump Station 7-2; and

2. Authorize additional work with Michael Baker International, Inc., up to $20,000.00 for any unforeseen future
services related to the design of Pump Station 7-2; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - Design Amendment for Zone 7-2 Pump Station from MBI

Page 17 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672949dca622140054eb20b2%2FStaff%20Report%20-%20Consider%20TO4%20with%20MBI%20for%20Pump%20Station%207-2.pdf?alt=media&token=a7c62b68-024c-4617-9c9d-e304d35ddfa0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672949dca622140054eb20b2%2FStaff%20Report%20-%20Consider%20TO4%20with%20MBI%20for%20Pump%20Station%207-2.pdf?alt=media&token=a7c62b68-024c-4617-9c9d-e304d35ddfa0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672949dca622140054eb20b2%2FStaff%20Report%20-%20Consider%20TO4%20with%20MBI%20for%20Pump%20Station%207-2.pdf?alt=media&token=a7c62b68-024c-4617-9c9d-e304d35ddfa0


Exhibit A

Page 18 of 405



 

September 13, 2024         JN 165353 

 

Mr. Sean McNulty, PE 

West Valley Water District 

855 W Base Line Road 

PO Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Subject: Design Amendment for Zone 7-2 Pump Station 

 

Dear Mr. McNulty: 

 
Michael Baker International (Michael Baker) began design services for West Valley Water District (the 

District) for Pump Station 7-2 in early 2018. The initial 90% submittal was provided in 2021. The initial 

scope of work included only the design of the pump station facility based on a pressure set point and 

desired pump flow rate provided by the District. This operational set point assumption is reflected in the 

90% and Agency Review design documents. The project has since been on hold while the SCE service 

entrance was negotiated and designed. Now that the SCE service entrance design is complete, the 100% 

design can be completed. During the time since project initiation in 2018, changes have been made to 

the distribution system, design preferences have changed, and a system model has been created and 

calibrated. Because of these changes and the amount of time that has elapsed, a design assumption 

review is warranted before the project is finalized. The scope of work below is recommended by Michael 

Baker to ensure the final design meets the changing needs of the District upon project completion.  

Task 1: Hydraulic Analyses Support 

MICHAEL BAKER understands that the DISTRICT will perform evaluations of their distribution system 

that will evaluate the flow rate and associated pressures that will be required form Pump Station 7-2. 

MICHAEL BAKER recommends that the hydraulic analyses include verification of the required flow rate, 

the distribution system’s ability to accept the flows, and include a surge analysis that includes a surge 

anticipator pressure relief valve. 

MICHAEL BAKER has budgeted 40 hours to support the DISTRICT or the DISTRICT’s consultant with the 

hydraulic analyses. This includes scenario planning, providing information, discussion results, and other 

related work. 

Upon Completion, MICHAEL BAKER requests a memorandum summary of the model approach, results 

and outcome, and a system curve be provided by the DISTRICT. 

Deliverables: Correspondence and notes upon request.  

Task 2: Pump Selection Verification and Update 

After completion of the hydraulic Analyses, MICHAEL BAKER will evaluate the pump selection using 

manufacturer’s pump curves and the system curve form the hydraulic model. MICHAEL BAKER will 

Page 19 of 405



procure pump selections from a minimum of two (2) vendors based on the system curve. MICHAEL 

BAKER will revise the pump selection with a current vendor selection based on the pump curve. 

MICHAEL BAKER will verify the number of pumps that can be operated concurrently based on the 

service entrance and generator sizing and the power requirements of the revised pump selection. 

Deliverables: MICHAEL BAKER will provide a supplemental revision to the original Preliminary Design 

Report documenting the revised pump selection, electrical load verification, and permit requirements 

for the genset. 

Task 3: Design Documents Update 

Upon completion of Tasks 1 and 2, MICHAEL BAKER will revise the current Agency Review drawings, 

specifications and cost opinion based on changes to the pump selection, including pumps, motors, and 

appurtenances. This revision is based on the revised pump selection still using 200 HP motors. 

MICHAEL BAKER will review the District’s preferred power monitoring system and make revisions to the 

drawings and specifications to include current preferences. The DISTRICT will provide example projects, 

cut sheets, or other information required to document the preferred power monitoring equipment and 

installation. 

MICHAEL BAKER will review the District’s preferred radio cabinet and make revisions to the drawings 

and specifications to include current preferences. The DISTRICT will provide example projects, cut 

sheets, or other information required to document the preferred radio cabinet and fabrication. 

MICHAEL BAKER will develop a control narrative for Pump Station 7-2 based on information provided by 

the District. This narrative will be included in the Technical Specifications.   

MICHAEL BAKER has budgeted up to 40 hours to support the DISTRICT or the DISTRICT’s consultant to 

determine the appropriate requirements for the Contractor to provide SCADA integration. MICHAEL 

BAKER will incorporate the SCADA integration requirements in the technical specifications requiring the 

Contractor to procure the services of the DISTRICT’s preferred system integrator.  

MICHAEL BAKER understands that the DISTRICT will perform a test shut down to verify that Pump 

Station 7-1 can remain in service utilizing only the 16-inch suction line to the west while the existing 24-

inch suction line to the east is out of service. The outcome and results of this test will be used by 

MICHAEL BAKER to incorporate shut down restrictions for the Contractor. 

MICHAEL BAKER will provide a revised Agency Review Submittal for District review. After District review, 

MICHAEL BAKER will provide 100% bid documents incorporating the DISTRICT comments.  

Deliverables:  

• Agency Review (95% completion) plans, technical specifications, front end documents, and cost 

opinion. 

• Final (100% completion) plans, technical specifications, front end documents, and cost opinion. 

Task 4: Categorical Exemption 

Page 20 of 405



Michael Baker will prepare a Notice of Exemption Form and supporting narrative to describe why the 

project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 Existing 

Facilities (Class 1) and CEQA Guidelines Section 15303 New Constructions or Conversion of Small 

Structures (Class 3). The brief supporting narrative will evaluate the project to ensure it meets applicable 

Class 1 and Class 3 Categorical Exemption requirements. Up to two exhibits will be included to support 

the Categorical Exemption. 

The supporting narrative will also evaluate the project to ensure that none of the following exceptions 

to the use of Categorical Exemptions (as set forth under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2, Exceptions) 

apply to the project: 

a) Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the project is to be 

located—a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment may in a 

particularly sensitive environment be significant. Therefore, these classes are considered to 

apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an environmental resource of 

hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely mapped, and officially adopted 

pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies. 

b) Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the cumulative 

impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time is significant. 

c) Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where there is a 

reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment due to 

unusual circumstances. 

d) Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which may result in 

damage to scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, rock 

outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state scenic 

highway. This does not apply to improvements which are required as mitigation by an adopted 

negative declaration or certified EIR. 

e) Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project located on a site 

which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code. 

f) Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which may cause a 

substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource. 

This scope of work assumes the District will be responsible for filing with the State Clearinghouse Office 

of Planning and Research and County Clerk Recorder.  

A Draft and Final Categorical Exemption will be provided to the District in electronic format.  

Deliverables: Electronic copy of the Draft and Final Categorical Exemption prepared in Microsoft Word 

and PDF format and Exhibits (jpeg or PDF file format, as requested by the District) 

Understandings and Key Assumptions: 

1. The design will continue to use constant speed pumps. Design changes form constant speed 

pumps to variable frequency driven pumps is not included. 

2. The pumps will remain approximately the same physical size, and the pump cans, suction and 

discharge piping, and other appurtenances will not change.  

Page 21 of 405



3. The pumps motors will remain as 200HP motors. Changes in pump motor size will require 

revisions to the electrical load calculations, conductors, conduits, and associated equipment. 

These revisions are not included and will require additional fee.  

4. No additional surge improvements will be required other than the surge anticipator valve 

already incorporated in the design.  

5. Michael Baker will review comments from 2023 and make revisions as necessary. 

6. The DISTIRCT will provide the District’s current front-end templates.  

Fee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ITEM FEE STATUS 

Original Contract Price $169,839.00  Original Contract 

Amendment 1: Structural & Electrical Changes $39,303.00  Executed 

Amendment 2: SCE Coordination & Control $15,795.00  Executed 

Amendment 3: Design Revisions $35,895.00  Executed 

Amendment 4: Design Revisions $39,210.00  Proposed 

Proposed Contract Amount $300,042.00    

 

Should you have any questions, please contact me directly by phone at: (951) 506-2086; or via e-mail: 

Miles.Costanza@mbakerintl.com.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Miles Costanza, P.E. 

Department Manager   

Page 22 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering
 

SUBJECT:   Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with Fontana Sierra Industrial,
LLC for San Bernardino Gateway Business Park, APN: 0239-151-09 and 0239-151-38

 

MEETING HISTORY:
 
10.24.2024 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD

BACKGROUND:

Fontana Sierra Industrial, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of land located east of Sierra Avenue,  and north of Casa
Grande Drive in the City of Fontana, known as APN: 0239-151-09 and 0239-151- 38 (“Development”). The
proposed development includes the construction and operation of one warehouse with offices (approximately
200,500 square feet). The Developer will construct approximately 556 lineal feet of new 12-inch ductile iron pipe on
Sierra Avenue to install water services for domestic, fire and irrigation purposes for the project.

DISCUSSION:

West Valley Water District (“District”) and the Developer wish to enter into a Developer-Installed Water System
Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement (“Agreement”) to construct the water facilities needed to
supply water to the Development. This Agreement outlines the responsibilities of the Developer in constructing
facilities, including insurance, indemnification and bonding requirements as well as conveyance and acceptance of
the water system by the District. Attached as Attachment A is a copy of the Water System Infrastructure Installation
and Conveyance Agreement for this development which also includes the location of the Development.

This item is in support of the District's Strategic Plan Goal to manage and deliver a safe, reliable, and sustainable
water supply and strategy increase system capacity for anticipated growth. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact to the District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors:

1. Authorize entering into a Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with Fontana
Sierra Industrial, LLC

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents related to the agreement.

Page 23 of 405



 

Attachments

Attachment A - WICA.pdf

Page 24 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294895a622140054eb1e90%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf?alt=media&token=6a55c363-2668-4ab9-bccd-1dcb96ebf976
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294895a622140054eb1e90%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf?alt=media&token=6a55c363-2668-4ab9-bccd-1dcb96ebf976
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294895a622140054eb1e90%2FAttachment%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf?alt=media&token=6a55c363-2668-4ab9-bccd-1dcb96ebf976


Attachment A 

Page 25 of 405



1 

D25005 

WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE 

INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 This water system infrastructure installation and conveyance agreement (“Agreement”) is 
entered into and effective as of ________________ by and between Fontana Sierra Industrial, 

LLC (“Developer”), and WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (“District”) who agree as 
follows: 

  The Developer is the owner of certain land described as San Bernardino Gateway 

Business Park/ APN: 0239-151-09 and 0239-151-38 and as more fully (or further) shown on 
Exhibit "A".  In developing this land, the Developer is desirous of obtaining a public water 
supply adequate for domestic uses and public fire protection purposes and is desirous of 
integrating that water system into the District’s public water system. 

In order to provide facilities for a water supply to said land, it is the intention of the parties 
to this Agreement that the Developer shall furnish and install those water mains, fire hydrants, 
service laterals, water meters and valves, valve boxes, and all other appurtenant fittings and 
facilities required for a complete water system to serve the land shown on Exhibit "A".  

 In order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the terms and conditions herein 
contained, the parties further agree as follows: 

1. DESIGN 

 1.1. Developer shall design and construct, at the Developer's sole expense, the water 
facilities and appurtenances required to serve the development in accordance with final District-
approved plans known as San Bernardino Gateway Business Park Water Improvement 

Plans for Sierra Industrial Building, as represented and attached herein as Exhibit "B" and in 
accordance with District-approved design standards and specifications, and the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  

 1.2. The water system design shall be by a Professional Engineer registered in the State 
of California, and in accordance with the District's Rules and Regulations, latest edition (the 
“Rules and Regulations”), the District's Standards for Domestic Water Facilities and Standard 
Drawings herein included by reference, all applicable District ordinances and policies and all 
City, County, State of California, and Federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and 
other legal requirements of all government bodies having jurisdiction over said construction and 
property (all of the foregoing requirements in this paragraph being collectively referred to herein 
at times as “Legal Requirements”). 

 1.3. The District, at Developer's expense, shall review Developer's plans for the purpose 
of ensuring the adequacy of the design and conformance with the District's standards and 
specifications.  The District reserves the right to add, delete, modify, change or amend any or all 
the plans and specifications. 

Page 26 of 405



2 

D25005 

 1.4. In the event that the property to be developed includes multiple residential, 
condominiums, commercial or industrial uses, all site plans, grading plans, improvement plans, 
and any available plumbing plot plans shall be furnished to the District by Developer. 

 1.5. The District makes no warranties as to the correctness, accuracy or completeness of 
the plans and specifications.  The accuracy, adequacy, suitability, and correctness of the water 
system design shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer. 

2. CONSTRUCTION 

 2.1. Developer shall perform, or caused to be performed, all construction of the water 
system infrastructure installation pursuant to the approved water system plans, legal 
requirements, and other applicable requirements. 

 2.2 The performance of this Agreement shall commence within ninety (90) calendar 
days from the executed date of this Agreement and shall be completed within one (1) year from 
the estimated construction start date. 

 2.3. Time is of the essence in this Agreement; provided that, in the event good cause is 
shown therefore, the general manager of the District (“General Manager”) may extend the time 
for completion of the water system installation.  Any such extension may be granted without the 
notice to Developer's surety, and extensions so granted shall not relieve the surety's liability on 
the bond to secure faithful performance of this Agreement.  The General Manager shall be the 
sole and final judge as to whether or not good cause has been shown to entitle Developer to an 
extension. 

 2.4. The Developer and its contractor and subcontractors shall attend a pre-construction 
meeting with the District no less than two (2) working days prior to commencement of 
construction. 

 2.5. No work on water facilities shall commence prior to the completion of all required 
curbs and gutters. 

3. LICENSES AND PERMITS 

 3.1. Developer, and all of Developer’s contractors and subcontractors warrants it 
possesses, or shall obtain, and maintain during the term of this Agreement any and all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approval of whatever nature that are legally required of 
Developer, its contractors, and all subcontractors to practice its profession, skill or business.   

 3.2. The work to be performed under this Agreement, except meter installations by the 
District, shall be performed by Developer, or a contractor or subcontractor who is pre-approved 
by the District and is licensed under the laws of the State of California in the specialty Class of 
“C-34” Pipeline or Class “A” General Engineering.  A copy of the contract between Developer 
and the selected pre-approved contractor and all subcontractors shall be submitted to the District 
for review and approval attached herein as Exhibit “C”.  

Page 27 of 405



3 

D25005 

 3.3. Excavation/resurfacing permits shall be secured by Developer at Developer's 
expense.  Permits/easements to install, maintain and operate water system facilities in private 
property shall be secured by Developer at Developer's sole expense prior to construction. 

 3.4. Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the 
Regional Water Quality Board as required for construction or pipeline flushing and disinfection. 

 3.5  Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to the California Environmental Quality Act. 

4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 4.1. The following insurance requirements have been adopted by the District and shall 
be applicable to this Agreement.  These requirements supersede the insurance requirements set 
forth in any other reference of the District, and to the extent of any conflict, the specified 
requirements herein shall prevail. 

 4.2. Developer shall ensure that Developer’s contractors conform to the following 
insurance requirements and that all required documents are submitted to the District at the time 
of Agreement submittal:  Developer shall ensure that its contractors and all subcontractors shall 
purchase and maintain insurance in amounts equal to the requirements set forth in (a) through (d) 
below, and shall not commence work under this Agreement until all insurance required under 
this heading is obtained in a form acceptable to the District, nor shall Developer allow any 
contractor or subcontractor to commence construction pursuant to a contract or subcontract until 
all insurance required of the contractor and any subcontractors has been obtained. 

   a. General Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, a standard form of either 
Comprehensive General Liability insurance or Commercial General Liability insurance 
(“General Liability Insurance”) providing the following minimum limits of liability: Combined 
single limit of $1.0 million per occurrence for bodily injury, including death, personal injury, and 
property damage with $2.0 million minimum aggregate, separate for this project as evidenced by 
endorsement.  The insurance shall include coverage for each of the following hazards: Premises-
Operations; Owners and Contractors Protective; Broad Form Property Damage contractual for 
Specific Contract; Severability of Interest or Cross-Liability; XCU Hazards; and Personal Injury 
– With the "Employee" Exclusive Deleted. 

   b. Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its 
contractor and all subcontractors shall maintain a policy of automotive/vehicle liability insurance 
on a commercial auto liability form covering owned, non-owned and hired automobiles 
providing the following minimum limits of liability:  Combined single limit of liability of $1.0 
million per accident for Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage (“Automotive/Vehicle 
Liability Insurance”). 

   c. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor 
and all subcontractors shall provide such workers' compensation insurance with statutory 

Page 28 of 405



4 

D25005 

minimum amounts of coverage, as required by the California Labor Code and other applicable 
law, and including employer's liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 
(“Workers’ Compensation Insurance”).  Such Workers' Compensation Insurance shall be 
endorsed to provide for a waiver of subrogation against the District. 

   d. Excess Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall provide a policy providing excess coverage in a face amount necessary 
when combined with the primary insurance, to equal the minimum requirements for General 
Liability Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance.   

 4.3. The insurances provided for in Section 4.2 and its subsections above are subject to 
all of the following conditions: 

   a. The insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies 
acceptable to the District, and shall be licensed by the State of California to do business on the 
lines of insurance specified.  The insurers must also have an "A-" Policyholder's rating" and a 
"financial rating" of at least Class VII in accordance with the most current A.M. Best's Rating 
Guide. 

   b. Developer’s contractor and subcontractors may satisfy the limit requirements 
in a single policy or multiple policies.  Any such additional policies written as excess insurance 
shall not provide any less coverage than that provided by the first or primary policy. 

   c. Any costs associated with a self-insured program, deductibles, or premium 
rating programs that determine premium based on loss experience shall be for the account of 
Developer, Developer’s contractor and subcontractors, and the District shall not be required to 
participate in any such loss.  If any such programs exist, Developer, Developer’s contractor and 
subcontractors, agree to protect and defend the District in the same manner as if such cost 
provisions were not applicable. 

   d. Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all subcontractors shall have 
presented at the time of execution of the Agreement, the original policies of insurance and a 
certificate of insurance naming the District as the certificate holder and that such coverage is in 
force and complies with the terms and conditions outlined herein. 

   e. If an insurance policy contains a general policy aggregate of less than the 
minimum limits specified, then the policy coverage shall be written with limits applicable solely 
to this Agreement, as specified, and shall not be reduced by or impaired by any other claims 
arising against Developer.  These policy limits shall be set forth by separate endorsement to the 
policy. 

 4.4. Each such policy of General Liability Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance shall contain endorsements providing the following: 

   a. The District, their board members, officers, agents, employees, consultants, 
and engineers, are hereby declared to be additional insureds under the terms of this policy, but 
only with respect to the operations of the Developer at or upon any of the premises of the District 
in connection with the Agreement with the District, or acts or omissions of the additional 

Page 29 of 405



5 

D25005 

insureds in connection with, but limited to its general supervision or inspection of said operations 
and save for any claims arising from the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct the District. 

   b. No policy shall be canceled, limited, materially altered, or non-renewed by the 
insurer until thirty (30) days after receipt by the District of a written notice of such cancellation 
or reduction in coverage. 

   c. This insurance policy is primary insurance and no insurance held or owned by 
the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under this policy.   

5. BONDING REQUIREMENTS 

 5.1. Developer shall obtain a cost proposal for the approved water improvement plans 
from a pre-approved Contractor as stated in Section 3.2 of this agreement  The cost proposal will 
be submitted to the District for review and approval, and shall be used as the basis for bonding 
requirements for the water system described in the plans provided to the District by the 
Developer and approved for construction by the District.  

 5.2. Performance Bond:  The cost proposal for the water system improvements for 
Water Improvement Plans for Sierra Industrial Building, is (Developer to Provide Bond 

Amount at Later Date) no/100 dollars (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date). 
Developer shall and by this Agreement does guarantee the Developer's faithful performance of 
this Agreement and all of its terms and conditions by providing the following: Developer shall 
provide the District with a performance bond, from a surety institution licensed by the State of 
California and authorized to do and doing business in said State, valid and renewable until such 
improvements are accepted by the District.  The performance bond attached herein at Exhibit 
“C”, shall be in the amount of (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date) no/100 
dollars (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date) equal to 100 percent of the cost 
proposal. 

 5.3. Warranty Bond:  The pre-approved Contractor shall furnish a two-year warranty 
bond for all work completed in accordance with the water improvement plans attached herein as 
Exhibit "B". Before District's acceptance of the completed water facilities and appurtenances, 
such facilities and appurtenances shall be free from any and all liens and encumbrances and free 
from any and all defects in the materials or construction thereof. The two-year warranty shall be 
a warranty bond beginning on the date of acceptance of the water facilities by the District and 
shall be in the amount of (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date) no/100 dollars 
(Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date) equal to 100 percent of the Contractor’s 
cost proposal. 

6. MATERIALS 

 6.1. The water system facilities to be installed pursuant to this Agreement shall become 
an extension of the distribution system of the District.  All materials used must conform to 
District specifications for such materials pursuant to all applicable legal requirements.   

7. NOTICES 

Page 30 of 405



6 

D25005 

 7.1. All notices herein required shall be in writing, and delivered in person or sent by 
registered mail, postage prepaid. 

 

 

 

 7.2. Notices required shall be given to the District addressed as follows: 
 
   WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
   Attn:  General Manager 
   Post Office Box 920 
   Rialto, CA  92377 
   RE: Water Improvement Plans for Sierra Industrial Building 
 
 7.3. Notices required shall be given to Developer addressed as follows: 
 
   DEVELOPER NAME: Fontana Sierra Industrial, LLC 
   ATTN TO: Jason Korengold 
   ADDRESS: 130 Vantis Street, Suite 200, Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 
   RE: Water Improvement Plans for Sierra Industrial Building 
 
 7.4. Notices required shall be given to Surety addressed as follows: 
   SURETY NAME: TBD 

   ATTN TO: TBD 

   ADDRESS: TBD 
   RE: Water Improvement Plans for Sierra Industrial Building 

 
 7.5. Provided that any party or Surety may change such address by notice in writing to 
the other party, and thereafter, notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. 

 7.6. The Developer or its contractor shall provide the District forty-eight (48) hours 
advance notice of request for inspection or testing.  

8. NOTICE TO PROCEED TO CONSTRUCT WATER SYSTEM 

FACILITIES 

 8.1. Upon acceptance of the insurance and aforementioned bonds in the amounts 
provided herein and approval by the District and upon payment of all applicable charges, the 
Agreement shall be signed by Developer and the District.  The District shall return an original 
copy of the signed Agreement with a letter to Developer giving notice to proceed to construct the 
water system facilities. 

9. INSPECTION 

Page 31 of 405



7 

D25005 

 9.1. It is understood that the sole purpose and intent of the District's inspection and 
testing is to validate that the materials, workmanship, and construction of the water facilities are 
in compliance with the District-approved final plans, the District’s Rules and Regulations, the   
Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, the Standard Drawings, and all other applicable District 
requirements.  Developer acknowledges and represents that it assumes full and sole 
responsibility for the safety and management of the project. 

 9.2. Developer shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for 
inspection by the District to all parts of the work and to the shops wherein the work is in 
preparation.  Additionally, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, the District 
shall have the authority to enter the work site at any time for the purpose of identifying the 
existence of conditions, either actual or threatened, that may present a danger of hazard to any 
and all employees.  Developer agrees that the District, in its sole authority and discretion, may 
order the immediate abatement of any and all conditions that may present an actual or threatened 
danger or hazard to any and all employees at the work site.  Furthermore, Developer 
acknowledges the provisions of California Labor Code Section 6400 et seq., which requires that 
employers shall furnish employment and a place of employment that is safe and healthful for all 
employees working therein.  In the event the District identifies the existence of any condition 
that presents an actual or threatened danger or hazard to any or all employees at the work site, 
the District is hereby authorized to order an immediate abatement of that condition. 

 9.3. All work and materials shall be subject to inspection, testing, and acceptance by the 
District at Developer's expense.  In the event Developer arranges to have materials fabricated for 
the project, Developer may be required to arrange for the District to inspect that material during 
fabrication at Developer's expense. 

 9.4. All material fabrications shall be preapproved by the District and must conform to 
District standards and specifications. 

 9.5. The District's inspectors shall have full, unlimited access to perform continuous 
inspection and have the authority to stop work at any time, by written notice or verbal notice 
followed by written notice within three (3) working days, without any liability whatsoever to the 
District, if, in the inspectors' judgment, the work called for by this Agreement, or the District 
approved plans, or the specifications is not being installed or performed in a satisfactory and 
workmanlike manner according to District's standards and specifications and/or in the event the 
materials do not comply with the District's standards and specifications.  

 9.6. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor
 performs work with District inspection. If work is done without District inspection, the 
Contractor shall be responsible for exposing any portion of work as directed by the District at 
their sole expense. The District will not provide permanent water services until all required 
inspections are completed and any requirements set forth by the District have been satisfied. 

 9.7 Final acceptance of all material to be purchased or fabricated by Developer under 
this Agreement shall be made only with the prior approval of the District.  Approval by the 
District, however, shall not operate to relieve the material supplier or Developer of any 
guarantees, warranties, or the duty of compliance with any of the requirements of the approved 

Page 32 of 405



8 

D25005 

plans and specifications or of this Agreement.  All construction pursuant to this Agreement shall 
be inspected pursuant for conformity with District requirements.  Developer shall pay actual 
costs for inspections. 

10. TESTING AND DISINFECTION 

 10.1. All water system facilities and components constructed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall adhere to all requirements for testing, disinfection, and flushing pursuant to District 
standards and Legal Requirements. 

 

11. RELOCATIONS, RECONSTRUCTIONS, AND DAMAGES 

 11.1. Developer accepts the responsibility for and the costs occasioned by any 
reconstruction, relocation, damages to, or changes of water services or facilities caused or 
contributed to directly or indirectly by any subsequent changes in the location of any of said 
facilities or water meters or water services. 

12. AS-CONSTRUCTED DOCUMENTATION 

 12.1. In order for the District to accept the facilities, Developer shall provide all required 
documentation as specified in the Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, including as-built 
drawings. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION 

 13.1. Developer hereby agrees to and shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold the 
District and its board members , officers, agents, employees, and engineers free and harmless 
from any and all liability losses, damages, claims, liens, demands and cause of action of every 
kind and character including, but not limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interests, 
court costs, attorney's/legal fees, and all other expenses incurred by the District arising in favor 
of any party, including claims, liens, debts, demands for lost wages or compensation, personal 
injuries, including employees or the District, death or damages to property (including property of 
the District) and without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of every 
character occurring or in any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly 
out of the obligations herein undertaken or out of the operations conducted by Developer save 
and except claims or litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of 
the District or the District's agents and employees.  Developer shall investigate, handle, respond 
to, provide defense for and defend any such claims, demand, or suit at the sole expense of 
Developer even if the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false or fraudulent.  Developer 
agrees to, and shall defend the District and its members, directors, officers, agents, employees, 
and engineers from any suits or actions at law or in equity for damages caused, or alleged to have 
been caused, by reason of any of the aforesaid operations, provided as follows: 

   a. That the District does not and shall not waive any rights against Developer 
which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement, because of the 

Page 33 of 405



9 

D25005 

acceptance by the District, or the deposit with District by Developer, or any of the insurance 
policies described in this Agreement. 

   b. That the aforesaid hold harmless agreement by Developer shall apply to all 
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by 
reason of any or the aforesaid operations referred to in this subsection, regardless of whether or 
not District has prepared, supplied water system installation, or regardless of whether or not such 
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for 
damages. 

 This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any third party 
against Developer or the District or to enlarge in any way Developer's liability but is intended 
solely to provide for indemnification of the District from liability for damage or injuries to third 
persons or property arising from Developer's performance hereunder. 

 13.2. Neither Developer nor any of Developer's agents, contractors or subcontractors are, 
or shall be, considered to be agents of the District in connection with the performance of 
Developer's obligations under this Agreement. 

14. REPAIR OR RECONSTRUCTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

 14.1. If, within a period of two years after final acceptance of the work performed under 
this Agreement, any structure or part of any structure furnished and/or installed or constructed, or 
caused to be installed or constructed by Developer, or any of the work done under this 
Agreement, fails to fulfill any of the requirement of this Agreement or the specifications referred 
to herein, Developer shall, without delay and without any cost to District, repair or replace or 
reconstruct any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the work structure.  Should 
Developer fail to act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or should the exigencies 
of the situation as determined by the District in the exercise of its sole discretion require repair, 
replacement or reconstruction before Developer can be notified, District may, at its option, make 
the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and Developer shall pay to 
the District the actual cost of such repairs. 

15.  COSTS AND FEES 

 15.1. Developer shall be responsible for all fees and deposits as required by the District.  
All fees and deposits shall be paid in full before construction can take place as outlined in the 
billing letter (provided separately).  

 15.2. Any additional costs and fees shall be paid in full prior to conveyance and 
acceptance of the water system. 

16. CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER SYSTEM 

 16.1. Upon completion of the water system in accordance with the approved water plans 
and submission of the required documentation, the Developer shall convey the water system to 
the District. 

Page 34 of 405



10 

D25005 

 16.2. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor furnish 
a warranty bond (One Hundred (100%) of Contractor’s cost proposal) for a period of two (2) 
years as stated in Sections 5.3 of this Agreement, as-built drawings with contractor redlines and 
AutoCAD files, materials list with quantities, water system cost breakouts, compaction test 
report signed and sealed by a California Registered Engineer, notice of completion filed with 
County Recorder’s office, fire flow tests of all hydrants, all required easements for water 
facilities and unconditional financial release from subcontractors and material providers.  Upon 
compliance with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District shall prepare the Bill 
of Sale accepting the water facilities and forward same to the address provided herein.  Title to 
the ownership of said facilities and appurtenances shall thereby be conveyed to the District.  The 
District shall thereafter operate and maintain said facilities so as to furnish water service to the 
development (Exhibit "A") in accordance with the District's ordinances, policies and Rules and 
Regulations. 

17. PERMANENT WATER SERVICE 

  17.1. In no event shall permanent water services be provided to Developer's installed 
system until all applicable charges and fees have been paid by Developer and all facilities have 
been conveyed, free of all encumbrances, to the District, including any easements which may be 
required.  Such conveyance shall occur in a timely manner in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

18. BREACH OR DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT 

 18.1. If Developer refuses or fails to obtain prosecution of the work, or any severable part 
thereof, with such diligence as will insure its completion within the time specified, or any 
extension thereof, or fails to obtain completion of said work within such time, or if Developer 
should be adjudged as bankrupt, or Developer should make a general assignment for the benefit 
of Developer's creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Developer's 
insolvency, or if Developer, or any of Developer's contractors, subcontractors, agents or 
employees, should violate any of the provisions of this Agreement, the District’s General 
Manager or the General Manager’s designee may serve written notice upon Developer and 
Developer's surety of breach of this Agreement, or of any portion therefore, and default of 
Developer. 

 18.2. In the event of any such notice, Developer's surety shall have the duty to take over 
and complete the work and the improvement herein specified; provided, however, that if the 
surety, within five (5) days after the serving upon of such notice of breach, does not give the 
District written notice of its intention to take over the performance of the contract, and does not 
commence performance thereof within five (5) days after notice to the District of such election, 
District may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or by any 
other method District may deem advisable, for the account and at the expense of Developer, and 
Developer's surety shall be liable to the District for any excess cost or damages occasioned 
District thereby; and, in such event, District, without liability for so doing, may take possession 
of, and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, plant and other property 
belonging to Developer as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore. 

Page 35 of 405



11 

D25005 

19. SUCCESSORS BOUND 

 19.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of the parties 
and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns. 

 

20. ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS 

 20.1. The District's failure to enforce any provisions of this Agreement or the waiver 
thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment on its part of 
any such provision, but the same shall nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement. 

  

 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:           Date:    
  John Thiel, General Manager 
 
 

 DEVELOPER:  

 FONTANA SIERRA INDUSTRIAL, LLC, 

 a California limited liability company 

 

By:   Shea Properties Management Company,                 

         Inc., a Delaware corporation, its manager 

 

  

 By:           Date:    
  Jason Korengold, Senior Vice President 
  Authorized Agent 

Page 36 of 405



Exhibit A 

Page 37 of 405



Ex
hi

bi
t A

Sa
n 

Be
rn

ar
di

no
 G

at
ew

ay
 B

us
in

es
s 

Pa
rk

/ 
AP

N
: 0

23
9-

15
1-

09
 a

nd
 0

23
9-

15
1-

38

15
 

FR
W

Y
21

0
FR

W
Y

10
FR

W
Y

21
5

FR
W

Y

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ar
ea

D
un

ca
n 

Ca
ny

on
 R

oa
d

Sierra Ave

W
 C

as
a 

G
ra

nd
e 

D
r

Page 38 of 405



Exhibit B

Page 39 of 405



Page 40 of 405



Page 41 of 405



Exhibit C

Page 42 of 405



1 

          BOND NO. ________________ 

 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

To WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT for Water System Installation in Accordance with 

Water Improvement Plans for San Bernardino Gateway Business Park/APN: 0239-151-09 

and 0239-151-38, (TBD). This premium charged on this bond is $________ being at the rate of 

$_____ per thousand of the contract price. 

 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 THAT, WHEREAS, the WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT has awarded to: 

Fontana Sierra Industrial, LLC: 

130 Vantis, Suite 200, Aliso Viejo, CA 92656: 

 
as the "Principal", an agreement for the work described as follows: 

  San Bernardino Gateway Business Park/APN: 0239-151-09 and 0239-151-38 - 

Water System Installation in Accordance with Approved Water Improvement 

Plans for San Bernardino Gateway Business Park, dated (TBD).  

 WHEREAS, the said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a 

bond for the faithful performance of labor and materials of said contract: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, WE the undersigned Developer, as Principal, and 

___________________________________________ (Name of Surety) 

_______________________(Address of Surety) duly authorized to transact business under the 

laws of the State of California, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the WEST VALLEY 

WATER DISTRICT in the sum (TBD – DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT LATER DATE) 

no/100 dollars (TBD – DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT LATER DATE), lawful money of 

the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, 

our heirs, executors, administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these 

presents. 

Page 43 of 405



2 

 THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the above bounded 

Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things 

stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform all the undertakings, terms, 

covenants, conditions and agreements in the said agreement and any alteration thereof made as 

therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed, at the time and in the manner 

therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall 

indemnify and save harmless the WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, its officers, agents, and 

as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and 

remain in full force and effect.  In case suit is brought on this bond, Surety further agrees to pay 

all court costs and reasonable attorney's fees as shall be fixed by the court. 

 And the said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 

extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the agreement or to the work to be 

performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its 

obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, 

alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this ______ day of 

______________, 2024. 

ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED 

 

PRINCIPAL 

FONTANA SIERRA INDUSTRIAL, LLC, 

a California limited liability company 

By:  Shea Properties Management Company,                 

Inc., a Delaware corporation, its manager 

 
By:_____________________________                                         
 Jason Korengold 
 
 Authorized Agent 

Page 44 of 405



3 

 

 

(NOTARIZATION AND SEAL) 

 

 

SURETY 

 

 

                                

 

 

(NOTARIZATION AND SEAL) 

 

 

Page 45 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         Joanne Chan, Director of Operations
 

SUBJECT:   Purchase of a New 2024 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
 
10/24/24     Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee     REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND:

The West Valley Water District (District) has four (4) backhoe loaders ranging from 8 to 28 years old.  The backhoe
loader is one of the most utilized pieces of equipment for field staff and is essential to the Operations Department
year-round.  Additionally, it is used by multiple departments for various tasks such as excavation, asphalt and road
repairs, sinkhole restorations, pulling services, loading road raw materials onto the dump truck  and sludge
handling at the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Plant.  District staff has identified a need to purchase a new
backhoe loader to complete various tasks efficiently and effectively.

DISCUSSION: 

District staff researched and found a contract awarded by the Sourcewell that would be in the best interest of the
District to “piggyback” from.  Sourcewell is a State local government unit and service cooperative created under the
laws of the State of Minnesota that facilitates a competitive public solicitation and contract award process for the
benefit of its 50,000+ participating entities across the United States and Canada. 

Piggybacking is a term used when an agency uses an existing procurement contract from another agency as
justification and documentation to form their own contract directly with the vendor to purchase the same or similar
items or services.  Under section 10:  Exceptions to Competitive Sourcing of the District’s Purchasing/Procurement
Policy, piggybacking is permitted as an exception to competitive sourcing thus not requiring the District to conduct
formal solicitation.  Sourcewell’s formal solicitation process is substantially similar to that of the District’s process
and participation by the District is also permitted.

Page 46 of 405



Sourcewell issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for heavy construction equipment with related attachments and
technology, including backhoe loaders on November 15, 2022 and final proposals were due on January 17, 2023. 
Eighteen firms submitted proposals for various heavy construction equipment.  In evaluating the proposals,
Sourcewell scored for categories including conformance to RFP Requirements, Pricing, Financial Viability and
Marketplace Success, Ability to Sell and Deliver Service, Marketing Plan, Value added Attributes, Warranty, and
Depth and Breadth of Offered Equipment, Products, or Services.  Caterpillar, Inc. scored the highest overall. 
Sourcewell awarded a contract expires on April 14, 2027 for heavy construction equipment with related
attachments and technology to Caterpillar, Inc. By piggybacking with Sourcewell’s agreement, the District has
realized savings of 22% ($46,000.90) for a total of $182,313.64 for a new 2024 Caterpillar Backhoe Loader.

Sourcewell’s solicitation and proposal evaluation documents are attached as Exhibit A.

District staff contacted QUINN Cat in Riverside to obtain a quote for a new 2024 Caterpillar backhoe loader shown
in Exhibit B.

FISCAL IMPACT:
 
This item is included in the Fiscal Year 2024/25 Capital Budget and will be funded from project number W25025
title “Caterpillar Backhoe” with a budget of $190,000.00. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors:

1. Authorize participating in Sourcewell contract pricing with QUINN CAT in Riverside to purchase a new 2014
Caterpillar Backhoe Loader; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

 

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - Sourcewell Bid and Evaluation Documents.pdf
Exhibit B - QUINN CAT Riverside Contract Pricing.pdf

Page 47 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67297247a622140054eb8922%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Sourcewell%20Bid%20and%20Evaluation%20Documents.pdf?alt=media&token=1c238c15-54a6-4833-878f-cd40f807efe6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67297247a622140054eb8922%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Sourcewell%20Bid%20and%20Evaluation%20Documents.pdf?alt=media&token=1c238c15-54a6-4833-878f-cd40f807efe6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67297247a622140054eb8922%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Sourcewell%20Bid%20and%20Evaluation%20Documents.pdf?alt=media&token=1c238c15-54a6-4833-878f-cd40f807efe6
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67297247a622140054eb8922%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20QUINN%20CAT%20Riverside%20Contract%20Pricing.pdf?alt=media&token=ab355d40-4698-494c-934a-1dad026cf6ba
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67297247a622140054eb8922%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20QUINN%20CAT%20Riverside%20Contract%20Pricing.pdf?alt=media&token=ab355d40-4698-494c-934a-1dad026cf6ba
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67297247a622140054eb8922%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20QUINN%20CAT%20Riverside%20Contract%20Pricing.pdf?alt=media&token=ab355d40-4698-494c-934a-1dad026cf6ba


 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48 of 405



 
RFP #011723 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
for  

Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and Technology 
 

Proposal Due Date: January 17, 2023, 4:30 p.m., Central Time  
 

 
Sourcewell, a State of Minnesota local government unit and service cooperative, is requesting 
proposals for Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and Technology to result 
in a contracting solution for use by its Participating Entities. Sourcewell Participating Entities 
include thousands of governmental, higher education, K-12 education, nonprofit, tribal 
government, and other public agencies located in the United States and Canada. A full copy of 
the Request for Proposals can be found on the Sourcewell Procurement Portal 
[https://proportal.sourcewell-mn.gov]. Only proposals submitted through the Sourcewell 
Procurement Portal will be considered. Proposals are due no later than January 17, 2023, at 4:30 
p.m. Central Time, and late proposals will not be considered. 
 

SOLICITATION SCHEDULE 
 

Public Notice of RFP Published: November 15, 2022 

Pre-proposal Conference: December 6, 2022, 10:00 a.m., Central Time 

Question Submission Deadline: January 9, 2023, 4:30 p.m., Central Time 

Proposal Due Date: January 17, 2023, 4:30 p.m., Central Time 
Late responses will not be considered. 
 

Opening: January 17, 2023, 6:30 p.m., Central Time 
See RFP Section V.G. “Opening” 

Page 49 of 405

https://proportal.sourcewell-mn.gov/


I. ABOUT SOURCEWELL 
 
A. SOURCEWELL 
  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government unit and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that facilitates 
a competitive public solicitation and contract award process for the benefit of its 50,000+ 
participating entities across the United States and Canada. Sourcewell’s solicitation process 
complies with State of Minnesota law and policies, conforms to Canadian trade agreements 
(including Canadian Free Trade Agreement, Ontario-Quebec Trade and Cooperation 
Agreement, and Canada-European Union Comprehensive Economic and Trade Agreement, as 
applicable), and results in cooperative purchasing solutions from which Sourcewell’s 
Participating Entities procure equipment, products, and services.   
 
Cooperative purchasing provides participating entities and suppliers increased administrative 
efficiencies and the power of combined purchasing volume that result in overall cost savings. At 
times, Sourcewell also partners with other purchasing cooperatives to combine the purchasing 
volume of their membership into a single solicitation and contract expanding the reach of 
contracted suppliers’ potential pool of end users.  
 
Sourcewell uses a website-based platform, the Sourcewell Procurement Portal, through which 
all proposals to this RFP must be submitted.  
   
B. USE OF RESULTING CONTRACTS 
 
In the United States, Sourcewell’s contracts are available for use by:  

• Federal and state government entities1; 
• Cities, towns, and counties/parishes; 
• Education service cooperatives; 
• K-12 and higher education entities; 
• Tribal government entities; 
• Some nonprofit entities; and  
• Other public entities.  

 
In Canada, Sourcewell’s contracts are available for use by:  

• Provincial and territorial government departments, ministries, agencies, boards, 
councils, committees, commissions, and similar agencies; 

• Indigenous self-governing bodies; 
• Regional, local, district, and other forms of municipal government, municipal 

organizations, school boards, and publicly funded academic, health, and social service 

1 Pursuant to HAR §3-128-2, the State of Hawaii, Department of Accounting and General Services, State Procurement Office, on behalf of the 
State of Hawaii and participating jurisdictions, has provided notice of its Intent to Participate in the solicitation as a participating entity. 

  

Page 50 of 405



entities referred to as MASH sector (this should be construed to include but not be 
limited to the Cities of Calgary, Edmonton, Toronto, Ottawa, and Winnipeg), as well as 
any corporation or entity owned or controlled by one or more of the preceding entities; 

• Crown corporations, government enterprises, and other entities that are owned or 
controlled by these entities through ownership interest; and 

• Members of the Canoe procurement group of Canada, and their partner associations: 
Canoe members are regional, local, district or other forms of municipal government, 
school boards, publicly-funded academic, health and social service entities in Alberta 
and across Canada, as well as any corporation or entity owned or controlled by one or 
more of the preceding entities – as well as partner associations, including Saskatchewan 
Association of Rural Municipalities, Association of Manitoba Municipalities, Local 
Authorities Services/Association of Municipalities Ontario, Nova Scotia Federation of 
Municipalities, Federation of Prince Edward Island Municipalities, Municipalities 
Newfoundland Labrador, Union of New Brunswick Municipalities, North West 
Territories Association of Communities, CivicInfo BC, and their members.  

For a listing of current United States and Canadian Participating Entities visit Sourcewell’s 
website (note: there is a tab for each country): https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/sourcewell-for-
vendors/agency-locator. 

Participating Entities typically access contracted equipment, products, or services through a 
purchase order issued directly to the contracted supplier. A Participating Entity may request 
additional terms or conditions related to a purchase. Use of Sourcewell contracts is voluntary 
and Participating Entities retain the right to obtain similar equipment, products, or services 
from other sources. 
 
To meet Participating Entities’ needs, Sourcewell broadly publishes public notice of all 
solicitation opportunities, including this RFP. In addition, where applicable, other purchasing 
cooperatives and procurement officials receive notice and are encouraged to re-post the 
solicitation opportunity.  
 
Proof of publication will be available at the conclusion of the solicitation process. 
 

II. SOLICITATION DETAILS 
 
A. SOLUTIONS-BASED SOLICITATION  
 
This RFP and contract award process is a solutions-based solicitation; meaning that Sourcewell 
is seeking equipment, products, or services that meet the general requirements of the scope of 
this RFP and that are commonly desired or are required by law or industry standards.   
 

Page 51 of 405

https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/sourcewell-for-vendors/agency-locator
https://www.sourcewell-mn.gov/sourcewell-for-vendors/agency-locator


B. REQUESTED EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
It is expected that proposers will offer a wide array of equipment, products, or services at lower 
prices and with better value than what they would ordinarily offer to a single government 
entity, a school district, or a regional cooperative. 
 
1. Sourcewell is seeking proposals for Heavy Construction Equipment with Related 
Attachments and Technology, including, but not to limited to, the following types of heavy 
construction equipment: 
 

a. Wheeled, tracked, and backhoe loaders; 
b. Motor graders; 
c. Wheeled and tracked excavators; 
d. Bulldozers, compactors, scrapers, articulated and rigid haulers; and, 
e. Cranes. 

 
Proposers may include related equipment, accessories, attachments, technology, and services, 
to the extent these solutions are ancillary or complementary to the equipment, products, or 
services being proposed. 
 
2. A Proposal must include at least one of the following four equipment types to be 
considered within scope of this solicitation. For purposes of Section II. B. 2. and its subsections, 
the term “published” means information that is readily available within the proposer’s printed 
literature or website and the proposer has verified the accuracy of the information: 
 

a. A wheel loader with published net horsepower (HP) of at least 300 HP; 
b. A wheeled or tracked excavator with a published net horsepower of at least 150 HP; 
c. A motor grader with a published maximum operating weight of at least 30,000 lbs; or, 
d. A rough terrain, all terrain, crawler, floating, lattice, or telescopic crane with a published 

maximum lifting capacity of at least 300 tons and a published maximum boom length of 
at least 150 feet. 

 
3. The primary focus of this solicitation is on Heavy Construction Equipment with Related 
Attachments and Technology. This solicitation should NOT be construed to include: 

 
a. Construction services; and, 
b. Equipment accessory, attachment, and supply only solutions. 

 
4. This solicitation does not include those equipment, products, or services covered under 
categories included in pending or planned Sourcewell solicitations, or in contracts currently 
maintained by Sourcewell, identified below: 
 

a. Equipment Rental with Related Services (RFP #062320); 
b. Forklifts and Lift Trucks with Related Services (RFP #091520); 

Page 52 of 405



c. Grounds Maintenance Equipment, Attachments, Accessories, and Related Services (RFP 
#031121); 

d. Roadway Maintenance Equipment (RFP #080521); 
e. Public Utility Equipment with Related Accessories and Supplies (RFP #110421); 
f. Roadway Paving Equipment (RFP #060122); 
g. Medium Construction Equipment with Related Accessories, Attachments, and Supplies 

(RFP #TBD); and, 
h. Portable Construction Equipment with Related Accessories and Attachments (RFP 

#TBD). 
 

Generally, the solutions for Participating Entities are turn-key solutions, providing a 
combination of equipment, products and services, delivery, and installation to a properly 
operating status. However, equipment-only or products-only solutions may be appropriate for 
situations where Participating Entities possess the ability, either in-house or through local third-
party contractors, to properly install and bring to operation the equipment or products being 
proposed. 
 
Sourcewell prefers suppliers that provide a sole source of responsibility for the equipment, 
products, and services provided under a resulting contract. If proposer is including the 
equipment, products, and services of its subsidiary entities, the proposer must also identify all 
included subsidiaries in its proposal. If proposer requires the use of distributors, dealers, 
resellers, or subcontractors to provide the equipment, products, or services, the proposal must 
address how the equipment, products or services will be provided to Participating Entities, and 
describe the network of distributors, dealers, resellers, and/or subcontractors that will be 
available to serve Participating Entities under a resulting contract.  
 
Sourcewell encourages suppliers to offer the broadest possible selection of equipment, 
products, and services being proposed over the largest possible geographic area and to the 
largest possible cross-section of Sourcewell current and future Participating Entities. 
 
C. REQUIREMENTS 
 
It is expected that proposers have knowledge of all applicable industry standards, laws, and 
regulations and possess an ability to market and distribute the equipment, products, or services 
to Participating Entities.  
 

1. Safety Requirements. All items proposed must comply with current applicable safety or 
regulatory standards or codes. 

2. Deviation from Industry Standard. Deviations from industry standards must be 
identified with an explanation of how the equipment, products, and services will provide 
equivalent function, coverage, performance, and/or related services.   

3. New Equipment and Products. Proposed equipment and products must be for new, 
current model; however, proposer may offer certain close-out equipment or products if 
it is specifically noted in the Pricing proposal. Proposers may also include used 

Page 53 of 405



equipment, attachments, or accessories, to the extent that the offering of used 
equipment, attachments, accessories, is ancillary or complementary to an offering of 
new, current model equipment and products. 

4. Delivered and operational. Unless clearly noted in the proposal, equipment and 
products must be delivered to the Participating Entity as operational. 

5. Warranty. All equipment, products, supplies, and services must be covered by a 
warranty that is the industry standard or better.   

 
D. ANTICIPATED CONTRACT TERM 
 
Sourcewell anticipates that the term of any resulting contract(s) will be four years, with an 
optional one-year extension that may be offered based on the best interests of Sourcewell and 
its Participating Entities.   
 
E. ESTIMATED CONTRACT VALUE AND USAGE 
 
Based on past volume of similar contracts, the estimated annual value of all transactions from 
contracts resulting from this RFP are anticipated to be USD $950 Million; therefore, proposers 
are expected to propose volume pricing. Sourcewell anticipates considerable activity under the 
contract(s) awarded from this RFP; however, sales and sales volume from any resulting contract 
are not guaranteed. 

 
F. MARKETING PLAN 
 
Proposer’s sales force will be the primary source of communication with Participating Entities. 
The proposer’s Marketing Plan should demonstrate proposer’s ability to deploy a sales force or 
dealer network to Participating Entities, as well as proposer’s sales and service capabilities. It is 
expected that proposer will promote and market any contract award. 
 
G. ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

1. Contracts will be awarded to proposers able to best meet the need of Participating 
Entities. Proposers should submit their complete line of equipment, products, or 
services that are applicable to the scope of this RFP.  

2. A proposer may submit only one proposal. If related, affiliated, or subsidiary entities 
elect to submit separate proposals, rather than a single parent-entity proposal, each 
such proposal must be prepared independently and without cooperation, collaboration, 
or collusion. 

3. If a proposer works with a consultant on its proposal, the consultant (an individual or 
company) may not assist any other entity with a proposal for this solicitation. 

4. Proposers should include all relevant information in its proposal, since Sourcewell 
cannot consider information that is not included in the proposal. Sourcewell reserves 
the right to verify proposer’s information and may request clarification from a proposer, 
including samples of the proposed equipment or products. 

Page 54 of 405



5. Depending upon the responses received in a given category, Sourcewell may need to 
organize responses into subcategories in order to provide the broadest coverage of the 
requested equipment, products, or services to Participating Entities. Awards may be 
based on a subcategory. 

6. A proposer’s documented negative past performance with Sourcewell or its 
Participating Entities occurring under a previously awarded Sourcewell contract may be 
considered in the evaluation of a proposal.   

 
III. PRICING 

A. REQUIREMENTS 
 
All proposed pricing must be: 
 

1. Either Line-Item Pricing or Percentage Discount from Catalog Pricing, or a combination of 
these: 
a. Line-item Pricing is pricing based on each individual product or services. Each line must 

indicate the proposer’s published “List Price,” as well as the “Contract Price.”  
b. Percentage Discount from Catalog or Category is based on a percentage discount from 

a catalog or list price, defined as a published Manufacturer’s Suggested Retail Price 
(MSRP) for the products or services. Individualized percentage discounts can be 
applied to any number of defined product groupings. Proposers will be responsible 
for providing and maintaining current published MSRP with Sourcewell, and this 
pricing must be included in its proposal and provided throughout the term of any 
contract resulting from this RFP.  

2. The proposer’s not to exceed price. A not to exceed price is the highest price for which 
equipment, products, or services may be billed to a Participating Entity. However, it is 
permissible for suppliers to sell at a price that is lower than the contracted price.  

3. Stated in U.S. and Canadian dollars (as applicable). 
4. Clearly understandable, complete, and fully describe the total cost of acquisition (e.g., the 

cost of the proposed equipment, products, and services delivered and operational for its 
intended purpose in the Participating Entity’s location). 

 
Proposers should clearly identify any costs that are NOT included in the proposed product or 
service pricing. This may include items such as installation, set up, mandatory training, or initial 
inspection. Include identification of any parties that impose such costs and their relationship to 
the proposer. Additionally, proposers should clearly describe any unique distribution and/or 
delivery methods or options offered in the proposal.  
 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 
 
Proposers awarded a contract are expected to pay to Sourcewell an administrative fee in 
exchange for Sourcewell facilitating the resulting contracts. The administrative fee is normally 
calculated as a percentage of the total sales to Participating Entities for all contracted equipment, 

Page 55 of 405



products, or services made during a calendar quarter, and is typically one percent (1%) to two 
percent (2%). In some categories, a flat fee may be an acceptable alternative. 

 
IV. CONTRACT 

 
Proposers awarded a contract will be required to execute a contract with Sourcewell (see 
attached template). Only those modifications the proposer indicates in its proposal will be 
available for discussion. Much of the language in the Contract reflects Minnesota legal 
requirements and cannot be altered. Numerous and/or onerous exceptions that contradict 
Minnesota law may result in the proposal being disqualified from further review and 
evaluation.   
 
To request a modification to the template Contract, a proposer must submit the Exceptions to 
Terms, Conditions, or Specifications table with its proposal. Only those exceptions noted at the 
time of the proposal submission will be considered. 
Exceptions must: 

1. Clearly identify the affected article and section. 
2. Clearly note the requested modification; and as applicable, provide requested 

alternative language. 
Unclear requests will be automatically denied.   
 
Only those exceptions that have been accepted by Sourcewell will be included in the contract 
document provided to the awarded supplier for signature. 
 
If a proposer receives a contract award resulting from this solicitation it will have up to 30 days 
to sign and return the contract. After that time, at Sourcewell’s sole discretion, the contract 
award may be revoked. 
 

V. RFP PROCESS 
 

A. PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 
 
Sourcewell will hold an optional, non-mandatory pre-proposal conference via webcast on the 
date and time noted in the Solicitation Schedule for this RFP and on the Sourcewell 
Procurement Portal. The purpose of this conference is to allow potential proposers to ask 
questions regarding this RFP and Sourcewell’s competitive contracting process. Information 
about the webcast will be sent to all entities that have registered for this solicitation 
opportunity through their Sourcewell Procurement Portal Vendor Account. Pre-proposal 
conference attendance is optional. 
 
B. QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP AND ORAL COMMUNICATION   
 
All questions regarding this RFP must be submitted through the Sourcewell Procurement Portal. 
The deadline for submission of questions is found in the Solicitation Schedule and on the 

Page 56 of 405



Sourcewell Procurement Portal. Answers to questions will be issued through an addendum to 
this RFP. Repetitive questions will be summarized into a single answer and identifying 
information will be removed from the submitted questions.   
 
All questions, whether specific to a proposer or generally related to the RFP, must be submitted 
using this process. Do not contact individual Sourcewell staff to ask questions or request 
information as this may disqualify the proposer from responding to this RFP. Sourcewell will not 
respond to questions submitted after the deadline.  
 
C. ADDENDA  
 
Sourcewell may modify this RFP at any time prior to the proposal due date by issuing an 
addendum. Addenda issued by Sourcewell become a part of the RFP and will be delivered to 
potential proposers through the Sourcewell Procurement Portal. Sourcewell accepts no liability 
in connection with the delivery of any addenda. 
 
Before a proposal will be accepted through the Sourcewell Procurement Portal, all addenda, if 
any, must be acknowledged by the proposer by checking the box for each addendum. It is the 
responsibility of the proposer to check for any addenda that may have been issued up to the 
solicitation due date and time.  
 
If an addendum is issued after a proposer submitted its proposal, the Sourcewell Procurement 
Portal will WITHDRAW the submission and change the proposer’s proposal status to 
INCOMPLETE. The proposer can view this status change in the “MY BIDS” section of the 
Sourcewell Procurement Portal Vendor Account. The proposer is solely responsible to check the 
“MY BIDS” section of the Sourcewell Procurement Portal Vendor Account periodically after 
submitting its proposal (and up to the Proposal Due Date). If the proposer’s proposal status has 
changed to INCOMPLETE, the proposer is solely responsible to: 

i) make any required adjustments to its proposal;  
ii) acknowledge the addenda; and 

iii) ensure the re-submitted proposal is received through the Sourcewell Procurement Portal 
no later than the Proposal Due Date and time shown in the Solicitation Schedule above. 

 
D. PROPOSAL SUBMISSION 
 
Proposer’s complete proposal must be submitted through the Sourcewell Procurement Portal 
no later than the date and time specified in the Solicitation Schedule. Any other form of 
proposal submission, whether electronic, paper, or otherwise, will not be considered by 
Sourcewell. Late proposals will not be considered. It is the proposer’s sole responsibility to 
ensure that the proposal is received on time.  
 
It is recommended that proposers allow sufficient time to upload the proposal and to resolve 
any issues that may arise. The time and date that a proposal is received by Sourcewell is solely 
determined by the Sourcewell Procurement Portal web clock. 

Page 57 of 405



 
In the event of problems with the Sourcewell Procurement Portal, follow the instructions for 
technical support posted in the portal. It may take up to 24 hours to respond to certain issues.   
 
Upon successful submission of a proposal, the Sourcewell Procurement Portal will automatically 
generate a confirmation email to the proposer. If the proposer does not receive a confirmation 
email, contact Sourcewell’s support provider at support@bidsandtenders.ca. 
 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this solicitation, or 
if the proposer has obtained this solicitation document from a third party, the onus is on the 
proposer to create a Sourcewell Procurement Portal Vendor Account and register for this 
solicitation opportunity. 
 
Within the Sourcewell Procurement Portal, all proposals must be digitally acknowledged by an 
authorized representative of the proposer attesting that the information contained in in the 
proposal is true and accurate. By submitting a proposal, proposer warrants that the information 
provided is true, correct, and reliable for purposes of evaluation for potential contract award. 
The submission of inaccurate, misleading, or false information is grounds for disqualification 
from a contract award and may subject the proposer to remedies available by law. 

 
E. GENERAL PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Proposals must be: 

• In substantial compliance with the requirements of this RFP or it will be considered 
nonresponsive and be rejected. 

• Complete. A proposal will be rejected if it is conditional or incomplete.  
• Submitted in English.  
• Valid and irrevocable for 90 days following the Proposal Due Date. 

 
Any and all costs incurred in responding to this RFP will be borne by the proposer.  
 
F. PROPOSAL WITHDRAWAL 
 
Prior to the proposal deadline, a proposer may withdraw its proposal.  
 
G. OPENING 
 
The Opening of proposals will be conducted electronically through the Sourcewell Procurement 
Portal. A list of all proposers will be made publicly available in the Sourcewell Procurement 
Portal after the Proposal Due Date, but no later than the Opening time listed in the Solicitation 
Schedule. 
 

Page 58 of 405

mailto:support@bidsandtenders.ca


To view the list of proposers, verify that the Sourcewell Procurement Portal opportunities list 
search is set to “All” or “Closed.” The solicitation status will automatically change to “Closed” 
after the Proposal Due Date and Time. 

 
VI. EVALUATION AND AWARD 

 
A. EVALUATION 
 
It is the intent of Sourcewell to award one or more contracts to responsive and responsible 
proposers offering the best overall quality, selection of equipment, products, and services, and 
price that meet the commonly requested specifications of Sourcewell and its Participating 
Entities. The award(s) will be limited to the number of proposers that Sourcewell determines is 
necessary to meet the needs of its Participating Entities. 
 
Factors to be considered in determining the number of contracts to be awarded in any category 
may include the following: 

• Total evaluation scores (giving consideration to natural breaks in the scoring of 
responsive proposals); 

•  The number and geographic location of highest-scoring proposers that offer: 
o A comprehensive selection of the requested equipment, products, or services; 
o A sales and service network ensuring availability and coverage for Participating 

Entities’ use; and 
o Other attributes of the proposer or contents of its proposal that assist Participating 

Entities in achieving environmental and social requirements, and goals. 
 
Information submitted as part of a proposal should be as specific as possible when responding 
to the RFP. Do not assume Sourcewell has any knowledge about a specific supplier or product. 
 
B. AWARD(S) 
 
Award(s) will be made to the highest-scoring proposer(s) whose proposal conforms to all 
conditions and requirements of the RFP, and consistent with the award criteria defined in this 
RFP. 
 
Sourcewell may request written clarification of a proposal at any time during the evaluation 
process. 
 
Proposal evaluation will be based on the following scoring criteria and the Sourcewell Evaluator 
Scoring Guide (a copy is available in the Sourcewell Procurement Portal): 
 

Conformance to RFP Requirements 50 
Financial Viability and Marketplace Success 75 
Ability to Sell and Deliver Service  100 
Marketing Plan 50 

Page 59 of 405



Value Added Attributes 75 
Warranty 50 
Depth and Breadth of Offered Equipment, Products, or Services 200 
Pricing 400 
TOTAL POINTS 1000 

 
C. PROTESTS OF AWARDS 
 
Any protest made under this RFP by a proposer must be in writing, addressed to Sourcewell’s 
Executive Director, and delivered to the Sourcewell office located at 202 12th Street NE, P.O. 
Box 219, Staples, MN 56479. All documents that comprise the complete protest package must 
be received, and time stamped at the Sourcewell office by 4:30 p.m., Central Time, no later 
than 10 calendar days following Sourcewell’s notice of contract award(s) or non-award.  and 
must be time stamped by Sourcewell no later than 4:30 p.m., Central Time. A protest must 
allege a procedural, technical, or legal defect, with supporting documentation. A protest that 
merely requests a re-evaluation of a proposal’s content will not be entertained  
 
A protest must include the following items: 

• The name, address, and telephone number of the protester; 
• Identification of the solicitation by RFP number; 
• A precise statement of the relevant facts; 
• Identification of the alleged procedural, technical, or legal defect;  
• Analysis of the basis for the protest;  
• Any additional supporting documentation;  
• The original signature of the protester or its representative; and 
• Protest bond in the amount of $20,000 (except where prohibited by law or treaty).  

 
Protests that do not address these elements will not be reviewed. 
 
D. RIGHTS RESERVED 
 
This RFP does not commit Sourcewell to award any contract, and a proposal may be rejected if 
it is nonresponsive, conditional, incomplete, conflicting, or misleading. Proposals that contain 
false statements or do not support an attribute or condition stated by the proposer may be 
rejected. 
 
Sourcewell reserves the right to: 

• Modify or cancel this RFP at any time; 
• Reject any and all proposals received; 
• Reject proposals that do not comply with the provisions of this RFP; 
• Select, for contracts or for discussion, a proposal other than that with the lowest cost; 
• Independently verify any information provided in a proposal; 

Page 60 of 405



• Disqualify any proposer that does not meet the requirements of this RFP, is debarred or 
suspended by the United States or Canada, State of Minnesota, Participating Entity’s 
state or province; has an officer, or other key personnel, who have been charged with a 
serious crime; or is bankrupt, insolvent, or where bankruptcy or insolvency are a 
reasonable prospect; 

• Waive or modify any informalities, irregularities, or inconsistencies in the proposals 
received; 

• Clarify any part of a proposal and discuss any aspect of the proposal with any proposer; 
and negotiate with more than one proposer; 

• Award a contract if only one responsive proposal is received if it is in the best interest of 
Participating Entities; and 

• Award a contract to one or more proposers if it is in the best interest of Participating 
Entities.  

 
E. DISPOSITION OF PROPOSALS 

 
All materials submitted in response to this RFP will become property of Sourcewell and will 
become public record in accordance with Minnesota Statutes Section 13.591, after negotiations 
are complete. Sourcewell considers that negotiations are complete upon execution of a 
resulting contract. It is the proposer’s responsibility to clearly identify any data submitted that 
it considers to be protected. Proposer must also include a justification for the classification 
citing the applicable Minnesota law. Sourcewell may reject proposals that are marked 
confidential or nonpublic, either substantially or in their entirety. 

 
Sourcewell will not consider the prices submitted by the proposer to be confidential, 
proprietary, or trade secret materials. Financial information, including financial statements, 
provided by a proposer is not considered trade secret under the statutory definition. 
 
 

Page 61 of 405



 

 

12/15/2022  

Addendum No. 1 
Solicitation Number: RFP 011723 
Solicitation Name: Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and 
Technology 
 
Consider the following Question and Answer to be part of the above-titled solicitation 
documents.  The remainder of the documents remain unchanged. 

 

Question 1: 

Is a proposer required to have a CAGE or Unique Entity Identifier (SAM) code? 

Answer 1: 

A CAGE or Unique Entity Identifier (SAM) code is not required to be considered for or 
awarded a Sourcewell contract. Proposals are evaluated based on the criteria as stated 
in the RFP. 
 
Refer to the General Instructions above Questionnaire Table 1.  Respond “N/A” if a 
question does not apply (preferably with an explanation). 
 

 

End of Addendum 

Acknowledgement of this Addendum to RFP 011723 posted to the Sourcewell 
Procurement Portal on 12/15/2022, is required at the time of proposal submittal. 
 

Page 62 of 405



 

 

12/21/2022  

Addendum No. 2 
Solicitation Number: RFP 011723 
Solicitation Name: Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and 
Technology 
 
Consider the following amendment to be part of the above-titled solicitation 
documents.  The remainder of the documents remain unchanged. 

 

RFP Amendment: 

As the result of the publication of two RFPs included in the equipment, products, or 
services of this solicitation, RFP Subsections II. B. 4. g - h. are revised to remove the (RFP 
#####) placeholders, update the RFP title of RFP Subsection II. B. 4. g., and insert the 
actual RFP numbers, to read as follows: 

* * * * 

g. Medium Duty and Compact Construction Equipment with Related 
Attachments (RFP #020223); and, 

h. Portable Construction Equipment with Related Accessories and 
Attachments (RFP #020923). 

* * * * 
 

The remainder of the RFP content remains unchanged. 
 

 

End of Addendum 

Acknowledgement of this Addendum to RFP 011723 posted to the Sourcewell 
Procurement Portal on 12/21/2022, is required at the time of proposal submittal. 
 

Page 63 of 405



 

 

12/29/2022  

Addendum No. 3 
Solicitation Number: RFP 011723 
Solicitation Name: Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and 
Technology 
 
Consider the following Questions and Answers to be part of the above-titled solicitation 
documents.  The remainder of the documents remain unchanged. 

 

Question 1: 

What information does Sourcewell require, if any, on a quote provided by an awarded 
supplier to a participating entity? 

Answer 1: 

Refer to Section 6. A. – Orders and Payment, of the Sourcewell contract template. 
“…order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and Supplier. 
Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Supplier or its authorized 
subsidiary, distributor, dealer, or reseller.” 

Question 2: 

How does Sourcewell track what is sold on the contract for administrative fee 
verification from an awarded supplier? 

Answer 2: 

Refer to Section 8. A. – Contract Sales Activity Report, of the Sourcewell contract 
template. “Each calendar quarter, Supplier must provide a contract sales activity report 
(Report) to the Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator assigned to this 
Contract.  

Refer also to Section 8. B. – Administrative Fee, of the Sourcewell contract template. 
“Supplier agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this 
Contract to ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this 
Contract.” 

Page 64 of 405



 

End of Addendum 

Acknowledgement of this Addendum to RFP 011723 posted to the Sourcewell 
Procurement Portal on 12/29/2022, is required at the time of proposal submittal. 
 

Page 65 of 405



 

 

01/6/2023  

Addendum No. 4 
Solicitation Number: RFP 011723 
Solicitation Name: Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and 
Technology 
 
Consider the following Questions and Answers to be part of the above-titled solicitation 
documents.  The remainder of the documents remain unchanged. 

 

Question 1: 

Is there a dollar amount limit for non-contract, sourced, or open market items that can 
be included in a proposal? Are they also subject to the administrative fee? 

Answer 1: 

Sourcewell has not set a specific dollar limit for non-contract, sourced, or open market 
items. However, to be considered for a contract award a proposer’s primary offering of 
equipment, products, or services must be within scope of RFP Section II. B. – Requested 
Equipment, Products, or Services. 

Refer to RFP Section III. B. – Administrative Fees and Section 8. B. – Administrative Fee 
of the Sourcewell contract template for additional information regarding administrative 
fees. It is left to the discretion of each proposer to determine and propose an 
administrative fee that is consistent with its business and its industry. 

Question 2: 

Can you elaborate more and/or give an example on what you are looking for in the 
question below from Table 10, Line Item 55 from the proposal questionnaire? 

Describe any standard transaction documents that you propose to use in 
connection with an awarded contract (order forms, terms and conditions, service 
level agreements, etc.). Upload a sample of each (as applicable) in the 
document upload section of your response. 

Page 66 of 405



Answer 2: 

It is left to the discretion of each proposer to determine the content and format of the 
data and documentation that best represents their proposal. Sourcewell will consider 
the relevant information submitted in each proposal and apply the evaluation criteria as 
set forth in the RFP. 

 

End of Addendum 

Acknowledgement of this Addendum to RFP 011723 posted to the Sourcewell 
Procurement Portal on 01/6/2023, is required at the time of proposal submittal. 
 

Page 67 of 405



 

 

01/10/2023  

Addendum No. 5 
Solicitation Number: RFP 011723 
Solicitation Name: Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and 
Technology 
 
Consider the following Questions and Answers to be part of the above-titled solicitation 
documents.  The remainder of the documents remain unchanged. 

 
Question 1: 

Regarding Line Item 17 of the proposer questionnaire, are there any specific licenses or 
certifications that you are looking for? 

Answer 1: 

In the competitive process, Sourcewell will not advise a proposer on the content of the 
proposal. It is left to the discretion of each proposer to determine the information 
necessary to best demonstrate their ability to serve Sourcewell participating entities. 
Proposals are evaluated based on the criteria stated in the RFP. 

Question 2: 

Regarding Line Items 24 & 25 of the proposer questionnaire, if we don't do any direct 
business with eligible Sourcewell participants, government, education or non-profit 
customers are the references required? 

Answer 2: 

In the competitive process, Sourcewell will not advise a proposer on the content of the 
proposal. It is left to the discretion of each proposer to determine the information 
necessary to best demonstrate their financial viability and marketplace success. 
Proposals are evaluated based on the criteria stated in the RFP. 

 

End of Addendum 

Acknowledgement of this Addendum to RFP 011723 posted to the Sourcewell 
Procurement Portal on 01/10/2023, is required at the time of proposal submittal. 
 

Page 68 of 405



The
New York State
Contract Reporter

This document printed
Tuesday, 11/15/2022

NYS' official source of contracting opportunities
Bringing business and government together

Contracting Opportunity

Title: Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and Technology
Agency: Sourcewell

Division: Procurement Department
Contract Number: 011723

Contract Term: 4 years, with potential 1 year extension
Date of Issue: 11/15/2022

Due Date/Time: 01/17/2023 4:30 PM 
Central Time

County(ies): All NYS counties
Classification: Vehicles & Equipment - Commodities

Opportunity Type: General
Entered By: Chris Robinson
Description: Sourcewell, a State of Minnesota local government unit and service

cooperative, is requesting proposals for Heavy Construction Equipment with
Related Attachments and Technology to result in a contracting solution for
use by its Participating Entities. Sourcewell Participating Entities include
thousands of governmental, higher education, K-12 education, nonprofit,
tribal government, and other public agencies located in the United States and
Canada. A full copy of the Request for Proposals can be found on the
Sourcewell Procurement Portal [https://proportal .sourcewell-mn.gov]. Only
proposals submitted through the Sourcewell Procurement Portal will be
considered. Proposals are due no later than January 17, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.
Central Time, and late proposals will not be considered.

Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Set Aside: No

Business entities awarded an identical or substantially similar procurement
contract within the past five years: 

BOMAG Americas, Inc.

Caterpillar, Inc.

CNH Industrial America, LLC

Grove U.S. LLC dba Manitowoc

Hyundai Construction Equipment Americas, Inc.

1 of 5Page 69 of 405

https://proportal.sourcewell-mn.gov


John Deere Construction Retail Sales

Komatsu America Corp.

Link Belt Cranes

Volvo Construction Equipment North America, LLC

2 of 5Page 70 of 405



Contact Information

Primary contact: Sourcewell
Procurement Department
Chris Robinson
Procurement Manager
202 12th Street NE
P.O. Box 219
Staples, MN 56479
United States
Ph: 218-895-4168
rfp@sourcewell-mn.gov

Submit to contact: Sourcewell
Procurement Department
Chris Robinson
Procurement Manager
202 12th Street NE
P.O. Box 219
Staples, MN 56479
United States
Ph: 218-895-4168
rfp@sourcewell-mn.gov

3 of 5Page 71 of 405



Bid Results

Bid Results have not been entered

4 of 5Page 72 of 405



Awards

Awards have not been entered

   
  © 2022, Empire State Development http://www.esd.ny.gov/

5 of 5Page 73 of 405



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

STATE  OF  OREGON,  COUNTY  OF  MULTNOMAH--ss.
I,  Nick  Bjork  ,  being  first  duly  sworn,  depose  and  say  that  I  am  a  Publisher  of  the  Daily  Journal  of  Commerce  ,  a  newspaper 

of  general  circulation  in  the  counties  of  CLACKAMAS,  MULTNOMAH,  and  WASHINGTON    as  defined  by  ORS  193.010  and 

193.020;  published  at  Portland  in  the  aforesaid  County  and  State;  that  I  know  from  my  personal  knowledge  that  the  Goods  and 
Services  notice  described  as

11 NE Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. Suite 201 / Portland, OR 97232-3579
(503) 226-1311

Sourcewell; Bid Location Staples, MN, Todd County; Due 01/17/2023 at 04:30 PM

HEAVY CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT WITH RELATED ATTACHMENTS AND TECHNOLOGY

NOT PROVIDEDCase Number: 

a printed copy of which is hereto annexed, was published in the entire issue of said newspaper for 1 time(s) in the following 
issues: 

11/16/2022

Order No.: 

Client Reference No: 

12173819Carol Jackson
Sourcewell
202 12th St NE 
Staples, MN 56479-2438

Nick Bjork

SIGNED OR ATTESTED BEFORE ME

ON THE 16th DAY OF November, 2022

Notary Public-State of Oregon 

State of Oregon
County of Multnomah

Page 74 of 405



Page 75 of 405



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
Account # Order Number Identification Order PO Amount Cols Depth

34474 346675 Print Legal Ad-IPL00980790 - IPL0098079 $132.13 1 18 L

Attention: Carol Jackson

SOURCEWELL
PO BOX 219
STAPLES, MN 56479

State of South Carolina

County of Richland

I, Tara Pennington, makes oath that the
advertisment, was published in The State, a
newspaper published in the City of Columbia,
State and County aforesaid, in the issue(s) of

No. of Insertions: 1

Beginning Issue of: 11/15/2022

Ending Issue of: 11/15/2022

Tara Pennington

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 15th day
of November in the year of 2022

Notary Public in and for the state of Texas, residing in
Dallas County

Errors- the liability of the publisher on account of errors in or
omissions from any advertisement will in no way exceed the
amount of the charge for the space occupied by the item in
error, and then only for the first incorrect insertion.”

Extra charge for lost or duplicate affidavits.
Legal document please do not destroy!Page 76 of 405



2C ❚ FRIDAY NOVEMBER 18, 2022 ❚ USA TODAY SPORTS

Successful
Advertisements

start with
USA TODAY
Marketplace

To advertise in
USA TODAY, call:
1-800-397-0070

A Garden Observed:
Cultivating A Life

by Melanie Boyer

Enchanting 220 page
coffee-table devotional filled

with garden photography

Available on Amazon

BOOKS / PUBLICATIONS

MARKETPLACE

To advertise in USA TODAY,
call: (800) 397-0070

To view more Classified listings,

visit: classifieds.usatoday.com

BUSINESS
OPPORTUNITIES

BUSINESS

Your Prosperity and
Good Health Matters!
Great News! Visit us at

www.prosperityandgoodhealth.com

or call our 24/7
Toll Free Hotline

1-888-701-0320
Affiliate Opp.

AUCTIONS

AUCTIONS

US Treasury
Dept. Auctions

Seized, Forfeited & Abandoned Assets
Real Estate • Boats • Planes • Designer Goods
Jewelry • Watches • Gold • Electronics & More!

No Buyer’s Premiums Charged

cwsmarketing.com

855-463-3183

HAVE YOU BEEN

CLASSIFIED AS A HIGH

RISK DRIVER DUE TO DUI,

DWI OR TICKETS FOR

AGGRESSIVE DRIVING?

THE CALL & QUOTE ARE FREE.

800-509-9315

Serenity is here

to help by making SR-22

insurance easy to get and

affordable for everyone.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

IMPROVE
YOUR CREDIT

SCORE

Are you getting hit

with high interest rates

because of a low credit

score? Improve it today!

800-852-4931

FREE Consultation

FREE Credit Evaluation

ELIMINATE your

overwhelming debt
We can help if your total
debt is $10,000 or more!

Avoid bankruptcy today and
start over completely debt-free.

800-825-1306

THE CALL IS FREE.

CREDIT CARD DEBT

MEDICAL DEBT

PERSONAL LOANS

FINANCIAL SERVICES

If you or a loved one has

been diagnosedwith

ovarian cancer after using

talcum based products

youmay be entitled to

significant compensation

800-208-3526

TALCUM
POWDER

SETTLEMENT

HEALTH/FITNESS

ATTENTION
If you’ve had Hernia Surgery

and have experienced any

800-478-7176800-478-7176

CALL THE HERNIA MESH

HELPLINE NOW AT

youmay be entitled to

COMPLICATIONS

SIGNIFICANT CASH
COMPENSATION.

HEALTH/FITNESS

NOTICES

Let it be known, an unrebutted

ecclesiastic agreement with

witnesses’ has been reached

between minister Diane-Marie and

the private men, Richard-Michael:

DeWine, Thomas-A.: Aigler,

David-J.: Claus, Eric: Smith,

Marc-A.: Linder, Christopher-J.:

Hilton, Kevin: Karn, Evan: Ely.

The full text of the agreement may be

seen at www.thewaythetruthandthe

lifedivinejesus.blogspot.com and

www.allcreatorsgifts.blogspot.com

INVEST $50K IN MEDIA
GET BACK $1 MILLION

Pot’l : Invest $50K, get back
$7K weekly for 156 weeks = $1 Million

Also, you can invest as
low as $99 or more as well

Visit: http://www.secrets40.com
or http://www.50kdeal.com

212-260-5650

INVESTMENTS

Sourcewell, a State of Minnesota local government unit
and service cooperative, is requesting proposals for

Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments
and Technology to result in a contracting solution

for use by its Participating Entities.

Sourcewell Participating Entities include thousands
of governmental, higher education, K-12 education,

nonprofit, tribal government, and other public agencies
located in the United States and Canada.

A full copy of the Request for Proposals can
be found on the Sourcewell Procurement Portal

https://proportal.sourcewell-mn.gov

Only proposals submitted through the Sourcewell
Procurement Portal will be considered.

Proposals are due no later than January 17, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.
Central Time, and late proposals will not be considered.

NOTICE TO OFFERORS

Instructional Aids, Materials and Athletic Products

Request for Proposal # 23-13P

1GPA will receive responses electronically via

OpenGov Procurement at:

https://procurement.opengov.com/portal/1GPA

Until December 15, 2022 @ 11:00 AM Arizona Time

Electronic sealed responses are required and will be

publicly opened through Zoom immediately following

the deadline for receiving responses.

See the solicitation for more information.

Solicitations may be downloaded online at the link above.

For additional information please contact

Rebecca Seifert at 866-306-3893 or rseifert@1gpa.org

PUBLIC NOTICE

Request for Proposal (RFP)
E&I Cooperative Services, Inc. invites the submission

of sealed proposals for:

EI00186~2022RFP for Learning Management Systems

Proposals are due by

1:00 PM ET on Monday, January 9, 2023.

Respondents must submit their RFP response using

E&I’s Electronic Sourcing Solution which is accessible via

https://www.eandi.org/contract-finder/rfp-development/.

E&I does not accept hard copy submissions or submissions through

any other medium other than its Electronic Sourcing Solution.

E&I is committed to developing mutually advantageous

business relationships with minority, women, disabled,

veteran, and service-disabled veteran-owned businesses.

PUBLIC NOTICE

SHADE SAIL
OPPORTUNITY

Make money as an Authorized

Dealer for the World’s leading

maker of Shade Sails. Go to:

www.custommadeshadesails.com

for the details and sign up.

Choice Partners, is a
national cooperative that
will be accepting proposals
in response to the following
Request for Proposals (RFP).
Interested proposers may go
to www.choicepartners.org
and register to download

the solicitation or
call 713.696.1337.

RFP 23/017KN
Office Supplies & Related
Items. All Proposals must
be received by Tuesday,

December 20, 2022 @ 2:00
pm central time via the

HCDE online eBid System at
the following link: https://
hcdeebid.ionwave.net.

Change Of Name
I, Harsh Saraiya s/o Pankaj Saraiya,

r/o San Francisco, CA shall be
known as Harsh Saraiya-Tran

for all future purposes.

CHANGE OF NAME

Verlander wins for third time at 39

At 39 and in his first season back
from Tommy John surgery, Justin Ver-
lander returned to the Houston Astros
and completed one of the finest seasons
of his 17-year MLB career, which earned
him his third Cy Young Award. 

The right-hander was unanimously
voted the American League winner
Wednesday by the Baseball Writers’ As-
sociation of America.

Chicago White Sox right-hander Dy-
lan Cease (14-8, 2.20 ERA) finished sec-
ond in the voting and Toronto Blue Jays
right-hander Alek Manoah (16-7, 2.24
ERA) finished third; both were named

on all 30 ballots.
Verlander is the 11th

pitcher to win three or
more Cy Young Awards,
also earning the honors
in 2011 and 2019. Roger
Clemens won a record
seven.

Verlander had pitched just six in-
nings since 2019 but dominated his op-
ponents over 175 innings in 2022. He
produced a 1.75 ERA, the lowest by an AL
pitcher in a full season since Hall of
Famer Pedro Martinez in 2000.

The future Hall of Famer and nine-
time All-Star also led the AL in wins (18),
WHIP (0.83), opponent batting average

(.186) and hits per nine innings (5.97). In
12 starts following a Houston loss, he
went 9-0 with a 1.11 ERA.

Verlander’s 220 adjusted ERA and
0.829 WHIP also ranked best in the ma-
jors.

Alcantara also Marlins’ 1st-timer 

Sandy Alcantara was named the Na-
tional League Cy Young Award winner
Wednesday, becoming the first pitcher
in Miami Marlins franchise history to
earn the honor and the third winner
hailing from the Dominican Republic.

Alcantara went 14-9 with a 2.28 ERA
in 32 starts, topping the majors with six

complete games and 228 2⁄3 innings
pitched. The workhorse right-hander
received all 30 first-place votes in
BBWAA balloting conducted at the end
of the regular season.

Alcantara, 27, was an All-Star for the
second time in his career and had a
sub-2.00 ERA as late as Aug 21. His 8.0
bWAR was the majors’ best, and he be-
came the first pitcher since 2016 to
throw at least six complete games. In
fact, no other team in baseball had more
than five in 2022.

Left-handers Max Fried of the Atlan-
ta Braves and Julio Urias of the Los An-
geles Dodgers finished second and
third.

MLB UNANIMOUS CY YOUNG WINNERS

Verlander 

ST. SIMONS ISLAND, Ga. – After
making his first cut on the PGA Tour as a
professional last week in Houston, Cole
Hammer is taking advantage of a spon-
sor’s exemption into the RSM Classic,
grabbing the first-round lead by carding
nine birdies for a career-low 8-under 64
at the Plantation Course at Sea Island
Resort.

“I almost blacked out
there for a little bit,”
Hammer said Thursday.
“It went by in a heartbeat,
but at the same time was
a long day.”

And an unseasonably
cold one at that. The tem-
perature at the seaside

course barely broke 50 degrees. Having
previously played in the Jones Cup, an
amateur tournament held at nearby
Ocean Forest, Hammer had experienced
the wind whipping off the water in these
parts and bundled up in four layers and
a beanie.

“When I played the Jones Cup, it was
35 degrees, blowing 30 and raining so I
told myself I’ll never play in weather like
that again,” he said. “I was ready for it.”

What Hammer wasn’t ready for was
six consecutive missed cuts to start his
pro career, an unexpectedly sharp
learning curve after a decorated ama-
teur career topped off by leading Texas
to a national championship in June.

“It was a really dark period and I
didn’t know what was going on,” he said.
“I just was putting so much pressure on
myself early in the tournament that I’d
get behind the 8-ball.”

After missing the cut at the Wynd-
ham Championship in August, he did a
deep dive on his swing with instructor
Bruce Davidson and is starting to see
the fruits of their labor. Ten days ago, he
narrowly missed securing guaranteed
starts at the final stage of Korn Ferry

Tour Q-School and then opened with a
74 in the opening round of the Cadence
Houston Open.

“As soon as I made a bogey, I felt like
the world was ending,” he explained.
“In Houston I just relaxed, took a deep
breath and I made some bogeys. I ba-
sically just told myself that I can come
back and nobody plays perfect golf and
that’s what I was trying to do.”

Hammer shot 65 in the second
round to make the cut and finished
T-27. It gave him a jolt of confidence,
especially when he found out after his
final round that he had secured a spon-
sor invite into the RSM Classic.

“I was batting zero on the PGA Tour.
I needed to get that monkey off my
back,” he said. “To do that in my home-
town event in Houston was huge for
me.”

Hammer noted that he didn’t sleep
well Wednesday night and started his
round with low expectations. “I hit my
best drive of the day on No. 1, my 10th
hole, and that swing gave me some
confidence going into the back nine. I
hit a wedge to like 2 feet and knocked
that in,” Hammer said.

That was his fifth birdie of the day
and before long he looked up and spied
his last name atop the leaderboard. “I
saw some cameras show up, I knew I
was doing something right,” he said.

Hammer’s opening-round 64 was a
stroke better than rookie Ben Griffin,
who also played the Plantation Course.
England’s Callum Tarren, who said the
weather reminded him a little too
much of home, and Beau Hossler tied
for the low round of the day at the Sea-
side Course with 6-under 64s. 

Hossler, a 27-year-old Texas grad
who is still seeking his first victory on
the PGA Tour, said he could relate to
Hammer’s slow start in the pro ranks:
“I think there’s a learning curve and
once he gets comfortable at this level,
just like I did, I think you start to say I
can compete with these guys.”

Hammer ‘almost
blacks out’ with 64
Adam Schupak
Golfweek | USA TODAY Network

Hammer 

NAPLES, Fla. – Lydia Ko made bo-
gey on the opening par 5 at Tiburon
Golf Club to begin the CME Group Tour
Championship, but that did nothing to
foreshadow the rest of the day.

Ko, leader of the Rolex Player of the
Year race and Vare Trophy, paces the
field after a 7-under 65 Thursday. The
25-year-old Kiwi holds the course rec-
ord at Tiburon, 62, and won this tour-
nament in 2014. She recorded eight
birdies and shot 31 on the back nine. 

“The first four holes into the wind is
a beast,” said Ko. “It’s a beast without
the wind. So I knew that if I could just
hang on and just stay patient, there
was going to be a lot of opportunities,
and I was able to grab a lot of them in
the back nine. So definitely nice to fin-
ish off that way.”

An 18-time winner on the LPGA, Ko
last won the LPGA Player of the Year in
2015. She leads Minjee Lee by one
point in the POY race. Lee opened with
a 71 and is tied for 23rd. Players must
finish in the top 10 to earn points.

Nelly Korda, winner of last week-
end’s Pelican Ladies Championship
and current No. 1, made a 20-footer for
bogey on the second hole that felt like a
birdie. She opened with a 4-under 68
with dropped shots, hitting all 14 fair-
ways. “It was kind of sporadically
windy,” said Korda, “but then I guess
once I got over a couple of my shots the
winds died, so those were my like two
mistakes.”

Brooke Henderson withdrew from
last week’s Pelican event with an inju-
ry to her upper back and said that she
wasn’t even sure if she could tee it up
this week. The Canadian lives part
time here in Naples and felt well
enough on Thursday to shoot 68. Hen-
derson, a two-time winner this year,
said she made some adjustments to
her swing to be able to play.

Danielle Kang spent four days with
Butch Harmon last week in Las Vegas
and felt good about swing changes
they’re making coming into the week,
jotting notes down on her glove. Kang
spent a month in South Korea with In-
bee Park, where she tied for 10th at the
BMW Ladies Championship.

Kang, who revealed over the summer
that she has a tumor on her spine, lost in
a playoff at the Walmart NW Arkansas
Championship to Atthaya Thitifkul and
tied for third at the LPGA Mediheal, af-
ter returning to competition after a
months-long break.

“I really wish at one point we can just
get to a point where I don’t want to be
associated with so much health things
as I’m here, I’m standing in front of you
guys, I’m playing golf,” said Kang.

“Body and being physically in the top
best shape is something we’re always
going to be thinking about as athletes.
So the way I warm up, the way I have to
approach certain type of things, is –
there has been obstacles that’s been set
in front of me, but that’s kind of part of
life, right? Nothing is going to be fluid.”

With so much on line,
Ko opens with 65 in CME
Beth Ann Nichols
Golfweek | USA TODAY Network

Lydia Ko took the first-round CME
Group Tour Championship lead with a
65 Thursday. LYNNE SLADKY/AP

Page 77 of 405



Page 78 of 405



Page 79 of 405



Page 80 of 405



Page 81 of 405



Page 82 of 405



Notice
Basic Information

Details

Dates

Contact Information

Pre-Bidding Events

Bid Submission Process

Estimated Contract Value (CAD) $3,800,000,000.00 (Not shown to suppliers)
Reference Number 0000236008
Issuing Organization Sourcewell
Owner Organization
Solicitation Type RFP - Request for Proposal (Formal)
Solicitation Number 011723
Title Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attachments and Technology
Source ID PP.CO.USA.868485.C88455

Location All of Canada, All of Canada
Purchase Type Duration:4 years
Description Sourcewell, a State of Minnesota local government unit and service

cooperative, is requesting proposals for Heavy Construction Equipment with
Related Attachments and Technology to result in a contracting solution for
use by its Participating Entities. Sourcewell Participating Entities include
thousands of governmental, higher education, K-12 education, nonprofit,
tribal government, and other public agencies located in the United States
and Canada. A full copy of the Request for Proposals can be found on the
Sourcewell Procurement Portal [https://proportal.sourcewell-mn.gov]. Only
proposals submitted through the Sourcewell Procurement Portal will be
considered. Proposals are due no later than January 17, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.
Central Time, and late proposals will not be considered.

Publication 2022/11/15 09:26:17 AM EST
Question Acceptance Deadline 2023/01/09 05:30:00 PM EST
Questions are submitted online No
Bid Intent Not Available
Closing Date 2023/01/17 05:30:00 PM EST

Prebid Conference 2022/12/06 01:00:00 AM EST

Procurement Department
218-894-1930
rfp@sourcewell-mn.gov

Event Type Prebid Conference
Attendance Recommended
Event date 2022/12/06 01:00:00 AM EST
Location Online Conference
Event Note Login information will be emailed two business days prior to the event.

Bid Submission Type Electronic Bid Submission
Pricing In attached document

Pricing In attached document
Bid Documents List

Item Name Description Mandatory

Bid Documents Documents defining the proposal Yes

011723 - Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attac...

2022/11/15 09:26:26 AM EST Page 1 of 2Page 83 of 405



Categories
Selected Categories

GSIN Category (1)

G Goods
Goods

N38 Construction, Mining, Excavating And Highway Maintenance  Equipment
Construction, Mining, Excavating And Highway Maintenance  Equipment

N3800 CONSTRUCTION, MINING, EXCAVATING AND HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE        EQUIPMENT
Construction, mining, excavating and highway maintenance equipment

MERX Category (1)

G Goods
Goods

G28 Special Purpose Vehicles
Special Purpose Vehicles

UNSPSC Categories (4)

22000000 Building and Construction Machinery and Accessories

22100000 Heavy construction machinery and equipment

22101500 Earth moving machinery

22101700 Heavy equipment components

22101900 Building construction machinery and accessories

22102000 Building demolition machinery and equipment

011723 - Heavy Construction Equipment with Related Attac...

2022/11/15 09:26:26 AM EST Page 2 of 2Page 84 of 405



Proposal Opening Record

Date of opening: January 17, 2023

Sourcewell posted Request for Proposal #011723, for the procurement of Heavy Construction Equipment with
Related Attachments and Technology, on the Sourcewell Procurement Portal [proportal.sourcewell mn.gov] on
Tuesday, November 15, 2022, and the solicitation remained in an open status within the portal until January 17,
2023, at 4:30 pm CT. The RFP required that all proposals be submitted through the Sourcewell Procurement
Portal no later than 4:30 pm CT on January 17, 2023, the date and time specified in the Solicitation Schedule.

The undersigned certify that all responses received on Request for Proposal #011723 were submitted through
the Sourcewell Procurement Portal, and that each Proposer’s response material was digitally sealed upon
submission and remained inaccessible until the due date and time specified in the Solicitation Schedule.

Responses were received from the following:

Caterpillar, Inc. Submitted 1/17/23 at 4:10:22 PM
CNH Industrial America, LLC Submitted 1/17/23 at 12:55:10 PM
Doosan Infracore North America Submitted 1/17/23 at 10:42:22 AM
Gradall Industries, Inc. Submitted 1/12/23 at 8:01:35 PM
Grove U.S., LLC dba Manitowoc Submitted 1/16/23 at 10:51:24 AM
Hitachi Construction Machinery America's, Inc. Submitted 1/17/23 at 11:11:54 AM
Hi Vac Corporation Submitted 1/16/23 at 4:23:39 PM
Hyundai Construction Equipment Americas, Inc. Submitted 1/15/23 at 10:14:34 AM
John Deere Shared Services, LLC Submitted 1/12/23 at 2:48:05 PM
Kobelco Construction Machinery U.S.A. Submitted 1/17/23 at 11:06:30 AM
Komatsu America Corp. Submitted 1/17/23 at 12:43:04 PM
LBX Company, LLC Submitted 1/16/23 at 8:44:10 AM
Liebherr USA, Co. Submitted 1/17/23 at 11:53:35 AM
Link Belt Cranes Submitted 1/16/23 at 2:39:01 PM
LiuGong Construction Machinery North America, LLC Submitted 1/17/23 at 1:47:35 PM
MAZIO ATTACHMENTS, LLC Submitted 1/17/23 at 3:41:06 PM
SANY America, Inc. Submitted 1/17/23 at 3:57:09 PM
Volvo Construction Equipment North America Submitted 1/10/23 at 9:00:46 AM

Page 85 of 405



The Proposals were opened electronically, and a list of all Proposers was made publicly available in the
Sourcewell Procurement Portal, on January 17, 2023, at 4:31:28 PM CT. All responsive proposals were then
submitted for review by the Sourcewell Evaluation Committee.

_________________________________________ ______________________________
Kim Austin, MBA, CPPB, Procurement Lead Analyst Carol Jackson, Procurement Analyst

Page 86 of 405



�����������	
����
��
����������
������	
 ���

������
��������
�����
 ������
�������
����������	
���

�����
����	
���
������
�����������
 ������� 
������!�	
��

���"#�
����������
�� �����
�������

����
 $%�������
�������	
��
�&���
�����
������


 �������	
���
'����(��
'�����

����������
��
)*'
 )�%���������
+,

--











































-.












































/0











































-/












































/1











































-.












































/0











































-.












































-2











































'����3

4,,
/50










































//6









































/21










































///









































576










































///









































/20










































///









































//0










































*�������
#��(���� 
���
 ���8������
�����
9+

17











































1:












































15











































1/












































:0











































1.












































12











































15












































15











































�(���� 
��
����
���
������

�

������

;,,
0.












































65











































76












































6.











































70












































70











































7:












































76











































67












































���8����3
'���
+,

-/











































-2












































-.











































-.












































/6











































-.












































/0











































-2












































-2











































#����
�����
�����(����

9+
11












































1-











































12












































:6











































:6












































12











































::












































:6











































1-












































<������ 
+,

--











































-2












































-.











































-2












































-2











































--












































-.











































-5












































-2











































�����
���
=������
��
 >������
$%�������	
 '������	
��
�������

?,,
27-










































217









































215










































2:-









































2/0










































212









































2-.










































215









































272










































@����
'�����
;	,,,

























6:7
6/6

706
625

756
626

716
621

6-1
)��8
>����

;
4

;4
;;

;A
B

;+
;,

C
D�(���
�����������
 ������� 	
���

D������
������
�����
�=E
������ 	
���

���(����
���
���
���8"=���
������

������3
�����������
 ������� 
�����
 ������	
���
��F�>
�@@����$�@�	
 ���

���G
������
#����
������ �����
 $%�������
�����
�����

�
'����(��
'�����

����������
��
)*'
 )�%���������
+,

-/











































-/












































/1











































/6












































-2











































-5












































-2











































--












































'����3
4,,

/-6









































/-/










































51:









































//1










































/50









































/-.










































/50









































//-










































*�������
#��(���� 
���
 ���8������
�����
9+

15











































1/












































::











































:7












































15











































::












































:0











































1-












































�(���� 
��
����
���
������
�


������
;,,

6.











































6/












































7/











































7:












































62











































6.












































70











































6:












































���8����3
'���
+,

-2











































-/












































/:











































/7












































-2











































-2












































-5











































-/












































#����
�����
�����(����
9+

1:











































1/












































:1











































:6












































1.











































1.












































1.











































1-












































<������ 
+,

-5











































-/












































-.











































-/












































-2











































--












































-5











































--












































�����
���
=������
��
 >������
$%�������	
 '������	
��
�������
?,,

2:-









































211










































2-1









































21:










































2:-









































2:6










































216









































2:0










































@����
'�����
;	,,,

























6/:
6-7

7.1
6.0

6.0
65.

65.
6/7

)��8
>����
A

?
;9

;?�+
;?�+

9�+
9�+

+






HIJKL
MNKOPKQR
STSU

R
SVSUR
TQNWXQKJKYZ
[KI
\
]YIÔLZ





















U_ẀIKO
UXaNbR
S
TTcR
TQNWXQKJKYZ
]YIÔL

Z









SIQNO
HIWPLNYR
TQNWXQ

KJKYZ
]YIÔLZ




















c_OO
dIe_LNYR
S

TTfR
ghiTjSTTR
TQNWXQKJ
KYZ
]YIÔLZ

'�������
$���������
���� 
�����������
$%��

�����
k���
)������
����
������
���
@������3 


)*'
l,;;9?C
mnopqrst
utvwxnyw
zm

{
|}~����u����u���u
����~��|��mm|����

�|

Page 87 of 405



2024 Sourcewell Caterpillar Cooperative Contract Discounts by Model

Machine Model*
New 

Equipment

2024
Discount to Customer

 (Off List Price)

Track Type Tractors Note

D1 23.00%

D1 Fire Dozer 23.00%

D2 23.00%

D2 Fire Dozer 23.00%

D3 23.00%

D3 Fire Dozer 23.00%

D4 23.00%

D5 23.00%

D5 Fire Dozer 23.00%

D6 23.00%

D7 19.00%

D8 19.00%

D9 One Time Only

D10 One Time Only

Wheeled Excavators

M314 26.00%

M315 26.00%

M316 26.00%

M317 26.00%

M318 26.00%

M320 26.00%

M322 26.00%

Material Handlers

MH3022 26.00%

MH3024 26.00%

MH3026 26.00%

MH3040 26.00%

MH3050 26.00%

MH3250 26.00%

MH3260 26.00%

Telehandlers

TH255 23.00%

TH408 24.00%

TL642 24.00%

TL943 24.00%

TL1055 24.00%

TL1255 24.00%

Motor Graders

120 34.00%

120GC 34.00%

140 30.00%

140GC 30.00%

150 30.00%

160 30.00%

14 19.00%

Skid Steer Loaders

226 21.00%

232 21.00%

236 21.00%

242 21.00%

246 21.00%

262 21.00%

272 21.00%

Compact Track Loaders

239 21.00%

249 21.00%

255 21.00%

259 21.00%

265 21.00%

279 21.00%

289 21.00%

299 21.00%
299XE Land Management 21.00%

Excavators

300.9 20.00%

301.5 20.00%

301.7 20.00%

301.8 20.00%

301.9 20.00%

302 20.00%

302.7 20.00%

303 20.00%

303.5 20.00%

304 20.00%

305 20.00%

306 20.00%

307.5 20.00%

308 20.00%

309 20.00%

310 20.00%

313 15.00%

313GC 16.00%

315 19.00%

315GC 20.00%

317 19.00%

317GC 20.00%

320 15.00%

320GC 16.00%

323 15.00%

325 15.00%
326 15.00%
330 15.00%
330GC 16.00%

335 15.00%

336 15.00%

340 16.00%

350 10.00%

352 10.00%

374 10.00%

395 10.00%

Non-Attached CAT OEM Work Tools are attachments sold on a standalone order without a machine purchase

Parts and Service is offered by the servicing dealer at local rates

Base machines must be properly configured with other mandatory and optional items from the price list before they are considered operational.

All new machines are subject to a commodity surcharge of up to 20% (In some cases, increased tire costs may cause this number to be greater)

All new attachments (CAT work tools) are subject to a commodity surcharge of up to 25%

Dealer costs (example: pre delivery inspection, assembly, freight to final location, etc.) are not subject to list discount

Attachments (CAT work tools) purchased with new machine on same invoice are subject to same list discount as machine 

1 of 2
#Caterpillar: Confidential Green

Page 88 of 405



Machine Model*
New 

Equipment

2024
Discount to Customer

 (Off List Price)

Forest Machines

538 15.00%

548 15.00%

558 15.00%

568 15.00%

Backhoe Loaders

415 22.00%

416 22.00%

420 22.00%

428 Side Shift 22.00%

430 22.00%

432 Side Shift 22.00%

434 Side Shift 22.00%

440 22.00%

450 22.00%

Wheel Tractor Scrapers

621 18.00%

623 18.00%

627 18.00%

631 18.00%

637 18.00%

651 18.00%

657 18.00%

Articulated Trucks

725 17.00%

730 17.00%

735 17.00%

740GC 17.00%

745 17.00%

Rigid Frame Trucks

770 3.00%

773 3.00%

775 3.00%

Landfill Compactors

816 12.00%

826 12.00%

836 12.00%

Wheel Dozers and Soil Compactors

814 15.00%

815 13.00%

824 15.00%

825 13.00%

834 One Time Only

Wheel Loaders

903 23.00%

906 23.00%

907 23.00%

908 23.00%

910 23.00%

914 23.00%

920 24.00%

926 24.00%

930 24.00%

938 24.00%

950GC 20.00%

950 18.00%

962 18.00%

966GC 20.00%

966 15.00%

972 11.00%

980 11.00%

982 11.00%

988 11.00%

988GC 11.00%

Track Loaders

953 19.00%

963 22.00%

973 23.00%

Non-Attached CAT OEM Worktools 15.00%

Parts & Service N/A

Technology Solutions N/A

Caterpillar Safety Services 15.00%

Job Site Solutions N/A

2 of 2
#Caterpillar: Confidential Green

Page 89 of 405



 
 

Solicitation Number: RFP # 011723 
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and Caterpillar Inc., 100 NE Adams Street, Peoria, IL 61629 (Supplier). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government unit and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to eligible 
federal, state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada. 
Sourcewell issued a public solicitation for Heavy Construction Equipment with Related 
Attachments and Technology from which Supplier was awarded a contract.     

  
Supplier desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires April 14, 2027, unless it is 
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 22. This Contract may be extended one additional year 
upon the request of Sourcewell and written agreement by Supplier. 
 
C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Notwithstanding any expiration or termination of this Contract, all 
payment obligations incurred prior to expiration or termination will survive, as will the 
following: Articles 11 through 14 survive the expiration or cancellation of this Contract. All 
other rights will cease upon expiration or termination of this Contract. 
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Supplier will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Supplier’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 90 of 405



Pursuant to Section 10(b), Supplier will subcontract certain obligations under this Contract to its 
dealers. Only those dealers that sign a Participation Agreement with Supplier obligating them to 
comply with the terms of this Contract will be eligible to provide Equipment, Products, or 
Services as a subcontractor under this Contract. In the event there is no dealer who has entered 
into a Participation Agreement available to provide Equipment, Products, or Services to a 
Participating Entity, Supplier will be under no obligation to provide Equipment, Products, or 
Services to such Participating Entity under this Contract. Supplier will provide a copy of this 
Contract to its dealers that would normally service Participating Entities and invite such dealers 
to enter into a Participation Agreement as a subcontractor of Supplier under the terms of this 
Contract.  
 
All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new and the current model.  
Supplier may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated 
in Supplier’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.  
 
B. WARRANTY. Supplier warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. 
In addition, Supplier warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Supplier’s dealers 
and distributors must agree to assist the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any 
dispute over warranty terms with the manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that extends 
beyond the expiration of the Supplier’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity.   
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution and throughout 
the Contract term, Supplier must provide to Sourcewell a current means to validate or 
authenticate Supplier’s authorized dealers, distributors, or resellers relative to the Equipment, 
Products, and Services offered under this Contract, which will be incorporated into this 
Contract by reference. It is the Supplier’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most 
current information.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced at or below the 
percentage list discount stated in the supplier’s proposal. 
 
Upon request made to a participating CAT dealer, from a Participating Entity identifying 
themselves as a Sourcewell member by providing their Sourcewell member number and 
contract number; formal quotes will list all costs, including all delivery expenses, such as freight 
and permits (when required). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 91 of 405



Alternatively, Participating Entities may choose to make their own transportation 
arrangements. In such case, there would be no delivery charges from the local participating Cat 
dealer. 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Supplier must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. 
Participating Entities reserve the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable 
time after delivery where circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the 
Equipment and Products at the time of delivery. In the event of the delivery of nonconforming 
Equipment and Products, the Participating Entity will notify the Supplier as soon as possible and 
the Supplier will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with conforming Equipment 
and Products that are acceptable to the Participating Entity. 
   
Supplier must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Supplier in breach of this Contract if the Supplier intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products.  
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Supplier with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Supplier may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Supplier determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 92 of 405



4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Supplier may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator. This 
approved form is available from the assigned Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator. 
At a minimum, the request must:  
 

• Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
• Clearly specify the requested change; 
• Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
• Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 
along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 
• Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 
effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 
restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will become an amendment 
to this Contract and will be incorporated by reference.  

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.  Supplier 
may not enter into a contract with a U.S. Federal Government entity prior to obtaining 
necessary internal approvals and shall not be obligated to provide Equipment, Products or 
Services to any U.S. Federal Government entity under this Contract unless separately agreed in 
writing. Caterpillar may work with such parties and may agree to provide equipment or services 
under the Contract on a case-by-case basis. 
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. Supplier understands that a Participating 
Entity’s use of this Contract is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating 
Entities reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
 
Supplier is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential participating entities 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 93 of 405



to join Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its 
roster during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Supplier’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Supplier’s employees and agents must conduct themselves 
in a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Supplier that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Supplier. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Participating Dealers with 
payments made to the Participating Dealers. If a Participating Entity issues a purchase order, it 
may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly note the applicable Sourcewell 
contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this Contract must be issued prior to 
expiration or cancellation of this Contract; however, Supplier performance, Participating Entity 
payment obligations, and any applicable warranty periods or other Supplier or Participating 
Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract.  
 
Supplier’s acceptable forms of payment are included in its attached Proposal.  Participating 
Entities will be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no liability for any 
unpaid invoice of any Participating Entity.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order, or other required transaction documentation, may be 
negotiated between a Participating Entity and Supplier’s Participating Dealer, such as job or 
industry-specific requirements, legal requirements (e.g., affirmative action or immigration 
status requirements), or specific local policy requirements. Some Participating Entities may 
require the use of a Participating Addendum, the terms of which will be negotiated directly 
between the Participating Entity and Supplier’s Participating Dealer or its authorized dealers, 
distributors, or resellers, as applicable.  Any negotiated additional terms and conditions must 
never be less favorable to the Participating Entity than what is contained in this Contract. 
 
C. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements not addressed in this Contract (such as e-
commerce specifications, specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and 
requirements), the Participating Entity and the Supplier may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 94 of 405



D. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Supplier in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the equipment, products, or services to be purchased; or 
2. Federal, state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements. 

 
E. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Supplier will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

• Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
• Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
• Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Supplier must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, sales data reports, performance issues, supply 
issues, customer issues, and any other necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Supplier must provide a 
contract sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator 
assigned to this Contract. Reports are due no later than 45 days after the end of each calendar 
quarter. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Supplier must submit a report indicating no sales were 
made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

• Participating Entity Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
• Participating Entity Physical Street Address; 
• Participating Entity City; 
• Participating Entity State/Province; 
• Participating Entity Zip/Postal Code; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 95 of 405



• Participating Entity Contact Name; 
• Participating Entity Contact Email Address; 
• Participating Entity Contact Telephone Number; 
• Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
• Item Purchased Description; 
• Item Purchased Price;  
• Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
• Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Supplier. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Supplier will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not 
added to, the pricing. Supplier may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted 
price to offset the Administrative Fee. 
 
The Supplier will submit payment to Sourcewell for the percentage of administrative fee stated 
in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services purchased 
by Participating Entities under this Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments should 
note the Supplier’s name and Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo; and must be 
mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable” or remitted electronically to 
Sourcewell’s banking institution per Sourcewell’s Finance department instructions. Payments 
must be received no later than 45 calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

 
Supplier agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Supplier is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Supplier in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  
 

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Supplier’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Supplier’s Proposal. If 
Supplier’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Supplier must 
promptly notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 96 of 405



10. AUDIT, ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 
 
A. AUDIT. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 
documents, and accounting procedures and practices relevant to this Contract are subject to 
examination by Sourcewell or the Minnesota State Auditor for a minimum of six years from the 
end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 
B. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party may assign or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under 
this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Any prohibited 
assignment will be invalid. Provided, however, that Supplier is permitted to subcontract certain 
of its rights and obligations to Supplier Participating Dealers for performance without 
Sourcewell’s prior written consent. 
 
C. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been duly executed by the parties.   
 
D. WAIVER. Failure by either party to take action or assert any right under this Contract will 
not be deemed a waiver of such right in the event of the continuation or repetition of the 
circumstances giving rise to such right. Any such waiver must be in writing and signed by the 
parties. 
 
E. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract represents the complete agreement between the 
parties. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or oral, may be used 
to bind either party. For any conflict between the attached Proposal and the terms set out in 
Articles 1-22 of this Contract, the terms of Articles 1-22 will govern. 
 
F. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 
respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  
 

11. INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS 
 
Intentionally omitted. 

 
12. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 

 
Supplier and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 97 of 405



under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, maintained, or 
disseminated by the Supplier under this Contract.  
 

13. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. Intentionally Deleted. 
 

B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Supplier individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Send all approval requests to the Sourcewell Supplier Development 
Administrator assigned to this Contract.   
 
D. ENDORSEMENT. The Supplier must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
The substantive and procedural laws of the State of Minnesota will govern this Contract. Venue 
for all legal proceedings arising out of this Contract, or its breach, must be in the appropriate 
state court in Todd County, Minnesota or federal court in Fergus Falls, Minnesota.  
 

15. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

16. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, 
unenforceable, or void then both parties will be relieved from all obligations arising from that 
provision. If the remainder of this Contract is capable of being performed, it will not be affected 
by such determination or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

17. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 98 of 405



1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Supplier will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes 
the issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  
2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Supplier may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Supplier will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Supplier must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Supplier fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, the Supplier will bear any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its 
Participating Entities as a result of such failure to proceed. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
The party claiming default must provide written notice of the default, with 30 calendar days to 
cure the default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 

• Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
• Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 
Contract. 

 
18. INSURANCE 

  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Supplier must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect 
at all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 99 of 405



2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Supplier will maintain insurance covering its 
operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no less 
broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for products liability-completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Supplier will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles 
in limits of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms 
no less broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), 
or equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 
4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Supplier will maintain 
umbrella coverage over Employer’s Liability, Commercial General Liability, and 
Commercial Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
Failure of Supplier to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Supplier must 
furnish to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must 
be signed by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. 
 
Failure to request certificates of insurance by Sourcewell, or failure of Supplier to provide 
certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves Supplier of its duties and responsibilities in 
this Contract. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 100 of 405



C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Supplier agrees to list Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including 
their officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Supplier’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 
“work” performed by or on behalf of Supplier, and products and completed operations of 
Supplier. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is 
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible 
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds. A Participating Dealer may 
name a Participating Entity as an additional insured on a case-by-case basis.  
 
 
WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Supplier waives and must require (by endorsement or otherwise) 
all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional insureds for 
losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other insurance applicable 
to the Supplier or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all deductibles and/or self-
insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance maintained by the Supplier 
or its subcontractors. 
 
 
D. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY/SELF-INSURED RETENTION. The limits required by this 
Contract can be met by either providing a primary policy or in combination with 
umbrella/excess liability policy(ies), or self-insured retention. 
 

19. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 

 
B. LICENSES. Supplier’s Participating Dealers must maintain a valid and current status on 
all required federal, state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the  
operation of the business that the Participating Dealer conducts with Sourcewell and  
Participating Entities. 

 
20. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Supplier certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Supplier declares bankruptcy, Supplier must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 101 of 405



Supplier certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 
government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Supplier certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Supplier further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

21. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Intentionally omitted. 

22. CANCELLATION 
 

Sourcewell or Supplier may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Supplier’s 
Proposal.  Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or 
service obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 
 
 
 

Sourcewell           Caterpillar Inc. 
 
 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz Patrick Kearns 

Title: Chief Procurement Officer Title: Vice President Sales & Marketing, 
Construction Industries 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Approved:  
 
 

 

By: __________________________  
Chad Coauette  

Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89B

5/5/2023 | 9:41 AM CDT 5/24/2023 | 9:13 AM PDT

5/24/2023 | 12:16 PM CDT

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 102 of 405



RFP 011723 - Heavy Construction Equipment with Related
Attachments and Technology

 

Vendor Details

Company Name: Caterpillar Inc

Address:
100 NE Adams St

Peoria, IL 61629

Contact: Sean Egel

Email: egel_sean_j@cat.com

Phone: 309-675-1399

HST#:

Submission Details

Created On: Tuesday November 15, 2022 14:22:18

Submitted On: Tuesday January 17, 2023 16:10:22

Submitted By: Sean Egel

Email: egel_sean_j@cat.com

Transaction #: aeaa61ae-0c73-4610-8208-b80e2e0b4448

Submitter's IP Address: 192.189.129.23

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 103 of 405



Specifications

Table 1: Proposer Identity & Authorized Representatives

General Instructions (applies to all Tables) Sourcewell prefers a brief but thorough response to each question. Do not merely attach
additional documents to your response without also providing a substantive response. Do not leave answers blank; respond “N/A” if the
question does not apply to you (preferably with an explanation).

 

Line
Item Question Response *

1 Proposer Legal Name (one legal entity only):  
(In the event of award, will execute the 
resulting contract as "Supplier")

Caterpillar Inc.
 *

2 Identify all subsidiary entities of the Proposer 
whose equipment, products, or services are 
included in the Proposal.

N/A
 *

3 Identify all applicable assumed names or DBA 
names of the Proposer or Proposer's 
subsidiaries in Line 1 or Line 2 above.

N/A
 *

4 Provide your CAGE code or Unique Entity 
Identifier (SAM):

11083  *

5 Proposer Physical Address: 5212 N O'Connor Blvd Ste. 1100, Irving, TX 75039  *

6 Proposer website address (or addresses): https://www.caterpillar.com/, https://www.cat.com/en_US.html  *

7 Proposer's Authorized Representative (name, 
title, address, email address & phone) (The 
representative must have authority to sign 
the “Proposer’s Assurance of Compliance” on 
behalf of the Proposer and, in the event of 
award, will be expected to execute the 
resulting contract):

Primary Contact: Patrick Kearns
Title: Vice President Sales & Marketing
Address: 100 NE Adams St, Peoria, IL 61629
Email: Kearns_Patrick@Cat.Com
Phone: (309) 675-5181

 *

8 Proposer's primary contact for this proposal 
(name, title, address, email address & phone):

Primary Contact: Sean Egel
Title: Governmental Sales Consultant
Address: 100 NE Adams St, Peoria, IL 61629
Email: Egel_Sean_J@Cat.Com
Phone: (309) 675-1399

 *

9 Proposer's other contacts for this proposal, if 
any (name, title, address, email address & 
phone):

Primary Contact: Marta Sevilla
Title: Governmental Marketing Manager
Address: 100 NE Adams St, Peoria, IL 61629
Email: Sevilla_Marta_E@Cat.com
Phone: (309) 578-1150

Table 2: Company Information and Financial Strength

Line
Item Question Response *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 104 of 405



10 Provide a brief history of your company, 
including your company’s core values, 
business philosophy, and industry longevity 
related to the requested equipment, products 
or services.

The history of Caterpillar is all about doing: creating, building, problem solving, 
innovating, testing, servicing and improving. We’re proud of the ingenious machines 
that are part of our rich heritage. More importantly, we are proud of the people who 
founded and built the company one breakthrough at a time. Beginning with Benjamin 
Holt and C. L. Best, the people of Caterpillar have always been - and continue to 
be - extraordinary.

In 1925, when Holt and Best merged to form their new tractor company, they used 
the name so familiar to people around the world: Caterpillar. The Caterpillar Tractor 
Company is today known as Caterpillar Inc.

With 2021 sales and revenues of $51.0 billion, Caterpillar Inc. is the world’s leading 
manufacturer of construction and mining equipment, off-highway diesel and natural 
gas engines, industrial gas turbines and diesel-electric locomotives. For nearly 100 
years, we’ve been helping customers build a better, more sustainable world and are 
committed and contributing to a reduced-carbon future. Our innovative products and 
services, backed by our global dealer network, provide exceptional value that helps 
customers succeed. Caterpillar does business on every continent, principally 
operating through three primary segments – Construction Industries, Resource 
Industries and Energy & Transportation – and providing financing and related 
services through our Financial Products segment.

Our Worldwide Code of Conduct, first published in 1974, defines what we stand for 
and believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly high ethical standards our 
company has upheld since its founding in 1925. The Code helps Caterpillar 
employees put our values and principles into action every day by providing detailed 
guidance on the behaviors and actions that support our values of Integrity, 
Excellence, Teamwork, Commitment and Sustainability.

Caterpillar's Code of Conduct that can be found at 
https://www.caterpillar.com/en/company/code-of-conduct.html

 *

11 What are your company’s expectations in the 
event of an award?

Caterpillar is honored to have served Sourcewell and its members who have
purchased Cat® construction equipment, attachments (work tools), and electrical 
power generation products through Sourcewell since 2008. Furthermore, we are 
proud to have
earned the Sourcewell Legacy Award in 2019, and have recently been awarded 
contracts 060122-CAT and 092222-CAT. 

Caterpillar's expectations in the event of an award would be to focus on customer 
needs and continued growth across all governmental segments. Sourcewell has built 
a strong reputation within the industry that has shown the importance of how this 
cooperative contract delivers upon customer needs. This contract will be a top factor 
in our go to market strategy within our strong Cat dealer network. If awarded, we 
will send out an email to our entire sales force, applicable to governmental, 
introducing the contract along with ways to train our salesforce, market, and grow 
the contract.     

We look forward to the opportunity to further grow business and serve member 
needs together in this new Heavy Construction Equipment RFP opportunity.

 *

12 Demonstrate your financial strength and 
stability with meaningful data. This could 
include such items as financial statements, 
SEC filings, credit and bond ratings, letters 
of credit, and detailed reference letters. 
Upload supporting documents (as applicable) 
in the document upload section of your 
response.

Caterpillar Inc. is a publicly traded company, and as such, its financial information is 
updated quarterly and available at: https://investors.caterpillar.com/overview/default.aspx

Caterpillar's 2021 Annual Report provides details about our
financial position. Our SEC filing documents can be found at: 
https://investors.caterpillar.com/financials/sec-filings/default.aspx. Both documents are 
included as attachments in our Financial Strength and Stability Documents.

As 2022 results are yet to be released, below you can find a summary of our full 
year 2021 financials. 

In 2021 full year sales and revenues were $51B of which, North American sales 
were $22B. Operating profit was $6.9B with a profit per share of USD $11.83. 
Dividends paid per share of USD $4.28.

 *

13 What is your US market share for the 
solutions that you are proposing?

Caterpillar is a significant contributor to the overall Heavy Equipment sector within 
the US and Canada. Market share information beyond what is made publicly 
available through our annual reports is considered confidential.

 *

14 What is your Canadian market share for the 
solutions that you are proposing?

Caterpillar is a significant contributor to the overall Heavy Equipment sector within 
the US and Canada. Market share information beyond what is made publicly 
available through our annual reports is considered confidential.

 *

15 Has your business ever petitioned for 
bankruptcy protection? If so, explain in detail.

No.  *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 105 of 405



16 How is your organization best described: is 
it a manufacturer, a distributor/dealer/reseller, 
or a service provider?  Answer whichever 
question (either a) or b) just below) best 
applies to your organization.
a)    If your company is best described as 
a distributor/dealer/reseller (or similar entity), 
provide your written authorization to act as a 
distributor/dealer/reseller for the manufacturer 
of the products proposed in this RFP. If 
applicable, is your dealer network 
independent or company owned?
b)    If your company is best described as 
a manufacturer or service provider, describe 
your relationship with your sales and service 
force and with your dealer network in 
delivering the products and services 
proposed in this RFP. Are these individuals 
your employees, or the employees of a third 
party?

Caterpillar is a world class manufacturer which distributes products through a vast
and capable independent dealer network. Our dealers are strong independently 
owned companies and in North America alone our 47 dealers have a combined net 
worth of billions of dollars. Their large valuation is a competitive advantage because 
it allows them to have the infrastructure to support customers regardless of location, 
industry, fleet size, or application. 

Another advantage of independently owned dealers is that they know their customers
and market well. They tailor their services specifically to their customers' needs.

Although we will sign this contract as a manufacturer, our Cat dealers will be given 
the
opportunity to avail themselves of the opportunity presented by the contract and will
execute all the transactions with governmental customers as they do today. This
includes but is not limited to consultation, quoting, accepting payment, delivery,
warranty support, parts sales, and service.

Caterpillar dealers heartily embrace the other Sourcewell contracts currently available
to them (032119-CAT, 092222-CAT, 062320-CAT, 060122-CAT). They have all been 
trained on contract usage. In fact, the current Heavy Equipment contract is leveraged 
by
95% of our dealers in North America. Caterpillar offers specific discounts to 
Sourcewell members. By using any Sourcewell Contract, our dealers agree to honor 
those discounts.

 *

17 If applicable, provide a detailed explanation 
outlining the licenses and certifications that 
are both required to be held, and actually 
held, by your organization (including third 
parties and subcontractors that you use) in 
pursuit of the business contemplated by this 
RFP.

Caterpillar and its subsidiaries operate across the globe in a variety of markets that
require Caterpillar to adhere to all locally mandated laws and regulations in order to
do business. With regards to the territories covered by this RFP, Caterpillar will
comply with applicable laws in order to do business in the territories described
herein.

As an equipment manufacturer focused on quality, Caterpillar created the Caterpillar 
Quality Management System, which is a process-based, ISO 9001:2015 compliant 
quality management system used throughout Caterpillar to continually improve the 
quality of our products and services to meet customer, statutory, and regulatory 
requirements. It is registered with IRCA (International Register of Certificated 
Auditors) as Caterpillar Quality Management System CAT791A.

 *

18 Provide all “Suspension or Debarment” 
information that has applied to your 
organization during the past ten years.

N/A
 *

Table 3: Industry Recognition & Marketplace Success

Line
Item Question Response *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 106 of 405



19 Describe any relevant industry awards or 
recognition that your company has received 
in the past five years

Please note: To list all the awards received in the past 5 years would unnecessarily 
lengthen our response. For brevity, we are highlighting some recognition received in 
2020, 2021 and 2022. Also note there are many global awards.

Fortune Magazine #78 on the Fortune 500 2021
Fortune Magazine World's Most Admired Companies
World & North America Dow Jones Sustainability Index
Forbes Best Employers for diversity 2020 and 2021
#82 Best Global Brands- Interbrand 2021
The Wall Street Journal Best Managed Companies in 2020 and 2021
The Wall Street Journal World's Most Sustainably Managed Companies
Human Rights Campaign Foundation Corporate Equality Index
Dow Jones Sustainability Index (World and North America) 21 years World’s Most 
Sustainably Managed Companies – The Wall Street Journal United Way World
Wide’s Global Corporate Leadership Program
U.S. President’s Volunteer Service Award from Junior Achievement
Corporate Equality Index – Human Rights Campaign Foundation
CSR China Top 100 – the 4th CSR China Education Award (China) China CSR
Excellence Award – China Philanthropy Times (China)
Corporate Social Responsibility Research Center of Southern Weekly (China)
Outstanding Contribution to Poverty Alleviation – China Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation (China)
2020 Global 500 – Fortune Magazine
America’s Most Responsible Companies 2020, 2021 & 2022 – Newsweek
Best-Managed Companies of 2020 & 2021 – The Wall Street Journal
Top Companies for Customer Satisfaction – The Wall Street Journal
The CEO Leaderboard: COVID-19 Reputation Rankings – SJR All-America
Executive Team – Institutional Investor
Top 150 Global Licensors – Global License Best Global Brands Top 100 –
Interbrand World’s Most Valuable Brands 2020 – Forbes
2020 Best Places to Work for Disability Inclusion – Disability Equality Index
World’s Best Employers 2020 – Forbes
Best Employers for Women 2020 – Forbes
America’s Best Employers by State 2020 – Forbes
America's Best Employers for Diversity 2020 – Forbes
Best Employers for New Grads 2020 – Forbes
Global 2000 – Forbes 2020, 2021 & 2022
Best Employers for Veterans 2020 and 2021– Forbes
Top Veteran-Friendly Company – U.S. Veterans Magazine
#1 Great Place to Work – Great Place to Work Institute (Brazil)
#1 Great Place to Work in the Ag Business - Great Place to Work Institute (Brazil)
Chile’s 20 Best Places in 2020 to Work for LGBTQ Equality, pwc Human Rights
Campaign
Top of Mind Company “Industry category” (Piracicaba, Brazil)
Certification on Promoting Work-Life Balance in Hyogo Prefecture – Hyogo Work
and Life Center (Japan)
Hyogo’s Women’s Success in Business Promotion Company – Hyogo Women
Empowerment &
Promotion Center (Japan)
Hanada Award for WIN Akashi – Hyogo Women and Future Association (Japan)
Hyogo Childcare Supporting Company Award (Japan)
Science & Technology Industry Summit: Outstanding Contribution – The Economic 
Observer (China)

 *

20 What percentage of your sales are to the 
governmental sector in the past three years

The governmental and educational sector is extremely important to Caterpillar. We 
have a dedicated team to support governmental customers and their specific 
needs. However, percentage of sales to governmental is considered confidential.

 *

21 What percentage of your sales are to the 
education sector in the past three years

The governmental and educational sector is extremely important to Caterpillar. We 
have a dedicated team to support governmental customers, including the education 
sector, and their specific needs. However, percentage of sales to education is 
considered confidential.

 *

22 List any state, provincial, or cooperative 
purchasing contracts that you hold. What is 
the annual sales volume for each of these 
contracts over the past three years?

While Cat dealers would typically hold contracts with states and provinces, as an 
exception Caterpillar holds the state contract with Ohio and NY. 
Additionally, we are contract holders with OMNIA and NASPO ValuePoint. 

Just as we would never share Sourcewell sales information with other cooperatives, 
we also keep the sales volumes from other cooperatives confidential.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 107 of 405



23 List any GSA contracts or Standing Offers 
and Supply Arrangements (SOSA) that you 
hold. What is the annual sales volume for 
each of these contracts over the past three 
years?

Listed below are the current GSA contracts that Caterpillar holds:
SIN 333924 Utility Trucks and Tractors: 2020=$6,857,211 2021=$14,071,364
SIN 333120 Street Repair and Cleaning Equipment and Attachments:
2020=$0 / 2021=$143,837
SIN 335999 Power Distribution Equipment: 2020=$151,267.70 / 2021=$9,473.07
These contracts are used by Caterpillar, but we do not allow our dealers to use 
GSA contracts.

Final sales for the year 2022 have yet to be fully reported.

 *

Table 4: References/Testimonials

Line Item 24. Supply reference information from three customers who are eligible to be Sourcewell participating entities.

Entity Name * Contact Name * Phone Number *

Baltimore County, MD Jamie Donahue 410-952-6981  *

Washington DC Fleet Greg Harrelson 202-437-3799  *

Town of Scituate Mass. Kevin Cafferty 781-545-8732  *

Table 5: Top Five Government or Education Customers

Line Item 25. Provide a list of your top five government, education, or non-profit customers (entity name is optional), including entity
type, the state or province the entity is located in, scope of the project(s), size of transaction(s), and dollar volumes from the past three
years.

Entity Name Entity Type * State /
Province * Scope of Work * Size of Transactions * Dollar Volume Past Three

Years *

Virginia 
Department of 
Transportation -
 Central

Government Virginia - VA State Department of 
Transportation for Virginia. 
Caterpillar requests that 
Sourcewell treat the information 
in this table as confidential.

Purchased 41 units. $12,321,972

 *

State of Idaho Government Idaho - ID State of Idaho.
Caterpillar requests that 
Sourcewell treat the information 
in this table as confidential.

Purchased 39 units. $10,304,218

 *

Alaska 
Department of 
Transportation

Government Alaska - AK State Department of 
Transportation for Alaska.
Caterpillar requests that 
Sourcewell treat the information 
in this table as confidential.

Purchased 37 units. $12,176,875

 *

Arkansas State Government Arkansas - AR State of Arkansas.
Caterpillar requests that 
Sourcewell treat the information 
in this table as confidential.

Purchased 28 units. $10,053,000

 *

Suwannee 
County

Government Florida - FL A county local to Florida.
Caterpillar requests that 
Sourcewell treat the information 
in this table as confidential.

Purchased 26 units. $6,567,420

 *

Table 6: Ability to Sell and Deliver Service

Describe your company’s capability to meet the needs of Sourcewell participating entities across the US and Canada, as applicable.
Your response should address in detail at least the following areas: locations of your network of sales and service providers, the number
of workers (full-time equivalents) involved in each sector, whether these workers are your direct employees (or employees of a third
party), and any overlap between the sales and service functions.

Line
Item Question Response *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 108 of 405



26 Sales force. The Cat dealer salesforce is highly capable and trained in the construction industry. 
The Cat dealer salespeople are consultants to their customers and advise their 
customers on the best solutions for their application and job. As a manufacturer we 
request our dealers to follow strict training protocols to ensure our sales force 
remains current on all product updates. Specifically, as it relates to governmental 
sales, each dealer has one or more people named to be a key liaison between us 
as manufacturer and their dealer sales team. They're offered additional in depth 
training on Sourcewell and ensures that all contract terms are followed. 

Caterpillar has Operational Excellence Programs that recognize dealers' excellence in 
marketing and sales processes and operations, among other areas of the business.

In North America, our dealers employ more than 53,000 people across the machine, 
energy, parts and service divisions. The dealer sales teams are supported by a 
network of Caterpillar professionals. Each dealer has in territory support of 5 to 8 
Caterpillar sales/marketing employees. It is the responsibility of these people to 
ensure that the dealer and Caterpillar are working well together to constantly improve 
and to adapt to marketplace changes. Beyond the territory experts, the sales and 
marketing department at Caterpillar is staffed by more than 600 people whose 
mission is to focus on customer satisfaction. Even more are employed "behind-the 
scenes" to ensure industry leading product design, up to date product information, 
and maintaining the ease of doing business in an increasingly connected marketplace.

 *

27 Dealer network or other distribution 
methods.

The Cat dealer network is key to the success of our company. Boasting over 160 
dealers throughout 193 countries worldwide, the Cat dealer network is widely 
considered to be the best in industry. Within Canada and the United States, we have 
47 dealers and more than 800 dealer owned locations that sell and rent equipment. 
Please refer to our directory listing of Cat dealer locations and our easy to view 
locations map in the attached "Additional Documents" zip file. Cat dealers are 
independently-owned. Each dealer has multiple branches and a mobile service fleet 
than can serve customers regardless of location. These are full physical locations our 
governmental customers can use.

Because of the size of Cat dealers, they are exceptionally capable to serve
governmental customers. Dealers have trained specialists that cover many industries 
including heavy equipment. 

Collectively, Cat dealers' large net worth permits them to stock a high volume of
replacement parts - allowing governmental customers the fastest turnaround on parts 
availability and repair time. Cat dealers recognize the importance of governmental 
business to their overall success and they each have one or more governmental 
specialists whose job it is to serve governmental agencies well.

Please refer to the Cat dealer locations map included in "Additional
Documents". Additionally, you can leverage https://www.cat.com/en_US/support/dealer-
locator.html to locate dealers by location.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 109 of 405



28 Service force. At Caterpillar we are very proud of the saying "The sales department sells the first
machine; the service department sells every one after that." The Cat dealer network 
in North America collectively employs more than 20,000 factory trained technicians, 
parts experts, product support managers and
other service-oriented staff. These subject matter experts are supported by the best 
repair shop equipment and materials. As machines and engines are constantly 
updated, so too are our service experts. We conduct product-specific training every 
week of the year. Technician shortage is an industry-wide
concern, but because Cat dealers are large, long established companies, they can 
offer strong compensation and benefit packages that encourage the best people to 
seek employment and to retain them once hired. Caterpillar works very closely with 
dealers and through a program called "ThinkBIG", we are able to keep the pipeline 
of high quality employees full. ThinkBIG is a Caterpillar-specific instructional program 
that pays the student while they train to become a technician. It is a 2-year program 
with lab and classroom work, and a paid internship at a sponsoring Cat Dealer. As 
a result, the student will graduate with an accredited degree backed with over 2,000 
hours of work experience. 

In addition to the technicians and mechanics that work on the machines directly, each 
dealer has a service support staff that includes customer-facing consultants who are 
responsible for working with customers to set up maintenance and repair schedules 
to ensure the best possible up-time.

Collectively, service support staff makes up the bulk of each dealers' staff. Roughly 
half of their personnel investment goes to ensuring customer success via product 
support.

The dealer service teams are supported by a network of Caterpillar professionals.
Each dealer has in territory support of 5 to 8 Caterpillar parts/service employees. It 
is the responsibility of these specialists to ensure that the dealer and Caterpillar are 
working well together to constantly improve and to adapt to marketplace changes. 
Beyond the territory experts, the service and support groups at Caterpillar are staffed 
by thousands of people whose mission is to focus on post-sale customer satisfaction. 
Even more are employed "behind-the-scenes" to ensure technical literature is up to 
date, service standards are adhere to and repair questions are answered quickly. We 
exceed our 95% 2-hour response rate target in responding to dealer service inquiries.

 *

29 Describe the ordering process. If orders 
will be handled by distributors, dealers or 
others, explain the respective roles of the 
Proposer and others.

Our simple order process has been and will continue to be well appreciated by
Sourcewell and Sourcewell members:
1) When a member decides to purchase a new Cat machine, they simply include 
their Sourcewell member number on the Purchase Order they issue to the Cat dealer.
2) The Cat dealer then accepts the PO, issues the invoice, accepts payment and 
delivers the machine.
3) After the machine has been delivered, the dealer, as part of their normal
process, includes the member number when filing their sales claims with Caterpillar.
4) At month's end, Caterpillar aggregates these reports and sends the sales
information quarterly to Sourcewell along with the administrative fee.
IMPORTANT NOTE: Should a member wish to include additional terms and
conditions to this contract, or to otherwise request a Participating Addendum, that
agreement / PA should be executed between the member and Cat dealer directly.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 110 of 405



30 Describe in detail the process and 
procedure of your customer service 
program, if applicable.  Include your 
response-time capabilities and 
commitments, as well as any incentives 
that help your providers meet your stated 
service goals or promises.

We are proud that our reputation stands on having the best customer support in the 
industry. In fact, our capabilities are industry leading. In the event a customer ever 
has a problem or issue with a machine, their Cat dealer is empowered to resolve 
that issue locally. If the problem is a result of a defect in material or workmanship, 
within the standard warranty period, the local Cat dealer will work with Caterpillar to 
apply the appropriate warranty, and keep the customer informed. Every Cat dealer 
has a common detailed service process in place. Caterpillar supports and verifies 
that all the dealer service technicians are supplied with the tools and equipment 
needed to repair all Cat products.

Technicians have access to an electronic library of technical information including
Service Letters, Technical Information Bulletins, System Operations, Troubleshooting 
and Disassembly and Assembly manuals. These manuals are provided for every Cat 
product. Each dealer also has one or more "Technical Communicators" who are 
dedicated to supporting the service technicians by acting as a liaison between the 
shop personnel and Caterpillar.

The service technicians also have a dealer support network (DSN) system with direct 
access to Caterpillar's Service Engineers. Caterpillar responds to more than 95% of 
all high priority tickets within one hour.

Caterpillar is got everything customers need to keep their Cat machines in top 
shape. Whether they want Genuine Cat parts, manuals and resources to do 
maintenance and repairs themselves, or prefer to have one of our expert dealer 
technicians do the work. We make it easy to keep their Cat equipment running.

Some of our service solutions include: 

-Cat Fleet Management (Condition Monitoring) - Lowers the total cost of ownership of 
machine. By connecting your fleet, you will be able to: track the location of your 
assets, monitor & manage the fuel consumption, identify the operators who would 
need extra training, and plan & schedule your maintenance. All of which will maximize 
your uptime. 

-Customer Value Agreements (CVA) - Customizable plans for your equipment new or 
used - to do more work with lower, more predictable costs. It's a convenient plan to 
get the most from your equipment throughout its life. Examples of CVAs may include 
but are not limited to: Maintenance CVAs, Component CVAs, and Machine CVAs. 

-S•O•S SM Services - A fluid analysis program that provides results that you can 
trust including trend analysis that provides benefit to your machine and fleet.

-Cat Inspect - A digital way to perform checklists, pre-work inspections, annual
inspections and PM checklists. All of which can be captured in the easy to use app.

 *

31 Describe your ability and willingness to 
provide your products and services to 
Sourcewell participating entities in the 
United States.

We are proud to serve all geographic areas and all Sourcewell member sectors 
within the United States to offer our complete products and services. Caterpillar has 
successfully and proudly utilized Sourcewell to sell machines in all 50 states.

Caterpillar's global reach and presence is unmatched in the industry, and we serve 
customers around the globe. Our manufacturing, marketing, logistics, services, 
research and development and related facilities, along with our dealer locations, total 
more than 500 locations worldwide. North America specifically is home to 47 
factories and 10 parts distribution centers, which make up 40% of our global 
footprint! The Caterpillar parts network delivers 98% of the parts orders within 24 
hours.

In addition to our facilities listed above, Cat Parts are available through the Cat 
dealer network in at different price points, including: Cat New, Cat General Duty and 
Cat Reman. The Cat dealer network also have the capability to provide dealer 
exchange components, dealer rebuilt components and used parts when available. 
Each dealer can match the appropriate parts offering to match the customers 
application and productivity. For example, Cat dealers offer Cat factory 
remanufactured parts (Cat reman) to follow the same quality, performance, and 
reliability as Cat new parts. This product line provides the same as new parts 
warranty, includes critical engineering changes, reduces waste, and protects the 
environment and saves critical repair time on machines. Cat reman also uses 100% 
Cat parts in the remanufacture process. 

Our 1.4 million parts are available to order 24/7 on Parts.Cat.Com.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 111 of 405



32 Describe your ability and willingness to 
provide your products and services to 
Sourcewell participating entities in Canada.

We are serve all geographic areas and all Canoe member sectors within Canada 
with our complete product and service offerings. In fact, we see the
Canadian market as a significant growth opportunity for Canoe through Sourcewell 
contract usage. We have gained momentum with our current contract 032119-CAT in 
Canada.

Caterpillar's global reach and presence is unmatched in the industry, and we serve 
customers around the globe. Our manufacturing, marketing, logistics, services, 
research and development and related facilities, along with our dealer locations, total 
more than 500 locations worldwide. North America specifically is home to 47 
factories and 10 parts distribution centers, which make up 40% of our global 
footprint! The Caterpillar parts network delivers 98% of the parts orders within 24 
hours.

In addition to our facilities listed above, Cat Parts are available through the Cat 
dealer network in at different price points, including: Cat New, Cat General Duty and 
Cat Reman. The Cat dealer network also have the capability to provide dealer 
exchange components, dealer rebuilt components and used parts when available. 
Each dealer can match the appropriate parts offering to match the customers 
application and productivity. For example, Cat® dealers offer Cat® factory 
remanufactured parts (Cat reman) to follow the same quality, performance, and 
reliability as Cat new parts. This product line provides the same as new parts 
warranty, includes critical engineering changes, reduces waste, and protects the 
environment and saves critical repair time on machines. Cat reman also uses 100% 
Cat parts in the remanufacture process. 

Our 1.4 million parts are available to order 24/7 on Parts.Cat.Com.

 *

33 Identify any geographic areas of the United 
States or Canada that you will NOT be 
fully serving through the proposed contract.

We are proud to serve all geographic areas of the United States and Canada.
 *

34 Identify any Sourcewell participating entity 
sectors (i.e., government, education, not-for-
profit) that you will NOT be fully serving 
through the proposed contract. Explain in 
detail. For example, does your company 
have only a regional presence, or do other 
cooperative purchasing contracts limit your 
ability to promote another contract?

We are proud to serve all Sourcewell Member sectors within the United States and 
Canada with our complete product and service offering through Sourcewell.

Caterpillar's cooperative purchasing contracts are non-exclusive; i.e. none of them 
restrict Caterpillar from promoting our Sourcewell contracts.

 *

35 Define any specific contract requirements 
or restrictions that would apply to our 
participating entities in Hawaii and Alaska 
and in US Territories.

There are no restrictions or limitations for sales to members in Hawaii, Alaska or
U.S. Territories.  *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 112 of 405



Table 7: Marketing Plan

Line
Item Question Response *

36 Describe your marketing strategy for 
promoting this contract opportunity.  
Upload representative samples of your 
marketing materials (if applicable) in 
the document upload section of your 
response.

Our current marketing strategy with Sourcewell contract 032119-CAT proves to be effective 
with year over year sales growth. Our primary strategy to promote this contract with 
participating entities is through our Cat dealers' sales force. We provide group and 
individual training to our dealer sales reps, focusing on benefits from selling through 
cooperative contracts vs bids. We proudly announce the award publicly through our 
multiple customer facing touchpoints which may include:

1) Press Release
2) Government Solutions Magazine (Caterpillar produced magazine distributed to
governmental customers in the US and Canada)
3) Government Training & Safety Days (Government customer training events at
Caterpillar facilities)
4) Announcement in our governmental customer e-newsletter
5) Feature on our governmental focused website: www.cat.com/governmental
6) Announcement on our social media channels (FB, Instagram, LinkedIn)
7) Display mentions at all governmental tradeshows we attend. (NACE Annual Conference, 
APWA Snow Show, Waste EXPO, GFX, NIGP Annual Forum & Products Expo, and 
APWA PWX & Annual Roadeo)
8) Update literature with the new contact information. (An updated version can be found 
within our attached marketing plan attachment.)

 *

37 Describe your use of technology and 
digital data (e.g., social media, 
metadata usage) to enhance 
marketing effectiveness.

Caterpillar and the Cat dealer network are leaders in using technologies to
reach our customers. 

- Focus on organic search and Search Engine Optimization (SEO) to help our customers 
digitally find our products and the information they need.

- Leverage Caterpillar's social media platforms (YouTube, Facebook, LinkedIn, Instagram, 
etc) and ability to target governmental segments.

- Leverage predictive data analytics (past purchase history and financing information) to 
recognize in advance when customers may be considering replacing machines they 
currently own.

- Leverage Deltek's GovWIN data in the US and Canada for governmental lead generation.

Caterpillar has a Customer Interaction Center available 24/7 who handles digital leads 
received from cat.com, social media, etc. Our team qualifies those leads and passes 
them on to our Cat Dealer network using the Salesforce platform (Customer Relationship 
Management system). We have processes that allows us to confirm our Cat dealers have 
reached out to those customers.

 *

38 In your view, what is Sourcewell’s role 
in promoting contracts arising out of 
this RFP? How will you integrate a 
Sourcewell-awarded contract into your 
sales process?

Sourcewell is a well-respected contracting agency within the public procurement industry. It 
is important, in the event of an award, that our products and logos be included in 
Sourcewell marketing and website. We believe that the most important role that Sourcewell 
can play in marketing our contract and products, is to market themselves and promote 
contract purchasing across the industry.

In the event of an award, Caterpillar will put high priority in building awareness and
enthusiasm within our dealer network and customer base to leverage the Sourcewell
contract as our go to market strategy.

 *

39 Are your products or services 
available through an e-procurement 
ordering process? If so, describe your 
e-procurement system and how 
governmental and educational 
customers have used it.

We do offer a e-procurement ordering process for parts via parts.cat.com. We can also 
integrate into a variety of procurement systems for high volume customers.

Our wide machine portfolio and multiple configurations per machine model allows us to 
provide the best machine for the customer need. Our Cat dealers are trained to configure 
our equipment and advise the customer on the best machine and configuration for their 
application. Therefore, a consultative salesperson is integral in this process, and we do 
not use an e-procurement machine ordering process.

 *

Table 8: Value-Added Attributes

Line
Item Question Response *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 113 of 405



40 Describe any product, equipment, 
maintenance, or operator training 
programs that you offer to 
Sourcewell participating entities. 
Include details, such as whether 
training is standard or optional, 
who provides training, and any 
costs that apply.

All dealers offer basic operation, safety, and maintenance training with every sale. Should a 
customer desire more advanced training, such as productivity improvement or advanced 
repairs, each of our dealers can supply that training. Often there is a cost associated with
that specific training and it would be negotiated between the dealer and the customer.

Caterpillar also offers training programs directly to customers in three areas: operation, 
safety and service. Members may access courses online, via CD's, or through instructor-led 
classes leading to operator certifications. The fees for these services vary depending on
the depth of training desired. These high-level instruct-led courses can be conducted at one 
of our dedicated training facilities in the US or on a customer's local site using their own 
equipment.

Caterpillar also has a licensed supplier that offers Cat Simulators to teach operational 
techniques from real job sites. For more information visit: https://catsimulators.com/

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 114 of 405



41 Describe any technological 
advances that your proposed 
products or services offer.

Cat technology gives you the power to track, monitor, automate and manage all types of 
assets- from a single machine, engine, to an entire fleet. We even offer technologies that 
protect your people. Listed below are a few technology offerings (standard and optional) 
that are used throughout the world in our Cat equipment.  

Next Generation Excavators:
Cat Vision Link - Delivering valuable data with connected machine.

Cat Payload - Precisely load targets every time for faster cycle times.

Cat Skid Steer and Compact Track Loaders:
Electronic Torque Management System - Helps maximize performance, minimize fuel 
consumption. 

Sealed and Pressurized Cabs - Provides a cleaner, quieter work environment.

Cat Backhoe Loaders:
Selectable Power Management Modes - Saves fuel while maintaining machine performance.

Load-Sensing Hydraulic System - Provides excellent response for improved hoe and loader 
productivity and greater bucket breakout force. 

Cat Tractors:
Stable Blade - Produces a smoother surface finish. 

Autocarry - Automatic raising and lowering of blade to maximize pushing capacity and 
prevent excessive track slippage. 

Cat Wheel Loaders:
Operator Assist - Helps the operator reduce tire slippage, automatic rimpull management 
and provides up to 10% better cycle time resulting in higher productivity. 

Autodig - consistent high bucket fill factors delivers up to 10% more productivity. 

Cat Off Highway Trucks:
Adaptive Economy Mode - Automatically optimizes fuel consumption without affecting 
productivity just pressing a button.

Truck Production Management System (TPMS) - Weighting system with side indicator lights 
showing the operator when they are on last pass and when the truck is fully loaded. 

Cat Articulated Trucks:
Advanced Automatic Traction Control (AATC) - Technology that proactively applies inter- and 
cross-axle differential locks ‘on-the-go’ when needed without assistance from operator's 
interaction.  

Cat Detect with Stability Assist - Warns the operator if machine is approaching a pre-set 
angle during operation, when driving and tipping. 

Machine/Operator Safety Technology:
Machine Security System - Gives you control over who can operate your machines and 
when. Prevents theft. 

Seat Belt Reminder - Cost effective safety upgrade that significantly improves operator 
safety. 

Cat Detect for Personnel - Alert ground crews in close proximity to mobile equipment. Cat® 
Detect for Personnel sounds an immediate, unique alert that cuts through the white noise of 
engines, generators, cell phones and job site chatter to protect ground workers from 
equipment backing incidents. 

Cat Command - Remote control in operations where an operator could be at safety risk. 

Whether you're looking to add technology to your current machine, or want new ways to get 
more value out of the technology on your equipment, we have options for you.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 115 of 405



42 Describe any “green” initiatives 
that relate to your company or to 
your products or services, and 
include a list of the certifying 
agency for each.

Caterpillar shares the concerns of governments and the public about the risks of climate 
change and supports global efforts to mitigate its impact. We are committed to contributing 
to a reduced-carbon future.

We demonstrate this in many ways including through our significant progress in reducing 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from our operations and our continued investment in new 
products, technologies and services.  

Caterpillar is engineering a brighter future through:
- Product innovations
- Advanced technologies leveraging know-how and R&D
- Usage of renewable fuels and fluids
- Solutions to improve jobsite efficiency
- Maintenance solutions
- Manufacturing operations’ carbon efficiency

Caterpillar's long-standing commitment to sustainability inspires us to set and achieve 
meaningful environmental, social and governance (ESG) goals and develop innovative 
products, technologies and services to support our customers on their sustainability journey.

Caterpillar is fully committed to our customers’ success by not only the design and 
manufacture of durable, reliable, innovative and rebuildable construction equipment, but also 
through our extensive and unmatched dealer network that provides you the best service and 
support to keep your equipment running, regardless of the environment or challenges.

We consider this as we work toward a vision of a world in which people's basic needs - 
such as shelter, clean water, education, and reliable energy - are fulfilled. We provide work 
environments, products, services, and solutions that make productive and efficient use of 
resources as we strive to achieve our vision. We believe this commitment supports the 
enduring success of our customers, stockholders, dealers, and our people.

Caterpillar is a proud 20-year member of the Dow Jones Sustainability Indices, including 
both the World and
North America Indices. The annuals DJSI process follows a best-in-class approach, 
evaluating numerous corporate economic, environmental, and social performance factors.

For more on sustainability please visit our full report attached in the Financial and Stability 
attachment section.

 *

43 Identify any third-party issued eco-
labels, ratings or certifications that 
your company has received for 
the equipment or products 
included in your Proposal related 
to energy efficiency or 
conservation, life-cycle design 
(cradle-to-cradle), or other 
green/sustainability factors.

Plants certified with IDO 14001:2004 Environmental Management System include:
1) Anchor Coupling - Goldsboro NC, ISO 14001:2004- Sept 2018
2) Anchor Coupling - Menominee - ISO 14001: 2015 - Jan. 2021
3) Gen Sets - Newberry 0 ISO 14001:2004 - Nov. 2017
4) Mapleton - 14001:2004 self-certification issued Jan 2013
5) Reman Services - Corinth MS - ISO 14001-2015- Sept. 2021
6) Reman Services - Franklin - ISO 14001:2004-May 2017

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 116 of 405



44 Describe any Women or Minority 
Business Entity (WMBE), Small 
Business Entity (SBE), or veteran 
owned business certifications that 
your company or hub partners 
have obtained. Upload 
documentation of certification (as 
applicable) in the document 
upload section of your response.

Caterpillar has long drawn on the diversity of its people as a source of innovation and 
competitive advantage. We are proud that our people come from across the globe, with 
diverse backgrounds, experiences and perspectives. Despite our differences – in geography, 
culture, language and business – we are one Caterpillar, one company united by these 
common principles with a shared commitment to the highest standards of conduct.

For example: Foley Equipment, a Cat® dealer, with territory primarily in Kansas and 
Missouri, is woman owned. In addition to Foley equipment, there are 31 other women in 
our North American dealer network who hold the titles of President, Vice President or 
Director.

One of the more recognized initiatives within Caterpillar's Global Supply Network Division is 
the Caterpillar Inc. Proprietary Information Supplier Diversity Program which spurs economic 
growth by increasing business opportunities to minority-owned, women-owned, veteran and 
service disabled veteran-owned, small disadvantaged businesses and those certified in 
HUBZones, all while ensuring expectations are met with regards to quality, velocity, capacity, 
and cost. Currently more than 37% of our direct and indirect purchasing is conducted with 
suppliers in these categories.

Caterpillar is a proud member of the National Minority Supplier Development Council 
(NMSDC). We also use the System for Aware Management (SAM), SBA, and NMSDC 
databases to locate SDB, VOSB, SDVOSB and HUBZone suppliers.

Supplier Diversity is discussed with Global Supply Network Division leadership during the 
Monthly Operating Results Review meetings. This in turn forces accountability for supplier 
inclusion by measuring drivers, such as the number of sourcing projects, which include 
Divers Suppliers and the values of the projects in which they participate. The goal is to 
create greater transparency to determine which teams are creating inclusive environments 
and which are not.

For more detail, please see our attached 2021 Global Diversity & Inclusion Report in the 
Additional Documents folder.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 117 of 405



45 What unique attributes does your 
company, your products, or your 
services offer to Sourcewell 
participating entities? What makes 
your proposed solutions unique in 
your industry as it applies to 
Sourcewell participating entities?

BEST OVERALL VALUE / LOWEST LIFE CYCLE COST:
Cat products deliver the best value for the money. While we rarely have the lowest initial 
purchase price, we are happy to demonstrate to customers that our machines offer the 
lowest overall owning and operating costs when factors such as fuel efficiency, repair
frequency, productivity, and resale value are factored in. We believe that government 
agencies are tasked to be the best stewards of taxpayer funds and our products can prove 
that they are the best solution. Sourcewell members are in the best position to allow these
discussions to take place in contrast to a local bid situation where the focus is often only 
on initial price.

CAT SAFETY SERVICES / SAFETY FEATURES:
In addition to the tangible, measurable aspects of the life cycle cost equation, we also bring 
our focus on safety to every product that we manufacture. Quantifying a human life or 
debilitating injury is impossible, but each machine has industry-leading features that strive to 
minimize the possibility for accidents.

In addition to built-in safety features, we also offer products and services that are unique in 
the industry.

Cat Safety Services include, but are not limited to, the following:
Safety Perception Survey - Used to establish a baseline safety-culture assessment by 
measuring employee perceptions and gaps in beliefs between management and employees 
on the front line across 20 Safety Culture Indicators. 

Safety Leadership Assessment - Used to measure individual safety leadership capability 
around four domains of safety leadership. 

Worksite Assessment - Compares onsite observations of safety practices and employee 
interview data to the documented processes and procedures. 

Continuous Improvement Process - Involving all levels of the organization to generate 
engagement, involvement, and ownership in the safety improvement process. 

Training - can be conducted with e-learning courses on http://safelyhome.cat.com, instructor-
led training products or as Supplier-facilitated workshops. Topics available include, but are 
not limited to, safety culture, effective communication, supervisor safety training, recognition, 
etc.  

Fleet Management & Services through Caterpillar Job Site Solutions:
We leverage the power of Caterpillar and our dealers by designing innovative solutions that 
solve customer problems and that have a positive impact on their bottom line. We 
approach each site differently, striving to deliver exactly what’s needed — no more, no less. 
Every solution includes a unique mix of Caterpillar and dealer capabilities using industry 
best products, technology, services and expertise necessary to meet the customer’s 
definition of success. The goal is to leave customers better off tomorrow than they are today.

Details on products and services are available at www.cat.com/safety. More information can 
be found in the additional document section. Pricing can be found in the pricing document 
section.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 118 of 405



Table 9: Warranty

Describe in detail your manufacturer warranty program, including conditions and requirements to qualify, claims procedure,
and overall structure. You may upload representative samples of your warranty materials (if applicable) in the document
upload section of your response in addition to responding to the questions below.

Line
Item Question Response *

46 Do your warranties cover all products, parts, and 
labor?

Caterpillar has extensive warranty coverage. Please see our warranty 
statements attached in the warranty information documents.

 *

47 Do your warranties impose usage restrictions or 
other limitations that adversely affect coverage?

Please see applicable warranty statements in the attached documents.  *

48 Do your warranties cover the expense of 
technicians’ travel time and mileage to perform 
warranty repairs?

Caterpillar does not cover travel time and mileage. Dealer territories vary 
considerably from state to state as do their policies about travel time and 
mileage during the warranty period.

 *

49 Are there any geographic regions of the United 
States or Canada (as applicable) for which you 
cannot provide a certified technician to perform 
warranty repairs?  How will Sourcewell 
participating entities in these regions be provided 
service for warranty repair?

One of our key differentiating strengths is our ability to service equipment 
regardless of where it is located. Please see applicable warranty statements 
in the attached documents.  *

50 Will you cover warranty service for items made by 
other manufacturers that are part of your proposal, 
or are these warranties issues typically passed on 
to the original equipment manufacturer?

Warranty service for machines ordered from a Caterpillar facility are 
generally provided by Caterpillar and performed by Cat dealers. Some 
items, such as tires, are covered under their manufacturers' warranties.

 *

51 What are your proposed exchange and return 
programs and policies?

Please see applicable warranty statements in the attached documents.  *

52 Describe any service contract options for the 
items included in your proposal.

We have a large variety of service contract options which can all be 
customized according to customer needs. Below are just two examples. 
More solutions are available and we encourage members and dealers to 
explore all options.

1) Equipment Protection Plans (EPP): After the initial warranty period ends, 
members may choose to purchase additional protection plans to reduce their 
exposure to unplanned costs. These policies are written based on months 
and hours of operation. There are four standard levels of coverage:
1) Powertrain
2) Powertrain + Hydraulics
3) Powertrain + Hydraulics + Technology
4) Premier

A description of all these options is included in the attached Equipment 
Protection Plans document. EPP can be purchased at the same time as the 
machine purchase, or anytime before the standard warranty expires. 

2) Customer Value Agreements (CVA's):
A member may choose to enter into an agreement with their Cat dealer to 
perform routine maintenance and/or repairs. These contracts are 
customizable based on member needs.

The selling Cat dealer can take responsibility for some or all the required 
service and maintenance needs to allow the agency to gain efficiency by 
focusing on the performance demands more than maintenance. CVA's are a 
useful tool to manage expenses. CVAs can be purchased at the same time 
as the machine purchase, or anytime after. Cat Financial also offers CVAs, 
which can be performed by Cat dealers in the United States, and are 
particularly helpful for customers who move their machine fleet to multiple 
locations which may have different servicing Cat dealers.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 119 of 405



Table 10: Payment Terms and Financing Options

Line
Item Question Response *

53 Describe your payment terms and accepted payment 
methods.

Cat dealers are independently owned businesses. As such their 
payment terms and accepted payment methods vary, but all will be 
stated on individual invoices. The most common terms are net 30.

 *

54 Describe any leasing or financing options available for use 
by educational or governmental entities.

We offer both leasing and financing options to governmental 
members of Sourcewell at rates lower than available to the general 
public.

Caterpillar has its own financing arm, Cat Financial. 
Cat Financial was founded in 1981 and serves Cat customers and 
dealers. With over 1,900 employees, Cat Financial is active in more 
than 40 countries covering more than 148,000 customers worldwide. 
Cat Financial offers you a complete solution for your acquisition 
needs:

- Equipment & Attachments
- Parts
- Service
- Rebuilds

Financial products are aligned and customized with the project and 
work site requirements such as operating lease, loan or finance 
lease. Find more information from Cat Financial here: 
https://www.cat.com/en_US/support/financing-protection.html

 *

55 Describe any standard transaction documents that you 
propose to use in connection with an awarded contract 
(order forms, terms and conditions, service level 
agreements, etc.). Upload a sample of each (as 
applicable) in the document upload section of your 
response.

Cat dealers are independently owned businesses. As such their 
standard transaction documents will vary.

 *

56 Do you accept the P-card procurement and payment 
process? If so, is there any additional cost to Sourcewell 
participating entities for using this process?

Because Cat dealers will be receiving payments directly from 
members, accepting P-card procurement will be at their discretion. 
Many dealers do accept this method without additional fees. Some
have limitations on the amount that can be processed.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 120 of 405



Table 11: Pricing and Delivery

Provide detailed pricing information in the questions that follow below. Keep in mind that reasonable price and product adjustments can
be made during the term of an awarded Contract as described in the RFP, the template Contract, and the Sourcewell Price and Product
Change Request Form.

Line
Item Question Response *

57 Describe your pricing model (e.g., line-item discounts or 
product-category discounts). Provide detailed pricing data 
(including standard or list pricing and the Sourcewell 
discounted price) on all of the items that you want 
Sourcewell to consider as part of your RFP response. If 
applicable, provide a SKU for each item in your proposal. 
Upload your pricing materials (if applicable) in the 
document upload section of your response.

We offer a deep list discount off the current Caterpillar machine 
and work tool list prices to all Sourcewell members. We have 
provided base machine list pricing in the document pricing section. 
Base machines must be properly configured with other mandatory 
and optional items from the price list before they are considered 
operational. For the execution of the agreement we will ask our Cat 
dealer and Sourcewell member to use the Caterpillar price list that 
is current at the time of the quote. Dealers, in consultation with the 
member, will configure the machine to the desired specifications 
and apply the stated list discount to that configured list price 
amount. Dealer and members should remember to factor in any 
expected price increases if a machine will be built to order. The 
pricing document, in the applicable pricing document attachment 
section, shows the list discount offered for each new machine. 
Additionally, we are pleased to offer a list discount of 15% off all 
products and consulting services under Cat Safety Services.

 *

58 Quantify the pricing discount represented by the pricing 
proposal in this response. For example, if the pricing in 
your response represents a percentage discount from 
MSRP or list, state the percentage or percentage range.

Pricing in this proposal is a percentage discount from list on 
current machine and work tools list prices. Our discount range 
varies between 3 - 34% off of the list price depending on the 
product family or model.

 *

59 Describe any quantity or volume discounts or rebate 
programs that you offer.

Our dealers are empowered to consider purchase order volume, 
repeat purchases, etc. They may offer members additional discounts 
and /or services at their discretion.

 *

60 Propose a method of facilitating “sourced” products or 
related services, which may be referred to as “open 
market” items or “nonstandard options”. For example, you 
may supply such items “at cost” or “at cost plus a 
percentage,” or you may supply a quote for each such 
request.

Sourced goods / Open Market Items are available to members from 
Cat dealers. The prices for these good or services will represent 
fair marketing value and will be determined between the member 
and the selling dealer. We encourage our dealers and members to 
use these options as it facilitates complimentary products and 
streamlines the procurement process. Customers and dealers are 
responsible for including their Sourcewell member numbers on all 
documentation related to these
purchases. Caterpillar Inc. is not a party to these sales and is 
exempted from including them in quarterly reports.
For audits, inclusion of a customer's Sourcewell member number on 
the PO and /or invoice shall be deemed sufficient.

 *

61 Identify any element of the total cost of acquisition that is 
NOT included in the pricing submitted with your response. 
This includes all additional charges associated with a 
purchase that are not directly identified as freight or 
shipping charges. For example, list costs for items like pre-
delivery inspection, installation, set up, mandatory training, 
or initial inspection. Identify any parties that impose such 
costs and their relationship to the Proposer.

Machines are unique in their requirements for preparation prior to 
use. Some may require local final assembly due to their large size 
others may have locally installed options (fire suppression, beacons, 
auto lube systems for example). When a dealer issues a quote for 
a machine, any dealer costs (like pre-delivery inspection, installation, 
set up, training, etc.) will be itemized separately and are not subject 
to the Caterpillar list discount for Sourcewell members.

 *

62 If freight, delivery, or shipping is an additional cost to the 
Sourcewell participating entity, describe in detail the 
complete freight, shipping, and delivery program.

There is no additional cost to members who choose to pick up 
their machines from the Cat dealer. Dealers may charge fees for 
delivery to the Sourcewell member's location.

 *

63 Specifically describe freight, shipping, and delivery terms or 
programs available for Alaska, Hawaii, Canada, or any 
offshore delivery.

Just as for members in the 48 contiguous states, there is no 
additional cost to members who choose to pick up their machine 
from their Cat dealer. Dealers may charge fees for delivery to the 
Sourcewell members' location.

 *

64 Describe any unique distribution and/or delivery methods or 
options offered in your proposal.

Machines are large purchases and if there are unique Sourcewell 
member requirements our dealers will be happy to discuss on a 
case by case basis.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 121 of 405



Table 12: Pricing Offered

Line
Item The Pricing Offered in this Proposal is: * Comments

65 b. the same as the Proposer typically offers to GPOs, cooperative procurement organizations, or state purchasing
departments.

Caterpillar wants to provide 
the governmental customer 
the best list discount possible 
to allow them to be good 
stewards of tax-payers funds. 
We want our governmental 
customers to have the ability 
to choose which cooperative 
contract better fits their needs.

Table 13: Audit and Administrative Fee

Line
Item Question Response *

66 Specifically describe any self-audit process or program that you 
plan to employ to verify compliance with your proposed Contract 
with Sourcewell. This process includes ensuring that Sourcewell 
participating entities obtain the proper pricing, that the Vendor 
reports all sales under the Contract each quarter, and that the 
Vendor remits the proper administrative fee to Sourcewell. Provide 
sufficient detail to support your ability to report quarterly sales to 
Sourcewell as described in the Contract template.

We plan to continue our very robust process to ensure 
reporting speed, accuracy, and contract compliance. 
Caterpillar and our Cat dealers have very close and trusting 
relationships. Our dealers are long-established, and the 
current process (under contract #032119-CAT) is working well.
1) To ensure pricing accuracy, we maintain our current 
Sourcewell customer discount sheet on our dealer facing 
pricing pages. Dealers integrate these numbers automatically 
in their quoting software.
2) To ensure new machines and work tool sales are
recorded properly, we use our post-sale credit system. In a 
nutshell, this means that we
corporately support the pricing offered in this contract at a 
level below what's available to other customers. To receive 
this additional monetary support after the machine is 
delivered, dealers must supply the member's name, address, 
and member number. There is no additional burden or cost 
to our dealers to use the Sourcewell contract and this is 
part of the reason for their high engagement and our high 
reporting accuracy.
3) At month end, we gather the new machine and work tool 
sales data attributed to Sourcewell and aggregate it for our 
reporting.
4) After quarter end, we will send the quarterly sales report 
and administration fee payment to Sourcewell for all items 
that are subject to the administrative fee.

 *

67 If you are awarded a contract, provide a few examples of internal 
metrics that will be tracked to measure whether you are having 
success with the contract.

We regularly track the % of sales that are sold using a
cooperative contract. We will continue this practice if we are 
awarded a contract for RFP 011723.

 *

68 Identify a proposed administrative fee that you will pay to 
Sourcewell for facilitating, managing, and promoting the Sourcewell 
Contract in the event that you are awarded a Contract.  This fee 
is typically calculated as a percentage of Vendor’s sales under the 
Contract or as a per-unit fee; it is not a line-item addition to the 
Member’s cost of goods. (See the RFP and template Contract for 
additional details.)

Per amendment #1 to Contract #032119-CAT, we will be 
pleased to offer an administrative fee of 0.33% of 
Caterpillar's list price for each piece of new equipment and 
serialized work
tools purchased by Sourcewell's Participating Entities.
Caterpillar will pay this fee and will not ask dealers or
members to pay the fee.

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 122 of 405



Table 14A: Depth and Breadth of Offered Equipment Products and Services

Line
Item Question Response *

69 Provide a detailed description of the 
equipment, products, and services that you 
are offering in your proposal.

The Cat equipment product line, consisting of more than 300 machines, sets the 
standard for our industry. We plan to help you meet your needs with our equipment, 
with our distribution and product support system, and the continual introduction and 
updating of products. 

Caterpillar is pleased to offer a wide variety of products for Sourcewell members. 
Excluding paving products, equipment and services awarded on 060122-CAT these 
include: 

- Cat Backhoe Loaders (9 models offered)

- Cat Compact Track Loader/Skid Steer Loader (14 models offered)

- Cat Track/Wheel Hydraulic Excavators (41 models offered)

- Cat Motor Graders (7 models offered)

- Cat Telehandlers (8 models offered)

- Cat Track Loaders (3 models offered)

- Cat Track/Wheel Dozers (15 models offered)

- Cat Wheel Loaders (19 models offered)

- Cat Wheel Tractor Scrapers (7 models offered)

- Cat Articulated Trucks (5 models offered) 

- Cat Rigid Frame Trucks (2 models offered)

- Cat Material Handlers (3 models offered)

- Cat Landfill Compactors (3 models offered)

- Product offerings by model and discount can be found in the pricing attachment 
within the applicable proposal pricing section.

Services and support include: 
- Cat Attachments (Worktools) 
- Cat Technology
- Cat Safety Services
- Cat Job Site Solutions

- Product offerings by model and discount can be found in the pricing attachment 
within the applicable proposal pricing section.
- Services and support brochures can be found in the additional documents section 
by name of offering. 

For more detailed information on each of these products/offerings see the following
website: https://www.cat.com/en_US.html

 *

70 Within this RFP category there may be 
subcategories of solutions. List subcategory 
titles that best describe your products and 
services.

N/A

 *

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 123 of 405



Table 148: Depth and 8readth of Offered Equipment Products and Services 
 

Indicate below if the listed types or classes of equipment, products, and services are offered within your proposal. Provide additional 
comments in the text box provided, as necessary. 

 
Line Item Categor\ or T\pe Offered  Comments 
71 Wheeled, tracked, and backhoe loaders Yes 

No 
Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

7  Motor Graders Yes 
No 

Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

73 Wheeled and tracked excavators Yes 
No 

Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

74 Bulldozers, compactors, scapers, articulated and 
rigid haulers 

Yes 
No 

Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

75 Cranes Yes 
No 

NIA 

76 Accessories or attachments for the offering in #71- 
75 above 

Yes 
No 

Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

77 Technology or services for the offering in #71-75 
above 

Yes 
No 

Manufactured or offered by Caterpillar. 
Offerings listed in applicable pricing 
attachment section. 

 
Table 14C: Required Offering of Equipment 

 
Indicate below if the proposer's proposal includes at least one (1) of the following listed types or classes of equipment. Provide 
additional comments in the text box provided, as necessary. 

 
Line Item Categor\ or T\pe Offered  Comments 
78 Wheel loader with published net horsepower (HP) 

of at least 300 HP 
Yes 
No 

Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

79 Wheeled or tracked excavator with a published net 
horsepower (HP) of at least 150 HP 

Yes 
No 

Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

80 Motor Grader with a published maximum operating 
weight of at least 30,000 lbs. 

Yes 
No 

Manufactured by Caterpillar. Offerings 
listed in applicable pricing attachment 
section. 

81 Rough terrain, all terrain, crawler, floating, lattice, or 
telescopic crane with a published maximum lifting 
capacity of at least 300 tons and a published 
maximum boom length of at least 150 feet 

Yes 
No 

NIA 

 
Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications Form 
 
Only those Proposer Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications that have been accepted by Sourcewell have been 
incorporated into the contract text. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 124 of 405



Documents 
 

Ensure your submission document(s) conforms to the following: 
 
1. Documents in PDF format are preferred. Documents in Word, Excel, or compatible formats may also be provided. 

 
2. Documents should NOT have a security password, as Sourcewell may not be able to open the file. It is your sole responsibility to 
ensure that the uploaded document(s) are not either defective, corrupted or blank and that the documents can be opened and viewed 
by Sourcewell. 

 
3. Sourcewell may reject any response where any document(s) cannot be opened and viewed by Sourcewell. 

 
4. If you need to upload more than one (1) document for a single item, you should combine the documents into one zipped file. If the 
zipped file contains more than one (1) document, ensure each document is named, in relation to the submission format item responding 
to. For example, if responding to the Marketing Plan category save the document as "Marketing Plan." 

 
Pricing - Machine Pricing.zip - Tuesday January 17, 2023 15:29:45 
Financial Strength and Stability - Fin Strength and Stability.zip - Tuesday January 17, 2023 10:31:16 
Marketing PlanISamples - Marketing Plan.pdf - Tuesday January 17, 2023 14:53:49 
WMBEIMBEISBE or Related Certificates (optional) 
Warranty Information - Warranty Combined.pdf - Monday January 16, 2023 10:36:31 
Standard Transaction Document Samples (optional) 
Upload Additional Document - Additional Documents.zip - Tuesday January 17, 2023 16:05:29 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 125 of 405



Addenda, Terms and Conditions

 

 

PROPOSER AFFIDAVIT AND ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE

I certify that I am the authorized representative of the Proposer submitting the foregoing Proposal with the legal authority to bind the
Proposer to this Affidavit and Assurance of Compliance:

1. The Proposer is submitting this Proposal under its full and complete legal name, and the Proposer legally exists in good standing in
the jurisdiction of its residence.
 

2. The Proposer warrants that the information provided in this Proposal is true, correct, and reliable for purposes of evaluation for
contract award.
 

3. The Proposer, including any person assisting with the creation of this Proposal, has arrived at this Proposal independently and the
Proposal has been created without colluding with any other person, company, or parties that have or will submit a proposal under
this solicitation; and the Proposal has in all respects been created fairly without any fraud or dishonesty. The Proposer has not
directly or indirectly entered into any agreement or arrangement with any person or business in an effort to influence any part of
this solicitation or operations of a resulting contract; and the Proposer has not taken any action in restraint of free trade or
competitiveness in connection with this solicitation. Additionally, if Proposer has worked with a consultant on the Proposal, the
consultant (an individual or a company) has not assisted any other entity that has submitted or will submit a proposal for this
solicitation.
 

4. To the best of its knowledge and belief, and except as otherwise disclosed in the Proposal, there are no relevant facts or
circumstances which could give rise to an organizational conflict of interest. An organizational conflict of interest exists when a
vendor has an unfair competitive advantage or the vendor’s objectivity in performing the contract is, or might be, impaired.
 

5. The contents of the Proposal have not been communicated by the Proposer or its employees or agents to any person not an
employee or legally authorized agent of the Proposer and will not be communicated to any such persons prior to Due Date of this
solicitation.
 

6. If awarded a contract, the Proposer will provide to Sourcewell Participating Entities the equipment, products, and services in
accordance with the terms, conditions, and scope of a resulting contract.
 

7. The Proposer possesses, or will possess before delivering any equipment, products, or services, all applicable licenses or
certifications necessary to deliver such equipment, products, or services under any resulting contract.
 

8. The Proposer agrees to deliver equipment, products, and services through valid contracts, purchase orders, or means that are
acceptable to Sourcewell Members. Unless otherwise agreed to, the Proposer must provide only new and first-quality products and
related services to Sourcewell Members under an awarded Contract.
 

9. The Proposer will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state, and local laws, regulations, rules, and orders.
 

10. The Proposer understands that Sourcewell will reject RFP proposals that are marked "confidential" (or "nonpublic," etc.), either
substantially or in their entirety. Under Minnesota Statutes Section 13.591, subdivision 4, all proposals are considered nonpublic
data until the evaluation is complete and a Contract is awarded. At that point, proposals become public data. Minnesota Statutes
Section 13.37 permits only certain narrowly defined data to be considered a "trade secret," and thus nonpublic data under
Minnesota's Data Practices Act.
 

11. Proposer its employees, agents, and subcontractors are not:
1. Included on the “Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons” list maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control

of the United States Department of the Treasury found at: https://www.treasury.gov/ofac/downloads/sdnlist.pdf;
 

2. Included on the government-wide exclusions lists in the United States System for Award Management found at:
https://sam.gov/SAM/; or
 

3. Presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs operated

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 126 of 405

https://www.treasury.gov/ofac/downloads/sdnlist.pdf
https://sam.gov/SAM/


by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian government, as applicable; or any
Participating Entity. Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense
related to the subject matter of this solicitation.

  By checking this box I acknowledge that I am bound by the terms of the Proposer’s Affidavit, have the legal authority to submit this
Proposal on behalf of the Proposer, and that this electronic acknowledgment has the same legal effect, validity, and enforceability as if I
had hand signed the Proposal.  This signature will not be denied such legal effect, validity, or enforceability solely because an electronic
signature or electronic record was used in its formation.   -  Sean Egel, Sales Support Consultant, Caterpillar Inc. 

The Proposer declares that there is an actual or potential Conflict of Interest relating to the preparation of its submission, and/or the
Proposer foresees an actual or potential Conflict of Interest in performing the contractual obligations contemplated in the bid. 

  Yes       No     

The Bidder acknowledges and agrees that the addendum/addenda below form part of the Bid Document.

Check the box in the column "I have reviewed this addendum" below to acknowledge each of the addenda.

File Name

I have reviewed the
below addendum and

attachments (if
applicable)

Pages

Addendum_5_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
Tue January 10 2023 08:47 AM 1

Addendum_4_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
Fri January 6 2023 09:51 AM 2

Addendum_3_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
Thu December 29 2022 12:33 PM 2

Addendum_2_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
Wed December 21 2022 01:49 PM 1

Addendum_1_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP 011723
Thu December 15 2022 09:27 AM 1

Bid Number: RFP 011723 Vendor Name: Caterpillar Inc

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 127 of 405



SOURCEWELL TRADEMARK LICENSE ADDENDUM 
 

This Addendum is by and between SOURCEWELL, 202 – 12th Street NE, PO Box 219, Staples, Minnesota 
56479 (“Sourcewell”) and Caterpillar Inc., having its principal place of business at 5212 N. O’Connor 
Blvd., Suite 1100, Irving, TX 75039, and offices at 100 NE Adams Street, Peoria, Illinois, 61629 
(“Caterpillar” or “Vendor”).  Sourcewell and Caterpillar may be referred to in this Agreement as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 
The Parties maintain a contractual relationship for Vendor to provide equipment, products, or services 
to Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts as follows:  
 

Sourcewell Contract 011723 – CAT (Solicitation Number:  011723) 
 
Sourcewell and Vendor each own all right, title, and interest in their respective names, trademarks, service 
marks, related logos, and all other rights in the names, designs, likenesses and visual representations 
thereof (“Licensed Trademarks”), and desire to grant each other a royalty-free license to use certain 
Licensed Trademarks owned by the other Party under the terms and conditions set forth herein.  
 
ARTICLE I: GRANT OF LICENSE 
 
A.  GRANT OF LICENSE. During the term of the Contract: 
 

1. Sourcewell grants to Vendor a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and license to use 
Sourcewell’s Licensed Trademarks provided to Vendor by Sourcewell in advertising and promotional 
materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with Vendor.  
 
2. Vendor grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide (except for those jurisdictions that are 
prohibited by applicable Anti-Corruption and International Trade Laws), non-exclusive right and 
license to use Vendor’s Licensed Trademarks provided to Sourcewell by Vendor in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Vendor’s relationship with Sourcewell.  

 
“Anti-Corruption and International Trade Laws” means all statutes, regulations, rules, executive 
orders, supervisory requirements, directives, ordinances, circulars, opinions, interpretive letters, and 
official releases of or by any government, or any authority, department or agency thereof or self-
regulatory organization related to bribery, fraud, corruption, or international trade. 
 
3. The Parties agree that each is the owner of all rights, including without limitation common law 
rights and goodwill, in relation to their respective Licensed Trademarks, and that any goodwill 
derived from the use of Licensed Trademarks by the other Party shall inure to the owner of the 
respective Licensed Trademarks.   

 
B. LIMITED RIGHT OF SUBLICENSE. The rights and licenses granted herein includes a limited right of 
each Party to grant sublicenses to its and their respective distributors, marketing representatives, and 
agents (collectively “Permitted Sublicensees”) in advertising and promotional materials for the purpose 
of marketing the Contract. Any sublicense granted will be subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Addendum.  Each Party will be responsible for any breach of this Article by any of their respective 
sublicensees.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 128 of 405



 
C. USE; QUALITY CONTROL.  
 

1. Neither Party may alter the other Party’s Licensed Trademarks from the form provided by the 
other Party and must comply with the other Party’s removal requests as to specific uses of its 
Licensed Trademarks.   
 
2. Each Party agrees to use, and to cause its Permitted Sublicensees to use, the other Party’s 
Licensed Trademarks only in good faith and in a dignified manner consistent with such Party’s use of 
the Licensed Trademarks. Upon written notice to the breaching Party, the breaching Party or their 
Permitted Sublicensees have thirty (30) days of the date of the written notice to cure the breach or 
the license will be terminated.  

 
3. Beyond what is permitted in this Addendum, neither Party will: 

 
a. attempt to register, or register any trademark, service mark, symbol, logo, get-up or 

device which is confusingly similar to any of the other Party’s Licensed Trademarks in 
any jurisdiction; 
 

b. represent that it has any rights of any nature in the Licensed Trademarks other than 
those enjoyed under the terms of this Agreement; 

 
c. use the other Party’s trademarks, service marks or copyrights,  translations thereof or 

marks similar thereto, as part of its corporate name, trade name or a d/b/a name, 
favicons, social media names/handles, email addresses, email extensions, or domain 
names without prior written approval from the other Party;  or 

 
d. use the other Party’s trade names, trademarks, or service marks on any collateral 

business materials (e.g., business cards, letterhead, invoices, pens, notepads, fax cover 
sheets, etc.), unless otherwise approved in writing by the other Party.  

 
ARTICLE II: TERM, TERMINATION, AND MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Addendum is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. TERMINATION. Unless earlier terminated in accordance with this Article, this Addendum expires 
immediately upon the expiration or termination of the Contract. 

 
1. Termination for Convenience. This Addendum may be terminated by either Party at any time 
upon ninety (90) days’ prior written notice to the other Party. 
 
2. Termination for Breach. This Addendum may be terminated by either Party upon a breach of the 
terms of this Addendum by the other Party, upon written notice of breach to the breaching Party, 
and only if such breach is not cured within thirty (30) days of the date of the written notice.  
 
3. Effect of Termination. Upon the termination of this Addendum for any reason, each Party will 

have thirty (30) days to, and require its Permitted Sublicensees to, remove all Licensed 
Trademarks from signage, websites, and the like bearing the other Party’s name or logo 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

Page 129 of 405



(excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed catalog of vendors which may be used until the next 
printing).  Vendor must return all marketing and promotional materials, including signage, 
provided by Sourcewell, or dispose of it according to Sourcewell’s written directions. 

 
4. Miscellaneous.  The terms and conditions of this Addendum shall have no effect on the terms 

and conditions of any other trademark licenses signed by the Parties. 

 
All other terms of the Contract remain in full force and effect, unless otherwise terminated.  
 
 

SOURCEWELL 
By: _________________    
Name:       
Title:        
Date:        
 

Caterpillar Inc. 
By: _________________    
Name:       
Title:        
Date:        

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E74F7137-AC67-4B07-965B-33CD3E77A89BDocuSign Envelope ID: 9AA872AA-9802-4A6D-8065-BECD9EB74C88

5/24/2023 | 2:45 PM CDT
Director of Operations and Procurement/CPO

Jeremy Schwartz Patrick Kearns

5/24/2023 | 12:48 PM PDT

Vice President Sales & Marketing - North America

Page 130 of 405



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 131 of 405



 

 
180244-01 
 
Oct 14, 2024 
 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ATTENTION PURCHASING 
PO BOX 920 
RIALTO, California 92376-0920 

Sourcewell member #144741 
 
 
Attention: RUDY OLGINE 

 
 

 

 
Dear Sir, 

 
 

 
We would like to thank you for your interest in our company and our products, and are pleased to quote the following for your 
consideration. 

 

 
One (1) New Caterpillar Inc. Model: 420 Backhoe Loader  including standard and optional equipment as listed below. 

 
STOCK NUMBER:                SERIAL NUMBER:                 YEAR:                  SMU:  

 

 

 
We wish to thank you for the opportunity of quoting on your equipment needs. This quotation is valid for 30 days, after which time 
we reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 

 
Sincerely, 
 

Jose Farias 
 
Jose Farias 
Machine Sales Representative 
Phone 760.399.6404  
Email  jose.farias@quinncompany.com 
 

 

 

 

  

Page 132 of 405



 
One (1) New Caterpillar Inc. Model: 420 Backhoe Loader  including standard and optional equipment as listed below. 

 
 

 

 
Standard Equipment 

 
BOOMS, STICKS, AND LINKAGES 
 
BACKHOE LOADER 
- 14'4'' Center pivot backhoe - Single Tilt Loader 
4.3 Meters - Lift cylinder brace 
- Boom and swing transport locks - Self-leveling loader with single 
- Pilot operated backhoe and lever control 
electro hydraulic stabilizer controls - Return-to-dig 
- Street type stabilizer shoes (automatic bucket positioner) 
- Anti-drift hydraulics (boom, stick, - Transmission neutralizer switch 
and E-stick) - Bucket level indicator 
- Cat Cushion Swing(tm) system  

 
POWERTRAIN 
 
- Water separator - Torque converter 
- Thermal starting aid system - Transmission-four speed manual shift 
- Dry type axial seal air cleaner with - Neutral safety switch 
integral precleaner - Spin-on filters for 
- Automatic dust ejection system Fuel 
- Filter condition indicator Engine oil 
- Hydraulically boosted multi-plate Transmission oil 
wet disk brake with dual pedals & - Outboard Planetary Rear Axles 
interlock - Diesel particulate filter 
- Differential lock - Hydrostatic power steering 

 
HYDRAULICS 
 
- Pilot hoe and mechanical loader - Caterpillar XT-3 hose 
controls - Hydraulic oil cooler 
- Load sensing, variable flow system - Pilot control shutoff switch 
with 43 gpm (162 L/min) axial piston - Flow-sharing hydraulic valves 
pump - Hydraulic suction strainer 
- 6 micron hydraulic filter  

 
ELECTRICAL 
 
- 12 volt electrical start - Audible system fault alarm 
- Horn, front and rear - Key start/stop system 
- Backup alarm - 850 CCA maintenance free battery 
- Hazard flashers/turn signals - Battery disconnect switch 
- Halogen head lights (2) - External Power Receptacle (12v) 
- Halogen rear flood lights (2) - Diagnostic ports for engine and 
- Stop and tail lights machine Electronic Control Modules 

 
OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT 
 

Page 133 of 405



- Interior rearview mirror - Automatic Engine Speed Control 
- ROPS canopy, Rear Fenders - One Touch Low Idle 
- 2-inch (50mm) retractable seat belt - Floor mat and Coat Strap 
- Tilt steering column - Lockable storage area 
- Steering knob - Air suspension seat 
- Hand and foot throttle  

 
FLUIDS 
 
- Antifreeze - Extended Life Coolant -20F (-30C) 

 
OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
- Standard Storage Box guard 
- Transport tie-down points - CD-ROM Parts Manual 
- Ground line fill fuel tank with - Safety Manual 
42.3 gal (160L) capacity & 5 gal (19L) - Operations and Maintenance Manual 
diesel exhaust fluid - Lockable hood 
- Rubber impact strips on radiator - Tire Valve Stem Protection 

 

 

  

Page 134 of 405



MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
420 07A BACKHOE LOADER CFG2 542-7992 

TRIM PACKAGE 4 

INCLUDES: 
544-0883 CAB, DELUXE 
554-4188 HYD, MP, 6FCN/8BNK, ST, QC 
544-0930 PT, 4WD/2WS AUTOSHIFT 
543-4284 STICK, EXTENDABLE, 4.3M (14FT) 
545-5048 DISPLAY, TOUCH SCREEN 
491-6736 WORKLIGHTS (8) LED LAMPS 
611-0345 SEAT, DELUXE FABRIC, HEATED 
542-7810 AIR CONDITIONER, S5 (T4F) 
337-9696 COUNTERWEIGHT, 460 KGS (1015 LBS) 
551-6453 RIDE CONTROL 
548-1231 LINES, COMBINED AUX, E-STICK 
540-2298 STANDARD RADIO (12V) 
551-6940 COLD WEATHER PACKAGE, 120V 
567-5090 AUTO-UP STABILIZERS 
423-7607 PLATE GROUP - BOOM WEAR 
353-1389 GUARD, STABILIZER 

642-9589 

ENGINE, 74.5KW, C3.6 DITA, T4F 541-9540 

SEAT BELT, 3'' SUSPENSION 206-1748 

PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR, PLE643 639-4880 

TIRES, 340 80-18/500 70-24, MX 533-0488 

STEERING STOP 570-9674 

STABILIZER PADS, FLIP-OVER 9R-6007 

INSTRUCTIONS, ANSI 559-0872 

SERIALIZED TECHNICAL MEDIA KIT 421-8926 

BEACON, MAGNETIC MOUNT 211-4292 

DISPLAY, SECURITY, ENABLED 573-0397 

FENDERS, FRONT 4WD 563-6098 

MIRRORS, EXTERNAL, BOTH SIDES 382-2499 

BUCKET-MP, 1.4 YD3, IT 216-8840 

CUTTING EDGE, TWO PIECE,WIDE 9R-5320 

COUPLER, PG, HYDR.D.LOCK, BHL 485-5303 

BUCKET-HD, 18'', 4.2 FT3 219-3386 

 

 

  

Page 135 of 405



WARRANTY & COVERAGE 
Standard Warranty: 12 MONTHS FULL MACHINE  

 

 

SELL PRICE $209,095.00 

SOURCEWELL DISCOUNT (22%) ($46,000.90) 

TOTAL PRICE $163,094.10 

EXTENDED WARRANTY (48M / 2000H Premier) $2,900.00 

FREIGHT, PREP & DEL $3,200.00 

NET BALANCE DUE $169,194.10 

TIRE FEE $7.00 

SALES TAX (7.75%) $13,112.54 

AFTER TAX BALANCE $182,313.64 

 

 

2024 Sourcewell Contract# 011723-CAT 
 
INCLUDES FOLLOWING SERVICE WITH PUCHASE 

• 48 Months / 2000 Hours Full Machine Warranty  

• Online Monitoring Online Access – Hours and Location 

• Free Training by Certified Demo Operator: (will take 2-3 hours when machine arrives to go over all functions and 
features as well as daily inspections) 

• Service & Parts (Online Access) 

• Free Delivery to Rialto, CA 

 

 
F.O.B/TERMS:  
 
Accepted by___________________________________ on ____________________  
 

 
                                                                              ______________________________ 
                                                                                           Signature 

Page 136 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         William Fox, Chief Financial Officer
 

SUBJECT:   West Valley Water District Travel Policy
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
 
10/15/24  Policy Review and Oversight Committee  REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND: 

A proposed employee expense reimbursement policy was developed by the prior Finance Director. This policy was
reviewed and used as the foundation for the proposed West Valley Water District Travel Policy. This proposed
policy has been reviewed with the Policy Review & Oversight Committee and the Finance Committee.  Both
committees provided input, which has been incorporated into the  proposed West Valley Water District Travel
Policy.  This policy memorizes existing practices that have not previously been placed in writing.

The District currently processes employee reimbursements requiring receipts for all amounts being submitted.
Mileage reimbursements are at the standard IRS approved mileage rate. Employees frequently, but are not
required to, include MapQuest or Google Directions to validate the distance being claimed for mileage
reimbursement. Employees are encouraged to submit for reimbursement within thirty days of incurring expenses or
upon return from a conference or other planned event.  The reimbursements are evaluated based upon being
actual and reasonable. They are reviewed and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor prior to
submission to the Finance Department for payment.

DISCUSSION: 
 
The District’s current practice for employee reimbursement contains many controls that follow best practices. The
proposed policy incorporates these and also provides opportunities  to further enhance the existing practices.
Further enhancements include the development of an employee expense reimbursement form and memorializes
the use of cost guidelines in the form of per diems as published by the Federal Government for meals and
incidental expenses. This provides a frame of reference for reasonableness of costs incurred and a consistent
approach in documenting expenses and facilitating reimbursements to employees.    

A bench-marking study was conducted to examine how other agencies handle their employee reimbursements. 
The results of the bench marking study revealed that the proposed West Valley Water District Travel Policy
incorporates best practices and will further strengthen the existing employee expense reimbursement process.  As
part of this enhancement process, an easy to complete employee expense reimbursement form was also
developed.

Page 137 of 405



The following are attached containing details: Exhibit A – Proposed West Valley Water District Travel Policy; Exhibit
B – Proposed West Valley Water District Employee Expense Reimbursement Form; Exhibit C – Federal
Government Table for per diems covering Meals and Incidental Costs. Additionally attached at Exhibit D is the
bench-marking study of neighboring agencies related to employee reimbursements. The survey was presented to
both the Policy & Oversight Committee and Finance Committee in two separate review sessions.

FISCAL IMPACT:
 
There is no direct financial impact of the development and implementation of the Administrative Policy regarding
employee expense reimbursements.  However, from an operational perspective additional guidelines will improve
clarity and accountability.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Staff recommends that the implementation of proposed West Valley Water District Travel Policy, West Valley Water
District Employee Expense Reimbursement Form, and the Government Table for Meals and Incidental Costs as a
guideline for employee travel expenses.

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - Employee Travel Policy.pdf
Exhibit B - Employee Expense Report.pdf
Exhibit C - Per Diem Rates For Meals and Incidentals.pdf
Exhibit D - Benchmarking Presentation.pdf

Page 138 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Employee%20Travel%20Policy.pdf?alt=media&token=db0734dc-0785-414a-8b92-7356d876a169
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Employee%20Travel%20Policy.pdf?alt=media&token=db0734dc-0785-414a-8b92-7356d876a169
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Employee%20Travel%20Policy.pdf?alt=media&token=db0734dc-0785-414a-8b92-7356d876a169
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20Employee%20Expense%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=ba77132e-316f-4a48-a58d-6b6da33fae72
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20Employee%20Expense%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=ba77132e-316f-4a48-a58d-6b6da33fae72
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20Employee%20Expense%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=ba77132e-316f-4a48-a58d-6b6da33fae72
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20C%20-%20Per%20Diem%20Rates%20For%20Meals%20and%20Incidentals.pdf?alt=media&token=1bfef454-3d29-4412-b51a-2c5b49f5f0f7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20C%20-%20Per%20Diem%20Rates%20For%20Meals%20and%20Incidentals.pdf?alt=media&token=1bfef454-3d29-4412-b51a-2c5b49f5f0f7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20C%20-%20Per%20Diem%20Rates%20For%20Meals%20and%20Incidentals.pdf?alt=media&token=1bfef454-3d29-4412-b51a-2c5b49f5f0f7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20D%20-%20Benchmarking%20Presentation.pdf?alt=media&token=8285f447-a018-44ec-b0c6-db13ef809c40
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20D%20-%20Benchmarking%20Presentation.pdf?alt=media&token=8285f447-a018-44ec-b0c6-db13ef809c40
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a4c73a622140054ec0018%2FExhibit%20D%20-%20Benchmarking%20Presentation.pdf?alt=media&token=8285f447-a018-44ec-b0c6-db13ef809c40


Page 139 of 405



Page 140 of 405



Page 141 of 405



Page 142 of 405



Page 143 of 405



Page 144 of 405



Page 145 of 405



Page 146 of 405



Page 147 of 405



Page 148 of 405



Page 149 of 405



Page 150 of 405



Page 151 of 405



Page 152 of 405



Page 153 of 405



Page 154 of 405



Page 155 of 405



Page 156 of 405



Page 157 of 405



Page 158 of 405



Page 159 of 405



Page 160 of 405



Page 161 of 405



Page 162 of 405



Page 163 of 405



Page 164 of 405



Page 165 of 405



Page 166 of 405



Page 167 of 405



Page 168 of 405



Page 169 of 405



Page 170 of 405



Page 171 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         William Fox, Chief Financial Officer
 

SUBJECT:   Treasurer's Report - September 2024
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
 
10/23/24 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND: 

On a monthly basis the Finance Committee meets with the General Manager and Finance Staff to review the
Treasurer’s Report that covers the prior month. This encompasses balances, reserve levels, reserve classifications,
interest earned, investment maturities, reinvestments made during the month, and compliance with the State of
California Local Agency Investment Guidelines.  

 DISCUSSION:
 
West Valley Water District (“District”) contracts with the Clifton Larson Allen LLP to prepare the  monthly Treasurer’s
Report.  This is an independent report that opines on the investment balances, classifications, and activity.  This
report also examines the District’s investment policy to ensure that it follows the State of California’s Local Agency
Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(b)). The Treasurer Report for the Month of September
2024 (Exhibit A) is presented to the Finance Committee for review and discussion. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:
 
Monthly Cost of $3,100 was included in the FY 2024-25 annual budget.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the September 2024 Treasurer’s Report.
 

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - 2024 September Treasurer Report.pdf

Page 172 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d08d4a622140054f0683e%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Treasurer%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=91ebabf7-222a-4c25-9c17-40e63ed4ddc3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d08d4a622140054f0683e%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Treasurer%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=91ebabf7-222a-4c25-9c17-40e63ed4ddc3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d08d4a622140054f0683e%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Treasurer%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=91ebabf7-222a-4c25-9c17-40e63ed4ddc3


Page 173 of 405



Page 174 of 405



Page 175 of 405



Page 176 of 405



Page 177 of 405



Page 178 of 405



Page 179 of 405



Page 180 of 405



Page 181 of 405



Page 182 of 405



Page 183 of 405



Page 184 of 405



Page 185 of 405



Page 186 of 405



Page 187 of 405



Page 188 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         William Fox, Chief Financial Officer
 

SUBJECT:   Cash Disbursements Report - September 2024
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
 
10/23/2024 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND: 

The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Cash Disbursements Report to be presented to the Finance
Committee for review and discussion before presenting these reports to the Board of Directors. The reports are
being produced from the District’s Financial System (System of Records) and will be presented to the Finance
Committee on a monthly basis.

DISCUSSION: 

Each month, the Accounting Department provides a complete listing of all previous month’s disbursements to
promote fiscal responsibility and accountability over the expenditure of public funds.  This process includes
providing the Finance Committee, Board of Directors, and ratepayers the opportunity to review expenses for
supplies, materials, services, (Exhibit A) and payroll Disbursements (Exhibit B).  Payroll is processed bi-weekly
and accounts payable are processed weekly. Information to justify each payment is available through the
Accounting Department. For reference, Customer Refunds are credits due as a result of closing a water account.

FISCAL IMPACT:
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the September 2024 Cash Disbursement Reports.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the September 2024 Cash Disbursement Reports.
 

 

Page 189 of 405



Attachments

Exhibit A - 2024 September Cash Disbursements Board Report.pdf
Exhibit B - 2024 September Cash Disbursements Payroll.pdf

Page 190 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0b18a622140054f07211%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Board%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=bb99da7f-0cb1-4817-8649-fa2e379795a0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0b18a622140054f07211%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Board%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=bb99da7f-0cb1-4817-8649-fa2e379795a0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0b18a622140054f07211%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Board%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=bb99da7f-0cb1-4817-8649-fa2e379795a0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0b18a622140054f07211%2FExhibit%20B%20-%202024%20September%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Payroll.pdf?alt=media&token=ff66ec07-4d1a-4dad-92cc-ba5293bd10c7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0b18a622140054f07211%2FExhibit%20B%20-%202024%20September%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Payroll.pdf?alt=media&token=ff66ec07-4d1a-4dad-92cc-ba5293bd10c7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0b18a622140054f07211%2FExhibit%20B%20-%202024%20September%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Payroll.pdf?alt=media&token=ff66ec07-4d1a-4dad-92cc-ba5293bd10c7


EXHIBIT A 

Page 191 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
8074 360 GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LLC WEB HOSTING SERVICES-OCT 2024 500.00$                                

8075 AUTOMATED GATE SERVICES INC GATE MAINTENANCE 217.50$                                

8076 CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN Treasurer Services-MARCH 2024 425.00$                                

8076 CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN Treasurer Services-MARCH 2024 2,525.00$                            

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 15.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 15.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 15.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 31.50$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 55.50$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 15.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 202.50$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 15.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 142.50$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 36.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 90.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 243.00$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 40.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 1,620.00$                            

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 1,620.00$                            

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELL#6 182.50$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 204.00$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 204.00$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 1,614.00$                            

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 123.50$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 123.50$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 90.00$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 123.50$                                

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 17.50$                                  

8077 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 17.50$                                  

8078 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LP PORTABLE RESTROOM-10272 S CEDAR PL 125.58$                                

8078 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LP PORTABLE RESTROOM-18451 VINEYARD AVE 125.58$                                

8079 DYER, JUNE J MEDICARE PART B JAN-JUNE 2024 1,048.20$                            

8080 INFOSEND INC NEWSLETTERS-MAY 2024 2,554.83$                            

8080 INFOSEND INC 2023 WATER QUALITY REPORT 1,717.37$                            

8081 JEFF CRIDER SERVICES-AUG 2024 2,380.00$                            

8082 MURPHY, RONALD MEDICARE PART B REIMB-APR-JUNE 2024 524.10$                                

8083 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT SAFETY BOOTS-EDGAR HIDALGO 250.00$                                

8084 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY FIELD SAFETY MTG 8/13/24 225.00$                                

8084 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY OFFICE SAFETY MTG 8/13/24 200.00$                                

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.76$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.91$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.14$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.59$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.16$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.75$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.95$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.49$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.14$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 4.39$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 4.95$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 8.32$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 9.75$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES-ROEMER 72.80$                                  

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.14$                                    

Page 1 of 9Page 192 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.98$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.12$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 9.75$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.23$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.82$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.81$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.00$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.08$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 4.79$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 72.80$                                  

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.95$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 9.75$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.14$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 4.46$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 6.50$                                    

8085 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 10.35$                                  

8087 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL HMO (19.36)$                                 

8087 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL PPO (47.86)$                                 

8087 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE (1,317.43)$                           

8087 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL HMO 718.90$                                

8087 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL PPO 8,981.26$                            

8087 ACWA /JPIA EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 208.32$                                

8087 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE 146,909.57$                        

8087 ACWA /JPIA VISION 1,779.12$                            

8087 ACWA /JPIA DELTACARE DENTAL PPO 555.76$                                

8087 ACWA /JPIA HEALTH INSURANCE 6,945.18$                            

8087 ACWA /JPIA VISION 84.72$                                  

8087 ACWA /JPIA EE Adjusts 1,281.59$                            

8087 ACWA /JPIA Retirees 15,431.72$                          

8087 ACWA /JPIA Retirees 1,807.82$                            

8087 ACWA /JPIA Retirees 571.86$                                

8088 AIR & HOSE SOURCE INC WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 297.39$                                

8088 AIR & HOSE SOURCE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 100.24$                                

8089 AMERICAN GLOBAL SECURITY, INC. Standing Guard Service for HQ for 30 Days 5,576.67$                            

8090 AUTOMATED GATE SERVICES INC GATE REPAIRS 486.00$                                

8091 BOOT BARN INC SAFETY BOOTS-ALLAN HIDALGO 169.43$                                

8092 CDW GOVERNMENT INC Romer router and swithces camera network 3,555.10$                            

8092 CDW GOVERNMENT INC Romer router and swithces camera network 1,185.41$                            

8092 CDW GOVERNMENT INC Romer router and swithces camera network 2,233.91$                            

8092 CDW GOVERNMENT INC Romer router and swithces camera network 479.27$                                

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 39.00$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 15.00$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 21.00$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 40.50$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 51.00$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 51.00$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 7.50$                                    

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 250.50$                                

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 19.50$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 40.00$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 17.50$                                  

8093 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 17.50$                                  

8094 HACH COMPANY HACH Turbidity Analyzer 5,310.95$                            

Page 2 of 9Page 193 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 217.49$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 169.16$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 362.49$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 338.32$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 990.73$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 314.16$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 289.99$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 326.24$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-BLF 1,752.03$                            

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 362.49$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 277.91$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-WELLS 205.41$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-PERCHLORATE 362.49$                                

8095 HASA INC. CHEMICALS-PERCHLORATE 422.90$                                

8096 INFOSEND INC Postage/Printing for Customer Bills-AUG 2024 4,127.80$                            

8096 INFOSEND INC Postage/Printing for Customer Bills-AUG 2024 15,315.12$                          

8097 MCDONALD ELECTRIC INC Emergency repair of hydro plant breaker 1,816.04$                            

8097 MCDONALD ELECTRIC INC Emergency repair of hydro plant breaker 2,502.12$                            

8098 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 482.83$                                

8098 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 329.83$                                

8098 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY FBR SUPPLIES 980.91$                                

8098 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 683.78$                                

8098 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 743.22$                                

8098 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY ROEMER SUPPLIES 375.69$                                

8099 MERLIN JOHNSON CONST INC. Install 24 inch valve at 6-1 Pump Station 18,360.00$                          

8100 SAMBA HOLDINGS INC HR SERVICES-AUG 2024 146.91$                                

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.14$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 8.32$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 4.95$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 4.39$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 32.51$                                  

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.12$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.98$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.14$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.91$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 23.35$                                  

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.14$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.16$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.49$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.95$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.59$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.76$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 4.79$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.81$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.23$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.00$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 36.37$                                  

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.82$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.08$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.14$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.95$                                    

8101 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 18.34$                                  

8102 WESTRUX INTERNATIONAL INC VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 729.18$                                

Page 3 of 9Page 194 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
8102 WESTRUX INTERNATIONAL INC VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 377.35$                                

8103 ABF PRINTS INC NAME PLATES 315.71$                                

8104 BERTOLINE, GINA E WORKPLACE WELLBEING 50.38$                                  

8105 CERON, KIMBERLY SUPPLIES DIRECTOR HAWKINS FAREWELL 18.53$                                  

8106 CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES-AUG 2024 7,635.25$                            

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 44.00$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 44.00$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-BLF 15.00$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 701.50$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 202.50$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES 142.50$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 90.00$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 19.50$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 19.50$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 19.50$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELLS 19.50$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE 243.00$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 1,845.00$                            

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-FBR 341.00$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-WELL 6 182.50$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 123.50$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 90.00$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 75.00$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 226.00$                                

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 17.50$                                  

8107 CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC LAB FEES-ROEMER 17.50$                                  

8108 COMPUTERIZED EMBROIDERY COMPANY INC SHIRT-YOLANDA 34.78$                                  

8108 COMPUTERIZED EMBROIDERY COMPANY INC SHIRTS-ANGELA GARCIA 464.15$                                

8109 DRAKE, LANCE W TRI STATE CONFERENCE EXPENSES 693.74$                                

8110 INFOSEND INC IPAY SMART NOTICES 1,788.43$                            

8111 LEASE PLAN USA INC Mechanic Repairs for Fleet 5,185.43$                            

8112 PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC PLANTS MAINTENANCE 424.00$                                

8112 PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC PLANTS MAINTENANCE 424.00$                                

8113 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY FIELD SAFETY MEETING 8/27/24 225.00$                                

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 7.59$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 6.76$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 5.91$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.95$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.49$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.75$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 9.14$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION 4.16$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 7.14$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 9.75$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 8.32$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 4.95$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-FBR 4.39$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 9.75$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.12$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 4.98$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ROEMER 6.14$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.81$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.82$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 6.23$                                    

Page 4 of 9Page 195 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 9.75$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.00$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 5.08$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-METERS 4.79$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 9.75$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 6.14$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING 5.95$                                    

8114 UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORMS-PURCHASING 16.85$                                  

8115 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL FEES 90.00$                                  

8115 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL FEES 1,723.50$                            

8115 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL FEES 1,485.00$                            

8115 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL FEES 4,477.50$                            

8115 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL FEES 17,433.00$                          

87189 HALILU, LADI CUSTOMER REFUND 4.67$                                    

87190 Abedrabbo, Safa CUSTOMER REFUND 45.46$                                  

87191 de Bonilla, Maria Libia Rocha CUSTOMER REFUND 45.02$                                  

87192 MONTE VISTA HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 25.80$                                  

87193 MONTE VISTA HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 30.40$                                  

87194 MONTE VISTA HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 30.40$                                  

87195 INGUDOMNUKUL, SAM T. CUSTOMER REFUND 179.59$                                

87196 ADAMS, MICHAEL CUSTOMER REFUND 68.15$                                  

87197 JARA, BERTHA L. CUSTOMER REFUND 16.00$                                  

87198 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 6.67$                                    

87199 DEETER, DENISE VENEGAS & JASON CUSTOMER REFUND 36.15$                                  

87200 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 3.28$                                    

87201 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 15.03$                                  

87202 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 20.32$                                  

87203 LENNAR CORP CUSTOMER REFUND 26.93$                                  

87204 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 10.41$                                  

87205 LENNAR CORP CUSTOMER REFUND 19.29$                                  

87206 LENNAR CORP CUSTOMER REFUND 16.06$                                  

87207 NK DEMOLITION CUSTOMER REFUND 3,297.30$                            

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 307.95$                                

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 732.32$                                

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 363.61$                                

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 70.35$                                  

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 49.54$                                  

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 101.02$                                

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC DISTRICT MAINTENANCE 122.82$                                

87208 AMAZON.COM SALES INC ENGINEERING SUPPLIES 382.40$                                

87209 AQUA-METRIC SALES CO EXTENDED WARRANTY OF EQUIP 7,500.00$                            

87210 AT&T INTERNET INTERNET SERVICE-08/26/24-09/25/24 144.45$                                

87211 AT&T LONG DISTANCE ROEMER LONG DISTANCE 26.19$                                  

87212 BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC DISPOSAL FEES-ROEMER 240.19$                                

87212 BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC DISPOSAL FEES-HQ 803.82$                                

87213 C WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC Butterfly Valve Installation for Roemer 22,148.01$                        

87214 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 189.30$                                

87215 CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2 SAFETY SUPPLIES 281.23$                                

87215 CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2 SAFETY SUPPLIES 562.46$                                

87216 COASTAL BUILDING SERVICES INC Janitorial Services-AUGUST 2024 185.00$                                

87216 COASTAL BUILDING SERVICES INC Janitorial Services-AUGUST 2024 2,904.00$                            

87217 COMMERCIAL TRANSPORTATION SERVICES Class A Driver Training 6,672.84$                            

87218 CONTROL TEMP INC A/C MAINTENANCE 288.45$                                

87219 CORE & MAIN LP Schonstedt Metal Detectors 9,051.00$                            

Page 5 of 9Page 196 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
87220 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE 9/14/23-10/13/23 4.22$                                    

87220 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-04/14/24-05/13/24 6.86$                                    

87220 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-05/14/24-06/13/24 25.37$                                  

87220 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-06/14/24-07/13/24 11.93$                                  

87220 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-07/01/24-07/31/24 255.01$                                

87220 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-07/02/24-08/01/24 192.60$                                

87220 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-07/04/24-08/03/24 146.77$                                

87221 ENRIQUE GONZALEZ Additional catering for ASBCSD meeting 1,189.56$                            

87222 GRAINGER INC FBR SUPPLIES 521.59$                                

87223 HAWKEYE EQUIPMENT RENTALS INC Repairs for boom lift 2,701.28$                            

87224 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY JULY 2024 SERVICES 5,069.58$                            

87225 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 134.62$                                

87225 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 83.18$                                  

87226 MCCALLS METERS INC Annual Large Meter Testing 7,350.00$                            

87227 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIFORNIA, A MEDICAL HR SERVICES 97.00$                                  

87228 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 183.10$                                

87229 P&S TRUCK SUPPLY INC. MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 223.12$                                

87230 PAUL FRANK GRAVESANDE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,945.00$                            

87231 PINNACLE PETROLEUM INC Gasoline and Diesel for Fleet 11,845.55$                          

87232 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ROEMER ELECTRICITY-07/31/24-08/28/24 117,820.28$                        

87233 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC INVENTORY MODULE REV/TRAINING 640.00$                                

87234 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT NEW TICKETS 217.84$                                

87234 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT NEW TICKETS 546.50$                                

87235 VERIZON CONNECT FLEET USA LLC SERVICES-AUG 2024 816.51$                                

87236 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES/IPADS-07/23/24-08/22/24 5,164.55$                            

87236 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES/IPADS-07/23/24-08/22/24 424.70$                                

87236 VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES CELL PHONES/IPADS-07/23/24-08/22/24 1,152.34$                            

87237 YO FIRE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 433.16$                                

87238 NELSON, THOMAS/ CATHERINE CUSTOMER REFUND 153.77$                                

87239 SALCEDO, JANELLE CUSTOMER REFUND 49.19$                                  

87240 GM REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS LLC CUSTOMER REFUND 1.96$                                    

87241 CANTRELL, FRANK J CUSTOMER REFUND 36.37$                                  

87242 Ferrari, Keira CUSTOMER REFUND 27.91$                                  

87243 Guerrero, Trayveon Deantay Abraham Weaver & Steven Richard CUSTOMER REFUND 31.60$                                  

87244 DeANDA, Octavio CUSTOMER REFUND 70.26$                                  

87245 ISLAS, JASMINE CUSTOMER REFUND 121.96$                                

87246 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 1.66$                                    

87247 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 1.66$                                    

87248 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 1.66$                                    

87249 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 0.47$                                    

87250 GIANUZZI, KAREN CUSTOMER REFUND 86.18$                                  

87251 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 1.42$                                    

87252 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 0.58$                                    

87253 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 0.58$                                    

87254 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 7.31$                                    

87255 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 0.58$                                    

87256 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 0.92$                                    

87257 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 9.44$                                    

87258 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 5.18$                                    

87259 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 7.24$                                    

87260 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 1.42$                                    

87261 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 2.46$                                    

87262 LENNAR CORP CUSTOMER REFUND 8.32$                                    

87263 THOMAS, SNYDER CUSTOMER REFUND 21.41$                                  

Page 6 of 9Page 197 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
87264 THIBODEAUX, AMANDA CUSTOMER REFUND 82.87$                                  

87265 AIRGAS USA LLC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 58.79$                                  

87266 AMAZON.COM SALES INC WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 239.82$                                

87266 AMAZON.COM SALES INC WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES 280.12$                                

87266 AMAZON.COM SALES INC MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 728.25$                                

87266 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 78.62$                                  

87266 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 140.20$                                

87266 AMAZON.COM SALES INC COMPUTER SUPPLIES 314.34$                                

87267 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 189.30$                                

87268 CITY OF RIALTO UTILITY USER TAX-AUG 2024 58,767.15$                          

87268 CITY OF RIALTO UTILITY USER TAX-AUG 2024 (179.81)$                              

87269 CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO LYTLE CREEK STREAMFLOW-AUG 2024 23,266.71$                          

87270 CORE & MAIN LP Parts for 24 inch valve install at 6-1 1,254.98$                            

87270 CORE & MAIN LP Schonstedt Metal Detectors 9,051.00$                            

87271 DAC (DIGITAL ASSURANCE CERT LLC) ANNUAL FEE EC 2,500.00$                            

87272 ENVIROPROS LLC SHOP SUPPLIES 844.67$                                

87273 FAIRVIEW FORD VEHICLES MAINTENANCE 250.13$                                

87274 FAST SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICES-AUG 2024 210.00$                                

87275 FMB TRUCK OUTFITTERS, INC. VEHICLES MAINTENANCE 685.98$                                

87276 GLOBAL EQUIPMENT CO INC Industrial Cabinet 1,496.81$                            

87277 GRAINGER INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 542.22$                                

87277 GRAINGER INC WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 219.08$                                

87277 GRAINGER INC WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 236.77$                                

87277 GRAINGER INC FBR SUPPLIES 811.75$                                

87278 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY SERVICES JULY 2024 1,594.76$                            

87279 JESSICA K. ORNELAS TURF REPLACEMENT 642.00$                                

87280 JOHN PEUKERT TURF REPLACEMENT 3,524.00$                            

87281 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE INC WATER QLTY SUPPLIES 142.40$                                

87282 MARIPOSA LANDSCAPES INC Landscape Maintenance Service 7,445.98$                            

87283 MV AMCV LLC DEPOSITS REFUNDS-CONT/METER/VALVE BOX 10,400.00$                          

87283 MV AMCV LLC DEPOSITS REFUNDS-CONT/METER/VALVE BOX 2,160.00$                            

87283 MV AMCV LLC DEPOSITS REFUNDS-CONT/METER/VALVE BOX 21,761.90$                          

87284 NED'S OIL SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 2.89$                                    

87284 NED'S OIL SALES INC SHOP SUPPLIES 18.11$                                  

87285 NEW RESOURCES GROUP INC CUST OUTREACH SUPPLIES 802.00$                                

87286 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS VEHICLES MAINTENANCE 13.16$                                  

87286 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS VEHICLES MAINTENANCE 90.48$                                  

87287 PACK N MAIL CUSTOMER SERVICES-AUG 2024 110.00$                                

87288 PAUL FRANK GRAVESANDE BACKHOE MAINTENANCE 495.00$                                

87289 QUALITY LOGO PRODUCTS INC OUTREACH PROGRAM, 594.78$                                

87290 RAINBOW BOLT & SUPPLY INC PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 114.89$                                

87291 SDRMA (SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK WORKERS COMP INS 18,109.28$                          

87292 SHAW HR CONSULTING, INC. HR SERVICES 632.50$                                

87293 UNIVAR USA INC Acedic Acid for FBR 12,590.37$                          

87294 YO FIRE SHOP SUPPLIES 705.76$                                

87295 AMAZON.COM SALES INC OFFICE SUPPLIES 98.84$                                  

87296 CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL UTILITIES ASSOCIATION WATER UTILY ASSOC MEMBERSHIP DUES 6,150.00$                            

87297 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 160.42$                                

87297 CINTAS CORPORATION JANITORIAL SERVICES 189.30$                                

87298 COLTON PUBLIC UTILITIES WELL 18A ELECTRIC 07/29/24-08/27/24 562.19$                                

87299 DAILY JOURNAL CORPORATION NOTICE OF VACANCY 337.70$                                

87300 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-07/14/24-08/13/24 16.11$                                  

87300 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-08/1/24-08/31/24 541.30$                                

87300 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-08/02/24-09/01/24 304.44$                                

Page 7 of 9Page 198 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
87300 DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC COPIER MAINTENANCE-08/4/24-09/3/24 365.65$                                

87301 EBIX, INC. HOPE HEALTH NEWSLETTERS 414.00$                                

87302 EDUCATION & TRAINING SERVICES MGMT & SUP TRAINING-MELISSA BLOUNT 599.00$                                

87303 FISH WINDOW CLEANING JANITORIAL SERVICES 317.00$                                

87304 INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY CO PRODUCTION SUPPLIES 49.78$                                  

87305 INLAND DESERT SECURITY ANSWERING SERVICE 783.95$                                

87306 JIMENEZ, GARY R TRI STATE CONFERENCE EXPENSES 622.74$                                

87307 LOWES ROEMER SUPPLIES 392.94$                                

87308 MACKAMUL, ROBERT EAL REIMBURSEMENT 320.00$                                

87309 RIALTO PRINT COMPANY SHOP SUPPLIES 391.50$                                

87310 RIALTO WATER SERVICES WATER SVC WELL 16 - 07/24/24-08/28/24 30.42$                                  

87311 SERGIO GRANDA TRI STATE CONFERENCE EXPENSES 560.94$                                

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-WELL#22 10.43$                                  

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 26,512.94$                          

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 76,187.30$                          

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 107,697.74$                        

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON S END SHOP-08/08/24-09/08/24 128.54$                                

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 38,707.94$                          

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-WELL 6 27,557.45$                          

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON ELECTRICITY-WELL 11X 48.79$                                  

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 213.25$                                

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 23,800.48$                          

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 226.19$                                

87312 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON VARIOUS LOCATIONS 6,890.82$                            

87313 Speedy Dog Hot Dogs District Pic Nic Food Vendor 2,454.88$                            

87314 THE GAS COMPANY GAS BILL ROEMER 07/31/24-08/30/24 16.35$                                  

87314 THE GAS COMPANY GAS BILL HQ-08/06/24-09/06/24 19.98$                                  

87315 YO FIRE Pipe for Distribution 1,430.49$                            

87315 YO FIRE Pipe for Distribution 663.74$                                

87315 YO FIRE Pipe for Distribution 507.29$                                

87315 YO FIRE Pipe for Distribution 139.42$                                

87315 YO FIRE DISTRICT MAINTENANCE 290.93$                                

87316 COOK, JAMES CUSTOMER REFUND 877.72$                                

87317 RUSICH, FRANK CUSTOMER REFUND 74.15$                                  

87318 RUSICH, FRANK CUSTOMER REFUND 54.10$                                  

87319 GONZALEZ, FERMIN CUSTOMER REFUND 65.74$                                  

87320 Cordero, Pascuala CUSTOMER REFUND 72.79$                                  

87321 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 17.55$                                  

87322 UM, TAE/ JACKLYN KIM CUSTOMER REFUND 39.88$                                  

87323 Trust, Opendoor Property I CUSTOMER REFUND 5.50$                                    

87324 LENNAR CORP CUSTOMER REFUND 35.97$                                  

87325 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 25.17$                                  

87326 LANDSEA FONTANA LLC CUSTOMER REFUND 3.86$                                    

87327 LANDSEA FONTANA LLC CUSTOMER REFUND 4.88$                                    

87328 LANDSEA FONTANA LLC CUSTOMER REFUND 3.86$                                    

87329 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 24.87$                                  

87330 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 30.54$                                  

87331 SWEEPING CORP OF AMERICA CUSTOMER REFUND 3,485.87$                            

87332 LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA INC. CUSTOMER REFUND 1,601.57$                            

87333 LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA INC. CUSTOMER REFUND 1,551.42$                            

87334 LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA INC. CUSTOMER REFUND 1,515.54$                            

87335 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 28.33$                                  

87336 LENNAR HOMES CUSTOMER REFUND 17.34$                                  

87337 LENNAR CORP CUSTOMER REFUND 32.59$                                  

Page 8 of 9Page 199 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2024

EFT/Check # Vendor Name Description O & M Amount CIP Amount
DFT0003918 PETTY CASH ADMIN MEALS 160.50$                                

DFT0003918 PETTY CASH ADMIN MEALS 106.46$                                

DFT0003918 PETTY CASH POSTAGE 10.16$                                  

DFT0003918 PETTY CASH PERMIT FEES 107.00$                                

DFT0003918 PETTY CASH MISC HR OFFICE 29.13$                                  

DFT0003918 PETTY CASH WELLNESS PROGRAM 38.75$                                  

DFT0003943 MOTIVE ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEMS INC SGIP FUNDS FROM EDISON 2,371,341.61$                     

DFT0003944 US BANK BOND PAYMENT/INTERESTS SERIES 2016A 475,000.00$                        

DFT0003944 US BANK BOND PAYMENT/INTERESTS SERIES 2016A (192.73)$                              

DFT0003944 US BANK BOND PAYMENT/INTERESTS SERIES 2016A (1.47)$                                   

DFT0003944 US BANK BOND PAYMENT/INTERESTS SERIES 2016A 419,250.00$                        

SUBTOTALS 4,305,505.78$      22,148.01$          

GRAND TOTAL 4,327,653.79$    

Page 9 of 9Page 200 of 405



Exhibit B 

Page 201 of 405



Report Month       Description From To Gross Wages Paid

July 2024 Monthly Pay Period #7 06/01/24 06/30/24 10,319.00                    
July 2024 Pay Period #14 06/21/24 07/05/24 364,859.06                  
July 2024 Pay Period #15 07/05/24 07/19/24 384,306.79                  

Total for July 2024 759,484.85                  

August 2024 Monthly Pay Period #8 07/01/24 07/31/24 10,112.62                    
August 2024 Pay Period #16 07/19/24 08/02/24 399,164.38                  
August 2024 Pay Period #17 08/02/24 08/16/24 369,382.81                  

Total for August 2024 778,659.81                  

September 2024 Monthly Pay Period #9 08/01/24 08/31/24 8,255.20                      
September 2024 Pay Period #18 08/16/24 08/30/24 375,168.59                  

Pay Period #18 (Correction) 08/16/24 08/30/24 -                              
September 2024 Pay Period #19 & Correction 08/30/24 09/13/24 375,150.76                  

Total for September 2024 758,574.55                  

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

PAYROLL GROSS WAGES

FISCAL YEAR 2024 - 2025

EFT Payroll Items for Board ApprovalPage 202 of 405



Date Item
Check No. 

or EFT
Amount

09/12/24 Monthly Pay Period #9 None 0.00
09/05/24 Pay Period #18 8957 1,131.19
09/06/24 Pay Period #18 (Correction) 8958 8,093.32
09/19/24 Pay Period #19 & Correction 8959-60 1,346.87

   Total Checks 10,571.38

09/12/24 Monthly Pay Period #9 Direct Deposits EFT 6,918.94
09/12/24 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 1,839.99
09/12/24 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 153.43

09/05/24 Pay Period #18 Direct Deposits EFT 246,600.22
09/05/24 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 94,000.53
09/05/24 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 20,607.23
09/05/24 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 14,345.83
09/05/24 Lincoln - 401a EFT 0.00
09/05/24 Lincoln - ROTH EFT 1,034.56
09/05/24 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,500.00
09/05/24 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 5,781.11
09/05/24 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 775.00
09/05/24 Nationwide 401a EFT 0.00
09/05/24 Nationwide ROTH EFT 125.00
09/05/24 Nationwide - 401a Employer Match Benefit EFT 0.00
09/05/24 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 34,828.37
09/05/24 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 25,455.45
09/05/24 California State Disbursement EFT 984.46
09/05/24 Sterling Administration EFT 976.23

09/06/24 Pay Period #18 Direct Deposits (Correction) EFT 0.00
09/06/24 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 4,582.11
09/06/24 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 1,545.85
09/06/24 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 36,255.59
09/06/24 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT (28,767.98)

09/19/24 Pay Period #19 Direct Deposits EFT 250,460.92
09/19/24 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 93,074.08
09/19/24 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 21,479.74
09/19/24 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 14,355.97
09/19/24 Lincoln - 401a EFT 0.00
09/19/24 Lincoln - ROTH EFT 908.13
09/19/24 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,500.00
09/19/24 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 5,781.11
09/19/24 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 775.00
09/19/24 Nationwide 401a EFT 0.00
09/19/24 Nationwide ROTH EFT 125.00
09/19/24 Nationwide - 401a Employer Match Benefit EFT 0.00
09/19/24 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 35,111.44
09/19/24 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 25,520.06
09/19/24 California State Disbursement EFT 984.46
09/19/24 Sterling Administration EFT 976.23

   Total EFT 924,594.06

Grand Total Payroll Cash 935,165.44

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
EFT AND PAYROLL ITEMS

SEPTEMBER 2024

Payroll Gross Wages Page 203 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         William Fox, Chief Financial Officer
 

SUBJECT:   Monthly Revenue & Expenditures Report - September 2024
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:

10/23/24 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD

BACKGROUND: 
 
The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Financial Status Reports to be presented to the Finance Committee
for review and discussion before presenting them to the Board of Directors. The reports are being produced by the
District’s Financial System (System of Records) and will be presented on a monthly basis. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Monthly Financial Status Report (Exhibit A) summarizes the District’s revenue categories as well as
expenditures for all Departments. The original total budget includes the adopted budget. The current total budget
includes the adopted budget plus any budget amendments or adjustments made during the year. Period activity
column represents activity for the reporting periods. The fiscal activity column represents the year-to-date activity or
transactions that have been recorded in the general ledger from the beginning of the fiscal year July 1 through
June 30th The encumbrance column represents funds encumbered with a purchase order that’s not spent but
committed. The percentage column represents the percentage of the current budget that has been received
(Revenue) or utilized (Expenditure).

A summary of the first quarter revenue and expenditure results for the period ending September 30, 2024 has been
developed. (Exhibit B). This is a summary level report that provides information on operating revenues, non-
operating revenues, operating expenses, and non-operating expenses.  There were nine separate discussion notes
that identity significant variances between the budget and actual activity.  No items require a budget adjustment.

FISCAL IMPACT:
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the September 2024 Monthly Revenue & Expenditure Report.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors to approve the September 2024 Monthly Revenue & Expenditure
Report.

Page 204 of 405



 

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - 2024 September Monthly Rev Exp Report.pdf
Exhibit B - 1st Quarter Report FY2024-25.pdf

Page 205 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0d07a622140054f07ad6%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Monthly%20Rev%20%20Exp%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=9d87fca4-bad1-4ac2-bc62-697cd939d280
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0d07a622140054f07ad6%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Monthly%20Rev%20%20Exp%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=9d87fca4-bad1-4ac2-bc62-697cd939d280
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0d07a622140054f07ad6%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Monthly%20Rev%20%20Exp%20Report.pdf?alt=media&token=9d87fca4-bad1-4ac2-bc62-697cd939d280
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0d07a622140054f07ad6%2FExhibit%20B%20-%201st%20Quarter%20Report%20FY2024-25.pdf?alt=media&token=69005c9d-807f-4297-9ffe-54a8be04a6d3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0d07a622140054f07ad6%2FExhibit%20B%20-%201st%20Quarter%20Report%20FY2024-25.pdf?alt=media&token=69005c9d-807f-4297-9ffe-54a8be04a6d3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0d07a622140054f07ad6%2FExhibit%20B%20-%201st%20Quarter%20Report%20FY2024-25.pdf?alt=media&token=69005c9d-807f-4297-9ffe-54a8be04a6d3


EXHIBIT A 

Page 206 of 405



10/15/2024 3:53:18 PM Page 1 of 3

Budget Report
West Valley Water District, CA Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 09/30/2024

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityDepartmen…

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Percent
Used

Revenue

4000 - Water consumption sales 7,388,734.132,010,363.8719,360,000.00 19,360,000.00 -11,971,265.87 38.16 %

4010 - Water service charges 2,156,509.74740,030.008,890,000.00 8,890,000.00 -6,733,490.26 24.26 %

4020 - Other operating revenue 762,878.82111,366.184,806,616.00 4,806,616.00 -4,043,737.18 15.87 %

4030 - Property Taxes 33,481.360.003,677,030.00 3,677,030.00 -3,643,548.64 0.91 %

4040 - Interest & Investment Earnings 1,631,217.820.004,000,000.00 4,200,000.00 -2,568,782.18 38.84 %

4050 - Rental Revenue 10,136.523,378.8441,000.00 41,000.00 -30,863.48 24.72 %

4060 - Grants and Reimbursements 69,007.710.001,554,757.00 1,554,757.00 -1,485,749.29 4.44 %

4080 - Other Non-Operating Revenue 2,006.216.2132,000.00 32,000.00 -29,993.79 6.27 %

12,053,972.312,865,145.1042,361,403.00 42,561,403.00 -30,507,430.69Revenue Total: 28.32 %

Page 207 of 405



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 09/30/2024

10/15/2024 3:53:18 PM Page 2 of 3

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

ActivityDepartmen…

Current
Total Budget

Original
Total Budget

Percent
Used

Expense

5110 - Source Of Supply 54,176.5829,931.052,310,700.00 2,310,700.00 2,256,523.42 2.34 %

5210 - Production 897,394.12366,150.125,177,350.00 5,177,350.00 4,279,955.88 17.33 %

5310 - Water Quality 157,265.9250,503.93855,225.00 855,225.00 697,959.08 18.39 %

5320 - Water Treatment - Perchlorate 114,255.0640,812.38685,000.00 685,000.00 570,744.94 16.68 %

5350 - Water Treatment - FBR/FXB 410,412.95135,584.712,389,005.00 2,365,005.00 1,954,592.05 17.35 %

5390 - Water Treatment - Roemer/Arsenic 459,333.13178,918.392,348,920.00 2,348,920.00 1,889,586.87 19.56 %

5410 - Maintenance - T & D 491,075.95165,541.193,303,500.00 3,303,500.00 2,812,424.05 14.87 %

5510 - Customer Service 241,877.6468,562.751,083,500.00 1,083,500.00 841,622.36 22.32 %

5520 - Meter Reading 167,593.1860,987.101,094,100.00 1,108,500.00 940,906.82 15.12 %

5530 - Billing 122,699.1249,959.17614,800.00 614,800.00 492,100.88 19.96 %

5610 - Administration 473,960.91153,459.872,337,295.00 2,337,295.00 1,863,334.09 20.28 %

5615 - General Operations 1,017,739.6784,874.243,087,098.00 3,111,098.00 2,093,358.33 32.71 %

5620 - Accounting 201,722.8668,783.03928,430.00 928,430.00 726,707.14 21.73 %

5630 - Engineering 420,811.63145,745.942,173,300.00 2,173,300.00 1,752,488.37 19.36 %

5640 - Business Systems 321,898.6583,923.621,662,116.00 1,662,116.00 1,340,217.35 19.37 %

5645 - GIS 40,864.6114,259.43310,200.00 310,200.00 269,335.39 13.17 %

5650 - Board Of Directors 49,697.0517,244.23339,500.00 339,500.00 289,802.95 14.64 %

5660 - Human Resources/Risk Management 154,954.7560,133.25949,730.00 949,730.00 794,775.25 16.32 %

5680 - Purchasing 133,836.9743,131.00734,300.00 734,300.00 600,463.03 18.23 %

5710 - Public Affairs 193,067.0050,465.351,520,985.00 1,520,985.00 1,327,918.00 12.69 %

5720 - Grants & Rebates 7,310.004,166.00325,000.00 325,000.00 317,690.00 2.25 %

6200 - Interest Expense 165,781.23419,055.80912,000.00 912,000.00 746,218.77 18.18 %

6300 - Debt Administration Service 0.000.006,615.00 6,615.00 6,615.00 0.00 %

6,297,728.982,292,192.5535,148,669.00 35,163,069.00 28,865,340.02Expense Total: 17.91 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): 572,952.55 5,756,243.337,212,734.00 7,398,334.00 -1,642,090.67 77.80 %

Page 208 of 405



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2024-2025 Period Ending: 09/30/2024

10/15/2024 3:53:18 PM Page 3 of 3

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

100 - Water Operations Fund 5,756,243.33572,952.557,212,734.00 7,398,334.00 -1,642,090.67

Report Surplus (Deficit): 572,952.55 5,756,243.337,212,734.00 7,398,334.00 -1,642,090.67

Page 209 of 405



Exhibit B 

Page 210 of 405



FIRST QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT

THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FY23-24 FY24-25 Amount %

9/30/2023 9/30/2024 Change Change

Operating revenues:

Water consumption sales 5,802,983$   6,148,734$   345,751$     5.96%

Water service charges 2,136,311     3,412,306     1,275,995    59.73% A

Other operating income 620,237        747,083        126,846       20.45%

Total operating revenues 8,559,531     10,308,123   1,748,592    20.43%

Non-operating revenues:

Property taxes -$                  33,480$        33,480$       N/A B

Grants and reimbursements 1,075            69,008          67,933         N/A C

Interest and investment earnings 1,227,059     1,654,977     427,919       34.87% D

Rental income- cellular anntenas 9,907            10,137          229              2.31%

Gain/(loss) on sale/disposition of capital assets -                    -                    -                   0.00%

Other non-operating revenues 5,752            2,006            (3,745)          -65.12% E

Total non-operating revenues 1,243,793     1,769,608     525,816       42.28%

Operating expenses:

Pubic Affairs 97,567$        193,067$      95,500$       97.88% F

Grants 4,191            7,310            3,119           74.42% G

Source of supply 12,711          54,177          41,466         N/A H

Pumping 885,344        897,394        12,051         1.36%

Water treatment 990,340        1,141,267     150,927       15.24%

Transmission and distribution 513,058        491,076        (21,982)        -4.28%

Customer accounts 521,713        532,170        10,457         2.00%

General and administrative 2,317,642     2,815,487     497,845       21.48%

Total operating expenses 5,342,565     6,131,948     789,382       14.78%

Non-operating expenses:

Interest expense - long-term debt 186,391$      165,781$      (20,610)$      -11.06%

Litigation Loss 235,000$      -$                  (235,000)$    N/A I

Total non-operating expenses 421,391        165,781        (255,610)      -60.66%

  

Total revenues 9,803,324$   12,077,731$ 2,274,407$  23.20%

Total expenditures 5,763,956$   6,297,729$   533,773$     9.26%

Net Change 4,039,367$   5,780,002$   1,740,634$  43.09%

Note

A Increase of about 1,000 active servuce connections compare to Fiscal Year 23-24. 

B No property taxes were received during the same time frame Fiscal Year 23-24.

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

1st Quarter Actuals

Notes

Comment

Reimbursement from San Bernardino County Transportation Authority for Project W19055.

Increase in rebate activity.

Purchased water from San Bernadino Valley has increased in Fiscal Year 24-25.

No litigation loss present in Fiscal Year 24-25.

Liquidity Fund has had better performance during the same time frame compared to Fiscal Year 23-24.

No reclycling income for Fiscal Year 24-25.

Increase due to division being fully staff and outreach programs have had more activity.

Page 211 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         William Fox, Chief Financial Officer
 

SUBJECT:   Transfer Report - September 2024
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
 
10/23/24 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At the August 20, 2020, Board of Directors meeting, the WVWD Board of Directors approved and authorized the
Chief Financial Officer to transfer funds in/out of the District’s Chase account to/from the District’s investment
accounts to take advantage of potential interest earnings. At this meeting, the WVWD Board also requested that
the CFO provide a detailed report to the Board of all transfers on a monthly basis and include this report in the
monthly financial reports presented to the Board.
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Following the Board’s request for monthly updates on transfers related to investments is the September 2024
Funds Transfer Report.  This is located at Exhibit A. There was one transfer during the month made from the
Chase General Checking Account and going to the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) account totaling $5.0
million.  The funds were transferred in order to earn interest income rather than lying idle in the Chase General
Checking Account.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:
 
Additional interest earnings on funds were earned resulting from the transfer to the LAIF account.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Forward a recommendation to the Board of Directors to approve the September 2024 Funds Transfer Report. 
 

 

Page 212 of 405



Attachments

Exhibit A - 2024 September Transfer Form.pdf

Page 213 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0f39a622140054f0848a%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Transfer%20Form.pdf?alt=media&token=616d25c3-ae0a-4a48-ad65-2c22b2cf8940
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0f39a622140054f0848a%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Transfer%20Form.pdf?alt=media&token=616d25c3-ae0a-4a48-ad65-2c22b2cf8940
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d0f39a622140054f0848a%2FExhibit%20A%20-%202024%20September%20Transfer%20Form.pdf?alt=media&token=616d25c3-ae0a-4a48-ad65-2c22b2cf8940


EXHIBIT A 

Page 214 of 405



Date Amount

9/25/2024 7,162,487.90        

9/25/2024 3,646,385.18        

Date Amount

9/25/2024 5,000,000.00        

Date Amount

9/25/2024 2,231,060.02        

9/25/2024 8,646,385.18        

(1) Ending balances may include other credits/deposits besides transfer amounts.

Ending Balances (After Transfers)
1

Chase Gen Checking

LAIF

Fund Transfer Detail September 2024

Beginning Balances

Chase Gen Checking

LAIF

Transfers

Chase Gen Checking             LAIF

Page 215 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         William Fox, Chief Financial Officer
 

SUBJECT:   Purchase Order Report - September 2024
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
 
10/23/24 Finance Committee REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND:
 
The West Valley Water District (“District”) generated twenty-three (23) Purchase Orders (“PO”) in the month of
September 2024 to various vendors that provide supplies and services to the District.  The total amount issued to
PO’s for the month of September 2024 was $201,719.64.  A table listing all PO’s for September 2024 is shown in
Exhibit A.

There were no Change Orders (“CO”) approved at the General Manager’s approval level during the month of
September 2024. 

FISCAL IMPACT:
 
There is no fiscal impact for producing the September 2024 Purchase Order Report.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the September 2024 Purchase Order Report.

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - September 2024 Purchase Order Report

Page 216 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d1125a622140054f08d40%2F5511.pdf?alt=media&token=ec3e9428-5d7f-48d8-a568-21cc53061d2a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d1125a622140054f08d40%2F5511.pdf?alt=media&token=ec3e9428-5d7f-48d8-a568-21cc53061d2a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672d1125a622140054f08d40%2F5511.pdf?alt=media&token=ec3e9428-5d7f-48d8-a568-21cc53061d2a


Exhibit A 

Page 217 of 405



10/9/2024 11:34:46 AM Page 1 of 2

Purchase Order Summary Report
West Valley Water District, CA Purchase Order Detail

Issued Date Range 09/01/2024 - 09/30/2024

PO Number

Description

Delivery Date

Issue Date

Vendor

Status

Ship To TotalTrade Discount

24 inch weld flanges for 6-1 Booster 9/3/2024Outstanding

9/17/2024West Valley Water District01657 - CORE & MAIN LP

1,152.7525-0109 0.00

1" Meter Stock Order 9-4-24 9/4/2024Outstanding

9/4/2024West Valley Water District00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO

31,080.0025-0110 0.00

GAC filter for Well 11 9/4/2024Partially Received

9/18/2024West Valley Water District00739 - EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC

7,057.6325-0111 0.00

New office furniture 9/5/2024Outstanding

9/19/2024West Valley Water District01729 - TOTALPLAN BUSINESS INTERIORS INC

3,229.2725-0113 0.00

Standing Guard Service for HQ for 30 Days 9/10/2024Received

9/24/2024West Valley Water District02811 - AMERICAN GLOBAL SECURITY, INC.

10,701.4725-0114 0.00

Pump 7-2 Hydraulic Analysis 9/11/2024Outstanding

9/25/2024West Valley Water District01525 - AKEL ENGINEERING GROUP INC

7,341.0025-0115 0.00

ESRI Annual Subscription Year 1 of 3 9/12/2024Received

9/26/2024West Valley Water District00298 - ESRI INC

29,300.0025-0116 0.00

FlowCom Register 9/17/2024Outstanding

10/1/2024West Valley Water District00318 - MCCROMETER INC

1,198.1825-0117 0.00

Pipe for Distribution 9/13/2024Completed

9/27/2024West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

2,740.9425-0118 0.00

Hydrant Repair Kits 9/17/2024Outstanding

9/17/2024West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

6,561.0025-0119 0.00

COPPER ORDER 9-10-24 9/17/2024Received

9/17/2024West Valley Water District00748 - YO FIRE

14,325.0025-0120 0.00

Technician Carbon Sample 9/17/2024Outstanding

10/1/2024West Valley Water District00739 - EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC

1,450.0025-0121 0.00

District Pic Nic Food Vendor 9/17/2024Completed

10/1/2024West Valley Water District02806 - Speedy Dog Hot Dogs

2,454.8825-0122 0.00

Arsenic Sludge Sample 9/17/2024Outstanding

10/1/2024West Valley Water District01190 - KVAC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES INC

1,355.0025-0123 0.00

Emergency Air Leak Repair Truck 105 9/17/2024Completed

10/1/2024West Valley Water District01700 - PAUL FRANK GRAVESANDE

1,055.0025-0124 0.00

InfoWater Pro Government - 2 Licenses 9/19/2024Outstanding

10/3/2024West Valley Water District00642 - DLT SOLUTIONS LLC

5,107.9625-0125 0.00

Romer expantion Celular to analog phone modem 9/20/2024Outstanding

10/4/2024West Valley Water District02625 - MASTERS TELECOM LLC

463.9525-0126 0.00

Sullair Compressor for FBR 9/24/2024Outstanding

10/8/2024West Valley Water District02530 - MAQPOWER COMPRESSORS CORP

20,606.1525-0127 0.00

Page 218 of 405



Purchase Order Summary Report Issued Date Range 09/01/2024 - 09/30/2024

10/9/2024 11:34:46 AM Page 2 of 2

PO Number

Description

Delivery Date

Issue Date

Vendor

Status

Ship To TotalTrade Discount

Replacement doors for damaged doors at 4-1 Booster 9/24/2024Outstanding

10/8/2024West Valley Water District02819 - GENERAL DOOR SERVICE INC

2,780.4725-0128 0.00

2023 Water Loss Audit 9/20/2024Outstanding

10/4/2024West Valley Water District01671 - MARK WILEY

1,500.0025-0129 0.00

Generator batteries 9/26/2024Completed

10/10/2024West Valley Water District02325 - AMAZON.COM SALES INC

1,336.0825-0130 0.00

2024 WVWD Video Project 9/26/2024Outstanding

10/10/2024West Valley Water District02818 - J-COMM INC

20,000.0025-0131 0.00

Installation of 24" and 30" Valves at Roemer 9/26/2024Outstanding

10/10/2024West Valley Water District02820 - Ferreira Construction Co, Inc.

28,922.9125-0132 0.00

201,719.640.00Purchase Order Count: (23) Total:Total Trade Discount:

Page 219 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering
 

SUBJECT:   Change Order No. 6 with PCL Construction, Inc for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility
Upgrade and Expansion Project

 

MEETING HISTORY:
 
10.24.2024 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND:
 
In February 2023 the Board of Directors approved a $3,000,000 construction contingency for the Oliver P. Roemer
Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion project which was set aside for unexpected costs during
construction. Construction contingency is a form of risk management used to avoid cutting costs, to keep the
project’s schedule on track and to ensure material and workmanship quality. It is also used to cover other costs
such as:
 

Unknown underground conflicts
Unforeseen conditions and services
Owner-requested changes and/or design upgrades and modifications

 
Attached as Exhibit A is Change Order No. 6 for the above referenced project. This change order includes items of
work arising from unexpected utility conflicts with proposed improvements, lack of accurate as-built records and/or
malfunctioning existing equipment, and owner requested changes. A brief description of each item of work listed in
the change order is provided below:
 

1. Operations Building: The District requested PCL to expedite the construction schedule of the new operations
building which resulted in cost impacts due to the overtime work. Other minor items of work included
changing the ceramic-tile flooring to a more robust concrete- epoxy (stained concrete) flooring and the
material and finish of the main training room’s door.

 
2. Pavement Improvements: To allow safe entry into and out of the Roemer site onto North Riverside Avenue,

the District requested PCL to design and construct a deceleration lane to widen the roadway to the ultimate
road width fronting North Riverside Avenue, which requires additional traffic control, grading, demolition,
paving and striping. In addition, because of the increased treatment capacity, District’s operations staff
requested to construct a new paved ramp to the west of the new Effluent Pump Station. This ramp will reduce
the sludge-hauling distance from the backwash ponds to the sludge ponds and be safer for heavy equipment
to operate within the treatment plant. Furthermore, other additional minor pavement repairs are needed along

Page 220 of 405



West Via Bello Drive and North Linden Avenue due to the new 30-inch pipeline installation and a collapsed
(subsidence) access road between the sludge ponds and Hydro station.

 
3. Unforseen Services: Several unforeseen site conditions were encountered during the construction of the new

retaining wall and the demolition of the existing slide gates for backwash ponds 4 and 5. These unforeseen
conditions required the removal of an abandoned large diameter reinforced concrete pipe and additional
efforts for the removal and reconstruction of the new slide gates. Also, at reservoir R5-2, the District elected
to remove a 6-inch tank-bottom-drain outlet pipe that was protruding through the bottom of the tank but is no
longer desired as it may cause damage to the reservoir during an earthquake.

 
4. Additional Water System Isolation Valve Installations: The District’s engineering and operations staff

requested the installation of several additional butterfly and gates valves varying in size and location as part
of the Roemer expansion project, which will provide greater operational control and redundancy. These
valves will allow portions of the plant to be isolated when needed for inspection and maintenance activities in
the future.

 
5. Increase in Soils and Materials Testing Allowance: the original construction contract included an allowance of

$200,000 for soils, materials testing, and special inspections for the project. This allowance is nearly depleted
due to the ongoing construction activities for the last 18-months; therefore, it is estimated that an additional
$80,000 are needed for the remainder of the project to cover the ongoing soils and materials testing
requirements.

 
6. Instrumentation Communications from Reservoir R5-2 to Roemer WFF: The District requested the installation

of a new fiber optic converter patch panel to relay operational measurements including water level from
reservoir R5-2’s instrumentation to the Roemer WFF control processors digitally instead of relying on radio
frequency-based antennas.

 
No time impacts to the project schedule result from this change order. The total project change orders to date are
roughly 2.6% of the original contract amount.
 
This item is in support of the District's Strategic Plan Goal to manage and deliver a safe, reliable, and sustainable
water supply strategies to increase system capacity for anticipated growth, repair and replace aging infrastructure,
provide effective source water treatment, and to fortify a resilient water supply.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:
 
The cost to perform the additional work as outlined in Change Order No. 6 is $521,651.63. The cost for this change
order is within the existing construction contingency. which will leave $1,478,898.59 for any future change orders if
needed. This change order will increase the contract amount to $60,637,972.41.
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors:
 

1. Authorize Change Order No. 6 with PCL Construction, Inc. in the amount of $521,651.63 for the Oliver P.
Roemer WFF Upgrade and Expansion Project and;

 
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

 

Page 221 of 405



Attachments

Exhibit A - PCL Construction Inc. Change Order No. 6.pdf

Page 222 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a0aa622140054eb21d7%2FExhibit%20A%20%20-%20PCL%20Construction%20Inc.%20Change%20Order%20No.%206.pdf?alt=media&token=a61d99f4-cd93-4d94-a38c-70a6d2cba071
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a0aa622140054eb21d7%2FExhibit%20A%20%20-%20PCL%20Construction%20Inc.%20Change%20Order%20No.%206.pdf?alt=media&token=a61d99f4-cd93-4d94-a38c-70a6d2cba071
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a0aa622140054eb21d7%2FExhibit%20A%20%20-%20PCL%20Construction%20Inc.%20Change%20Order%20No.%206.pdf?alt=media&token=a61d99f4-cd93-4d94-a38c-70a6d2cba071


 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 223 of 405



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

  

 CHANGE ORDER 

 

                                                                  Order No.  6 

                                                                 Date 10/14/2024 

                                                                  Agreement Date 10/31/2022 

                                                                  Sheet  1  of  4  

 

Owner: West Valley Water District        

 

Project: Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion   

 

Contractor: PCL Construction, Inc 

 

The following changes are hereby made to the Contract Documents: 

 

 

ITEM 

NO. 

EXTRA WORK 

DESCRIPTION 

ADD DEDUCT CALENDAR 

DAYS 

1 Operations 

Building 

$91,357.25 - - 

2 Pavement $255,929.92 - - 

3 Unforeseen 

Services 

$18,175.25 - - 

4 Added Valves $47,653.14 - - 

5 Converse 

Allowance 

$80,000 - - 

6 Fiber Optic $28,536.07   

 TOTALS $521,651.63 - - 

TOTALS FOR CHANGE ORDER NO. 6                            $521,651.63 0 

 

JUSTIFICATION:   

 

 

For item#1 – Operations Building change order work is primarily comprised of the remaining 

amount of the construction acceleration efforts that were not captured in the previous change 

order. Other minor items include a substitution of ceramic tile for concrete epoxy stained 

flooring, and the modification of Door 101B modification which included a credit for the 

original door. 

 

For item# 2 – For a safer entry into the Roemer plant, WVWD requested a deceleration lane to 

enter the plant along N. Riverside Ave, which was not part of the original project scope. This 

City of Rialto permit-approved work includes design, traffic control, demo, repaving, & striping. 

Inside the plant, a temporary access road for construction was requested to be made permanent 

near Effluent Pump Station 2 to facilitate Operator access. This includes an existing ramp credit, 

grading, and paving. At the north road of Sludge Pond 3 ground subsidence was observed and 

this solution includes repairs to bring the road to grade by repaving. PCL did not perform any 

Page 224 of 405

Rocky Welborn
Cross-Out



work in this area and utilities in this area are an unknown. Along Via Bello Drive and Linden 

Ave., WVWD and City of Rialto reached a consensus on the scope of work for street repairs 

after the water main installation on the public roadway. This includes an increase in grind and 

overlay along Linden Ave. and AC replacement of up to 3 inches along Via Bello Drive. Along 

duct banks between the Pre-Treatment area and Chemical Sample Room pavement was found as 

thick as 12”, differing from typical 3”/4”, which was unforeseen. Efforts to demo this extra thick 

pavement and some repaving is captured in this item.  
 

For item#3 – Unforeseen demolition of RCP pipeline encountered during the retaining wall 

footing preparation and UV reroute, and unforeseen concrete channel demolition of slide gates at 

ponds 5&6 are included for this item. For these two items, included is the negotiated price agreed 

between WVWD and PCL. This item also includes a differing as built site condition of an 18” 

storm drain and efforts for replacement. Another differing site condition included in this item is a 

6” drain found inside reservoir R5-2 when it was drained. Efforts to abandon this drain at the 

direction of WVWD are included.  

 

For item#4 – For increased functionality and operator safety, this item includes valves and 

potholing added at the direction of the District for a fire line service connection for Filter 

Building 2 and backflow prevention device credit. Also at the direction of WVWD, in order to 

provide additional isolation for areas of interest, a 24” valve at the PW line and a 30” valve at the 

RW line were provided along with all the design and construction efforts less the direct 

installation of the valves which is to be done by others. All welding services, BNGs, and other 

valve appurtenances are included. 

 

For item#5 – The Prime Contract allows for an allowance of funds for material testing for the 

project. This cost is a straight pass through to WVWD with no markup. The District and PCL 

agreed that Converse would be the company used to perform these tests. The allowance used in 

the last ~18 months of the project has been about $200,000.00. For the remainder of the project it 

is estimated that another ~$80,000.00 will be required to cover for material testing expenses. 

 

For item#6 – The reservoir R5-2 instruments require a method to communicate their signal to 

the Romer plan. As agreed with the District the proper infrastructure selected was a fiber 

converter panel to be furnished to allow monitoring of the Reservoir.  

 

 

CHANGE TO CONTRACT PRICE 

 

Original Contract Price       $ 59,116,871.00 

 

Current Contract Price Adjusted 

by Previous Change Order(s)       $ 60,116,320.78 

 

Contract Price due to this Change Order 

shall be increased               $521,651.63 

 

New Contract Price including this Change Order     $ 60,637,972.41 

 

 

 

 Page 225 of 405



10/15/24

Page 226 of 405



 

 

 

 
 

For Item #1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 227 of 405



 
August 20, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: Operations Building Tile/Stained Concrete In Restrooms Customization) – Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility 
Upgrade and Expansion Project – Request for Change  
 

 
Dear Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please find the attached package submitted as a Change Request due to the cost impacts associated with West Valley 

Water District (WVWD) requests on the substitution of the Restrooms floor tile stated in Issued for Construction 

Specifications for the Operations Building for epoxy-stained concrete. This request follows verbal discussions during the 

weekly Operations Building Customizations meetings and the written correspondences among PCL Construction, West 

Valley Water District, and GHD. 

During the procurement / submittal phase of the Tile to be installed, GHD and WVWD requested PCL to provide stained 

concrete epoxy flooring (liquid dazzle) with Schluter Dilex AHKA Cove in Satin Anodized aluminum in lieu of the specified 

flooring and ceramic cove base.  

As verbally notified to GHD and West Valley Water District, and in accordance with the Prime Contract, PCL has 

performed the additional efforts on the customization requested. The details of the pricing related to these 

customizations as of August 20th, 2024, are summarized below: 

A.  Breakdown of Pricing: 

1. Silverado Tile and Stone, Inc.: Providing a credit for the deletion of floor tile at restrooms, deletion of 6" cove base and 

replacing it with wall tile and Schluter Dilex AHKA cove in Satin Anodized Aluminum. 

2. Empire Waterproofing, Inc.: Providing an additional cost for the installation of the new liquid dazzle system in the 

operations building restrooms. 

 
 

Page 228 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 229 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 8/20/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                            

EQUIPMENT -$                            

MATERIALS -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 1,222.10$               

SUBTOTAL 1,222.10$               

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                        

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                            

MATERIALS 15% -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 61.11$                    

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 61.11$                    

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 1,283.21$               

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 1,283.21$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 1,283.21$       

DESCRIPTION:
Operations Building Restrooms Tile/Stained Concrete Customization

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 041

Page 230 of 405



O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 R
e

s
tr

o
o

m
s

 T
il

e
/S

ta
in

e
d

 C
o

n
c

re
te

 C
u

s
to

m
iz

a
ti

o
n

D
A

T
E

0
8
/2

0
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a

b
o

r
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
A

d
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 l
iq

u
id

 d
a

z
z
le

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n

 R
e

s
tr

o
o

m
s
 i
n

 l
ie

u
 o

f 
fl
o

o
r 

ti
le

 
1
.0

L
S

2
,7

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

2
,7

5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

C
re

d
it
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fl
o

o
r 

ti
le

 a
t 

re
s
tr

o
o

m
s
, 

d
e

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
6

" 
c
o

v
e

 b
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

la
c
in

g
 i
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
ll 

ti
le

 a
n

d
 

s
c
h

lu
te

r 
d

ile
x
 A

H
K

A
 C

o
v
e

 i
n

 S
a

ti
n

 A
n

o
d

iz
e

d
 a

lu
m

in
u

m
 

1
.0

L
S

($
1
,5

2
7
.9

0
)

($
1
,5

2
7
.9

0
)

.

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

0
.0

0
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,2
2

2
.1

0
$

  
  

1
,2

2
2

.1
0

$
  

  
  

  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2

0
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

O
T

H
E

R
 I

T
E

M
S

5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%
6

1
.1

1
$

  
  

  
  

 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

8
3

.2
1

$
  

  
1

,2
8

3
.2

1
$

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L

IE
D

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

Page 231 of 405



 
September 6, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: Operations Building Acceleration Efforts (Up to date: 8/7/2024) – Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility 
Upgrade and Expansion Project – Request for Change  

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request due to the cost impacts related to the Operations Building 
Acceleration Efforts as of August 7th, 2024 (including efforts associated with the construction of the CMU walls). As per 
our verbal conversations and written correspondences between PCL Construction, West Valley Water District, and GHD, 
PCL was directed by West Valley Water District and GHD to begin additional efforts to accelerate the schedule for the 
operations Building. This acceleration is necessary for West Valley Water District to host an event in September 2024. 
The accelerated schedule for the operations Building involved additional overtime work during weekdays and Saturdays. 
The costs associated with Frank Smith Masonry (FSM) are within the period (July 5th, 2024) and are now captured in this 
change order regarding the Operation’s Building. 

As communicated to GHD and West Valley Water District, and in accordance with the Prime Contract, PCL performed the 
work associated with this change on a time and material basis, as detailed below: 

Below is a summary of the pricing associated with the additional labor efforts related to the acceleration of the schedule 
for the Operations Building as of August 7th, 2024: 

A. Tracked on a Time and Material basis: 
 

1) PCL self-performed work consisted of installing the specified wall base at the CMU along the entire operations 
building footprint and coring into CMU wall required for Utilities going into the building. 

 

2) Frank S. Smith Masonry Inc. work consisted of installation of the operations building C.M.U installation.  
 
 

3) Best Interiors performed work consisted of installation of framing at the operations Building. 

Page 232 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


 

4) Allied Steel work consisted of installation of steel columns and beams for the operations Building.  
 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 233 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 9/16/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 26,925$                  

EQUIPMENT 3,301.58$               

MATERIALS -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 44,616.33$             

SUBTOTAL 74,843.32$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 6,171.35$               

EQUIPMENT 20% 660.32$                  

MATERIALS 15% -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 2,230.82$               

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 9,062.49$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 83,905.81$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 83,905.81$     

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 83,905.81$     

DESCRIPTION:
Operations Building Acceleration CRX (Up to Date: 8/7/2024)

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 042

Page 234 of 405



O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 A
c

c
e

le
ra

ti
o

n
 C

R
X

 (
U

p
 t

o
 D

a
te

: 
8

/7
/2

0
2

4
)

D
A

T
E

0
9
/1

6
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a

b
o

r
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

7
/1

2
/2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

1
2
5
8
.4

5
1
,2

5
8
.4

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,2

5
8
.4

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

7
/1

3
/2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

6
5
8
7
.8

8
6
,5

8
7
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,5

8
7
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

7
/1

5
/2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

8
3
9
.8

6
8
3
9
.8

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
3
9
.8

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

7
/1

6
/2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

5
9
6
.4

8
5
9
6
.4

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
9
6
.4

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

7
/1

7
/2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

1
2
6
2
.9

1
1
,2

6
2
.9

1
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,2

6
2
.9

1
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

7
/1

8
/2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

1
1
6
0
.9

8
1
,1

6
0
.9

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,1

6
0
.9

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

7
/2

0
/2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t:
 (

E
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 P

C
L

 S
ta

ff
)

1
.0

L
S

6
3
0
0
.8

8
6
,3

0
0
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
,3

0
0
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

8
/3

/2
4

 T
&

M
 T

ic
k
e

t 
1

: 
(E

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 P

C
L

 S
ta

ff
)

1
.0

L
S

3
7
4
3
.6

0
3
,7

4
3
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
,7

4
3
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

8
/3

/2
4

 T
&

M
 T

ic
k
e

t 
2

:
1
.0

L
S

1
5
2
8
.2

9
1
,5

2
8
.2

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

2
8
.2

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

8
/6

/2
4

 T
&

M
 T

ic
k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

7
0
3
.0

4
7
0
3
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
0
3
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

L
u

m
p

 S
u

m
 f

o
r 

8
/7

/2
4

 T
&

M
 T

ic
k
e

t:
1
.0

L
S

7
0
3
.0

4
7
0
3
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
0
3
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

P
C

L
 E

n
g

in
e

e
rs

8
.0

H
R

S
1
0
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
0
.0

0
8
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

P
C

L
 S

u
p

e
ri
n

te
n

d
e

n
t/

M
a

n
a

g
e

r
8
.0

H
R

S
1
8
0
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
4
4
0
.0

0
1
,4

4
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,4

4
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

B
o

b
 C

a
t 

M
in

i 
E

x
c
a

v
a

to
r 

E
8

8
 R

-2
 S

e
ri
e

s
8
.0

H
R

S
6
0
.3

6
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
8
2
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  

 
4
8
2
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
0

k
 F

o
rk

lif
t

6
.0

H
R

S
8
2
.0

8
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
9
2
.4

8
$
  
  
  
  

 
4
9
2
.4

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

7
5

 T
o

n
 R

T
 C

ra
n

e
1
.0

H
R

S
1
8
8
.4

4
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
8
.4

4
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
8
.4

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
c
is

s
o

r 
L

if
t

1
1
.0

H
R

S
4
0
.5

2
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
4
5
.7

2
$
  
  
  
  

 
4
4
5
.7

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

F
o

rd
 P

ic
k
u

p
 (

w
o

rk
 t

ru
c
k
)

1
8
.0

H
R

S
3
7
.1

9
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
6
9
.4

2
$
  
  
  
  

 
6
6
9
.4

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

1
0

k
 R

e
a

c
h

L
if
t

8
.0

H
R

S
8
2
.0

8
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
5
6
.6

4
$
  
  
  
  

 
6
5
6
.6

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

R
o

to
 H

a
m

m
e

r
1
.0

d
a
y

8
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

H
e

p
a

 V
a

c
u

u
m

1
.0

d
a
y

6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

D
u

s
t 

c
o

lle
c
to

r
1
.0

d
a
y

6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

C
o

re
 D

ri
ll

1
.0

w
e
e
k

1
2
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

5
" 

C
o

re
 B

it
1
.0

w
e
e
k

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

3
" 

C
o

re
 B

it
1
.0

w
e
e
k

7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
F

ra
n

k
 S

m
it
h

 M
a

s
o

n
ry

1
.0

L
S

2
8
,9

9
6
.0

8
$
  
  
  

2
8
,9

9
6
.0

8
$
  
  
  
  
  

 

A
lli

e
d

 S
te

e
l

1
.0

L
S

8
,4

0
3
.7

5
$
  
  
  
  

8
,4

0
3
.7

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

B
e

s
t 

In
te

ri
o

rs
1
.0

L
S

7
,2

1
6
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  

7
,2

1
6
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

3
,3

0
1

.5
8

$
  

2
6

9
2

5
.4

1
2

6
,9

2
5

.4
1

$
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
4

,6
1

6
.3

3
$

  
7

4
,8

4
3

.3
2

$
  

  
  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2

0
%

6
6

0
.3

2
$

  
  

 
O

T
H

E
R

 I
T

E
M

S
5

%
L

A
B

O
R

2
5

%
6

,1
7

1
.3

5
$

  
  

  
 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%
2

,2
3

0
.8

2
$

  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

3
,9

6
1

.9
0

$
  

3
3

,0
9

6
.7

6
$

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

6
,8

4
7

.1
5

$
  

8
3

,9
0

5
.8

1
$

  
  

  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L

IE
D

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

Page 235 of 405



 
September 26, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: Operations Building Door 101-B Customization – Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion 
Project – Request for Change  
 

Dear Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please find attached the Change Request package submitted to address the cost impacts associated with Operations 

Building Door 101-B. This request follows our verbal discussions during the weekly Operations Building Customizations 

meetings, as well as written correspondence between PCL Construction, West Valley Water District, and GHD. 

At the direction of West Valley Water District and GHD, PCL initiated additional efforts for the procurement of a custom 

door for Door 101-B (the door entering the Operation Room 2 from the Entrance Lobby). The door originally specified in 

the IFC Stantec Architectural drawings and specifications will be replaced by the custom door requested by WVWD. EHC 

Group, Inc. has issued a credit for the originally specified Door 101-B, which will no longer be furnished or installed. PCL 

Construction reserves the right to reassess the proposed pricing should any further changes be requested. 

As previously communicated to GHD and West Valley Water District, and in accordance with the Prime Contract, PCL has 

completed the additional work related to the requested customization. A summary of the pricing associated with this 

customization, is provided below. 

A.  Breakdown of Pricing/Credits: 

1. EHC Group, Inc.: Providing a credit related to the omit of specified Door 101B (Furnish and 

installation). The finish hardware will be delivered to the jobsite as approved.  

2. Pacific Architectural Woodworking, Inc.: Furnish and Install of Custom Door 101-B per architectural 

drawings and reference picture provided to PAW, inc. Shop drawings on pre-liminary design will follow. 

 

 

Page 236 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 237 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 9/26/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                            

EQUIPMENT -$                            

MATERIALS -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 5,874.50$               

SUBTOTAL 5,874.50$               

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                        

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                            

MATERIALS 15% -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 293.73$                  

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 293.73$                  

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 6,168.23$               

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 6,168.23$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 6,168.23$       

DESCRIPTION:
Operations Building Custom Door 101-B CRX

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 048

Page 238 of 405



O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 B

u
il
d

in
g

 C
u

s
to

m
 D

o
o

r 
1
0
1
-B

 C
R

X
D

A
T

E
0

9
/2

6
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a

b
o

r
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
C

R
E

D
IT

: 
E

H
C

 G
ro

u
p

, 
In

c
. 

*F
in

is
h

 H
a

rd
w

a
re

 w
ill

 s
ti
ll 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 E

H
C

 G
ro

u
p

,I
n

c
.*

1
.0

L
S

(5
,1

6
0

.0
0

)
$

  
  

  
  

(5
,1

6
0

.0
0

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
   

P
a

c
if
ic

 A
rc

h
it
e

c
tu

ra
l 
W

o
o

d
w

o
rk

in
g

, 
In

c
. 

(F
u

rn
is

h
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
 D

o
o

r 
1

0
1

-B
)

1
.0

L
S

1
1

,0
3

4
.5

0
$

  
  

  
 

1
1

,0
3

4
.5

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

0
.0

0
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

,8
7

4
.5

0
$

  
  

5
,8

7
4

.5
0

$
  

  
  

  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2

0
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

O
T

H
E

R
 I

T
E

M
S

5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%
2

9
3

.7
3

$
  

  
  

 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,1

6
8

.2
3

$
  

  
6

,1
6

8
.2

3
$

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L

IE
D

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

Page 239 of 405



Page 240 of 405

EdyOrtega
Architect
REFERENCE PICTURE THAT WAS USED TO GATHER QUOTE FOR CUSTOM DOOR 101-B



This photo is for reference only. Final
product may vary

Page 241 of 405

EdyOrtega
Image



Page 242 of 405

EdyOrtega
Architect
DRAWINGS



A
A-

30
1

C
A-

30
1

D
A-

30
1

ABEF

1
3

4

4'-5 1/2"4'-8"6'-0"4'-8"1'-4"3'-8"6'-0"3'-8"3'-0"3'-0"1'-4"4'-8"6'-0"4'-8"

A-
20

1
2

2'-0" 3'-4" 24'-8" 6'-8" 2'-8" 9'-4" 4'-0"

B
A-

30
1

3
A-

40
1

7'-6"9'-7"20'-0"

1
A-

40
2

8
A-

40
2

A-
20

2
4

4'
-0

"
6'

-0
"

10
'-0

"
6'

-0
"

7'
-4

"
3'

-4
"

18
'-0

"

SE
R

VE
R

/ P
LC

R
O

O
M

10
4

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S
R

O
O

M
 2

10
1

SC
AD

A 
R

O
O

M
AN

D
 L

AB
10

5

H
AL

LW
AY

10
7

BR
EA

KR
O

O
M

10
6

EN
TR

AN
C

E
LO

BB
Y

10
0

G
EN

D
ER

N
EU

TR
AL

R
ES

TR
O

O
M

10
2

ST
O

R
AG

E
10

3 EM
PL

O
YE

E
R

ES
TR

O
O

M
/

SH
O

W
ER

10
9

EM
PL

O
YE

E
LO

C
KE

R
 R

O
O

M
10

8

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S
R

O
O

M
 1

11
0

1'
-0

"

6'
-2

"
6'

-8
"

5'
-0

"
3'

-9
"

12
'-5

"

A-
20

2
3

2
A-

50
1

O

4'-5 1/2" 15'-4" 22'-0" 15'-4"

26
'-1

"
10

'-1
1"

15
'-8

"

17'-1" 14'-3"

8'-0" 43'-4"

37
'-0

"
15

'-8
"

W
-1

W
-1

W
-1

W
-2

W
-2

W
-2

W
-2

W
-1

W
-2 W
-4

W
-1

W
-2

W
-2

W
-1 W

-3

W
-2

W
-4

W
-1W

-2

W
-3

W
-4

.1

W
-4

W
-4

D
10

1A

D
10

4

D
10

5

D
10

7B

D109
D108A

D110

D
10

7A

D
10

1B

D100A

2'
-0

"

D102

W
-3

.1

W
-1

W
-4

D
10

3

54
'-8

"

2

38
'-0

"
16

'-8
"

G
S-

1
G

S-
1

GS-1 GS-3 GS-2 GS-1

GS-5 GS-4

52'-8"

10
"

8 
3/

4"

5
A-

50
1

13
A-

50
3

A9
02

3

A9
02

3

W
-3

.1

W
-3

.1

W
-4

W
-4

.1

W
-3

.1
W

-3
.1

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
LA

N
D

IN
G

 
(S

EE
 C

IV
IL

 D
W

G
S)

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
LA

N
D

IN
G

 
(S

EE
 C

IV
IL

 
D

W
G

S)

D
O

W
N

SP
O

U
T 

 T
O

 S
TO

R
M

 
D

R
AI

N
 P

IP
IN

G
 (S

EE
 

PL
U

M
BI

N
G

 D
W

G
S)

SE
E 

EL
EC

TR
IC

AL
 D

W
G

S 
FO

R
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

LA
YO

U
T

The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the 
drawing -any errors or omissions shall be reported to Stantec without delay.
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Stantec. Reproduction 
or use for any purpose other than that authorized by Stantec is forbidden.

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 SH

EE
T -

AN
SI 

D 

Dr
aw

in
g 

No
.

of
Re

vi
sio

n:

Pe
rm

it/
Se

al

Fil
e 

Na
m

e:
 N

/A

Tit
le

Sh
ee

t:

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N

No
t f

or
 p

er
m

its
, p

ric
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 o

ffi
ci

al
 

pu
rp

os
es

. T
hi

s d
oc

um
en

t h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
r c

he
ck

ed
 a

nd
 is

 fo
r 

ge
ne

ra
l in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
or

 c
om

m
en

t o
nl

y.

RevisionByAppdYYYY.MM.DD IssuedByAppdYYYY.MM.DD

1

A

2
3

4
5

BCD

YY
YY

.M
M

.D
D

Ds
gn

.
C

hk
d.

Dw
n.

Client/Project

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
:1

84
03

16
87

 

Consultant

Sc
al

e:
 

2023.10.27 JHB ES 0  ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

Roemer WFF Expansion 
Project

Rialto, Califonria

11/22/2023 1:19:10 PM

1

3/
16

" =
 1

'-0
"

A-
10

2
90

36
9

VJ
EW

M
ES

O
PE

RA
TIO

N
S 

BU
ILD

IN
G

FL
O

O
R 

PL
AN

Stantec
3301 C Street, Suite 1900
Sacramento, California  95816
Tel: +1.916.806.6343
www.stantec.com

20
23

.1
0.

27

SC
AL

E:
  3

/1
6"

 =
 1

'-0
"

A-
00

81
O

PE
R

AT
IO

N
S 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

N

1.
 

FU
R

N
IS

H
IN

G
S 

TO
 B

E 
PR

O
VI

D
ED

 B
Y 

O
W

N
ER

 (N
IC

)

G
EN

ER
AL

 S
H

EE
T 

N
O

TE
S

1EMPLOYEE RESTRM/WINDOWESSEN2023.11.22

1

Pe
rm

it/
Se

al

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N

No
t f

or
 p

er
m

its
, p

ric
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 o

ffi
ci

al
 

pu
rp

os
es

. T
hi

s d
oc

um
en

t h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
r c

he
ck

ed
 a

nd
 is

 fo
r 

ge
ne

ra
l in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
or

 c
om

m
en

t o
nl

y.

Page 243 of 405

EdyOrtega
Contractor
D101B

EdyOrtega
Contractor
6'-2"

EdyOrtega
Cloud



 

 

 

 
 

For Item #2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 244 of 405



 
October 2, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: Deceleration Lane on N Riverside Ave – Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project – 
Request for Change  
 
Dear Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please find attached a Change Request related to the cost impacts associated with the addition of the Deceleration Lane 

on N Riverside Ave. 

As discussed in our verbal conversations between PCL Construction, WVWD, and GHD, it was agreed that the N Riverside 

Ave work would be managed by WVWD, with initial discussions to be initiated with the City of Rialto concerning the 

street improvement drawings and scope of work. Following a thorough review, the City of Rialto approved the submitted 

N Riverside Ave Street Improvement Drawings. 

Below is a summary of the pricing associated with the addition of the Deceleration Lane: 

Traffic Control & Demolition of Existing Asphalt: 

1) PCL and its subcontractor will install the necessary traffic control measures required to safely execute the work. 
2) PCL will self-perform the demolition of the existing curb line and asphalt, including saw-cutting the asphalt 

along N Riverside Ave where the Deceleration Lane begins and ends. 
3) Rubalcava, a trucking subcontractor, will arrive onsite to haul off all materials resulting from the demolition 

process. 
 

Subgrade Preparation for N Riverside Deceleration Lane: 

1) After the demolition of the existing asphalt and curb line, PCL will self-perform the subgrade preparation across 
the entire deceleration lane, ensuring it is ready for the placement of Aggregate Base and Asphalt Concrete 
Pavement. 

 

Aggregate Base & Asphalt Concrete Paving: 

Page 245 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


 

1) Hardy & Harper will be responsible for installing the aggregate base layer beneath the pavement, in accordance 
with City of Rialto standards, and paving the deceleration lane. 

 

Pavement Markings/Striping: 

1) Superior Pavement Markings Inc. will execute the offsite striping and markings for the deceleration right-turn 
lane. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 246 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 10/2/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 29,619.64$             

EQUIPMENT 21,881.48$             

MATERIALS -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 95,797.30$             

SUBTOTAL 147,298.42$           

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 7,404.91$               

EQUIPMENT 20% 4,376.30$               

MATERIALS 15% -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 4,789.87$               

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 16,571.07$             

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 163,869.49$           

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 163,869.49$    

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 163,869.49$    

DESCRIPTION:
N Riverside Ave Deceleration Lane CRX

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 040

Page 247 of 405



N
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 A

v
e
 D

e
c
e
le

ra
ti

o
n

 L
a
n

e
 C

R
X

D
A

T
E

1
0

/0
2

/2
4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a
b

o
r

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

M
H

/U
N

IT
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

L
a
b
o
re

rs
 G

ro
u
p
 #

4
 (

L
a
b
o
r 

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

S
a
w

c
u
tt
in

g
 &

 S
u
b
g
ra

d
e
 P

re
p
)

1
5
2
.0

H
R

S
8
6
.1

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
3
0
8
8
.7

2
1
3
,0

8
8
.7

2
$
  

  
  

  
  
 

1
3

,0
8

8
.7

2
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

2
4
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

S
a
w

c
u
t 
(1

 l
a
b
o
re

r/
 3

 d
a
y
s
) 

8
0
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

s
p
o
tt
e
r 

(1
 l
a
b
o
re

r)
8
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

R
id

e
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
a
c
to

r
4
0
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

W
a
te

r 
T

ru
c
k

O
p
e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p
 #

8
 (

L
a
b
o
r 

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

x
c
a
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
 w

o
rk

) 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
4
.0

H
R

S
1
1
0
.6

8
  

  
  

  
  
 

1
1
5
1
0
.7

2
1
1
,5

1
0
.7

2
$
  

  
  

  
  
 

1
1

,5
1

0
.7

2
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

E
x
c
a
v
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
2
4
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

F
in

e
 G

ra
d
e

T
e
a
m

s
te

r 
G

ro
u
p
 #

1
0
 (

L
a
b
o
r 

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
O

n
s
it
e
 D

u
m

p
 T

ru
c
k
)

6
0
.0

H
R

S
8
3
.6

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
0
2
0
.2

0
5
,0

2
0
.2

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
,0

2
0

.2
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
0
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

O
n
s
it
e
 H

a
u
lin

g

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

W
a
lk

 B
e
h
in

d
 S

a
w

2
4
.0

H
R

S
1
9
.4

2
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4
6
6
.0

8
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

0
.0

0
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
6

6
.0

8
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

E
x
c
a
v
a
to

r
8
0
.0

H
R

S
1
3
6
.5

2
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0
,9

2
1
.6

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

1
0

,9
2

1
.6

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0
 C

Y
 D

u
m

p
 T

ru
c
k

6
0
.0

H
R

S
6
5
.6

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
3
,9

3
9
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
0
.0

0
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,9

3
9

.0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

B
a
c
k
h
o
e

2
4
.0

H
R

S
5
8
.6

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1
,4

0
6
.4

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,4
0

6
.4

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
id

e
 O

n
 C

o
m

p
a
c
to

r
8
.0

H
R

S
5
3
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4
2
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

4
2

4
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
a
te

r 
T

ru
c
k

4
0
.0

H
R

S
1
0
5
.4

4
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
,2

1
7
.6

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

,2
1

7
.6

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

W
a
lk

 B
e
h
in

d
 C

o
m

p
a
c
to

r 
/ 
J
u
m

p
in

g
 J

a
c
k

4
0
.0

H
R

S
1
2
.6

7
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5
0
6
.8

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

5
0

6
.8

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

V
e
n

d
o

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
ls

S
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r
H

a
rd

y
 a

n
d
 H

a
rp

e
r 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

a
s
e
 &

 A
s
p
h
a
lt
 P

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
*6

,2
6
7
 S

F
*

1
.0

L
.S

6
9

,2
1

6
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
9

,2
1

6
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

S
u
p
e
ri
o
r 

P
a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
M

a
rk

in
g
s
 o

f 
L
a
n
e
 D

e
c
e
le

ra
ti
o
n

1
.0

L
.S

4
,5

5
1

.0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,5

5
1

.0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
u
b
a
lc

a
v
a
 T

ru
c
k
in

g
 (

D
e
m

o
/ 
H

a
u
l 
O

ff
) 

*6
,2

6
7
 S

F
 (

6
" 

A
s
p
h
a
lt
 &

 8
" 

B
a
s
e
)

1
.0

L
.S

1
0

,9
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0

,9
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

(1
0
 S

U
P

E
R

 T
O

N
 L

O
A

D
S

) 
*$

3
0
0
 a

 l
o
a
d
*

(4
8
 h

o
u
rs

) 
*$

1
2
5
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
r*

1
0
 S

U
P

E
R

 T
O

N
 L

O
A

D
S

) 
*$

1
9
0
 a

 l
o
a
d
*

K
 R

a
il 

*2
 w

e
e
k
s
*

2
.0

W
e
e
k
s

1
1

,1
3

0
.3

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
1

,1
3

0
.3

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

2
1
,8

8
1
.4

8
$
  
  
 

2
9
6
1
9
.6

4
2
9
,6

1
9
.6

4
$
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
5
,7

9
7
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
7
,2

9
8
.4

2
$
  
  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2
0
%

4
,3

7
6
.3

0
$
  
  
  
 

O
T

H
E

R
 I
T

E
M

S
5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2
5
%

7
,4

0
4
.9

1
$
  
  
  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

4
,7

8
9
.8

7
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L
S

 W
IT

H
 M

A
R

K
U

P
2
6
,2

5
7
.7

8
$
  
  
 

3
7
,0

2
4
.5

5
$
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
0
,5

8
7
.1

7
$
  
  
  
  

1
6
3
,8

6
9
.4

9
$
  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o
te

s
:

  
  
  
  
  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  
  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  
  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
S

Page 248 of 405



 
October 1, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: N Riverside Ave Deceleration Lane Design and Addressing Comments– Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility 
Upgrade and Expansion Project – Request for Change  
 
Dear Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Attached, please find the package submitted as a Change Request, addressing the cost impacts associated with West 

Valley Water District’s (WVWD) request to design the N Riverside Ave Deceleration Lane and address City of Rialto 

comments. After review from the city, the drawings have been fully approved and signed by the City of Rialto and 

Stantec.  

As verbally communicated to GHD and WVWD, and in accordance with the Prime Contract, Stantec/PCL has undertaken 

the additional efforts required to design the N Riverside Ave Deceleration Lane and address City’s comments. The pricing 

details are outlined below: 

A. Breakdown of Pricing: 
 

1) Stantec Consultants: Professionally Designed the N Riverside Deceleration Lane, signing and striping plan, 
revisions to the sidewalk at driveways, associated landscape / Irrigation changes, right of way changes. 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  

Page 249 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 10/1/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                            

EQUIPMENT -$                            

MATERIALS -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 14,980.00$             

SUBTOTAL 14,980.00$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                        

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                            

MATERIALS 15% -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 749.00$                  

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 749.00$                  

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 15,729.00$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 15,729.00$     

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 15,729.00$     

DESCRIPTION:
N Riverside Ave Deceleration Lane Design and Addressing Comments CRX

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 049

Page 250 of 405



N
 R

iv
e

rs
id

e
 A

v
e

 D
e

c
e

le
ra

ti
o

n
 L

a
n

e
 D

e
s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 A

d
d

re
s

s
in

g
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 C
R

X
D

A
T

E
1
0
/0

1
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a

b
o

r
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
S

ta
n

te
c
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 (
R

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
O

ff
s
it
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

)
1
.0

L
S

1
4
,9

8
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  

1
4
,9

8
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 

.

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

0
.0

0
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

4
,9

8
0

.0
0

$
  

1
4

,9
8

0
.0

0
$

  
  

  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2

0
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

O
T

H
E

R
 I

T
E

M
S

5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%
7

4
9

.0
0

$
  

  
  

 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
5

,7
2

9
.0

0
$

  
1

5
,7

2
9

.0
0

$
  

  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L

IE
D

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

Page 251 of 405



Page 252 of 405

EdyOrtega
Architect
STANTEC'S BILLING FOR OLIVER P. ROEMER STREET IMPROVEMENT RE-DESIGN



 Project Technical Lead 

 Senior C
ivil E

ngineer 

 Traffic Engineer 
Principal 

 Associate Engineer 

 Landscpate Architect 

 Senior Landscape 
Architect 

 Senior D
esigner 

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y 
H

ou
rs

 L
ab

ou
r 

 T
ot

al
 

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
ill

in
g 

R
at

e 
(T

&
M

) 
$3

30
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
$3

30
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
$2

20
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
$1

75
.0

0
 F

ix
ed

 F
ee

 
0.

00
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
 T

ot
al

 U
ni

ts
 (T

&
M

) 
4.

00
4.

00
4.

00
16

.0
0

12
.0

0
4.

00
20

.0
0

 T
im

e 
&

 M
at

er
ia

l 
64

.0
0

$1
4,

98
0.

00
$1

4,
98

0.
00

 F
ee

 (T
&

M
) 

$1
,3

20
.0

0
$1

,2
00

.0
0

$1
,3

20
.0

0
$4

,0
00

.0
0

$2
,6

40
.0

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$3
,5

00
.0

0
 T

ot
al

 
64

.0
0

$1
4,

98
0.

00
$1

4,
98

0.
00

 W
B

S 
C

od
e 

 T
as

k 
N

am
e 

 U
ni

ts
 

 T
as

k 
Ty

pe
 

 H
ou

rs
 

 L
ab

ou
r 

 T
ot

al
 

1
O

liv
er

 P
. R

oe
m

er
 W

at
er

 F
ilt

ra
tio

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
U

pg
ra

de
 

an
d 

Ex
pa

ns
io

n:
 R

iv
er

si
de

 d
ec

el
er

at
io

n 
la

ne
 a

nd
 

ot
he

r C
ity

 c
om

m
en

ts
4.

00
4.

00
4.

00
16

.0
0

12
.0

0
4.

00
20

.0
0

Ti
m

e 
&

 M
at

er
ia

l
64

.0
0

$1
4,

98
0.

00
$1

4,
98

0.
00

FE
E 

ES
TI

M
AT

E 
-O

liv
er

 P
. R

oe
m

er
 W

at
er

 F
ilt

ra
tio

n 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
U

pg
ra

de
 a

nd
 E

xp
an

si
on

: R
iv

er
si

de
 D

ec
el

er
at

io
n 

La
ne

 a
nd

 C
ity

 C
om

m
en

ts

Page 253 of 405



 
September 5, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: Effluent Pump Station 2 AC Ramp– Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project – 
Request for Change  
 
Dear Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please find attached a Change Request related to the cost impacts associated with the addition of the Effluent Pump 

Station 2 AC Ramp. 

As discussed during our conversations between PCL Construction, WVWD, and GHD, it was agreed that WVWD is 

interested in exploring the possibility of adding an AC ramp at the new Effluent Pump Station 2 area. The proposed AC 

ramp would extend from the existing asphalt road north of Backwash Ponds 5 & 6 near Effluent Pump Station 2, 

terminating the AC curb/ramp at the face of EPS 2. Following instructions from WVWD and GHD, PCL/Stantec proceeded 

with the preliminary design of the AC ramp. A credit has been issued to WVWD for subgrade preparation, excavation, 

and haul-off services. 

Below is a summary of the costs associated with the addition of the EPS 2 AC Ramp: 

Subgrade Preparation for EPS 2 AC Ramp: 

1) PCL will self-perform the subgrade preparation along the full length of the proposed AC Ramp at EPS 2, ensuring 
it is ready for the placement of the aggregate base and asphalt concrete pavement. 

 

Aggregate Base & Asphalt Concrete Paving: 

1) Hardy & Harper will be responsible for installing the aggregate base beneath the pavement in accordance with 
West Valley Water District standards. Hardy & Harper will pave the AC berm (0”-6”) and apply a 5” layer of 
asphalt concrete over the 6” layer of aggregate base. 

 

 

Page 254 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


 

Associated Credit to WVWD: 

1) A credit has been issued to WVWD for subgrade preparation, excavation, and haul-off service. Please refer to 
the attached Price Breakdown, which includes the associated credit. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 255 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 9/16/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 4,526.40$               

EQUIPMENT 4,340.16$               

MATERIALS 1,086.23$               

SUBCONTRACTOR 23,610.00$             

CREDITS (6,516.48)$              

SUBTOTAL 27,046.31$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 1,131.60$               

EQUIPMENT 20% 868.03$                  

MATERIALS 15% 162.93$                  

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 1,180.50$               

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 3,343.07$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 30,389.38$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 30,389.38$     

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 30,389.38$     

DESCRIPTION:
Effluent Pump Station AC Ramp & Curb CRX

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 043

Page 256 of 405



E
ff

lu
e
n

t 
P

u
m

p
 S

ta
ti

o
n

 A
C

 R
a
m

p
 &

 C
u

rb
 C

R
X

D
A

T
E

0
9

/1
6

/2
4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a
b

o
r

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

M
H

/U
N

IT
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

L
a
b
o
re

rs
 G

ro
u
p
 #

4
 (

L
a
b
o
r 

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ra

d
e
 p

re
p
 &

 w
a
te

r 
tr

u
c
k
)

3
2
.0

H
R

S
8
6
.1

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
7
5
5
.5

2
2
,7

5
5
.5

2
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
,7

5
5

.5
2

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
2
 H

R
S

 t
o
 f
in

e
 g

ra
d
e
, 
c
o
m

p
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

a
te

r 
tr

u
c
k

O
p
e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p
 #

8
 (

L
a
b
o
r 

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

ir
t 
w

o
rk

) 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
.0

H
R

S
1
1
0
.6

8
  

  
  

  
  
 

1
7
7
0
.8

8
1
,7

7
0
.8

8
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,7

7
0

.8
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
6
 H

R
S

 f
o
r 

E
x
c
a
v
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 F

in
e
 G

ra
d
e

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

E
x
c
a
v
a
to

r
1
6
.0

H
R

S
1
3
6
.5

2
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,1

8
4
.3

2
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,1
8

4
.3

2
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

B
a
c
k
h
o
e

8
.0

H
R

S
5
8
.6

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4
6
8
.8

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

4
6

8
.8

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

W
a
te

r 
T

ru
c
k

1
6
.0

H
R

S
1
0
5
.4

4
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,6

8
7
.0

4
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,6
8

7
.0

4
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
o
m

p
a
c
to

r
8
.0

H
R

S
1
2
.6

7
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1
0
1
.3

6
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

1
0

1
.3

6
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

V
e
n

d
o

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
ls

3
/4

"C
ru

s
h
e
d
 R

o
c
k
 

1
.0

L
S

6
2
3
.5

6
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
6

2
3

.5
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
o
n
c
re

te
 R

im
 B

lo
w

o
ff
 R

is
e
r 

p
e
r 

W
V

W
D

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 D
e
ta

il 
P

a
v
e
d
 S

c
e
n
a
ri
o
's

1
.0

L
S

4
6
2
.6

7
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

6
2

.6
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r
H

a
rd

y
 a

n
d
 H

a
rp

e
r 

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

a
s
e
 &

 A
s
p
h
a
lt
 P

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
*A

C
 C

U
R

B
 &

 A
C

 P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

*
1
.0

L
.S

2
3

,6
1

0
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
3

,6
1

0
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
 

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

4
,3

4
0
.1

6
$
  
  
  
 

4
5
2
6
.4

0
4
,5

2
6
.4

0
$
  
  
  
  

1
,0

8
6
.2

3
$
  
  
  
  

2
3
,6

1
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

3
3
,6

6
4
.1

5
$
  
  
  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2
0
%

8
6
8
.0

3
$
  
  
  
  
  

O
T

H
E

R
 I
T

E
M

S
5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2
5
%

1
,1

3
1
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5
%

1
6
2
.9

3
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

1
,1

8
0
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L
S

 W
IT

H
 M

A
R

K
U

P
5
,2

0
8
.1

9
$
  
  
  
 

5
,6

5
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

1
,2

4
9
.1

6
$
  
  
  
  

2
4
,7

9
0
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

3
6
,9

0
5
.8

6
$
  
  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o
te

s
:

  
  
  
  
  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  
  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  
  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
S

Page 257 of 405



E
ff

lu
e
n

t 
P

u
m

p
 S

ta
ti

o
n

 A
C

 R
a
m

p
 &

 C
u

rb
 C

R
X

 (
C

R
E

D
IT

S
)

D
A

T
E

0
9

/1
6

/2
4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a
b

o
r

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

M
H

/U
N

IT
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

C
re

d
it
: 
L
a
b
o
re

r 
(8

 H
R

S
) 

8
.0

H
R

S
(8

6
.1

1
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

(6
8
8
.8

8
)

(6
8
8
.8

8
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

(6
8

8
.8

8
)

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
re

d
it
: 
O

p
e
ra

to
r 

(8
 H

R
S

) 
8
.0

H
R

S
(1

1
0
.6

8
)

  
  

  
  

  
(8

8
5
.4

4
)

(8
8
5
.4

4
)

(8
8

5
.4

4
)

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

C
re

d
it
: 
E

x
c
a
v
a
to

r 
(8

 H
R

S
) 

8
.0

H
R

S
(1

3
6
.5

2
)

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,0
9
2
.1

6
)

$
  

  
  

  
  
 

(1
,0

9
2

.1
6

)
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

V
e
n

d
o

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
ls

S
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r
C

re
d
it
: 
R

u
b
a
lc

a
v
a
 T

ru
c
k
in

g
 (

H
a
u
l 
o
ff
 o

f 
D

ir
t)

1
.0

L
.S

(3
,8

5
0

.0
0

)
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(3
,8

5
0

.0
0

)
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

(8
 h

o
u
rs

) 
*$

1
2
5
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
r*

(1
5
 S

U
P

E
R

 1
0
 L

O
A

D
S

) 
*$

1
9
0
 a

 l
o
a
d
* 

(1
5
5
 C

Y
 /
 ~

1
1
 C

Y
 i
n
 S

u
p
e
r 

1
0
 D

u
m

p
 T

ru
c
k
 =

 A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

5
)

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

(1
,0

9
2
.1

6
)

$
  
  
  

(1
5
7
4
.3

2
)

(1
,5

7
4
.3

2
)

$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(3
,8

5
0
.0

0
)

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

(6
,5

1
6
.4

8
)

$
  
  
  
 

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2
0
%

O
T

H
E

R
 I
T

E
M

S
5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2
5
%

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5
%

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L
S

 W
IT

H
 M

A
R

K
U

P
(1

,0
9
2
.1

6
)

$
  
  
  

(1
,5

7
4
.3

2
)

$
  
  
  
 

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(3
,8

5
0
.0

0
)

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

(6
,5

1
6
.4

8
)

$
  
  
  
 

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o
te

s
:

  
  
  
  
  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  
  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  
  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
S

Page 258 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3750 Schaufele Ave, Suite 270 

Long Beach, CA 90808 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

April 23, 2024 

 

Sergio Granda 

Roemer Chief Plant Operator  

West Valley Water District  

855 W Baseline Rd.  

Rialto, CA 92376 

 

 

Attn: Sergio Granda  

 

 

RE: Repairs to AC Road along Sludge Pond no.3   - Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion 

Project 

 

Mr. Granda, 

Please review the following requested pricing for PCL Construction to perform the rehabilitation work needed on the AC 

roadway along sludge pond no. 3.  Below are the inclusions and exclusions this quote will cover.  If acceptable, please 

confirm PCL Construction can proceed with the requested repairs. 

• Inclusions 

o Saw cut perimeter of the damaged AC Road (1/2 of road width) to strip the cracked/damaged asphalt. 

o Removal and disposal of asphalt within saw cut 

o Removal of unsuitable soils  

o Trucking & Dump Fee’s for soil and demoed asphalt 

o Provide 6-inches of Class II base beneath roadway at 95% compaction. 

o Scope increase for a new AC roadway (Previously grind/overlay) when paving subcontractor mobilizes 

to job site. 

o Manpower and Equipment to perform scope of work 

• Exclusions 

o Modifications to any existing utilities conflicting with work (if any). 

o Rehabilitation of concrete if damage found on sludge pond no.3 

o Excavations and removal of any soil greater than assumed depth of 1.5’ below existing AC pavement. 

   

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 

Project Manager 

kgoetz@pcl.com 

  

 

Page 259 of 405



PCO # TBD

DATE: 9/11/24

ESTIMATOR: SF

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 4,137$               

EQUIPMENT 186$                  

MATERIALS 4,078$               

SUBCONTRACTOR 5,859$               

SUBTOTAL 14,260$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 1,034$               

EQUIPMENT 20% 37$                   

MATERIALS 15% 612$                  

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 293$                  

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 1,976$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 16,236$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 16,236$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 16,236$       

DESCRIPTION:

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

Repairs to AC Roadway along sludge pond 3

Page 260 of 405



R
e
p

a
ir

s
 t

o
 A

C
 r

o
a
d

 a
lo

n
g

 s
lu

d
g

e
 p

o
n

d
 n

o
.3

 
D

A
T

E
0
9
/1

1
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
S

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

L
A

B
O

R

S
a
w

c
u
t 
A

C
 R

o
a
d
w

a
y
 (

2
6
2
 L

F
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
[L

a
b
o
re

r 
G

ro
u
p
 4

]
2

.0
E

A
4

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
.0

0
$

8
4

.1
4

$
6

7
3

6
7

3
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

S
a
w

c
u
t 
A

C
 R

o
a
d
w

a
y
 (

2
6
2
 L

F
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
[L

a
b
o
re

r 
G

ro
u
p
 4

; 
F

o
re

m
a
n
]

1
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4

.0
0

$
8

6
.5

8
$

3
4

6
3

4
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
tr

ip
 A

C
 R

o
a
d
 a

t 
h
a
lf
 w

id
th

 (
~

1
7
7
0
 S

F
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
[O

p
e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p
 8

]
1

.0
E

A
3

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
.0

0
$

1
0

9
.0

4
$

3
2

7
3

2
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
tr

ip
 A

C
 R

o
a
d
 a

t 
h
a
lf
 w

id
th

 (
~

1
7
7
0
 S

F
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
[L

a
b
o
re

r 
G

ro
u
p
 4

]
1

.0
E

A
3

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

3
.0

0
$

8
4

.1
4

$
2

5
2

2
5

2
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

L
o
a
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
fo

r 
e
x
p
o
rt

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
[O

p
e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p
 8

]
1

.0
E

A
4

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
.0

0
$

1
0

9
.0

4
$

4
3

6
4

3
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

L
o
a
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
fo

r 
e
x
p
o
rt

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
[L

a
b
o
re

r 
G

ro
u
p
 4

]
1

.0
E

A
4

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

4
.0

0
$

8
4

.1
4

$
3

3
7

3
3

7
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

S
tr

ip
 A

C
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 L

o
a
d
 M

a
te

ri
a
l 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
[L

a
b
o
re

r 
G

ro
u
p
 4

; 
F

o
re

m
a
n
]

1
.0

E
A

7
.0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7

.0
0

$
8

6
.5

8
$

6
0

6
6

0
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
e
c
o
m

p
a
c
t/
B

a
c
k
fi
ll 

w
it
h
 6

-i
n
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
c
la

s
s
 I
I 
b
a
s
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 [
O

p
e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p
 8

]
1

.0
E

A
6

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
.0

0
$

1
0

9
.0

4
$

6
5

4
6

5
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
e
c
o
m

p
a
c
t/
B

a
c
k
fi
ll 

w
it
h
 6

-i
n
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
c
la

s
s
 I
I 
b
a
s
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 [
L
a
b
o
re

r 
G

ro
u
p
 4

]
1

.0
E

A
6

.0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
.0

0
$

8
4

.1
4

$
5

0
5

5
0

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

W
a
lk

 B
e
h
in

d
 S

a
w

 (
re

n
ta

l 
is

 8
 H

R
 m

in
 =

 $
1
5
5
)

8
.0

H
R

S
2

3
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
8

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

8
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

V
e
n

d
o

r

R
u
b
a
c
a
v
a
; 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 A
C

 &
 6

" 
s
o
il 

1
2

.0
E

A
$

1
2

5
.0

0
$

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

1
,5

0
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 

R
u
b
a
c
a
v
a
; 
D

u
m

p
 F

e
e
s

5
.0

E
A

$
3

0
0

.0
0

$
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
1

,5
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

V
u
lc

a
n
; 
3
/4

" 
R

o
c
k
 

4
6

.0
T

O
N

S
$

2
3

.4
4

1
,0

7
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

,0
7

8
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

S
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r
H

a
rd

y
 &

 H
a

rp
e

r,
 I
n

c
.;
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

is
 r

o
a

d
 w

a
s
 g

ri
n
d
/o

v
e
rl
a
y
 (

$
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
p
ri
c
e
)

1
,7

7
0

.0
S

F
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
,6

2
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
N

A

H
a

rd
y
 &

 H
a

rp
e

r,
 I
n

c
.;
 S

c
o

p
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
  
g

ri
n

d
/o

v
e
rl
a
y
 t

o
 1

/2
 n

e
w

 A
C

 r
o
a
d
 (

$
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
p
ri
c
e
)

1
,7

7
0

.0
S

F
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

9
,4

8
7

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
N

A

H
a

rd
y
 &

 H
a

rp
e

r 
In

c
. 
; 
C

o
s
t 
fo

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a

v
in

g
 s

c
o
p
e
 (

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 o

f 
lin

e
 i
te

m
s
 3

3
 &

 3
2
)

1
,7

7
0

.0
S

F
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

5
,8

5
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
5

,8
5

9
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 D

IR
E

C
T

 C
O

S
T

1
8
6

$
  
  
  
  
  

4
,1

3
7

$
  
  
  
 

4
,0

7
8

$
  
  
  
 

5
,8

5
9

$
  
  
  
 

1
4
,2

6
0

$
  
  
 

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0
%

3
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

O
T

H
E

R
 I
T

E
M

S
5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2
5
%

1
,0

3
4

$
  
  
  
 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5
%

6
1
2

$
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

2
9
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L
S

 W
IT

H
 M

A
R

K
U

P
2
2
4

$
  
  
  
  
  

5
,1

7
1

$
  
  
  
 

4
,6

9
0

$
  
  
  
 

6
,1

5
2

$
  
  
  
 

1
6
,2

3
6

$
  
  
 

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o
te

s
:

  
  
  
  
  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
  
  
  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  
  
 A

M
O

U
N

T

Page 261 of 405



N 
= 

18
78

71
7.6

2
E 

= 
67

43
97

8.4
8

EL
EV

 =
 ??

?

N 
= 

18
78

72
5.0

0
E 

= 
67

43
92

6.0
4

EL
EV

 =
 ??

?

N 
= 

18
78

77
5.3

1
E 

= 
67

43
75

6.5
6

EL
EV

 =
 15

73
.99

N 
= 

18
78

78
0.6

9
E 

= 
67

43
74

9.3
4

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.07

N 
= 

18
78

78
2.8

9
E 

= 
67

43
79

0.3
0

EL
EV

 =
 ??

?

N 
= 

18
78

75
7.5

3
E 

= 
67

43
82

5.0
2

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.63

N 
= 

18
78

88
5.3

4
E 

= 
67

43
69

5.8
3

EL
EV

 =
 ??

?

N 
= 

18
78

88
2.3

2
E 

= 
67

43
71

2.4
3

EL
EV

 =
 ??

?

N 
= 

18
78

81
5.8

2
E 

= 
67

43
73

4.1
3

EL
EV

 =
 ??

?

N 
= 

18
78

80
5.3

4
E 

= 
67

43
72

4.7
9

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.21

N 
= 

18
78

56
7.9

5
E 

= 
67

43
47

4.3
2

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.18

N 
= 

18
78

56
3.8

6
E 

= 
67

43
46

4.2
1

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.85

N 
= 

18
78

51
9.6

4
E 

= 
67

43
43

1.5
1

EL
EV

 =
 ??

?

N 
= 

18
78

43
4.8

1
E 

= 
67

43
55

2.2
4

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.60

N 
= 

18
78

44
4.7

6
E 

= 
67

43
55

9.5
2

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.02

N 
= 

18
78

63
3.9

9
E 

= 
67

43
84

6.3
3

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.94

N 
= 

18
78

61
0.4

9
E 

= 
67

43
87

8.1
0

EL
EV

 =
 15

75
.00

N 
= 

18
78

51
1.2

3
E 

= 
67

43
70

5.1
3

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.00

N 
= 

18
78

50
5.9

6
E 

= 
67

43
71

2.4
4

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.00

N 
= 

18
78

55
4.3

0
E 

= 
67

43
74

7.2
8

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.93

N 
= 

18
78

49
4.4

3
E 

= 
67

43
72

8.0
1

EL
EV

 =
 15

73
.51

N 
= 

18
78

50
8.0

9
E 

= 
67

43
80

9.3
0

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.71

N 
= 

18
78

43
7.3

3
E 

= 
67

43
79

1.1
9

EL
EV

 =
 15

69
.81

N 
= 

18
78

42
8.9

2
E 

= 
67

43
78

5.3
1

EL
EV

 =
 15

69
.41

N 
= 

18
78

40
9.7

1
E 

= 
67

43
77

1.8
9

EL
EV

 =
 15

69
.85

N 
= 

18
78

80
5.4

9
E 

= 
67

43
77

6.6
9

FL
 =

 15
74

.34

N 
= 

18
78

71
1.5

5
E 

= 
67

43
90

3.7
0

FL
 =

 15
74

.73

N 
= 

18
78

66
2.2

3
E 

= 
67

43
89

6.0
6

FL
 =

 15
74

.84

N 
= 

18
78

50
1.3

9
E 

= 
67

43
77

6.8
2

FL
 =

 15
74

.17

N 
= 

18
78

45
5.3

5
E 

= 
67

43
51

9.2
6

FL
 =

 ??
?

N 
= 

18
78

75
6.6

6
E 

= 
67

43
84

2.7
3

EL
EV

 =
 15

74
.55

N 
= 

18
78

51
1.0

7
E 

= 
67

43
56

1.2
0

FL
 =

 15
74

.77

N 
= 

18
78

55
5.5

2
E 

= 
67

43
42

0.2
5

EL
EV

 =
 15

76
.49

N 
= 

18
78

56
9.6

2
E 

= 
67

43
43

0.4
1

EL
EV

 =
 15

75
.56

N 
= 

18
78

53
7.7

8
E 

= 
67

43
44

4.9
1

EL
EV

 =
 15

75
.34

N 
= 

18
78

55
1.7

3
E 

= 
67

43
45

5.2
4

EL
EV

 =
 15

75
.52

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
:

Sc
al

e:

Re
vis

io
n:

Dr
aw

in
g 

No
.Sh

ee
t:

Tit
leClient/Project

Pe
rm

it/
Se

al

Consultant

Ds
gn

.
C

hk
d.

YY
YY

.M
M

.D
D

Dw
n.

The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Stantec without delay.
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Stantec. Reproduction
or use for any purpose other than that authorized by Stantec is forbidden.

of

Fil
e 

Na
m

e:
 31
68

7C
-1

21

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

HE
ET

 - 
AN

SI 
D

c:\users\cswain\accdocs\stantec consulting\184031687_roemer_eff_exp\project files\01_wip\04_civil\sheet_files\31687c-121
2023.10.27 10:32:11 AM

IssuedByAppdYYYY.MM.DDRevisionByAppdYYYY.MM.DD

Tel:
www.stantec.com

Stantec
300 North Lake Avenue, Suite 400
Pasadena, California 91101-1469

+1.626.422.0829

ABCD

1
2

3
4

5

WEST VALLEY WATER
DISTRICT

Roemer WFF Expansion
Project

Rialto, California

18
40

31
68

7

36
9

DISTRICT

Project 20
23

.1
0.

27

EP
S2

IP
S2

0
80

'
40

'
20

'

N
SL

UD
GE

 P
ON

D 
NO

 . 1
SL

UD
GE

 P
ON

D 
NO

. 2

BL
EN

DI
NG

 P
ON

D 
NO

. 1

SL
UD

GE
 P

ON
D 

NO
. 3

BL
EN

DI
NG

 P
ON

D 
NO

. 2

PR
ET

RE
AT

ME
NT

FA
CI

LIT
IE

S

CE
DA

R 
AV

E

RIVERSIDE AVE

N APPLE
AVE

CH
EM

IC
AL

BU
ILD

IN
G

FB
2

AP
PR

OX
 LI

MI
TS

 O
F

(N
) P

AV
EM

EN
T

LE
GE

ND

(N
) A

C 
PA

VE
ME

NT

NE
W

 C
ON

C 
PA

VE
ME

NT
 A

S 
NO

TE
D

2
C-

01
1

3
C-

01
1

4
C-

01
1

AP
PR

OX
 LI

MI
TS

 O
F

(N
) P

AV
EM

EN
T

GR
IN

D 
AN

D 
RE

PA
VE

(E
) A

C 
PA

VE
ME

NT
, 2

 IN
CH

ES

C
-1
21

PA
VI

NG
 P

LA
N

1"
 =

 4
0'

JB
M

C
S

G
T

32

0ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTIONCMJHB2023.10.27

OP
ER

AT
IO

NS
BU

ILD
IN

G

SH
EE

T 
KE

YN
OT

ES
1.

SI
DE

W
AL

K 
PE

R 
C-

12
0 S

HE
ET

 C
-0

10

2.
DR

IV
EW

AY
 P

ER
 C

-1
25

 S
HE

ET
 C

-0
10

3.
CO

NC
RE

TE
 C

RO
SS

 G
UT

TE
R 

PE
R 

DE
TA

IL 
C-

12
7 S

HE
ET

 C
-0

10

4.
RE

PL
AC

E 
CU

RB
 A

ND
 G

UT
TE

R 
PE

R 
CI

TY
 O

F 
RI

AL
 T

O 
ST

AN
DA

RD
DR

AW
IN

G 
SC

-2
00

1
2

1

9'
9' TY

P

3

PR
OT

EC
T 

IN
 P

LA
CE

EX
IS

TI
NG

 F
EN

CE
 U

NL
ES

S
NO

TE
D 

OT
HE

RE
W

IS
E

PR
OT

EC
T 

IN
 P

LA
CE

EX
IS

TI
NG

 C
ON

CR
ET

E 
FO

R
SL

ID
IN

G 
GA

TE
 T

RA
CK

MC
C 

E

MC
C 

F

3

RE
CO

VE
RY

PO
ND

S 
5&

6

FI
LT

ER
BU

ILD
IN

G 
1

RE
CO

VE
RY

PO
ND

S 
1-

4

4
4

Page 262 of 405

SRFerrier
Area Measurement
1,789.1 sf

SRFerrier
Callout
Approximate limits of requested repairs

SRFerrier
Callout
Increase in cost for providing new AC

SRFerrier
Text Box
Excavation footprint = 7.5'x236' = 1,770 sfAssumption is to replace 6" of fill material beneath AC roadway.  With no conflict to existing sludge line.1.5'(d) x 7.5' (w) x (236' (L) = 2655 cf/27cf = 98 CY for removal Asphalt for haul off = 7.5'(w) x 236' (l) x 6"= 0.5' (d) = 33 CYClass II base needed = 0.5' x 7.5' x 236' = 33 CY

SRFerrier
Dimension
Length to repair 236 LF

SRFerrier
Dimension
7'-6"

SRFerrier
Dimension
13'-0"

SRFerrier
Text Box
Grind/Overlay;  $2.05 * 1,770 SF = $3,628.5Updated Scope of New AC; $5.36 * 1,770 SF = $9,487.2Cost increase in AC paving scope = $5,858.7

SRFerrier
Callout
Actual Square Feet = 1,770 sf



GR
IN

D 
6'±

OV
ER

LA
Y 

TH
IC

KN
ES

S
(O

R 
AS

 S
PE

CI
FI

ED
BY

 T
HE

 E
NG

IN
EE

R)

0.1
'

(E
) O

R 
(N

) C
UR

B,
GU

TT
ER

/S
ID

EW
AL

K
AS

 S
HO

W
N 

ON
 P

LA
N

(E
) A

C 
SU

RF
AC

E

PR
OV

ID
E 

CO
LD

 P
LA

NE
AC

 S
UR

FA
CI

NG
 0.

2' 
MA

X.

(E
) B

AS
E

25
' M

AX

0.2
' M

AX

PR
OV

ID
E 

AC
 S

EC
TI

ON
(0

.2'
 M

AX
)

CO
NF

OR
M

PR
OV

ID
E 

CO
LD

 P
LA

NE
 A

C

TO
P 

OF
 (E

) A
C 

SU
RF

AC
E

TY
PI

C
AL

 E
D

G
E 

G
R

IN
D

IN
G

 D
ET

AI
L

SC
AL

E:
 N

TS

N
O

N
-F

R
EE

ZE
 Y

AR
D

 H
YD

R
AN

T
SC

AL
E:

 N
TS

4'-0" (MIN)

1'-
8"

 S
Q

2'- 4 1/2"

4"

CO
NC

RE
TE

 P
RO

TE
CT

IV
E 

BA
SE

VA
LV

E 
HO

US
IN

G

BURY DEPTH

1/2
" P

D(
2)

NO
N-

FR
EE

ZE
 H

OS
E 

BI
BB

FI
N 

GR
AD

E 
OR

PA
VE

ME
NT

CU
RB

 S
TO

P 
W

IT
H

VA
LV

E 
BO

X 
AN

D
CO

VE
R

PR
OV

ID
E 

2 C
F

DR
AI

N 
RO

CK
NO

TE
S:

1.
PR

OV
ID

E 
W

AR
NI

NG
 S

IG
N 

W
HE

N 
US

ED
 F

OR
 N

ON
-P

OT
AB

LE
 W

AT
ER

.

2.
PR

OV
ID

E 
HO

SE
 R

AC
K 

AT
 E

AC
H 

HO
SE

 B
IB

.

SC
AL

E:
 N

TS

AC
 C

U
R

B
SC

AL
E:

 N
TS

SE
E 

PL
AN

S
SH

O
U

LD
ER

SI
D

EW
AL

K

AC

5" 6"
1

1

L

C
U

R
B

SE
E 

PL
AN

S

SE
E 

PL
AN

S

SE
E 

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
SE

C
TI

O
N

 3
1 

30
 0

0 
-

EA
R

TH
W

O
R

K 
FO

R
SU

BG
R

AD
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

AG
G

R
EG

AT
E

BA
SE

C
O

M
PA

C
TE

D
SU

BG
R

AD
E

C
 S

YM
M

ET
R

IC
AL

FO
R

 C
O

VE
R

 O
R

 C
R

O
SS

 S
LO

PE
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

 S
EE

 P
LA

N

H
IG

H
 P

O
IN

T 
EL

AS
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 P
AV

IN
G

AN
D

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 D

W
G

S
U

N
LE

SS
 N

O
TE

D
O

TH
ER

W
IS

E

AG
G

R
EG

AT
E 

BA
SE

FI
N

IS
H

ED
G

R
AD

E

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 G

R
AD

E
SE

E 
PA

VI
N

G
AN

D
 G

R
AD

IN
G

PL
AN

S
3 

(M
IN

)

3 
(M

IN
)

FI
LL

 IN
 T

H
IC

KN
ES

S 
O

F 
AC

, B
AS

E,
 A

N
D

 S
U

BB
AS

E.

G
EO

TE
C

H
N

IC
AL

 R
EP

O
R

T,
 A

N
D

 L
O

C
AL

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

S.
C

O
O

R
D

IN
AT

E 
W

IT
H

 E
AR

TH
W

O
R

K 
SP

EC
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

,
B. C

.

A.
U

SE
 IN

 C
O

N
JU

N
C

TI
O

N
 W

IT
H

 D
ET

AI
LS

 C
-1

20
 A

N
D

 C
-1

28

C
-1

30
 N

O
TE

S 
TO

 D
ES

IG
N

ER
:

SE
E 

PL
AN

S

4'
-0

"

C
-1

28

C
-1

20

PA
IN

T 
W

H
IT

E,
 U

SI
N

G
R

EF
LE

C
TI

VE
 P

AI
N

T

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
SE

C
TI

O
N

AS
 IN

D
IC

AT
ED

3"
5"

3"

6"

N
O

TE
S:

1.
D

ET
AI

LS
 S

H
O

W
N

 A
R

E 
TY

PI
C

AL
 R

O
AD

 S
EC

TI
O

N
S

U
N

LE
SS

 N
O

TE
D

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E

2.
SE

E 
G

EN
ER

AL
 N

O
TE

S 
FO

R
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

C
-1

30

C
-5

13

C
-1

26
C

-6
27

C
-1

30
SC

AL
E:

 N
TS

SE
E 

PL
AN

S
SH

O
U

LD
ER

SI
D

EW
AL

K

AC

1

1

L

C
U

R
B

SE
E 

PL
AN

S

SE
E 

PL
AN

S

SE
E 

SP
EC

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
SE

C
TI

O
N

 3
1 

30
 0

0 
-

EA
R

TH
W

O
R

K 
FO

R
SU

BG
R

AD
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS

C
O

M
PA

C
TE

D
SU

BG
R

AD
E

C
 S

YM
M

ET
R

IC
AL

FO
R

 C
O

VE
R

 O
R

 C
R

O
SS

 S
LO

PE
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

 S
EE

 P
LA

N

H
IG

H
 P

O
IN

T 
EL

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

O
N

 P
AV

IN
G

 A
N

D
 G

R
AD

IN
G

D
W

G
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 N
O

TE
D

O
TH

ER
W

IS
E

FI
N

IS
H

ED
G

R
AD

E

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 G

R
AD

E
SE

E 
PA

VI
N

G
AN

D
 G

R
AD

IN
G

PL
AN

S
3 

(M
IN

)

3 
(M

IN
)

FI
LL

 IN
 T

H
IC

KN
ES

S 
O

F 
AC

, B
AS

E,
 A

N
D

 S
U

BB
AS

E.

G
EO

TE
C

H
N

IC
AL

 R
EP

O
R

T,
 A

N
D

 L
O

C
AL

 S
TA

N
D

AR
D

S.
C

O
O

R
D

IN
AT

E 
W

IT
H

 E
AR

TH
W

O
R

K 
SP

EC
IF

IC
AT

IO
N

,
B. C

.

A.
U

SE
 IN

 C
O

N
JU

N
C

TI
O

N
 W

IT
H

 D
ET

AI
LS

 C
-1

20
 A

N
D

 C
-1

28

C
-1

30
 N

O
TE

S 
TO

 D
ES

IG
N

ER
:

SE
E 

PL
AN

S

4'
-0

"

C
-1

28

C
-1

20

N
O

TE
S:

1.
D

ET
AI

LS
 S

H
O

W
N

 A
R

E 
TY

PI
C

AL
 R

O
AD

 S
EC

TI
O

N
S

U
N

LE
SS

 N
O

TE
D

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E

2.
SE

E 
G

EN
ER

AL
 N

O
TE

S 
FO

R
 D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
R

EQ
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

C
-1

30
C

-1
31

AC
 R

O
AD

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 (F

O
R

 U
SE

W
IT

H
IN

 W
VW

D
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
)

AC
 R

O
AD

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 (F

O
R

 U
SE

 W
IT

H
IN

LI
N

D
EN

 A
VE

 A
N

D
 W

. V
IA

 B
EL

LO
A 

R
O

W
)

4"
 M

IN
 O

R
 1

" T
H

IC
KE

R
 T

H
AN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
, W

H
IC

H
EV

ER
 IS

G
R

EA
TE

R
, 1

2"
 M

AX

2"
 (C

S0
2)

TY
PI

C
AL

 P
AV

IN
G

 C
O

N
FO

R
M

TO
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 P
AV

EM
EN

T
SC

AL
E:

 N
TS

C
-5

12

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
:

Sc
al

e:

Re
vis

io
n:

Dr
aw

in
g 

No
.Sh

ee
t:

Tit
leClient/Project

Pe
rm

it/
Se

al

Consultant

Ds
gn

.
C

hk
d.

YY
YY

.M
M

.D
D

Dw
n.

The Contractor shall verify and be responsible for all dimensions. DO NOT scale the
drawing - any errors or omissions shall be reported to Stantec without delay.
The Copyrights to all designs and drawings are the property of Stantec. Reproduction
or use for any purpose other than that authorized by Stantec is forbidden.

of

Fil
e 

Na
m

e:
 31
68

7C
-0

09
-0

10
-0

11

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

HE
ET

 - 
AN

SI 
D

c:\users\vipawar\accdocs\stantec consulting\184031687_roemer_eff_exp\project files\01_wip\04_civil\sheet_files\31687c-009-010-011
2023.06.23 4:34:38 PM

IssuedByAppdYYYY.MM.DDRevisionByAppdYYYY.MM.DD

Tel:
www.stantec.com

Stantec
300 North Lake Avenue, Suite 400
Pasadena, California 91101-1469

+1.626.422.0829

ABCD

1
2

3
4

5

WEST VALLEY WATER
DISTRICT

Roemer WFF Expansion
Project

Rialto, California

18
40

31
68

7

29
3

20
23

.0
6.

26
SE

N
SE

N
G

T

C
-0
11

C
IV

IL
DE

TA
ILS

 - 
X

AS
 N

O
TE

D

23

090% EARLY WORKS FOR REVIEWCMJBH2023.06.26

Page 263 of 405

SRFerrier
Rectangle



X

E
E

E E E E E

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

E

P
O
N
D
 
N
O
.
 
2

M
E
M
B
R
A
N
E

B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G

G
A
C
 
B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G

S
L
U
D
G
E

P
O
N
D
 
N
O
.
 
3

I
N
F
L
U
E
N
T
 
B
L
E
N
D
I
N
G

P
O
N
D
 
N
O
.
 
1

2
0
"
 
L
C

D
I
S
C
H
A
R
G
E

3
0
"
 
S
W
P

S
U
P
P
L
Y

5:1

5:1

C L

3
:
1

3
:
1

8
3

2

C
H
E
M
I
C
A
L

B
U
I
L
D
I
N
G

C L

C L

C L

C L

C L

C L

C L

C LC L

C L

6
.
0
'

1
3
.
8
3
'

2.0'

6.83'

44.50'

8
58
5

8
6

5.00'

2.83'

1
.
0
'

7
2
"
 
C
H
A
I
N
 
L
I
N
K

F
E
N
C
E

O
R
N
A
M
E
N
T
A
L

F
E
N
C
E
 
P
A
R
A
L
E
L
L

T
O
 
P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y
 
L
I
N
ED

C
-
1
3

E

E

T T T T T T T T

20.0'

5.0'

1
2
"
 
B
A
S
I
N

D
R
A
I
N

3
0
"

E
F
F
L
U
E
N
T

S
E
E
 
S
H
E
E
T
 
P
-
8
 
F
O
R

P
I
P
I
N
G
 
D
E
T
A
I
L
S

1
0
"
 
S
L
U
D
G
E

D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N

1
6
"
 
E
N
C
A
S
E
M
E
N
T

P
I
P
E
,
 
S
E
E
 
S
H
E
E
T
 
P
-
8

1
2
"
 
D
E
C
A
N
T

2
9
.
0
'

1
2
"
 
G
O
L
F

C
O
U
R
S
E

S
U
P
P
L
Y

1.33'

4
2
.
8
8
'

C
C
-
1
3

5
'
-
0
"

S
I
D
E
W
A
L
K

1
0
"
 
S
L
U
D
G
E

D
I
S
T
R
I
B
U
T
I
O
N

R1
0.
00
'

1
2
.
0
'

1
4
'
 
D
O
U
B
L
E

L
E
A
F
 
G
A
T
E

G
R
A
D
E
 
T
O
 
D
R
A
I
N

H
C
-
1
3

C
O

(
T
Y
P
)

C
H
A
I
N
 
L
I
N
K
 
F
E
N
C
E

C
O
N
N
E
C
T
 
T
O
 
P
I
L
A
S
T
E
R

(
F
U
T
U
R
E
)

(
F
U
T
U
R
E
)

P
R
E
T
R
E
A
T
M
E
N
T

F
A
C
I
L
I
T
I
E
S

2
0
.
0
'

 R
25
.0
'

 R
25
.0
'

12.0'

1
4
'
 
D
O
U
B
L
E

L
E
A
F
 
G
A
T
E

2
"
 
S
U
M
P
 
P
U
M
P

D
I
S
C
H
A
R
G
E

D
A
Y
L
I
G
H
T
 
I
N
 
P
O
N
D

I
N
V
 
E
L
 
1
5
8
3
.
0
0

1
4
'
 
D
O
U
B
L
E

L
E
A
F
 
G
A
T
E

1
2
.
0
'

4
5
°
 
B
E
N
D
 
(
T
Y
P
)

20.00'

2
"
 
P
W

S
U
P
P
L
Y

2
"
 
N
P
W

S
U
P
P
L
Y

6
"
 
N
P
W

S
U
P
P
L
Y

5
0
.
0
0
'

35.00'

6
.
1
7
'

2
4
"
 
F
U
T
U
R
E
 
H
I
G
H

S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
D
I
S
C
H
A
R
G
E

W
/
 
B
F

C
/
L
 
E
L
 
1
5
7
8
.
0
0

C
O

20
' 
R

(T
YP
)

12.5'14.0'

2
4
"
 
O
V
E
R
F
L
O
W

3
0
.
0
0
'

G
R
A
D
I
N
G

L
I
M
I
T
S

8
"
 
F
W
 
S
U
P
P
L
Y

20.0'
D
E
P
E
N
D
-
O
-
L
O
K

F
L
A
N
G
E
D
 
H
E
A
D

C
/
L
 
E
L
 
1
5
7
9
.
7
5

2
0
"
 
M
E
M
B
R
A
N
E

I
N
F
L
U
E
N
T

2
4
"
 
O
V
E
R
F
L
O
W

GR
AD
E 
TO
 D
RA
IN

8
5
.
2
5

8
6
.
0

8
6
.
0

85

8
4 8
5

8
5

S
L
O
P
E

S
T
D
 
M
H

1
2
"
 
B
Y
P
A
S
S

2
0
.
0
0
'

8
5
.
2
5

1
0
.
0
0
'

5
.
0
0
'

1
5
.
0
0
'

8
5
.
3
3

85

8
5

8
5

8
4

9'

C
/
L
 
E
L
 
1
5
7
8
.
0
0

3
5
.
0
0
'

S
C
E
 
S
W
I
T
C
H

P
A
D

1

1

11

17.00±
(NTS)

D5040

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
O
.

O
F

S
H
E
E
T

D
E
S
I
G
N
E
D
:

D
A
T
E
:

A
P
P
R
O
V
E
D
:

C
H
E
C
K
E
D
:

D
E
T
A
I
L
E
D
:

REVISIONS AND RECORD OF ISSUE

SAVED:

DWG VER #:

CYGNET ID:

DATE

USER: 

PLOTTED: 

SW: 

APP

XREF3 ID:

XREF2 ID:

XREF1 ID:

NO.CK BY

XREF5 ID:

XREF4 ID:
Irvine, California

R

FD133077

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
OLIVER P. ROEMER

WATER FILTRATION FACILITIES EXPANSION

GENERAL LAYOUT
SHEET 2 OF 2

C
-
4

1
1

1
0
6

1
3
3
0
7
7

M
P
S
,
G
S
B

S
M
c
C

W
L
K

S
N
F

1
1
-
4
-
0
3

P-9.dwg
19503F.DWG
Survey.dwg
Existing Piping.dwg
Civil Site Plan.dwg

7.5

RIV10067C-04.dwg

03/10/06RECORD DRAWINGS1JBASSNF

133077-2000-WTUP-C-H00006GVJ
RIV10067, 3/9/2006 9:56:23 AM

GLA36511, 3/7/2006 11:34:18 AM

M
A
T
C
H
L
I
N
E
 
S
E
E
 
S
H
E
E
T
 
C
-
3

4
0
'

2
0
'

1
0
'

2
0
'

0

1
"
=
2
0
'

9 E
-
3

T
R
A
N
S
F
O
R
M
E
R

P
A
D
S

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

F E D

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

1

1

D
a
t
e
/
T
i
m
e

THIS DRAWING WAS

ORIGINALLY APPROVED

FOR CONSTRUCTION BY

ANTHONY ARAIZA ON

1/15/04 AND SEALED BY

STEVE N. FOELLMI ON

11/5/03 A LICENSED

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

IN THE STATE OF

CALIFORNIA C050141

Page 264 of 405

SRFerrier
Length Measurement
4'-0"



U
n
i
t
 
P
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
D
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
 
 
 

U
n
i
t
s

S
l
u
d
g
e
 
P
o
n
d
s

 
 
 
S
l
u
d
g
e
 
P
o
n
d
 
N
o
.
 
1
 
&
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
m
e
n
s
i
o
n
s

P
a
c
k
a
g
e
 
C
A
C
/
F
i
l
t
e
r
 
U
n
i
t
s
 
(
e
a
c
h
 
u
n
i
t
)

 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
U
n
i
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
F
l
o
w
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
.
4

 
 
 
C
o
n
t
a
c
t
 
C
l
a
r
i
f
i
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
d
 
A
r
e
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
L
o
a
d
i
n
g
 
R
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
/
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
c
k
w
a
s
h
 
F
l
o
w
 
R
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
/
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
c
k
w
a
s
h
 
D
u
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
F
i
l
t
e
r

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
n
t
h
r
a
c
i
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
i
n
c
h
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
1
8

U
n
i
t
 
P
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
D
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
 
 
 

U
n
i
t
s

P
l
a
n
t
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 

 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
F
l
o
w
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
4
 
 

 
 
 
A
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
F
l
o
w
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
2

 
 
 
A
s
s
u
m
e
d
 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 
F
l
o
w
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
.
4

I
n
f
l
u
e
n
t
 
B
l
e
n
d
i
n
g
 
P
o
n
d
 
N
o
.
 
2

L
y
t
l
e
 
C
r
e
e
k
 
P
u
m
p
i
n
g
 
S
t
a
t
i
o
n

 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
,
 
f
i
r
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
0

F
l
o
w
 
S
p
l
i
t
t
i
n
g
 
S
t
r
u
c
t
u
r
e

 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
6

 
 
 
W
e
i
r
 
L
e
n
g
t
h
 
(
e
a
c
h
 
c
h
a
m
b
e
r
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

 
 
 
W
e
i
r
 
E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
1
5
9
4
.
5
0

T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
a
i
n
s
 
N
o
s
.
 
1
,
2
,
&
 
3

 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
i
g
h
 
R
a
t
e
 
C
o
n
v
e
n
t
i
o
n
a
l
 

 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
a
c
h
 
T
r
a
i
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
6

 
 
 
F
l
o
c
c
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
B
a
s
i
n
s
 
(
e
a
c
h
 
t
r
a
i
n
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
B
a
s
i
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
a
g
e
s
 
p
e
r
 
B
a
s
i
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
m
e
n
s
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
e
n
g
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
d
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
d
e
 
W
a
l
l
 
D
e
p
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
a
r
i
e
s
,
 
1
7
.
5
 
-
 
1
9
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
t
e
n
t
i
o
n
 
T
i
m
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
 
 
 
2
0
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
F
l
o
c
c
u
l
a
t
o
r
 
G
 
R
a
n
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
s
e
c
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
-
5
0
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
F
l
o
c
c
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
M
i
x
e
r
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
e
r
t
i
c
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
p
e
e
d
 
A
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
a
r
 
r
e
d
u
c
e
r
 
w
i
t
h
 
A
F
D

 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
F
l
o
o
r
 
E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
V
a
r
i
e
s
,
 
1
5
6
4
.
0
0
-
1
5
6
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
S
i
d
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
D
e
p
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
a
l
l
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
I
n
f
l
u
e
n
t
 
P
i
p
e
l
i
n
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
a
m
e
t
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
i
n
c
h
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
x
i
m
u
m
 
F
l
o
w
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
V
e
l
o
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
p
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
e
m
e
n
t
 
m
o
r
t
a
r
 
l
i
n
e
d
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
o
a
t
e
d
 
s
t
e
e
l
 
p
i
p
e

 
 
 
O
u
t
l
e
t
 
P
i
p
e
l
i
n
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
a
m
e
t
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
i
n
c
h
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
x
i
m
u
m
 
F
l
o
w
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
V
e
l
o
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
p
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
5
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
e
m
e
n
t
 
m
o
r
t
a
r
 
l
i
n
e
d
 
a
n
d

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c
o
a
t
e
d
 
s
t
e
e
l
 
p
i
p
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
F
l
o
w
 
P
a
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
e
r
p
e
n
t
i
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
m
p
e
l
l
e
r
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
x
i
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
p
e
e
d
 
R
a
n
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
 
-
 
1
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
i
x
e
r
s
 
p
e
r
 
S
t
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
i
x
e
r
 
S
i
z
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
s
t
 
S
t
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
.
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
n
d
 
S
t
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
.
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
r
d
 
S
t
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
.
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
c
k
w
a
s
h
 
D
u
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
i
n
u
t
e
s
 
 
 
 
1
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
c
k
w
a
s
h
 
F
l
o
w
 
R
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
/
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
L
o
a
d
i
n
g
 
R
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
/
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
e
d
 
A
r
e
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
F
i
l
t
e
r
 
M
e
d
i
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
l
i
c
a
 
S
a
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
i
n
c
h
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
r
a
v
e
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
i
n
c
h
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
5

U
V
 
D
i
s
i
n
f
e
c
t
i
o
n
 
S
y
s
t
e
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
F
l
o
w

 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
R
e
a
c
t
o
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 
U
V
 
T
r
a
n
s
m
i
t
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
p
e
r
c
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
o
t
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
a
c
h
 
R
e
a
c
t
o
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 
C
a
l
c
u
l
a
t
e
d
 
U
V
 
D
o
s
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
j
/
c
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
x
i
m
u
m
 
H
e
a
d
l
o
s
s
 
T
h
r
o
u
g
h
 
R
e
a
c
t
o
r
 
 
i
n
c
h
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
1
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
a
l
l
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
5
0
,
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
m
e
n
s
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
e
n
g
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
7
.
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
d
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
D
e
p
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
P
u
m
p
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
s
t
-
i
n
-
p
l
a
c
e
 
c
o
n
c
r
e
t
e

U
V
 
R
e
c
o
v
e
r
y
 
T
a
n
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
e
r
t
i
c
a
l
 
t
u
r
b
i
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
e
a
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
o
f
 
R
o
w
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
d
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
e
n
g
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
B
a
s
i
n
 
C
o
v
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
R
P
,
 
f
l
a
t

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
L
o
a
d
i
n
g
 
R
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
/
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
S
e
t
t
l
i
n
g
 
A
r
e
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
s
f
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
5
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
R
e
s
i
d
u
a
l
 
C
o
l
l
e
c
t
o
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
c
l
i
n
e
d
 
P
l
a
t
e
 
S
e
t
t
l
e
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
S
i
d
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
D
e
p
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
d
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1

 
 
 
S
e
d
i
m
e
n
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
B
a
s
i
n
s
 
(
e
a
c
h
 
t
r
a
i
n
)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
d
e
 
W
a
l
l
 
D
e
p
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
a
r
i
e
s
,
 
1
9
 
t
o
 
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
e
n
g
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
e
s
i
g
n
 
C
a
p
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
m
g
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
.
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
n
c
l
i
n
e
d
 
P
l
a
t
e
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
m
e
n
s
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
e
r
t
i
c
a
l
 
T
u
r
b
i
n
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
1
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
R
a
t
e
d
 
H
e
a
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5

 
 
 
P
u
m
p
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
 
W
/
A
F
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

 
 
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5

 
 
 
R
a
t
e
d
 
H
e
a
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4

 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
,
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
5
0
0

 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
e
r
t
i
c
a
l
 
T
u
r
b
i
n
e

I
n
f
l
u
e
n
t
 
P
u
m
p
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
e
n
g
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
d
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
6
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
d
e
 
S
l
o
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
:
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
D
e
p
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
F
l
o
o
r
 
E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
v
a
r
i
e
s
,
 
1
5
7
8
.
5
0
-
1
5
7
9
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
F
l
o
o
r
 
E
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
l
e
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
v
a
r
i
e
s
,
 
1
5
7
8
.
5
0
-
1
5
7
9
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
i
d
e
 
S
l
o
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
:
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
f
f
e
c
t
i
v
e
 
D
e
p
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
i
d
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
e
n
g
t
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
5

 
 
 
S
l
u
d
g
e
 
P
o
n
d
 
N
o
.
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
D
i
m
e
n
s
i
o
n
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
6
0
0

 
 
 
A
l
u
m
i
n
u
m
 
C
h
e
m
i
c
a
l
 
F
e
e
d
 
S
y
s
t
e
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
P
u
m
p
s

 
 
 
P
o
l
y
m
e
r
 
C
h
e
m
i
c
a
l
 
F
e
e
d
 
S
y
s
t
e
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
o
r
a
g
e
 
T
a
n
k

C
h
e
m
i
c
a
l
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
C
r
i
t
e
r
i
a

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
L
a
r
g
e
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
D
r
i
v
e
n
 
D
i
a
p
h
r
a
g
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
l
e
n
o
i
d
 
D
r
i
v
e
n
 
D
i
a
p
h
r
a
g
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
S
m
a
l
l
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
4
4
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
o
r
a
g
e
 
T
a
n
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
.
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
S
m
a
l
l
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
P
o
l
y
m
e
r
 
F
e
e
d
e
r
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
L
a
r
g
e
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
9
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
B
u
l
k
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
S
o
d
i
u
m
 
H
y
d
r
o
x
i
d
e
 
C
h
e
m
i
c
a
l
 
F
e
e
d
 
S
y
s
t
e
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
P
u
m
p
s

 
 
 
 
 
 
S
t
o
r
a
g
e
 
T
a
n
k

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
a
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
D
a
y
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
g
n
e
t
i
c
 
D
r
i
v
e
,
 
C
e
n
t
r
i
f
u
g
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
D
r
i
v
e
n
 
D
i
a
p
h
r
a
g
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
L
a
r
g
e
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
o
l
e
n
o
i
d
 
D
r
i
v
e
n
 
D
i
a
p
h
r
a
g
m

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
.
8
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
(
S
m
a
l
l
)
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

P
r
e
t
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
F
a
c
i
l
i
t
i
e
s

T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
T
r
a
i
n
s
 
N
o
s
.
 
1
,
2
,
&
 
3
 
(
C
o
n
t
i
n
u
e
d
)

U
n
i
t
 
P
r
o
c
e
s
s
 
D
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n
 
 
 

U
n
i
t
s

G
A
C
 
I
N
F
L
U
E
N
T
 
P
U
M
P
S

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
u
m
b
e
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
y
p
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
o
r
i
z
o
n
t
a
l
 
S
p
l
i
t
 
C
a
s
e

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
a
t
e
d
 
C
a
p
a
c
i
t
y
,
 
E
a
c
h
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
p
m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
a
t
e
d
 
H
e
a
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
f
e
e
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
o
t
o
r
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
h
p
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0

D5040

P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 
N
O
.

O
F

S
H
E
E
T

D
E
S
I
G
N
E
D
:

D
A
T
E
:

A
P
P
R
O
V
E
D
:

C
H
E
C
K
E
D
:

D
E
T
A
I
L
E
D
:

REVISIONS AND RECORD OF ISSUE

SAVED:

DWG VER #:

CYGNET ID:

DATE

USER: 

PLOTTED: 

SW: 

APP

XREF3 ID:

XREF2 ID:

XREF1 ID:

NO.CK BY

XREF5 ID:

XREF4 ID:
Irvine, California

R

FD133077

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
OLIVER P. ROEMER

WATER FILTRATION FACILITIES EXPANSION

DESIGN CRITERIA

G
-
3

3
1
0
6

1
3
3
0
7
7

G
S
B

T
V
L

W
L
K

S
N
F

9
-
2
2
-
0
3

7.1

GLA36511G-3.DWG

03/10/06RECORD DRAWING

133077-3000-C-H00005TB2
GLA36511, 3/7/2006 3:09:29 PM

GLA36511, 3/7/2006 10:59:55 AM

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DRAWING WAS

ORIGINALLY APPROVED

FOR CONSTRUCTION BY

ANTHONY ARAIZA ON

1/15/04 AND SEALED BY

STEVE N. FOELLMI ON

1/15/04 A LICENSED

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

IN THE STATE OF

CALIFORNIA C050141

Page 265 of 405

SRFerrier
Rectangle

SRFerrier
Highlight
Sludge Pond No. 3

SRFerrier
Highlight
1578.50-1579.50



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

September 5, 2024 

 

Paul Hermann 

Water Market Leader 

GHD 

320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92618 

 

Shah Nawaz 

Senior Engineer 

West Valley Water District 

855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 

 

RE: Remove existing asphalt at W Via Bello Dr. to provide new 3-inch-thick asphalt cap on existing subgrade & 

increase in grind and overlay scope at N Linden Ave.  

 

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please review the following requested pricing for PCL Construction to facilitate the removal of existing Asphalt 

Concrete (AC) at W Via Bello Drive to allow for its potential replacement with 3-inches of a new AC cap and an increase 

in the grind and overlay scope at N Linden Ave. This pricing was requested by WVWD in efforts to reach a consensus 

between WVWD and the City of Rialto regarding the AC repair scope following the installation of the 30-inch water main 

within the City’s jurisdiction.  W Via Bello’s proposed 3-inch AC cap would be provided on existing subgrade composed of 

a combination of native and aggregate base materials upon the removal of the roadways existing AC.  The increase in 

grind and overlay at N Linden Ave has been included in this request to meet the City’s criteria for rehabilitation of the 

roadway subsequent to the water mains installation.  The quantities and corresponding cost provided within this Change 

Request are additional to that of the Prime Contract and Change Order No.23, which formalized the additional grind and 

cap scope at Linden Ave due to the water mains adjusted alignment into the roadway.  Stantec has evaluated the 

proposed AC replacement and has determined it to be an acceptable product in efforts to reach an agreement between 

WVWD and the City of Rialto. Their determination of this replacement meets the Prime Contracts warranty period for 

new pavement of 1-year.  

If the City of Rialto and WVWD conclude to proceed with the aforementioned 3-inch AC replacement at W Via 

Bello Dr. and increased grind and overlay scope at N Linden Ave, the scope provided herewithin would supersede the 

previous Contract scope and executed Change Order No. 23.  The new scope would incorporate the agreed upon pricing 

currently established in a credited amount to provide this change requests proposed AC repair’s at W Via Bello Drive and 

increase in grind and overlay at N Linden Ave.  Please review this change request and let us know if there are any 

questions that need to be addressed before WVWD’s meeting with the City of Rialto regarding the roadways final 

rehabilitation.   

 

 

Page 266 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 

Project Manager 

kgoetz@pcl.com 

  

 

Page 267 of 405



PCO # 0044

DATE: 9/5/24

ESTIMATOR: SF

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                      

EQUIPMENT -$                      

MATERIALS -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 18,938.10$        

SUBTOTAL 18,938.10$        

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                  

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                      

MATERIALS 15% -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 946.91$             

BOND ON DIRECT WORK 0% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 946.91$             

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 19,885.01$        

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 19,885.01$  

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 19,885$       

DESCRIPTION: W Via Bello Dr. - Remove Existing AC to Replace with 3" of new AC 

N Linden Ave. - Additional Grind and Overlay Requested by the City of Rialto

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX #044 - Potential AC Rehabilitation at W Via Bello Dr. and N Linden Ave.

Page 268 of 405



P
C

O
 #

0
0
4
4

D
A

T
E

0
9
/0

5
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
S

T
O

T
A

L
L

a
b

o
r 

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

M
H

/U
N

IT
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

N
A

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

N
A

V
e
n

d
o

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
A

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

S
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

W
 V

ia
 B

e
ll
o

 D
r.

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

F
e
rr

e
ir
a
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 -

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
2
-i
n
c
h
 A

C
 C

a
p
 1

/2
 s

tr
e
e
t 
w

id
th

2
9

,4
3

6
.8

7
5

S
F

3
.5

3
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

0
3

,9
1

2
.1

7
$

  
  

  

F
e
rr

e
ir
a
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 -

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
B

a
s
e
 P

a
v
e
 a

t 
W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 T
re

n
c
h
 Z

o
n
e
 

1
2

,6
7

7
.0

0
S

F
4

.1
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

5
1

,9
7

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

F
e
rr

e
ir
a
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 -

 C
O

#
 2

3
 -

 2
-i
n
c
h
 A

C
 C

a
p
 1

/2
 s

tr
e
e
t 
w

id
th

 
2

9
,4

3
6

.8
7

5
S

F
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

0
3

,9
1

2
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 T

o
ta

l 
fo

r 
A

C
 R

e
p
a
ir
 a

t 
W

 V
ia

 B
e
llo

 D
r.

 
1

.0
0

0
L

S
2

5
9

,8
0

0
.0

4
$

  
  

  

F
e
rr

e
ir
a
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 -

 A
ll 

A
m

e
ri
c
a
n
 A

s
p
h
a
lt
 P

ri
c
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 3

" 
A

C
 C

a
p
 

5
8

,8
7

4
.0

0
S

F
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
8

4
,9

8
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 

C
o
s
t 
D

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 A

C
 G

ri
n
d
 &

 O
v
e
rl
a
y
 t
o
 3

" 
N

e
w

 A
C

 
1

.0
L

S
2

5
,1

7
9

.5
8

$
  

  
  

  

C
re

d
it
 f
o
r 

D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 A

c
tu

a
l 
($

1
0
3
,9

1
2
.1

7
) 

v
s
 C

O
 (

$
1
1
8
,0

5
7
.3

2
)

(1
.0

)
L

S
(1

4
,1

4
5

)
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
C

o
s
t 
to

 P
ro

v
id

e
 3

" 
A

C
 a

t 
W

 V
ia

 B
e
llo

 -
 A

d
d
e
d
 C

o
s
t 
F

ro
m

 P
re

v
io

u
s
 A

g
re

e
d
 $

 a
m

o
u
n
ts

 
1

.0
L

S
1

1
,0

3
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
1

,0
3

4
.4

3
$

  
  

  

L
in

d
e
n

 A
v
e
. 
G

ri
n

d
 &

 C
a
p

 

F
e
rr

e
ir
a
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 -

 C
O

#
2
3
 G

ri
n
d
 &

 O
v
e
rl
a
y
 

4
,5

6
1

.0
S

F
3

.5
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
6

,1
0

0
.3

3
$

  
  

  
  

C
it
y
 o

f 
R

ia
lt
o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 s

q
u
a
re

 f
o
o
ta

g
e
 f
o
r 

g
ri
n
d
 &

 o
v
e
rl
a
y

6
,8

0
0

.0
S

F
3

.5
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

2
4

,0
0

4
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
C

o
s
t 
to

 P
ro

v
id

e
 g

ri
n
d
 &

 o
v
e
rl
a
y
 p

e
r 

th
e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
R

ia
lt
o
 

1
.0

L
S

7
,9

0
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
7

,9
0

3
.6

7
$

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 -
 N

A
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

1
8
,9

3
8

$
  
  
  
  

1
8
,9

3
8

$
  
  
  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

O
T

H
E

R
 I
T

E
M

S
5
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

L
A

B
O

R
2
5
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

9
4
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L
S

 W
IT

H
 M

A
R

K
U

P
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

1
9
,8

8
5

$
  
  
  
  

1
9
,8

8
5

$
  
  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o
te

s
:

  
  
  
  
  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  
  
 E

Q
U

IP
  
  
 S

.T
. 
&

 S
.*

M
A

N
H

O
U

R
S

  
  
 A

M
O

U
N

T

Page 269 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

October 11, 2024 

 

Paul Hermann 

Water Market Leader 

GHD 

320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92618 

 

Shah Nawaz 

Senior Engineer 

West Valley Water District 

855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 

 

RE: Additional Efforts to Demolish and Replace Unforeseen Asphalt Thickness Between the Chemical Building and Pre-

Treatment Facility 

 

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please review the following change order request for our additional efforts required to demolish an unforeseen 

asphalt coating (AC) thickness of 12-inches for duct banks (DB) 06 and 05 between the Chemical Building and Pre-

Treatment Facility.  The 2006 record drawings reference sheet C-13 for typical paving section views of this area within 

the facility but was omitted from the drawing set.  Our assumptions at bid time, which align with the 30% bridging 

drawings and WVWD standard detail W-1, was 3-inches of AC Base Pavement.  As 12-inches of AC is not typical in the 

construction industry and materially differs from our assumptions at bid time, see below additional scopes of work 

performed to allow for the installation of our contract scope for DB-05 & DB-06.   

• Additional saw cut on the AC to strip the section without further damage to the existing AC beyond the 

DB’s trench zone. 

• Stripping after the second saw cut to allow for the AC’s removal. 

• Added trucking time and costs to allow for its removal. 

• Increase in square footage of AC demoed due to increase in thickness while stripping, requires 

additional base paving within trench zone. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 

Project Manager 

kgoetz@pcl.com 

  

 

Page 270 of 405



PCO # 0047

DATE: 10/11/24

ESTIMATOR: SF

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 2,605.68$          

EQUIPMENT 594.26$             

MATERIALS 1,808.95$          

SUBCONTRACTOR 3,591.00$          

SUBTOTAL 8,599.89$          

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 651.42$             

EQUIPMENT 20% 118.85$             

MATERIALS 15% 271.34$             

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 179.55$             

BOND ON DIRECT WORK 0% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 1,221.16$          

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 9,821.05$          

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 9,821.05$    

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 9,821.05$    

DESCRIPTION: Additional Efforts to Demolish and Replace Unforeseen Asphalt Thickness Between the Chemical Building and Pre-

Treatment Facility 

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX #047 - Additional Asphalt Thickness between Chemical Building and Pre-Treatment

Page 271 of 405



P
C

O
 #

0
0

4
7

D
A

T
E

1
0
/1

1
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
T

O
T

A
L

L
a

b
o

r 
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

T
+

M
 T

ic
k
e

ts
 d

a
te

d
 9

/1
7

/2
4

,9
/1

8
/2

4
 &

 9
/1

9
/2

4
 -

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
a

w
c
u

tt
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o

 o
f 

u
n

fo
re

s
e

e
n

 A
C

 t
h

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 f

o
r 

d
u

c
tb

a
n

k
 s

 0
5

 &
 0

6
 (

1
5

0
 L

F
) 

1
.0

L
S

2
8
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
8
.0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
2
,6

0
5
.6

8
2
,6

0
5
.6

8
$
  
  
  
  

2
,6

0
5
.6

8
$
  

  
  

  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

T
+

M
 T

ic
k
e

ts
 d

a
te

d
 9

/1
7

/2
4

,9
/1

8
/2

4
 &

 9
/1

9
/2

4
 -

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
a

w
c
u

tt
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
o

 o
f 

u
n

fo
re

s
e

e
n

 A
C

 t
h

ic
k
n

e
s
s
 f

o
r 

d
u

c
tb

a
n

k
 s

 0
5

 &
 0

6
 (

1
5

0
 L

F
) 

1
.0

L
S

$
5
9
4
.2

6
5
9
4
.2

6
$
  
  
  
  

 

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
e

rc
 R

e
n

ta
ls

 -
 3

6
" 

W
a

lk
 b

e
h

in
d

 s
a

w
 r

e
n

ta
l 
to

 e
x
p

e
d

it
e

 t
h

ic
k
 A

C
 d

e
m

o
 [

In
v
o

ic
e

#
 3

4
9

4
6

2
6

8
-0

0
1

]
1
.0

L
S

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
8
.9

5
$
  
  
  
  

 
7
0
8
.9

5
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
0
8
.9

5
$
  

  
  

  
  

 

R
u

b
a

lc
a

v
a

 T
ru

c
k
in

g
 -

 D
u

m
p

 F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
A

C
2
.0

E
A

3
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

 

R
u

b
a

lc
a

v
a

 T
ru

c
k
in

g
 -

 T
ru

c
k
 D

ri
v
e

rs
 

4
.0

H
R

1
2
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
5
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

 

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
a

rd
y
 &

 H
a

rp
e

r 
- 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
q

u
a

re
 f

o
o

ta
g

e
 o

f 
A

C
 d

e
m

o
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 A
C

 t
h

ic
k
n

e
s
s
.

3
4
2
.0

S
F

1
0
.5

0
$
  
  

  
  

  
 

3
,5

9
1
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
A

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
9

4
.2

6
$

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
2

,6
0

5
.6

8
$

  
  

1
,8

0
8

.9
5

$
  

  
3

,5
9

1
.0

0
$

  
  

  
4

,4
1

4
.6

3
$

  
  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0

%
1

1
8

.8
5

$
  

  
 

O
T

H
E

R
 I

T
E

M
S

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

L
A

B
O

R
2

5
%

6
5

1
.4

2
$

  
  

  
 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
2

7
1

.3
4

$
  

  
  

 
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%
1

7
9

.5
5

$
  

  
  

  
 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

7
1

3
.1

1
$

  
  

 
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
3

,2
5

7
.1

0
$

  
  

2
,0

8
0

.2
9

$
  

  
3

,7
7

1
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

9
,8

2
1

.0
5

$
  

  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
  

  
 S

.T
. 

&
 S

.*
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T

Page 272 of 405



 

 

 

 
 

For Item #3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 273 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

July 12, 2024 

 

Paul Hermann 

Water Market Leader 

GHD 

320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92618 

 

Shah Nawaz 

Senior Engineer 

West Valley Water District 

855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 

 

 

RE: Unforeseen 36-inch RCP Line Conflicting with UV Reroute and Retaining Wall.  - Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration 

Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project 

 

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request due to the cost impacts caused by an unforeseen 36” 

RCP concrete filled pipe during the UV Recovery reroute.  This unforeseen 36-inch line was discovered during excavation 

activities to facilitate the installation of the new UV reroute in preparation for the installation of the site retaining wall as 

shown in the Contract documents.  The Conformed Bridging documents and Record drawings provided at the time of 

proposal depict this line to be below the 30-inch Pond Effluent 1 line, as typically denoted by dashed lines.  The profile 

section for the UV recovery reroute shown in Bridging Document sheet C-104 section A, excludes showing this line 

entirely in its section view.  At the time of proposal, it was understood by the aforementioned documents that no 

demolition or removal was necessary to be performed on this 36” RCP line.  Furthermore, being an underground utility, 

the only way to confirm the effective depth of the line is through potholing or non-destructive utility investigations, such 

as Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR), which could only be done after the project was awarded to PCL. Until then, all 

information used to prepare PCL’s proposal was based on the information provided to PCL through the RFP documents. 

Therefore, we see this being characterized as a differing site condition supported by the following reasons. 

Once the 36-inch RCP pipe was identified, PCL notified the Owner of this unforeseen condition due to its preexisting 

location, to complete the installation of the UV Reroute, removal of the 36-inch line was required.  This was based on its 

conflicting location with the UV Reroute being excavated as well as the new retaining wall installation.  Therefore, the 

demolition of this line was required until removed beyond both the UV reroutes design routing and new retaining wall 

routing once verifying the line was abandoned with Stantec.  Upon completion of the 36-inch RCP lines demolition north 

of the UV reroute and retaining wall’s location, the abandoned 36-inch lines opening was capped with CMU blocks and 

provided a non-shrink grout layer to ensure no voids could be created within the opening of the remaining 36-inch RCP 

line.  The demolition and relocation of the 36-inch RCP line beyond the retaining wall’s constructable limits and 

temporary relocation was performed on a time and material basis.  The removed sections of 36-inch RCP resulted in two 

ten-foot sections of concrete filled 36-inch RCP pipe relocated to the facilities north lot currently being utilized as a 

construction laydown yard.  

Page 274 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

To allow for the removed sections site haul off and proper disposal, further demolition not yet performed is required 

utilizing a breaker attachment for a backhoe which has been priced and included in this Request for Change.   

Finally, in accordance with the Prime Contract’s section 4.2 – Differing Site Conditions, PCL respectfully and in 

good faith requests that the West Valley Water District accept this Change Request, as the General Contractor finds that 

the demolition and removal of 36-inch RCP pipe materially differ and could not have been discovered, or reasonably 

inferred, from the Contract Documents or a thorough inspection of the Project Site by the Design-Builder. The 

demolition and removal of this 36-inch RCP line will impact to the Contract pricing; therefore, it requires a Change order 

for the pricing adjustment. 

Enclosures: 

1.) Email notification – thread and attached documents. 

2.) Conformed Bridging Drawing – proposed 30% 

3.) T+M Tickets associated with the work 

4.) Supporting Change Order Pricing 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 

Project Manager 

kgoetz@pcl.com 

  

 

Page 275 of 405



PCO # 0031

DATE: 7/12/24

ESTIMATOR: SF

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 5,638$               

EQUIPMENT 3,763$               

MATERIALS 600$                  

SUBCONTRACTOR -$                      

SUBTOTAL 10,001$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 1,410$               

EQUIPMENT 20% 753$                  

MATERIALS 15% 90$                   

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% -$                      

BOND ON DIRECT WORK 0% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 2,252$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 12,253$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 12,253$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 12,253$       

DESCRIPTION:
Demolition and removal of an unforeseen abandoned 36-inch RCP line filled with concrete 

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX #031 - Demolition and Removal of Unforeseen 36-inch RCP line 

Page 276 of 405

AJuarez
Callout
Final negotiations between WVWD & PCL resulted in $6,126.50 final amount due



P
C

O
 #

0
0
3
1

D
A

T
E

0
7
/1

2
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
T

O
T

A
L

L
a

b
o

r 
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

T
+

M
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
L

a
b

o
r 

[R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 T
+

M
 t

ic
k
e

ts
 d

a
te

d
 5

/6
/2

4
, 

5
/7

/2
4

, 
5

/3
1

/2
4

 &
 6

/3
/2

4
]

1
.0

L
S

1
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
3
.0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

$
2
,9

7
4

2
,9

7
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  

2
,9

7
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  

D
e

m
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 f

ill
e

d
 3

6
" 

lin
e

; 
~

2
0

 L
F

/S
ili

c
a

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[L
a

b
o

re
r 

G
ro

u
p

 4
]

1
2
.0

H
R

1
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
.0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

$
8
4
.1

4
1
,0

0
9
.6

8
$
  
  
  

1
,0

0
9
.6

8
$
  
  
  

D
e

m
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 f

ill
e

d
 3

6
" 

lin
e

; 
~

2
0

 L
F

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[L
a

b
o

re
r 

F
o

re
m

a
n

]
4
.0

H
R

1
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
.0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

$
8
6
.5

8
3
4
6
.3

2
$
  
  
  
  
 

3
4
6
.3

2
$
  
  
  
  
 

D
e

m
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 f

ill
e

d
 3

6
" 

lin
e

; 
~

2
0

 L
F

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[O
p

e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p

 8
]

1
2
.0

H
R

1
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
.0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

$
1
0
9
.0

4
1
,3

0
8
.4

8
$
  
  
  

1
,3

0
8
.4

8
$
  
  
  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

T
+

M
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
[R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 T
+

M
 t

ic
k
e

ts
 d

a
te

d
 5

/6
/2

4
, 

5
/7

/2
4

, 
5

/3
1

/2
4

 &
 6

/3
/2

4
]

1
.0

L
S

 
1
,6

6
4
.5

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,6

6
4
.5

8
$
  
  
  

1
,6

6
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

J
o

h
n

 D
e

e
re

 3
1

0
G

 B
a

c
k
h

o
e

 [
D

E
E

R
]

1
2
.0

H
R

5
8
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
3
.2

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

7
0
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

U
n

it
e

d
 R

e
n

ta
ls

 -
 B

re
a

k
e

r 
fo

r 
d

e
m

o
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
re

te
 f

ill
e

d
 3

6
" 

lin
e

 (
L

S
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
is

 f
o

r 
2

-d
a

y
 r

e
n

ta
l)
 

1
.0

L
S

1
,3

9
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,3

9
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  

1
,3

9
5

$
  
  
  
  
  
 

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 

S
o

u
th

e
rn

 C
a

lif
o

rn
ia

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
- 

R
e

m
o

v
a

l 
o

f 
d

e
m

o
e

d
 3

6
" 

R
C

P
 l
in

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
re

te
 f

ill
 (

p
ri
c
in

g
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 h

a
u

l 
o

ff
 

fe
e

s
+

s
a

le
s
 t

a
x
) 

1
.0

E
A

$
6
0
0

6
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
 

6
0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r 
- 

N
A

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 

3
,7

6
3

$
  

  
  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
1

.0
  

  
  

  
  
 

5
,6

3
8

$
  

  
  
 

6
0

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

0
,0

0
1

$
  

  
 

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0

%
7

5
3

$
  

  
  

  
  

O
T

H
E

R
 I

T
E

M
S

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

L
A

B
O

R
2

5
%

1
,4

1
0

$
  

  
  
 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
9

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

4
,5

1
5

$
  

  
  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

7
,0

4
8

$
  

  
  
 

6
9

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

2
,2

5
3

$
  

  
 

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

 S
.T

. 
&

 S
.*

M
A

N
H

O
U

R
S

  
  

 A
M

O
U

N
T

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP

Page 277 of 405



PCL CONSTRUCTION INC.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110

Long Beach, CA 90806
Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com

July 12, 2024

Paul Hermann
Water Market Leader
GHD
320 Goddard Way Suite 200
Irvine, CA 92618

Shah Nawaz
West Valley Water District
855 W. Baseline P.O. Box 920
Rialto, CA 92377

Attn : Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz

RE: Ponds 5&6 Existing Slide Gate Concrete Demolition

Mr. Paul Herman,

Please accept the attached package as a Change Order Proposal to the Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Upgrades and 
Expansion Project. This pertains to the extra and unforeseen efforts to demolish the existing slide gates at ponds 5&6 for 
replacement. PCL Construction Inc. found that the gates were cast in place into the concrete channel and not simply 
bolted to the concrete. Partial sections of the slide gates were cast into the concrete channel which were not shown in 
the record drawings or existing equipment manuals.

Below is a summary of the pricing associated with this Change Order Proposal:

➢ Required material and equipment for demo of the slide gates cast into the concrete channel:
1) Demolition:

a. (1) Rotohammer
b. (1) Jackhammer 
c. (1) Generator
d. (1) Dust Collections System Attachments
e. (1) HEPA Vacuum
f. (1) Shop Vacuum 

2) For repair of channel after demo and removal of existing slide gates:
a. (1) Kit of Sika Armatec for exposed rebar
b. (8) kit of Sika Repair Mortar

➢ Labor associated with the demo:
1) All labor associated with demo cast in concrete existing slide gates and repair of concrete.

    

Page 278 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


PCL CONSTRUCTION INC.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110

Long Beach, CA 90806
Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com

Sincerely,

Kevin Goetz
Project Manager
kgoetz@pcl.com

Page 279 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 7/12/24

ESTIMATOR: KG

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 6,508$               

EQUIPMENT 840$                  

MATERIALS 766$                  

SUBCONTRACTOR -$                      

SUBTOTAL 8,113$               

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 1,627$               

EQUIPMENT 20% 168$                  

MATERIALS 15% 115$                  

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 1,910$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 10,023$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 10,023$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 10,023$       

DESCRIPTION:

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHARGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX# 032

Ponds 5&6 Existing Slide Gate Concrete Demo

Page 280 of 405

AJuarez
Callout
Final negotiations between WVWD & PCL resulted in $5,011.5 final amount due



C
R

X
3

2
 -

 P
o

n
d

s
 5

&
6

 E
x

is
ti

n
g

 S
li

d
e

 G
a

te
 C

o
n

c
re

te
 D

e
m

o
D

A
T

E
0

7
/1

2
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
T

O
T

A
L

R
a
te

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

L
A

B
O

R

6
/1

8
/2

0
2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t
1
.0

L
S

8
2
6
.6

9
$
  
  
  
  

 

6
/1

9
/2

0
2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t
1
.0

L
S

1
,1

8
6

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/2

0
/2

0
2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t
1
.0

L
S

1
,1

3
2

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
/2

1
/2

0
2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t
1
.0

L
S

8
4
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
/2

5
/2

0
2

4
 T

&
M

 T
ic

k
e

t
1
.0

L
S

9
1
6

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
/2

/2
0

2
4

 T
&

M
 T

ic
k
e

t
1
.0

L
S

7
0
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
/3

/2
0

2
4

 T
&

M
 T

ic
k
e

t
1
.0

L
S

8
9
8

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 &
 M

a
te

ri
a

l

R
o

to
h

a
m

m
e

r
2
6
.0

H
r

0
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
3

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

J
a

c
k
h

a
m

m
e

r
4
.0

d
a
y

6
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
6
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

G
e
n
e
ra

to
r

2
2
.0

H
r

5
.7

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
7

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

D
u
s
t 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
1

.0
0

W
e
e
k

4
9
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

H
E

P
A

 V
a
c
u
u
m

1
.0

0
W

e
e
k

1
2
1
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
1

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
h
o
p
 V

a
c
u
u
m

1
.0

0
W

e
e
k

2
7
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
2
7
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

V
e

n
d

o
r

S
ik

a
 A

rm
a
te

c
 &

 S
ik

a
 1

2
3
 r

e
p
a
ir
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 +
T

a
x

1
.0

L
S

7
6
5
.5

6
$
  
  
  
  

 

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r

T
O

T
A

L
 D

IR
E

C
T

 C
O

S
T

8
4

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
6

,5
0

8
$

  
  

  
 

7
6

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
8
,1

1
3

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0

%
1

6
8

$
  

  
  

  
  

O
T

H
E

R
 I

T
E

M
S

5
%

L
A

B
O

R
2

5
%

1
,6

2
7

$
  

  
  

 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
1

5
%

1
1

5
$

  
  

  
  

  
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

1
,0

0
8

$
  

  
  

 
8

,1
3

5
$

  
  

  
 

8
8

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
1

0
,0

2
3

$
  

  
 

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
  

  
  

 E
Q

U
IP

M
A

N
H

O
U

R
S

  
  

 A
M

O
U

N
T

Page 281 of 405



 
August 1, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: Differing Site Conditions- Unforeseen conditions for the existing 30” (in.) & 18” (in.) storm drain pipe – Oliver P 
Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project – Request for Change  
 

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request, addressing the cost impacts associated with unforeseen 

conditions encountered during work on the existing 18” (in.)  and 30” (in.) corrugated metal storm drain pipes at the 

connection point for Catch Basin 255. During the potholing process, PCL identified a differing site condition involving the 

18” (in.)  storm drain intended for connection to the new catch basin. 

The 2006 record drawings inaccurately depict the location of the pipe and associated "Y" junction. According to the 2006 

record drawings, a "Y" configuration is shown at the termination of the 30” (in.)  storm drain pipe, which should split into 

both the 18” (in.)  and 30” (in.)  storm drain pipes. However, our potholing efforts revealed that instead of a "Y," there is 

a 45-degree turn of the 30” (in.)  storm drain towards the west. This turn is situated north of the location indicated in the 

record drawings. At this location, no 18” (in.)  storm drain pipe towards the east/north as soon in the drawings. 

Additional potholing was necessary to determine the location of the 18” (in.)  connection to the 30” (in.) storm drain 

pipe and correct connection point for the 18”(in.) storm drain into Catch Basin 255, as the actual site conditions did not 

match the record drawings. Ultimately, PCL located the tie-in point, which is approximately 5 to 10 feet south of the 

location shown for Catch Basin 255 in Stantec drawing C-142. Due to the catch basin being installed few feet south from 

its original location, there will be a 5’-10’ stick of pipe leftover that was purchased and will not be received back by the 

supplier. Inlet Elevation on Catch Basin 255 was modified due to existing location and elevation where 18” (in.). will tie 

into catch basin 255. 

To ensure a proper and constructible tie-in of the existing 18” (in.) corrugated metal pipe to the new location of Catch 

Basin 255, PCL will procure a new 18” (in.)  corrugated metal 45-degree bend fitting. This fitting is required to connect 

the existing pipe to the entry point of the catch basin accurately. 

Page 282 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


As communicated to GHD and West Valley Water District, and in accordance with the Prime Contract, PCL 
performed the work associated with this change on a time and material basis, as described below. 

 

 

Below is a summary of the pricing associated with the additional potholing & additional labor efforts related to 

unforeseen conditions encountered at the existing 18” (in.)  & 30” (in.) existing metal corrugated Storm Drain pipe where 

Catch Basin 255 will be connected to 18” existing storm drain pipe: 

A. Tracked on a Time and Material basis: 
 
-Additional Efforts performed by PCL 
 

1) PCL self-performed work consisted of Additional Potholing of 30” (in.)  and 18” (in.)  existing metal corrugated 
storm drain piping to ascertain the correct connection point of the 18” (in.)  storm drain pipe into Catch Basin 
255. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 283 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 8/1/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 1,155.60$               

EQUIPMENT 405.80$                  

MATERIALS 504$                       

SUBCONTRACTOR -$                            

SUBTOTAL 2,065.49$               

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 288.90$                  

EQUIPMENT 20% 81.16$                    

MATERIALS 15% 76$                         

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% -$                            

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 445.67$                  

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 2,511.16$               

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 2,511.16$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 2,511.16$       

DESCRIPTION:
Existing 18" Storm Drain Connection to Catch Basin Discrepancy 

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 038

Page 284 of 405



E
x

is
ti

n
g

 1
8

" 
S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
 C

o
n

n
e

c
ti

o
n

 t
o

 C
a

tc
h

 B
a

s
in

 D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c

y
 

D
A

T
E

0
8
/0

1
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a

b
o

r
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

(1
) 

L
a

b
o

re
rs

 G
ro

u
p

 #
4

  
  

  
  

6
.0

H
R

S
8
2
.2

7
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
9
3
.6

2
4
9
3
.6

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
9
3
.6

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

C
ra

n
e

 O
p

e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p

 #
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
.0

H
R

S
1
1
0
.3

3
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
6
1
.9

8
6
6
1
.9

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
6
1
.9

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

J
o

h
n

 D
e

e
re

 B
a

c
k
h

o
e

 3
1

0
G

4
.0

H
R

S
5
8
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
3
4
.4

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
2
3
4
.4

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

C
o

m
p

a
c
ti
o

n
 W

h
e

e
l

4
.0

H
R

S
1
2
.6

7
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
0
.6

8
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
0
.6

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

J
o

h
n

 D
e

e
re

 5
0

G
2
.0

H
R

S
6
0
.3

6
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
0
.7

2
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
0
.7

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

1
8

" 
C

o
rr

u
g

a
te

d
 M

e
ta

l 
4

5
 d

e
g

. 
B

e
n

d
 F

it
ti
n

g
1
.0

L
S

5
0
4
.0

9
$
  
  
  
  

 
5
0
4
.0

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
0
4
.0

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

4
0

5
.8

0
$

  
  

 
1

1
5

5
.6

0
1

,1
5

5
.6

0
$

  
  

  
 

5
0

4
.0

9
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,0
6

5
.4

9
$

  
  

  
  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2

0
%

8
1

.1
6

$
  

  
  

 
O

T
H

E
R

 I
T

E
M

S
5

%
L

A
B

O
R

2
5

%
2

8
8

.9
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
7

5
.6

1
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

4
8

6
.9

6
$

  
  

 
1

,4
4

4
.5

0
$

  
  

  
 

5
7

9
.7

0
$

  
  

  
  

  
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,5
1

1
.1

6
$

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L

IE
D

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

Page 285 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

October 9, 2024 

 

Paul Hermann 

Water Market Leader 

GHD 

320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92618 

 

Shah Nawaz 

Senior Engineer 

West Valley Water District 

855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 

 

RE: Abandon 6-inch Floor Drain inside R5-2 Reservoir Tank  

 

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please review the following change order requested to facilitate the abandonment of the existing 6-inch floor 

drain within the R5-2 reservoir tank.  This change order formalizes all additional costs required to allow for the 6-inch 

floor drains abandonment. As agreed upon and directed, the following scopes of work were executed which falls outside 

the original contract scope. 

• Cutting the 6-inch floor drain below the reservoir’s floor. 

• Filling the drain with slurry. 

• Welding a steel plate cap over the drain opening, similar to the 24-inch opening covers. 

• Application of epoxy primer on the 6-inch cap, followed by the final coating and holiday testing 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 

Project Manager 

kgoetz@pcl.com 

  

 

Page 286 of 405



PCO # 0050

DATE: 10/9/24

ESTIMATOR: SF

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                      

EQUIPMENT -$                      

MATERIALS 391.28$             

SUBCONTRACTOR 3,882.02$          

SUBTOTAL 4,273.30$          

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                  

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                      

MATERIALS 15% 58.69$               

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 194.10$             

BOND ON DIRECT WORK 0% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 252.79$             

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 4,526.09$          

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 4,526.09$    

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 4,526.09$    

DESCRIPTION:

Cost to abandon 6" floor drain at R5-2

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX #0050 - Abandon 6-inch Floor Drain at R5-2

Page 287 of 405



P
C

O
 #

0
0
5
0

D
A

T
E

1
0
/0

9
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L
S

T
O

T
A

L
L

a
b

o
r 

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

M
H

/U
N

IT
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

U
.P

.
T

O
T

A
L

N
A

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

N
A

V
e
n

d
o

r 
M

a
te

ri
a
ls

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

P
h
ill

ip
s
 S

te
e
l 
- 

C
a
p
 f
o
r 

F
lo

o
r 

D
ra

in
 

1
.0

E
A

$
3

9
1

.2
8

$
3

9
1

.2
8

3
9

1
.2

8
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

S
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

F
e
rr

e
ir
a
 C

o
a
s
ta

l 
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 -

 R
F

C
#
1
0
 -

 A
b
a
n
d
o
n
 6

" 
D

ra
in

 L
in

e
1

.0
L

S
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,4

6
5

.5
2

$
  

  
  

2
,4

6
5

.5
2

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
,4

6
5

.5
2

$
  

  
  

  

P
a
ra

d
a
 P

a
in

ti
n
g
 I
n
c
. 

1
.0

L
S

$
1

,4
1

6
.5

0
$

1
,4

1
6

.5
0

$
1

,4
1

6
.5

0

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

N
A

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
9
1
.2

8
$
  
  

 
3
,8

8
2
.0

2
$
  
  

 
4
,2

7
3
.3

0
$
  

 

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

O
T

H
E

R
 I
T

E
M

S
5
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

L
A

B
O

R
2
5
%

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5
%

5
8
.6

9
$
  
  
  

 
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5
%

1
9
4
.1

0
$
  
  
  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L
S

 W
IT

H
 M

A
R

K
U

P
-

$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
4
9
.9

7
$
  
  

 
4
,0

7
6
.1

2
$
  
  

 
4
,5

2
6
.0

9
$
  

 

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o
te

s
:

  
  
  
  
  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  
  
 E

Q
U

IP
  
  
 S

.T
. 
&

 S
.*

M
A

N
H

O
U

R
S

  
  
 A

M
O

U
N

T

Page 288 of 405



 

 

 

 
 

For Item #4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 289 of 405



 
July 10, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
 
RE: Differing Site Conditions- Additional labor efforts for additional isolation valves at Fire Water line location – Oliver 
P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project – Request for Change  
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request due to the cost impacts associated with additional potholing 

efforts necessitated by the addition of two isolation valves at the connection point near the pre-treatment area for the 

installation of the 6” Fire Water Line that will connect to the fire sprinkler system at Filter Building 2. Per GHD’s submittal 

response to submittal 464.3, at the Owner's request, two isolation valves and miscellaneous materials were procured 

and will be installed at the point of connection by the pre-treatment area to the existing 8” line. The addition of these 

valves was not due to any design requirements established by Stantec (Designing Consultant). 

 

Additionally, the area surrounding the pre-treatment facility and chemical building, where the fire line connection will 

occur, is highly congested. To accommodate the requested 8” and 6” valves, as specified in GHD's response to submittal 

464.3, additional assembly lengths are required. The existing 2006 West Valley Water District Record drawings do not 

fully represent the existing utilities in the area, including the exact location and elevation of each utility. Due to these 

additional efforts, PCL was able to gather the necessary information for the tie-in location of the 6” fire water line into 

the existing 8” flow water line and verify that there is enough space for the installation of the valves and line. After 

verification of the tie-in location, PCL installed the additional 6” and 8” valves required at the 6” Fire Water Line that will 

connect to the fire sprinkler system at Filter Building 2. PCL has issued a credit for the Backflow Device that was initially 

planned to be installed in the Pre-Treatment Area. 

As communicated to GHD and the West Valley Water District and in accordance with the Prime Contract, Section 4.2, 

PCL respectfully and in good faith requests that the West Valley Water District accept this Change Request for the work 

performed associated with this change on a time and material basis, as detailed below. 

Page 290 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/


 

 

Below is a summary of the pricing associated with the additional excavation and labor efforts related to the addition of 

the two isolation valves at the connection point for the fire water line: 

 

1) PCL self-performed work consisting of additional excavation due to the congested area at the proposed tie-in 
location. 

2) PCL self-performed complete installation of additional valves (6” and 8” Valves) at the proposed tie-in 
location. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 291 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 7/26/24

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 2,856.03$               

EQUIPMENT 1,446.36$               

MATERIALS 2,400$                    

SUBCONTRACTOR -$                            

SUBTOTAL 6,702.80$               

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 714.01$                  

EQUIPMENT 20% 289.27$                  

MATERIALS 15% 360$                       

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% -$                            

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 1,363.34$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 8,066.14$               

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 8,066.14$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 8,066.14$       

DESCRIPTION:
Fire Water Tie-in at Pre-Treatment

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # 030

Page 292 of 405



F
ir

e
 W

a
te

r 
T

ie
-i

n
 a

t 
P

re
-T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

D
A

T
E

0
7
/2

6
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L

L
a

b
o

r
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

(1
)L

a
b

o
re

rs
 G

ro
u

p
 #

4
  

  
  

  
1
0
.0

H
R

S
8
3
.2

1
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
3
2
.1

0
8
3
2
.1

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
3
2
.1

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
)L

a
b

o
re

rs
 G

ro
u

p
 #

4
 (

W
a

g
e

 I
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
)

2
.0

H
R

S
8
7
.0

6
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
4
.1

2
1
7
4
.1

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
7
4
.1

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

C
ra

n
e

 O
p

e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p

 #
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
0
.0

H
R

S
1
1
6
.8

7
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
1
6
8
.7

0
1
,1

6
8
.7

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,1

6
8
.7

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

O
p

e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p

 #
8

2
.0

H
R

S
1
1
1
.6

3
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
2
3
.2

6
2
2
3
.2

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
2
3
.2

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

L
a

b
o

re
r 

A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

 #
3

 
4
.0

H
R

S
6
0
.0

1
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
4
0
.0

4
2
4
0
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
4
0
.0

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

L
a

b
o

re
r 

A
p

p
re

n
ti
c
e

 #
3

 (
W

a
g

e
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e

)
2
.0

H
R

S
6
3
.7

1
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
2
7
.4

2
1
2
7
.4

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
7
.4

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

(1
) 

L
a

b
o

re
r 

F
o

re
m

a
n

 
1
.0

H
R

S
9
0
.3

9
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
0
.3

9
9
0
.3

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
9
0
.3

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

J
o

h
n

 D
e

e
re

 3
1

0
G

 B
a

c
h

k
o

e
1
0
.0

H
R

S
5
8
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
8
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
8
6
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

F
o

rd
 5

 Y
a

rd
 D

u
m

p
 T

ru
c
k
 (

1
 D

a
y
 M

in
im

u
m

)
2
.0

D
a
y
s

4
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

B
o

b
 C

a
t 

M
in

i 
E

x
c
a

v
a

to
r 

E
8

8
 R

-2
 S

e
ri
e

s
1
.0

H
R

S
6
0
.3

6
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
.3

6
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
0
.0

0
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
0
.3

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

8
 D

I 
F

L
G

 R
W

 O
L

 G
A

T
E

 V
L

V
 O

P
 N

U
T

 E
3

9
7

1
.0

E
A

2
,1

1
4
.8

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,1

1
4
.8

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
 D

I 
M

J
 X

 F
L

G
 R

W
 O

L
 G

A
T

E
 V

L
V

 L
/A

1
.0

E
A

9
8
4
.0

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,0

5
6
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

D
O

M
 8

 M
J
X

F
E

 C
1

5
3

 A
D

A
P

T
 L

/A
1
.0

E
A

2
6
4
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
6
4
.6

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

D
O

M
 6

 3
1

6
S

S
 F

L
G

 B
L

T
 S

E
T

1
.0

E
A

1
2
6
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
6
.5

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

6
 9

8
2

0
6

 N
S

F
 E

P
D

M
 1

5
0

#
 1

/8
 F

F
 G

S
K

T
1
.0

E
A

9
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
.8

8
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

8
 A

1
9

3
 B

8
M

 3
1

6
S

S
 B

O
L

T
 S

E
T

 
1
.0

E
A

1
6
6
.5

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
6
6
.5

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

8
 9

8
2

0
6

 N
S

F
 E

P
D

M
 1

5
0

#
 1

/8
 F

F
 G

S
K

T
1
.0

E
A

1
7
.8

1
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
7
.8

1
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 T

A
X

E
S

1
.0

L
S

1
1
6
.1

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
1
6
.1

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

F
E

B
C

O
 L

F
8

6
0

-D
N

R
S

-F
S

 S
T

R
A

IG
H

T
 P

A
T

T
E

R
N

 R
P

P
A

1
.0

L
S

(1
,5

0
0
.0

0
)

$
  
  
  
  
  

 
(1

,5
0
0
.0

0
)

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

8
 M

E
G

A
L

U
G

 E
B

A
A

S
E

A
L

 A
C

C
Y

 P
K

G
 F

/D
I

1
.0

L
S

9
9
.9

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
9
9
.9

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

1
,4

4
6

.3
6

$
  

2
8

5
6

.0
3

2
,8

5
6

.0
3

$
  

  
  

 
2

,4
0

0
.4

1
$

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
,7

7
5

.6
2

$
  

  
  

  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
2

0
%

2
8

9
.2

7
$

  
  

 
O

T
H

E
R

 I
T

E
M

S
5

%
L

A
B

O
R

2
5

%
7

1
4

.0
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

1
5

%
3

6
0

.0
6

$
  

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

1
,7

3
5

.6
3

$
  

3
,5

7
0

.0
4

$
  

  
  

 
2

,7
6

0
.4

7
$

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
,0

6
6

.1
4

$
  

  
  

  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T
S

U
P

P
L

IE
D

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

Page 293 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3750 Schaufele Ave, Suite 270 

Long Beach, CA 90808 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

August 19, 2024 

 

Paul Hermann 

Water Market Leader 

GHD 

320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92618 

 

Shah Nawaz 

Senior Engineer 

West Valley Water District 

855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 

Rialto, CA 92377 

 

Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 

 

 

RE: Request for Change Due to Differing Site Conditions – Additional Butterfly Valves (BFV’s) at the Raw Water (RW) 

and Potable Water (PW) Lines - Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project 

 

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request to allow for the installation of a 30-inch BFV and a 24-inch BFV 

at the Raw Water and Potable Water lines, respectively.  WVWD requested PCL to modify each lines design to allow for 

additional BFV’s to achieve supplemental isolation as detailed below.   

Additional 30-inch BFV at the RW line; Pond Effluent #1 isolation from the new Influent Pump Station (IPS2) – The 

design intent of the new influent pump station (IPS2) served from the existing pond effluent #1 line, did not provide full 

isolation of IPS2 without eliminating blending pond #1’s effluent.  To allow for FB1 to continue treating raw water from 

blending pond #1 without filling the new RW influent serving IPS2, WVWD requested PCL to modify the 30-inch RW 

Influent line serving IPS2 with the additional 30-inch BFV. 

Additional 24-inch BFV at the PW line; Chlorine Contact Chamber effluent isolation from the new Effluent Pump 

Station (EPS2) – The previous design of the PW line connecting the chlorine contact chamber (CCC) to EPS2, did not 

include any valves to provide isolation aside from the existing gate at the 24-inch inlet for the CCC effluent line.  To 

provide additional isolation of the CCC and EPS2 in the PW line, WVWD requested PCL to incorporate a 24-inch BFV at 

the PW tie-in point with the existing CCC effluent.  

As neither of these valves were denoted at bid time or throughout any stages of design development, PCL never held   

budget for the above aforementioned BFV’s procurement, design, or installation.  Further coordination and direction 

from WVWD resulted in the District supplying the BFV’s and their connection to the flanges provided as part of this 

Change Request.  With this direction, PCL made arrangements to allow for WVWD’s supplemental isolation at the RW 

and PW lines with both BFV’s install and connection coordinated by WVWD and installed by others.  Below is a summary 

of costs to allow for the BFV’s connection to the PW and RW lines.  

 

 

Page 294 of 405



 

 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3750 Schaufele Ave, Suite 270 

Long Beach, CA 90808 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400 ♦ Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 

• Summary of Cost associated with adding the 24-inch BFV to the PW line 

o Additional efforts to pipe/flange fit up, welding and welding support for the BFV installation.  

o Additional interior grouting at the BFV’s connecting flanges. 

o Change in backfill and compaction methods around valve riser utilizing a jumping jack requiring a 

trench box for one day for compaction activity.  

o Modeling & design confirmations to ensure added valve will fit.  

o Increase in equipment costs due to decrease backfill production.  

o Additional materials to connect added BFV.  

 

• Summary of Cost associated with adding the 30-inch BFV to the RW line 

o Additional efforts to pipe/flange fit up, welding and welding support for the BFV installation.  

o Additional interior grouting at the BFV’s connecting flanges and added bell and spigot joint.  

o Change in backfill and compaction methods around valve riser. 

o Modeling & design confirmations to incorporate BFV into RW pipe design.  

o Increase in equipment costs due to decrease backfill production.  

o Additional materials to connect added BFV.  

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 

Project Manager 

kgoetz@pcl.com 

  

 

Page 295 of 405



PCO # 0034

DATE: 8/23/24

ESTIMATOR: SF

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 6,609$               

EQUIPMENT 1,668$               

MATERIALS 23,660$             

SUBCONTRACTOR 2,015$               

SUBTOTAL 33,951$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 1,652$               

EQUIPMENT 20% 334$                  

MATERIALS 15% 3,549$               

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 101$                  

BOND ON DIRECT WORK 0% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 5,635$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 39,587$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 39,587$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 39,587$       

DESCRIPTION:
Additional efforts to allow for WVWD to install BFV's on the RW and PW lines 

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CR# 34 - Additional Butterfly Valve's at Raw Water (RW) & Potable Water Lines (PW) 

Page 296 of 405



P
C

O
 #

0
0

3
4

D
A

T
E

0
8
/2

3
/2

4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
T

O
T

A
L

L
a

b
o

r 
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

e
ld

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

e
d

 B
F

V
's

; 
P

W
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
[L

a
b

o
re

r 
G

ro
u

p
 4

]
1
.0

L
S

5
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
4
.1

4
4
2
0
.7

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
2
0
.7

0
$
  

  
  

  
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

e
ld

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

e
d

 B
F

V
's

; 
P

W
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
[L

a
b

o
re

r 
F

o
re

m
a

n
]

1
.0

L
S

2
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
6
.5

8
1
7
3
.1

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
3
.1

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

G
ro

u
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
P

W
 j
o

in
ts

, 
in

te
ri
o

r/
e

x
te

ri
o

r 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[L
a

b
o

re
r 

G
ro

u
p

 4
]

1
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
4
.1

4
3
3
6
.5

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
3
6
.5

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

G
ro

u
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
P

W
 j
o

in
ts

, 
in

te
ri
o

r/
e

x
te

ri
o

r 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[C
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

s
o

n
]

1
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
7
3
.5

0
2
9
4
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
9
4
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
 

G
ro

u
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
P

W
 j
o

in
ts

, 
in

te
ri
o

r/
e

x
te

ri
o

r 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[L
a

b
o

re
r 

F
o

re
m

a
n

]
1
.0

E
A

2
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
6
.5

8
1
7
3
.1

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
7
3
.1

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

B
a

c
k
fi
ll 

a
ro

u
n

d
 P

W
 v

a
lv

e
 r

is
e

r/
in

s
ta

ll 
a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lv
e

 r
is

e
r,

 c
a

n
, 

c
a

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 [
L

a
b

o
re

r 
G

ro
u

p
 4

]
1
.0

L
S

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
4
.1

4
3
3
6
.5

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
3
6
.5

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

B
a

c
k
fi
ll 

a
ro

u
n

d
 P

W
 v

a
lv

e
 r

is
e

r/
in

s
ta

ll 
a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lv
e

 r
is

e
r,

 c
a

n
, 

c
a

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[O
p

e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p

 8
]

1
.0

L
S

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
1
0
9
.0

4
4
3
6
.1

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
3
6
.1

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

B
a

c
k
fi
ll 

a
ro

u
n

d
 P

W
 v

a
lv

e
 r

is
e

r/
in

s
ta

ll 
a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lv
e

 r
is

e
r,

 c
a

n
, 

c
a

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[L
a

b
o

re
r 

F
o

re
m

a
n

]
1
.0

L
S

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
6
.5

8
3
4
6
.3

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
4
6
.3

2
$
  

  
  

  
 

-
$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

e
ld

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

e
d

 B
F

V
's

; 
R

W
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
[L

a
b

o
re

r 
G

ro
u

p
 4

]
1
.0

L
S

8
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
4
.1

4
6
7
3
.1

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
3
.1

2
$
  

  
  

  
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

e
ld

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
a

d
d

e
d

 B
F

V
's

; 
R

W
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
[L

a
b

o
re

r 
F

o
re

m
a

n
]

2
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
6
.5

8
6
9
2
.6

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
9
2
.6

4
$
  

  
  

  
 

G
ro

u
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
R

W
 j
o

in
ts

, 
in

te
ri
o

r/
e

x
te

ri
o

r 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 [

L
a

b
o

re
r 

G
ro

u
p

 4
]

2
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
4
.1

4
6
7
3
.1

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
7
3
.1

2
$
  

  
  

  
 

G
ro

u
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
R

W
 j
o

in
ts

, 
in

te
ri
o

r/
e

x
te

ri
o

r 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 [

C
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

s
o

n
]

2
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
7
3
.5

0
5
8
8
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
8
8
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
 

G
ro

u
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
R

W
 j
o

in
ts

, 
in

te
ri
o

r/
e

x
te

ri
o

r 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 [

L
a

b
o

re
r 

F
o

re
m

a
n

]
2
.0

E
A

2
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
6
.5

8
3
4
6
.3

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
4
6
.3

2
$
  

  
  

  
 

B
a

c
k
fi
ll 

a
ro

u
n

d
 R

W
 v

a
lv

e
 r

is
e

r/
in

s
ta

ll 
a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lv
e

 r
is

e
r,

 c
a

n
, 

c
a

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[L
a

b
o

re
r 

G
ro

u
p

 4
]

1
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
4
.1

4
3
3
6
.5

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
3
6
.5

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

B
a

c
k
fi
ll 

a
ro

u
n

d
 R

W
 v

a
lv

e
 r

is
e

r/
in

s
ta

ll 
a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lv
e

 r
is

e
r,

 c
a

n
, 

c
a

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[O
p

e
ra

to
r 

G
ro

u
p

 8
]

1
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
1
0
9
.0

4
4
3
6
.1

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
3
6
.1

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

B
a

c
k
fi
ll 

a
ro

u
n

d
 R

W
 v

a
lv

e
 r

is
e

r/
in

s
ta

ll 
a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lv
e

 r
is

e
r,

 c
a

n
, 

c
a

p
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

[L
a

b
o

re
r 

F
o

re
m

a
n

]
1
.0

E
A

4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
.0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
$
8
6
.5

8
3
4
6
.3

2
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
4
6
.3

2
$
  

  
  

  
 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 
1
,5

7
0
.4

0
$
  

  
  

J
o

h
n

 D
e

e
re

 3
3

0
C

 L
C

 [
D

e
e

r]
8
.0

H
R

S
$
1
9
6
.3

0
1
,5

7
0
.4

0
$
  
  
  
  

9
7
.4

4
$
  

  
  

  
  

 

J
u

m
p

in
g

 J
a

c
k
 [

C
O

M
H

G
] 

- 
N

e
e

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

a
c
ti
o

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 P
W

 +
 R

W
 B

F
V

 r
is

e
rs

 
8
.0

H
R

S
$
1
2
.1

8
9
7
.4

4
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 

E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 O

u
ts

o
u

rc
e

d
, 

L
L

C
 -

 M
o

d
e

lin
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
R

W
 v

a
lv

e
 

1
.0

L
S

1
,5

3
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  

1
,5

3
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,5

3
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

E
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 O

u
ts

o
u

rc
e

d
, 

L
L

C
 -

 M
o

d
e

lin
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
P

W
 v

a
lv

e
 

1
.0

L
S

7
5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
 

J
if
c
o

, 
In

c
. 

- 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

t 
R

W
 l
in

e
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 a
d

d
e

d
 3

0
" 

B
F

V
1
.0

L
S

4
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  

4
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

J
if
c
o

, 
In

c
. 

- 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 a

t 
P

W
 l
in

e
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 a
d

d
e

d
 2

4
" 

B
F

V
 

1
.0

L
S

5
,8

4
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  

5
,8

4
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
,8

4
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

F
e

rg
u

s
o

n
 -

 R
W

 B
o

lt
s
, 

n
u

ts
, 

is
o

la
ti
o

n
 k

it
/g

a
s
k
e

ts
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
e

d
 3

0
" 

B
F

V
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
1
.0

L
S

7
,1

4
8
.4

6
$
  
  
  

7
,1

4
8
.4

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
,1

4
8
.4

6
$
  

  
  

F
e

rg
u

s
o

n
 -

 P
W

 B
o

lt
s
, 

n
u

ts
, 

g
a

s
k
e

ts
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
e

d
 3

0
" 

B
F

V
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
1
.0

L
S

2
,5

0
9
.3

9
$
  
  
  

2
,5

0
9
.3

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,5

0
9
.3

9
$
  

  
  

Y
o

 F
ir
e

 -
 R

W
 +

 P
W

 a
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lv

e
 r

is
e

rs
, 

c
a

n
s
 &

 c
a

p
s
 

1
.0

L
S

6
0
1
.2

5
$
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
1
.2

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
6
0
1
.2

5
$
  

  
  

  
 

S
u

n
s
ta

te
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

S
te

e
l 
T

re
n

c
h

 B
o

x
 w

it
h

 a
c
c
e

s
s
o

ri
e

s
 (

P
W

) 
1
.0

D
A

Y
8
0
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
.3

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
8
0
.3

0
$
  

  
  

  
  

 

S
u

n
s
ta

te
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 &

 P
ic

k
u

p
 (

P
W

)
2
.0

E
A

1
7
5
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  

 
3
5
0
.0

0
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
5
0
.0

0
$
  

  
  

  
 

W
h

it
e

 C
a

p
 -

 G
ro

u
t 

fo
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
P

W
 (

2
 b

a
g

s
) 

&
 R

W
 (

3
 b

a
g

s
) 

5
.0

E
A

2
4
.6

3
$
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
3
.1

5
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
2
3
.1

5
$
  

  
  

  
 

F
e

rg
u

s
o

n
 -

 A
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lv

e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

t 
R

W
 

1
.0

E
A

1
8
4
.2

9
$
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
4
.2

9
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
8
4
.2

9
$
  

  
  

  
 

F
e

rg
u

s
o

n
 -

 A
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lv

e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 a

t 
P

W
 

1
.0

E
A

2
4
2
.8

6
$
  
  
  
  

 
2
4
2
.8

6
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
4
2
.8

6
$
  

  
  

  
 

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r

D
a

y
to

n
 W

e
ld

in
g

 -
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fi
t 

u
p

, 
c
u

tt
in

g
 &

 w
e

ld
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lv

e
 a

t 
P

W
 l
in

e
 

5
.0

H
R

S
1
5
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

7
7
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7
7
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
a

y
to

n
 W

e
ld

in
g

 -
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
fi
t 

u
p

,w
e

ld
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
d

 v
a

lv
e

 a
t 

R
W

 l
in

e
 

8
.0

H
R

S
1
5
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

4
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

1
,2

4
0

$
  

  
  

  
  

 

1
,6

6
7

.8
4

$
  

  
6

,6
0

8
.8

6
$

  
  

 
2

3
,6

5
9

.7
0

$
  

  
 

2
,0

1
5

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
3

3
,9

5
1

$
  

  
 

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0

%
3

3
4

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
O

T
H

E
R

 I
T

E
M

S
5

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

 
L

A
B

O
R

2
5

%
1

,6
5

2
$

  
  

  
  

  
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
1

5
%

3
,5

4
9

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%
1

0
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

2
,0

0
1

$
  

  
  

  
 

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
 

8
,2

6
1

$
  

  
  

  
  

2
7

,2
0

9
$

  
  

  
  

  
2

,1
1

6
$

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
9

,5
8

7
$

  
  

 

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
  

  
 S

.T
. 

&
 S

.*
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T

Page 297 of 405



 

 

 

 
 

For Item #5 

 

Page 298 of 405



Page 299 of 405



Converse Consultants Projection Summary 

- Current Approved Allowance: $200k 

- Cost-up-to-Date Breakdown 

o Total Invoice amount up to July 2024: $170k 

 

- Cost-Up-to-date (Building Inspector): $4,608 

- Cost-To-Date for all inspections on project: $ 174,476.13 

 

- Approximate Converse August 2024 Invoice: $35k 

 

- Remaining Allowance for Inspections as of July 2024 Invoice: $30,131.87 

 

- Projected $ amount needed for Building Inspector to completion: $2,048 

 

- Projected $ amount needed for Converse Inspections to completion: 

$71,595 

 

- Total Projected added $ amount Cost to Completion: $78,643 

Page 300 of 405



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

For Item #6 

 

Page 301 of 405



 
October 11, 2024 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Shah Nawaz 
Senior Engineer 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Shah Nawaz 
 
RE: Furnish Fiber Converter Panel at R5-2  
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Nawaz, 

Please review the following change order requested to provide and furnish a fiber converter at Reservoir R5-2. 

This change order formalizes all costs required to allow for signal relay of instruments from the R5-2 site to the Roemer 

plant. 

• NEMA 4X enclosure and fiber converters with all appurtenances 

• LEEDs field labor to install conduit and panel 

• Soffa field labor for panel integration  

• Programming and startup support 
 

Sincerely, 

 

Kevin Goetz 
Project Manager 
kgoetz@pcl.com 
  
 

Page 302 of 405

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com


PCO # 0051

DATE: 10/11/24

ESTIMATOR: AJ

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                      

EQUIPMENT -$                      

MATERIALS -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 28,536.07$        

SUBTOTAL 28,536.07$        

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                  

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                      

MATERIALS 15% -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 5%

BOND ON DIRECT WORK 0% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP -$                      

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 28,536.07$        

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 28,536.07$  

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 28,536.07$  

DESCRIPTION:

Cost to furnish Fiber Converter Panel at R5-2

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX #0051 - Fiber Converter Panel at R5-2

Page 303 of 405

AJuarez
Callout
FINAL NEGOTIATED PRICE



P
C

O
 #

0
0

5
1

D
A

T
E

1
0

/1
1

/2
4

Q
T

Y
U

N
IT

S
U

P
P

L
IE

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
T

O
T

A
L

L
a

b
o

r 
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
M

H
/U

N
IT

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L
U

.P
.

T
O

T
A

L

N
A

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

N
A

V
e

n
d

o
r 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

S
u

b
c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

L
E

E
D

/S
o

ff
a

/S
o

u
th

 C
o

a
s
t 

- 
F

ib
e

r 
C

o
n

v
e

rt
e

r 
in

s
ta

ll 
a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

 -
 N

E
G

O
T

IA
T

E
D

 P
R

IC
E

1
.0

L
S

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
8
,5

3
6
.0

7
$
  
  

2
8
,5

3
6
.0

7
$
  
  
  
  

2
8
,5

3
6

$
  
  
  
  
  

 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
A

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  

  
  

   
-

$
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

$
  

  
  

  
   

2
8

,5
3

6
.0

7
$

  
 

2
8

,5
3

6
.0

7
$

  

M
A

R
K

U
P

S

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

2
0

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
   

O
T

H
E

R
 I

T
E

M
S

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

   
L

A
B

O
R

2
5

%
-

$
  

  
  

  
  

   
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
1

5
%

-
$

  
  

  
  

   
S

U
B

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
5

%

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

S
 W

IT
H

 M
A

R
K

U
P

-
$

  
  

  
  

   
-

$
  

  
  

  
   

-
$

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
$

  
  

  
  

   
2

8
,5

3
6

.0
7

$
  
 

2
8

,5
3

6
.0

7
$

  

S
U

B
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R

N
o

te
s
:

N
E

G
O

T
IA

T
E

D
 P

R
IC

E
 R

E
M

O
V

IN
G

 A
L

L
 M

A
R

K
U

P
S

 A
N

D
 I

N
C

L
U

D
E

S
 A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 D

IS
C

O
U

N
T

 T
O

 W
V

W
D

. 
D

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 $
1

0
7

,1
8

4
.0

0
.

  
  

  
  

  
 L

A
B

O
R

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
  

  
  

  
 E

Q
U

IP
  

  
 S

.T
. 

&
 S

.*
M

A
N

H
O

U
R

S
  

  
 A

M
O

U
N

T

Page 304 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         Socorro Pantaleon, Public Outreach & Government Affairs Manager
 

SUBJECT:   H.R. 7525/S.4673– Special District Grant Accessibility Act
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
10/28/2024 External Affairs Committee REFERRED TO BOARD.

 
BACKGROUND:
H.R. 7525/S. 4673 The Special District Grant Accessibility Act would require the White House Office of
Management and Budget to issue guidance to federal agencies requiring special districts to be recognized as local
governments for the purpose of federal financial assistance determinations.

While the Office of Management and Budget already recognizes special districts as units of local government,
similar to townships or villages, special districts often struggle to compete for or access federal funding.   The
Special District Grant Accessibility Act works to solve this problem and ensures that special districts are on equal
footing with other units of local government. H.R. 7525 requires the Office of Management and Budget to issue
guidance to federal agencies, emphasizing how special districts should be recognized as a unit of local government
for the purpose of being eligible for federal grants and other federal assistance.

More specifically, under the bill, a special district is defined as a political subdivision of a state, with specified
boundaries and significant budgetary autonomy or control, that was created by or pursuant to state law to perform
limited and specific governmental or proprietary functions that distinguish it as a significantly separate entity from
the administrative governance structure of any other form of local government unit within a state. The bill requires
federal agencies to implement OMB's guidance within one year of the date it is issued. 

According to the National Special District Coalition (NSDC), who supports the bill, there are more than 35,000
special districts in the U.S. providing a range of infrastructure and essential community programs across the
country including parks, water, sanitation, fire protection, ports, cemeteries, healthcare, electricity, pest control, and
libraries

The bipartisan bill, sponsored by Representatives Pat Fallon (R-TX) and Brittany Pettersen (D-CO), is pending in
the Senate.  The Senate Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs Committee favorably reported the bill out of
Committee on July 31, 2024.  The National Special District Coalition is urging the Senate to adopt the bill without
amendments and send it to the White House for the president’s signature before the end of the year.

 

DISCUSSION:
One of the leading factors driving the need for the Special District Grant Accessibility Act is the fact that special
districts were omitted in COVID-19-era legislation that provided direct federal financial assistance to local
governments for coronavirus relief and response activities (namely CARES Act funding and ARPA Fiscal Recovery
Fund dollars). Unlike other forms of local government, special districts were excluded from receiving direct federal
aid, despite the fact that many special districts provided essential public services throughout the COVID-19
pandemic.

Page 305 of 405



H.R. 7525 would direct federal agencies to recognize special districts as local governments for the purpose of
ensuring that districts are eligible to receive appropriate forms of federal assistance, including funding and
resources through key grant programs.

 

FISCAL IMPACT:
None.
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors to:

Join the legislative efforts in support H.R. 7525/S.4673

 

Page 306 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         Haydee Sainz, Human Resources & Risk Manager
 

SUBJECT:   IE Works Contract Renewal 2024/25
 

 
MEETING HISTORY:
10/09/24 Human Resources Committee REFERRED TO BOARD
  
BACKGROUND:
Since 2021, the District has participated in the Jewish Vocational and Career Counseling Service ("JVS"), a non-
sectarian 50l(c)(3) non-profit organization with respect to the IE Works Skilled Trades Internship Program. This
program provides the opportunity for field instruction for students to integrate theory learned in the classroom and
apply it in a professional setting while receiving the support of experienced staff. Since the inception of the program
staff has provided the necessary training to twelve interns that successfully completed the training program. Three
have been hired as Assistant Water System Operators and are gainfully employed. This is an example of the
success this program which connects our skilled professionals with our communities to assist in the training of the
next generation of water industry professionals.
  
DISCUSSION: 
The program’s purpose is to prepare individuals for careers in the Water Technology Industry. The internship
program provides students to apply the classroom knowledge and gain hands on experience over a 12-week work
program. Practical knowledge is gained through coursework completed at San Bernardino Vocational College and
it is put into immediate use during the internship program. Interns will rotate through various departments to gain a
better understanding of each of the responsibilities necessary to operate and maintain them. The program rotates
them through the Water Maintenance, Meters, Water Treatment, Production and Water Quality Divisions.

Interns are expected to meet and follow West Valley Water District’s rules and policies. Supervision is provided
throughout the internship program. Supervisors evaluate the student’s progress throughout the twelve (12) week
program and certificates of completion are presented to interns once they complete the program.

JVS, provided the IE Works 2024/25 Skilled Trades Internship Program agreement, which is attached as Exhibit
“A”.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Funds for the program are budgeted for FY 2024/25 in the amount not to exceed $50,000 to cover the cost of the
program, which is two thirds (2/3) of the hourly rate plus the membership cost.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Page 307 of 405



Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve and adopt the IE Works 2024/25 Skilled Trades and
Internship Program Agreement and authorize the General Manager to execute the agreement.

 

Attachments

JVS WVWD Internship MOU 2024-2511.2024.pdf

Page 308 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a69b6a622140054ec666a%2FJVS%20%20WVWD%20Internship%20MOU%202024-2511.2024.pdf?alt=media&token=df32141f-d406-4929-8848-7225c7dfcf7b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a69b6a622140054ec666a%2FJVS%20%20WVWD%20Internship%20MOU%202024-2511.2024.pdf?alt=media&token=df32141f-d406-4929-8848-7225c7dfcf7b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F672a69b6a622140054ec666a%2FJVS%20%20WVWD%20Internship%20MOU%202024-2511.2024.pdf?alt=media&token=df32141f-d406-4929-8848-7225c7dfcf7b


Memorandum of Understanding Between 
West Valley Water District and 

Jewish Vocational and Career Counseling Service 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is to describe the responsibilities of 
West Valley Water District, a California special district ("Employer"), and Jewish Vocational and 
Career Counseling Service ("JVS"), a non-sectarian 50l(c)(3) non-profit organization with respect 
to the IEWorks 2024-25 Skilled Trades Internship Program ("Program").  

JVS and Employer agree to participate in the IEWorks 2024-25 Skilled Internship Program, the 
purpose of which is to offer students ("Interns") from community college trades programs a paid 
Internship with IEWorks signatory agencies. This program is designed to provide opportunities to 
enhance their classroom learning by obtaining practical real-world work experience at a water agency.  

I. Employer agrees to do the following: 

A) Provide a primary point of contact for the Program as outlined above. 

B) Interview internship candidates or otherwise provide input to JVS on the selection of 
applicants before being assigned to the agency 

C) Provide worksites and supervision for hands-on, paid internship experience for up to 
six (6) Intern(s) at locations it deems appropriate.  

D) Employer will be responsible for signing off on timesheets from the third-party 
employer of record, Signature Staffing Resources. Signature Staffing Resources will 
pay the interns at the agreed upon rate, cover worker's comp, and handle all of the 
necessary taxes and employer reporting. 

E) Employer will reimburse JVS 66.67% of wages paid to the Intern(s) at $21.61/hr. 
for a maximum of 30 hours/week so long as they remain employed. See 
Attachment A for details.  This MOU shall not constitute a guarantee of 
employment for Interns through the End Date identified in Attachment A. 

F) Provide staff member(s) to serve as a supervisor for each Intern for the duration of 
the Program. An on-site supervisor(s) will be designated by Employer and will 
serve as a liaison between JVS and Employer. 

G) Promptly contact JVS if there are performance concerns about an Intern that 
jeopardizes the Internship placement or other serious concerns. 

H) Train, control, manage, and supervise each Intern during the duration of the Program 

I) Take all reasonable measures to ensure a safe worksite for the Intern(s) during 
the internship 

J) At the completion of each internship, submit an IEWorks Intern Evaluation Form, 
supplied by JVS.  

K) Participate in coordination, planning, and review meetings. 

L) Provide an estimate of In-Kind costs for supporting an intern in terms of planning, 
training, and supervision of an intern for 12 weeks.  

M) Promptly provide JVS with information about the status of each Intern at the conclusion 
of the scheduled internship, including an employment 'verification form' if any Intern is 
retained for regular employment. 

 

Page 309 of 405



II. JVS agrees to do the following: 

A) Provide third party employer of record services though Signature Staffing Resources 
to cover all wages and administrative costs.  

B) Invoice the Employer for 66.67% of all wages paid to the employee during the 
internship period. 

C) Provide a primary point of contact to coordinate all aspects of the Program described 
above including outreach, matching Interns with agencies, provide follow up services, 
and Program evaluation. 

D) Recruit, screen and refer to the employer for interviews Intern candidates who meet 
that criterion that Employer and JVS establishes. 

 

III.   All parties agree to the following: 

A) Participate in a joint meeting to discuss lessons learned after the Intern completes 
the internship at Employer. 

B) Defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its directors, officers, employees, 
volunteers and agents harmless from and against any and all liability, loss, expense 
(including reasonable attorneys' fees), or claims for injury or damages arising out of 
the indemnifying party’s performance of this MOU but only in proportion to and to the 
extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys' fees, or claims for injury or damages are 
caused by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying party its directors, officers, employees, volunteers and agents. 

IV.  Miscellaneous 

A) This MOU may be terminated by either party with 30 days' notice in writing of the 
intent to terminate. This agreement shall begin on November 14, 2024 and shall 
continue through June 30, 2025.  

B) The maximum amount of wages subsidized by JVS shall not exceed $20,000. 
 
We, the undersigned, agree to fulfill our responsibilities as detailed in this MOU. 

 
 

West Valley Water District JVS 
 
 

Signed:   

Print Title: John Thiel   

Title: General Manager 

Date:      

Signed:  

Print Name: Kathryn Beeley 

Title: Chief Operating Officer 
Date:    

Page 310 of 405



 
Attachment A 

2024-25 Skilled Trades Internship Program 

 Internship Assignment Description 

 

Intern 1 Name: TBD 

Agency Name: West Valley Water District 

Agency Point of Contact:  

Supervisor:  

JVS Point of Contact: Scott Goodell  
  

Brief description of Internship assignment (ex. duties): 
 
The internship program is designed to provide 
hands on, on-the-job training to facilitate the 
learning process and to further assists individuals 
with entering into the public water utility 
profession. Interns will take part in key learning 
objectives within operational departments 
including: Distribution, Meters, Production, 
Treatment, and Quality. Under close supervision 
by the Department Supervisor and/or designated 
employee, Interns will complete a variety of tasks 
throughout the District to gain knowledge, skills, 
and abilities in the proper operation and 
maintenance of a water facility. 

 
 
 

 
Primary location of Internship assignment: Rialto 
 

Other locations of Internship assignment (if needed): 

Best Contact Info:  
 
 

Best Contact Info:  

Best Contact Info: 

sgoodell@jvs.org, (415) 802-5576 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Term of Internship: 12 weeks 
 

Internship Start Date:  

Internship End Date:  

Page 311 of 405

mailto:sgoodell@jvs.org


Internship Schedule: 

Hours per week (max 30 hrs.): 

Wage: $21.61/hr. 

Employer of Record: Signature Staffing 

Additional information:  

 
Attachment A 

2024-25 Skilled Trades Internship Program 

 Internship Assignment Description 

 

Intern 2 Name: TBD    

Agency Name: West Valley Water District 

Agency Point of Contact:  

Supervisor: Same as above 

JVS Point of Contact: Scott Goodell  
  

Brief description of Internship assignment (ex. duties): 
 

 
The internship program is designed to provide 
hands on, on-the-job training to facilitate the 
learning process and to further assists individuals 
with entering into the public water utility 
profession. Interns will take part in key learning 
objectives within operational departments 
including: Distribution, Meters, Production, 
Treatment, and Quality. Under close supervision 
by the Department Supervisor and/or designated 
employee, Interns will complete a variety of tasks 
throughout the District to gain knowledge, skills, 
and abilities in the proper operation and 
maintenance of a water facility. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Best Contact Info: 
 

 
Best Contact Info:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 312 of 405



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Primary location of Internship assignment: Rialto 
 

Other locations of Internship assignment 
(if needed) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Term of Internship: 12 weeks 
 

Internship Start Date:  

Internship End Date:  

Internship Schedule:  

Hours per week (max 30 hrs.): 

Wage: $21.61/hr. 

Employer of Record: Signature Staffing 

Additional information:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 313 of 405



 
Attachment A 

2024-25 Skilled Trades Internship Program 

 Internship Assignment Description 

Intern 3 Name: TBD 

Agency Name: West Valley Water District 

Agency Point of Contact:  

Supervisor: Same as above 

JVS Point of Contact: Scott Goodell  
  

Brief description of Internship assignment (ex. duties): 
 
The internship program is designed to provide 
hands on, on-the-job training to facilitate the 
learning process and to further assists individuals 
with entering into the public water utility 
profession. Interns will take part in key learning 
objectives within operational departments 
including: Distribution, Meters, Production, 
Treatment, and Quality. Under close supervision 
by the Department Supervisor and/or designated 
employee, Interns will complete a variety of tasks 
throughout the District to gain knowledge, skills, 
and abilities in the proper operation and 
maintenance of a water facility. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Best Contact Info:  

 
 
 

Best Contact Info:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 314 of 405



 

 
 
 
 
 

Primary location of Internship assignment: Rialto 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Term of Internship: 12 weeks 
 

Primary location of Internship assignment: Rialto 
 

Internship Start Date:  

Internship End Date:  

Internship Schedule:  

Hours per week (max 30 hrs.):  

Wage: $21.61/hr. 

Employer of Record: Signature Staffing 

Additional information:  

 

Page 315 of 405



 
STAFF REPORT

 

DATE:          November 14, 2024

TO:               Board of Directors
 

FROM:         Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering
 

SUBJECT:   Professional Services Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for Master Planning Services
for the Water Master Plan Update

 

MEETING HISTORY:
 
10.24.2024 Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee REFERRED TO BOARD
 
BACKGROUND:

The District’s distribution system includes eight pressure zones which are divided into a northern and southern
system with the City of Rialto serving the area in between. The system includes 72.76 million gallons of storage
capacity, 15 booster pump stations, 19 active production wells, several treatment facilities, over 25,000 service
connections and over 415 miles of water mains.  

Water supplies include groundwater from District wells in 4 groundwater basins, from imported State Water Project
water and Lytle Creek surface flows treated at the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility, from water purchased
through the Base Line Feeder pipeline and from groundwater treated at our Groundwater Wellhead Treatment
System.

It is best practice to prepare a Water Master Plan (WMP) every five (5) years to analyze development patterns and
future system needs. The previous WMP was completed in 2020. Since that time, there have been changes in
conservation efforts, water resource planning, land use designations, increased treatment capacity at the Oliver P.
Roemer Water Filtration Facility, increased system demands, and projected growth that require the plan to be
updated.

DISCUSSION:

Staff issued a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) to prepare a comprehensive Water Master Plan Update (“WMP”) for
the current and future District needs and to update the District’s Hydraulic model. This RFP was posted on
PlanetBids. The District received proposals from five (5) Consulting firms – Akel Engineering Group, Inc. (“Akel”),
Albert A. Webb Associates (“Albert Webb”), Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. (“Stantec”), Stetson Engineers Inc.
(“Stetson”), and TKE Engineering Inc. (“TKE”). The five (5) proposals received included similar qualifications and
technical expertise.

Page 316 of 405



To determine the best value for the District, staff ensured that all proposals received met the minimum
requirements in the scope of work. Staff evaluated and scored the received proposals based on the scoring criteria
described in the RFP and Stantec was the highest rated proposal. Staff began negotiations with Stantec to develop
a draft Professional Services Agreement and enhance the proposed scope of work. Attached as Exhibit A is the
draft District Professional Services Agreement with Stantec which includes the negotiated scope of work.

This item is in support of the District's Strategic Plan Goal for sound planning, innovation, and best practices and
strategy to identify long-term water supply, infrastructure and facility needs. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost to perform the services for the Water Master Plan as proposed by Stantec is $289,708.00. This item is
included in the Fiscal Year 2024/25 Department Budget under Water Facilities Master Plan and 5-year CIP for
$250,000. If approved staff will adjust $10,000 from line items within Engineering’s Professional Services account
and transfer $30,000 from Water Treatment’s, Professionals Services budget to Engineering’s Professional
Services budget for this work.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve a Professional Services Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with Stantec Consulting Services Inc., in
the amount of $289,708.00 for Master Planning Services for the Water master Plan Update; and 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - PSA - 2024.pdf
Task Order No. 1.pdf

Page 317 of 405

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a37a622140054eb229e%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20PSA%20-%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=f7e45001-1470-4f40-b27b-624b73e4e643
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a37a622140054eb229e%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20PSA%20-%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=f7e45001-1470-4f40-b27b-624b73e4e643
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a37a622140054eb229e%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20PSA%20-%202024.pdf?alt=media&token=f7e45001-1470-4f40-b27b-624b73e4e643
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a37a622140054eb229e%2FTask%20Order%20No.%201.pdf?alt=media&token=93e60fc4-c215-4f8d-bac2-99192ac9515b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a37a622140054eb229e%2FTask%20Order%20No.%201.pdf?alt=media&token=93e60fc4-c215-4f8d-bac2-99192ac9515b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F67294a37a622140054eb229e%2FTask%20Order%20No.%201.pdf?alt=media&token=93e60fc4-c215-4f8d-bac2-99192ac9515b


 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 318 of 405



 

 

West Valley Water District 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

With 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC.                                                                       

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 319 of 405



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

          Page 
 
 

Section 1.     Term of Agreement ..........................................................................1 
 
Section 2.     Scope and Performance of Services ................................................1 
 
Section 3.     Additional Services and Changes in Services ..................................3 
 
Section 4.     Familiarity with Services and Site .....................................................3 
 
Section 5.     Compensation and Payment ............................................................4 
 
Section 6.     Required Documentation prior to Performance ................................5 
 
Section 7.     Project Documents ...........................................................................5 
 
Section 8.     Consultant’s Books and Records .....................................................5 
 
Section 9.     Status of Consultant .........................................................................6 
 
Section 10.   Compliance with Applicable Laws ....................................................7 
 
Section 11.   Conflicts of Interest ...........................................................................8 
 
Section 12.   Confidential Information; Release of Information ..............................8 
 
Section 13.   Indemnification .................................................................................9 
 
Section 14.   Insurance ........................................................................................ 10 
 
Section 15.   Assignment ..................................................................................... 10 
 
Section 16.   Termination of Agreement .............................................................. 11 
 
Section 17.   Notices ........................................................................................... 11 
 
Section 18.   General Provisions ......................................................................... 12 
 
Exhibit “A” Task Order 
 
Exhibit “B” Key Personnel 
 
Exhibit “C” Insurance 

Page 320 of 405



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (“Agreement”) effective as of this 
_____ day of __________, 2024 (“Effective Date”) is by and between West Valley Water 
District (“District”) and STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES Inc., (“Consultant”). The 
District and Consultant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as 
a “Party.” 

RECITALS 

A. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of setting forth the 
terms and conditions upon which Consultant shall provide certain services to District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Term of Agreement. 

(a) Subject to subsection (b) below, the term of this Agreement will be 
for a period of one (1) year commencing on the Effective Date and 
terminating one (1) year after the Effective Date.   

(b) This Agreement shall renew automatically for continuous one (1) 
year periods for no more than two (2) additional years, unless either Party, 
prior to the end of the existing one (1) year period, delivers written notice to 
the other Party, that the Agreement shall not be extended. 

(c) If a Task Order (as defined herein) is in effect at the expiration of the 
term of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement will automatically extend 
until Consultant completes the services under said Task Order, or until the 
Agreement is otherwise terminated, as set forth herein. 

Section 2. Scope and Performance of Services. 

2.1 (a) District may, from time to time, by written instructions from the 
District’s General Manager or Assistant General Manager, or their 
designee, (“Authorized Representative”) issue task orders (“Task Orders”) 
to the Consultant. The Task Order shall be in such form and content as shall 
be set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein. The Task Order shall set forth: (1) the scope of 
services to be performed by Consultant; (2) the compensation to be paid to 
Consultant; and (3) the time to complete the Task Order. The provisions of 
this Agreement shall apply to all such Task Orders. 

 (b) For each Task Order, Consultant shall confer, as requested, with 
District representatives to review progress of work elements, adherence to 
work schedule, coordination of work, scheduling of review and resolution of 
problems which may develop. 

Page 321 of 405



2.2 Consultant will furnish all of the labor, technical, administrative, professional 
and other personnel, all supplies and materials, equipment, printing, 
vehicles, transportation, office space and facilities, and all tests, testing and 
analyses, calculation, and all other means whatsoever, except as otherwise 
expressly specified in this Agreement, necessary or proper to perform and 
complete the services required of Consultant under this Agreement. 

2.3 Consultant’s designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its 
behalf and to make all decisions in connection with the performance of 
services under this Agreement are listed in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and 
by this reference incorporated herein (“Key Personnel”). Consultant shall 
not substitute or remove Key Personnel without the prior written consent of 
District. 

2.4 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the qualifications, 
experience, and facilities necessary to properly perform the services 
required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent, and professional 
manner. Notwithstanding Section 3 below, in the event Consultant utilizes 
the services of subcontractors or sub-consultants, Consultant assumes sole 
and complete responsibility for the performance of the  subcontractor or 
sub-consultant to the specifications provided hereunder for Consultant’s 
work, and no adjustment will be made to Consultant’s requirements under 
this Agreement for timely completion of services, complete performance of 
services, or delivery of products or deliverables in a timely fashion, and no 
adjustment will be made to performance deadlines, or compensation due to 
Consultant, due to or arising from issues Consultant may have with any 
subcontractor or sub-consultant.  Consultant will at all times faithfully, 
competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all 
services described in this Agreement.  In meeting its obligations under this 
Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted 
standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services 
similar to those required of Consultant under this Agreement. 

Consultant warrants it will perform its services, as more particularly 
described in this Agreement and each Task Order in accordance with 
generally accepted professional practices and current standards of care 
and diligence normally practiced by members of the profession currently 
practicing under conditions of a similar nature.   Consultant shall perform, 
at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the District, 
any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by 
the Consultant's failure to comply with the standard of care provided for 
herein.  

 2.5 Neither District nor Consultant shall be considered in default of this 
Agreement for delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the non-performing party.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, such circumstances include a Force Majeure Event.  A Force 

Page 322 of 405



Majeure Event shall mean an event that materially affects the Consultant’s 
performance and is one or more of the following: (1) Acts of God or other 
natural disasters occurring at the project site; (2) terrorism or other acts of 
a public enemy; (3) orders of governmental authorities (including, without 
limitation, unreasonable and unforeseeable delay in the issuance of permits 
or approvals by governmental authorities that are required for the services); 
and (4) pandemics, epidemics or quarantine restrictions.  For purposes of 
this section, “orders of governmental authorities,” includes ordinances, 
emergency proclamations and orders, rules to protect the public health, 
welfare and safety.  Should such a Force Majeure Event occur, the non-
performing party shall, within a reasonable time of being prevented from 
performing, give written notice to the other party describing the 
circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being 
made to resume performance of this Agreement.  Delays shall not entitle 
Consultant to any additional compensation regardless of the Party 
responsible for the delay.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may still 
terminate this Agreement in accordance with the termination provisions of 
this Agreement. 

Section 3. Additional Services and Changes in Services 

3.1 Consultant will not be compensated for any services rendered in connection 
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of 
those set forth in the Task Orders unless such additional services are 
authorized in advance and in writing by District. 

3.2 If Consultant believes that additional services are needed to complete a 
Task Order, Consultant will provide the Authorized Representative with 
written notification describing the proposed additional services, the reasons 
for such services, and a detailed proposal regarding cost. 

3.3 District may order changes to a Task Order, consisting of additions, 
deletions, or other revisions, and the compensation to be paid Consultant 
will be adjusted accordingly.  All such changes must be authorized in writing 
and executed by Consultant and District.  The cost or credit to District 
resulting from changes in a Task Order will be determined by the written 
agreement between the Parties. 

Section 4. Familiarity with Services and Site. 

4.1 By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants that Consultant shall, 
prior to undertaking a Task Order: 

(a) investigate and consider the services to be performed; 

(b) carefully consider how and within what time frame the services 
should be performed;  

Page 323 of 405



(c) understand the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending 
performance of the services under a Task Order; and 

(d) possesses all licenses required under local, state or federal law to 
perform the services contemplated by a Task Order and maintain all 
required licenses during the performance of such Task Order. 

4.2 If services involve work upon any site, Consultant warrants that Consultant 
has or will investigate the site and will be fully acquainted with the conditions 
there existing, before commencing its services under a Task Order.  Should 
Consultant discover any latent or unknown conditions that may materially 
affect the performance of services, Consultant will immediately inform 
District of such fact and will not proceed except at Consultant’s own risk 
until written instructions are received from the District. 

Section 5. Compensation and Payment. 

5.1 In no event shall the total amount paid for services rendered by Consultant under 
this Agreement and all Task Orders issued hereunder exceed the sum of the Task 

Orders. Subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement, District agrees 
to pay Consultant the amounts shown in a Task Order. 

5.2 Consultant shall furnish District monthly with an original invoice for all 
services performed and expenses incurred under a Task Order during the 
preceding month in accordance with the fee schedule set forth in the Task 
Order.  The invoice must detail charges by the following categories: labor 
(by subcategory), reimbursable costs, subcontractor contracts and 
miscellaneous expenses.  The invoice must list, as applicable, the hours 
worked and hourly rates for each personnel category, the tasks performed, 
the percentage of the task completed during the billing period, the 
cumulative percentage completed for each task, and the total cost of the 
services. 

5.3 District will independently review each invoice submitted by Consultant to 
determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in 
compliance with this Agreement and the Task Order.  In the event that no 
charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice will be approved and paid.  
In the event any charges or expenses are disputed by District, the original 
invoice will be returned by District to Consultant for correction and 
resubmission. 

5.4 Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by 
Consultant that are  disputed by District, District will use its best efforts to 
cause Consultant to be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of Consultant’s 
invoice. 

Page 324 of 405



5.5 No payment or partial payment to Consultant shall constitute acceptance of 
any work completed by Consultant or waive any claims by the District for 
any reason whatsoever.  

Section 6. Required Documentation Prior to Performance. 

6.1 Consultant will not perform any services under this Agreement until: 

      (a)    Consultant furnishes proof of insurance (“Insurance”) as required 
under Exhibit “C” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein; and 

(b)  Consultant provides District with a Taxpayer Identification Number.   

6.2 The District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receiving written authorization to proceed for each 
Task Order, and Consultant acknowledges that any such services are at 
Consultant’s own risk. 

Section 7. Project Documents. 

7.1 All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies, 
surveys, reports, data, notes, computer programs, files and other 
documents (collectively, “Project Documents”) prepared, developed or 
discovered by Consultant in the course of providing services under this 
Agreement will become the sole property of District and may be used, 
reused or otherwise disposed of by District without the permission of 
Consultant.  Consultant will take such steps as are necessary to perfect or 
protect the ownership interest of District in such Project Documents.  Upon 
completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
turn over to District all such original Project Documents in its possession; 
provided, however, that Consultant may retain copies of Project 
Documents.   

7.2 Except as necessary for the performance of services under this Agreement, 
no Project Documents prepared under this Agreement, will be released by 
Consultant to any other person or entity without District’s prior written 
approval.  All press releases, including graphic display information to be 
published, must be approved and distributed solely by District, unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing by District. 

Section 8. Consultant’s Books and Records. 

8.1 Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records 
demonstrating or relating to Consultant’s performance of services under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of 
account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or 

Page 325 of 405



records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and 
disbursements charged to District under this Agreement.  Any and all such 
documents or records must be maintained in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and must be sufficiently complete and 
detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by 
Consultant under this Agreement.  Any and all such documents or records 
must be maintained for three (3) years following the final payment for each 
Task Order. 

8.2 Any and all records or documents required to be maintained by this section 
must be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during 
regular business hours, upon written request by District or its designated 
representatives.  Copies of such documents or records must be provided 
directly to District for inspection, audit and copying when it is practical to do 
so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such 
documents and records must be made available at Consultant’s address 
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement. 

8.3 Where District has reason to believe that any of the documents or records 
required to be maintained by this section may be lost or discarded due to 
dissolution or termination of Consultant’s business, District may, by written 
request, require that custody of such documents or records be given to a 
person or entity mutually agreed upon and that such documents and 
records thereafter be maintained by such person or entity at Consultant’s 
expense.  Access to such documents and records shall be granted to 
District, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized 
representatives. 

Section 9. Status of Consultant. 

9.1 Consultant is and will at all times remain a wholly independent contractor 
and not an officer or employee of District.  Consultant has no authority to 
bind District in any manner, or to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any 
kind on behalf of or against District, whether by contract or otherwise, unless 
such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise 
expressly conferred in writing by District. 

9.2 The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant will at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive direction and 
control.  Neither District, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, 
officials, employees or agents of District, will have control over the conduct 
of Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, subcontractors or sub-
consultants, employees or agents, except as provided in this Agreement.  
Consultant warrants that it will not at any time or in any manner represent 
that Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, employees or agents are in 

Page 326 of 405



any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of District. 

9.3 Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant’s officers, employees or agents, 
will obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which 
may otherwise accrue to District’s employees.  Consultant expressly waives 
any claim to any such rights or benefits. 

Section 10. Compliance with Applicable Laws and California Labor Code. 

10.1 Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and 
rules in effect during the term of this Agreement. 

10.2 Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections 
1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., which require the payment of prevailing wage 
rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” 
and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  If the services are 
being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” 
project, as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total 
compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with 
such Prevailing Wage Laws.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold 
the District, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless 
from any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or 
alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.  It shall be mandatory 
upon the Consultant and all subconsultants to comply with all California Labor 
Code provisions, which include but are not limited to prevailing wages (Labor Code 
Sections 1771, 1774 and 1775), employment of apprentices (Labor Code Section 
1777.5), certified payroll records (Labor Code Sections 1771.4 and 1776), hours 
of labor (Labor Code Sections 1813 and 1815) and debarment of contractors and 
subcontractors (Labor Code Section 1777.1).  The requirement to submit certified 
payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner under Labor Code section 
1771.4 shall not apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt 
pursuant to the small project exemption specified in Labor Code Section 1771.4. 

10.3 If the services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or 
“maintenance” project, then pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, 
the Consultant and all subconsultants performing such services must be registered 
with the Department of Industrial Relations.  Consultant shall maintain registration 
for the duration of the Agreement and require the same of any subconsultants, as 
applicable.  This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant’s 
sole responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance 
requirements.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the contractor registration 
requirements mandated by Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 shall not 
apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the 
small project exemption specified in Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1. 

10.4 This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement 
by the Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant’s sole 

Page 327 of 405



responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance 
requirements.  Any stop orders issued by the Department of Industrial Relations 
against Consultant or any subcontractor that affect Consultant’s performance of 
services, including any delay, shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility.  Any delay 
arising out of or resulting from such stop orders shall be considered Consultant 
caused delay and shall not be compensable by the District.  Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees and agents 
free and harmless from any claim or liability arising out of stop orders issued by 
the Department of Industrial Relations against Consultant or any subcontractor. 

Section 11. Conflicts of Interest. 

Consultant covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal nor 
employee of its firm, has or will acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, that would 
conflict in any manner with the interests of District or that would in any way hinder 
Consultant’s performance of services under this Agreement.  Consultant further 
covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal or employee of its firm 
will make, participate in the making, or in any way attempt to use the position of 
Consultant to influence any decision of the District in which Consultant knows or 
has reason to know that Consultant, or any officer, principal or employee of 
Consultant has a financial interest as defined in Government Code section 87103. 

Section 12. Confidential Information; Release of Information. 

12.1 All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in 
performance of this Agreement will be considered confidential to the full 
extent permitted by law, unless such information is in the public domain or 
already known to Consultant.  Consultant shall not release or disclose any 
such information or work product to persons or entities other than District 
without prior written authorization from an Authorized Representative, 
except as may be required by law. 

12.2 Consultant, its officers, employees, or agents, shall not, without prior written 
authorization from an Authorized Representative or unless requested by the 
District counsel, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, 
testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories or other information 
concerning the work performed under this Agreement.  Response to a 
subpoena or court order will not be considered “voluntary” provided 
Consultant gives District notice of such court order or subpoena.  

12.3 If Consultant, or any officer, employee, or agent of Consultant, provides any 
information or work product (including Project Documents) in violation of 
this Agreement, then District shall have the right to reimbursement and 
indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and fees, including 
attorneys’ fees related to any unauthorized disclosure by consultant or, 
caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant’s conduct. 

Page 328 of 405



12.4 Consultant shall promptly notify District should, Consultant, its officers, 
employees, or agents be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, 
notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for 
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any 
party regarding this Agreement and the services performed under this 
Agreement.  District retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent 
Consultant or be present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. 
Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with District and to provide District with 
the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Consultant.  However, this right to review any such response does not imply 
or mean the right by District to control, direct, or rewrite such response. 

Section 13. Indemnification. 
 

13.1 Consultant covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, 
any injury suffered as a result of Consultant’s services shall be the sole 
responsibility of Consultant and its successors and assigns and District shall not 
be liable to Consultant, or any other person or persons whatsoever for any such 
injury, loss or damage to persons or property unless caused by the sole negligence 
or intentional acts of District or its Representatives (as solely defined below).   
 
13.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, indemnify 
and hold District, its officers, directors and Representatives (“District Indemnitees”) 
harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, liabilities, debts, demands, 
suits, actions, causes of action, obligations, proceedings, damages, judgments, 
liens and expenses of whatever nature, including attorneys’ fees and 
disbursements (collectively, “Claims”) which may be made against the District 
Indemnitees arising out of or in connection with (a) the retention by District of 
Consultant’s services; (b) the performance of or failure to perform, the services 
covered by this Agreement which is caused or occasioned by any act, action, 
neglect on the part of Consultant, or its Representatives, in the performance of this 
Agreement and the services provided under this Agreement; (c) the death and/or 
injury to any person or damage to any property (real or personal) and/or economic 
loss which may be caused or is claimed to have been caused, by the negligence, 
act or omission of Consultant or its Representatives ; (d) any violation or alleged 
violation by Consultant of any law or regulation now or hereafter enacted; and (e) 
any breach by Consultant of its obligations under this Agreement.  The foregoing 
indemnity shall not apply to the extent any such Claims are ultimately established 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been caused by the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of the District Indemnitees or any of them.  District shall make 
all decisions with respect to its representation in any legal proceeding concerning 
this section.  If Consultant fails to do so, District shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to defend the Claim and charge all of the direct or incidental costs of 
such defense, including attorneys’ fees and costs, to Consultant and to recover the 
same from Consultant.  The term “Representatives” shall mean employees, 
representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors or any other persons directly 

Page 329 of 405



or indirectly employed by any one of the foregoing or reasonably under the control 
of any of the foregoing or for whose acts any of the foregoing may be liable. 
 
13.3 If Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and/or hold harmless arises 
out of Consultant’s performance of “design professional” services (as that term is 
defined under Civil Code section 2782.8), then, and only to the extent required by 
Civil Code section 2782.8, which is fully incorporated herein, Consultant’s 
indemnification obligation shall be limited to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or 
relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant, and, 
upon Consultant obtaining a final adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
Consultant’s liability for such claim, including the cost to defend, shall not exceed 
the Consultant’s proportionate percentage of fault. 

Section 14. Insurance. 

Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of 
this Agreement the insurance coverages listed in Exhibit “C.”  All insurance policies 
shall be subject to approval by District as to form and content.  These requirements 
are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by an Authorized 
Representative.   

Section 15. Assignment. 

15.1 The expertise and experience of Consultant are material considerations for 
this Agreement.  District has an interest in the qualifications of and capability 
of the persons and entities that will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed 
upon Consultant under this Agreement.  Consultant may not assign or 
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance 
of any of Consultant’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of District.  The District can withhold its 
approval/consent in its sole and absolute discretion.  Any attempted 
assignment will be null and void, and will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement entitling District to any and all remedies at law or in equity, 
including summary termination of this Agreement. 

15.2 Consultant must obtain District’s prior written approval before utilizing any 
subcontractors to perform any services under this Agreement, which said 
approval may be withheld in District’s sole and absolute discretion.  This 
written approval must include the identity of the subcontractor and the terms 
of compensation.  Approval by District does not imply any agreement to or 
endorsement by the District as to the competency or capability of any 
proposed subcontractor or sub-consultant, and District reserves any and all 
rights against both Consultant and such subcontractor or sub-consultant , 
for any failure to perform or other breach of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement, or the standards of performance defined herein, and no waiver 
is intended or to be implied by District’s approval of any subcontractor or 
sub-consultant.  

Page 330 of 405



Section 16. Termination of Agreement. 

16.1 District may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by 
giving ten (10) calendar days written notice of termination to Consultant.  In 
the event such notice is given, Consultant shall cease immediately all work 
in progress.   

16.2 Upon termination of this Agreement, all property belonging exclusively to 
District which is in Consultant’s possession, including, but not limited to, 
Project Documents must be returned to District immediately.  Consultant 
shall promptly deliver to District a final invoice for all outstanding services 
performed and expenses incurred by Consultant as of the date of 
termination.  If said termination occurs prior to completion of any Task Order 
for which a payment request has not been received, the charge for services 
performed during such task shall be the reasonable value of such services, 
based on an amount mutually agreed to by District and Consultant of the 
portion of such Task Order completed but not paid prior to said termination. 

16.3 Consultant acknowledges District’s right to terminate this Agreement as 
provided in this section, and hereby waives any and all claims for damages 
that might otherwise arise from District’s termination of this Agreement.  
District shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions 
thereof which are specified herein.  Consultant shall not be entitled to 
payment for unperformed services, and shall not be entitled to damages or 
compensation for termination of work. 

Section 17. Notices. 

17.1 All written notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 
will be deemed made when received by the other Party at its respective 
address as follows: 

To District:   West Valley Water District 
855 West Base Line Road 
P. O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA   92377 
Attention:  General Manager 

 
(Tel.) 909-875-1804 
(Fax) 909-875-1849 

 
To Consultant: Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
   Attention: Jeff Dunn PE 
   38 Technology Drive, Suite 200 

Irvine, CA 92618-5310 
(949)521-3110 
 

Page 331 of 405



** Please send all invoices by: 
 
Email: apinvoices@wvwd.org  
 
  or 
 
Mail:  West Valley Water District 
 Accounts Payable 
 P.O. Box 190 
 Rialto, CA 92377 
 

17.2 Notice will be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or 
transmitted by facsimile.  If the notice is mailed, notice will be deemed given 
three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States 
Postal Service, postage prepaid, for first class delivery, or upon delivery if 
using a major courier service with tracking capabilities. 

17.3 Any Party may change its notice information by giving notice to the other 
Party in compliance with this section. 

Section 18. General Provisions. 

18.1 Authority to Execute. Each Party represents and warrants that all 
necessary action has been taken by such Party to authorize the 
undersigned to execute this Agreement and to bind it to the performance of 
its obligations hereunder. 

18.2 Binding Effect.  Subject to Section 15, this Agreement is binding upon the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the Parties, 
including any subcontractors or sub-consultants of Consultant.  

18.3 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and all attachments contain the entire, 
complete, final and exclusive agreement and understanding of the Parties 
with respect to the matters addressed in this Agreement and supersedes all 
other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, between 
Consultant and District prior to the execution of this Agreement.   

18.4 Modification of Agreement.  No amendment to or modification of this 
Agreement will be valid unless made in writing and approved by Consultant 
and approved in writing by the Board of Directors of the District, or in writing 
by the General Manager, if such power has been delegated to General 
Manager.  The Parties agree that this requirement for written modifications 
cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver will be void. 

18.5 Facsimile Signatures.  Amendments to this Agreement will be considered 
executed when the signature of a Party is delivered by facsimile 

Page 332 of 405

mailto:apinvoices@wvwd.org


transmission.  Such facsimile signature will have the same effect as an 
original signature. 

18.6 Waiver.  Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or 
covenant of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other term, 
condition, or covenant.  Waiver by any Party of any breach of the provisions 
of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other provision, or a 
waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this 
Agreement.  Acceptance by District of any services by Consultant will not 
constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

18.7 Interpretation.  This Agreement will be interpreted, construed and 
governed according to the laws of the State of California.  Each Party has 
had the opportunity to review this Agreement with legal counsel.  The 
Agreement will be construed simply, as a whole, and in accordance with its 
fair meaning, and without resort to rules regarding draftsmanship.  It will not 
be interpreted strictly for or against either Party. 

18.8 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable, the Parties shall: (a) promptly negotiate a substitute for 
the provisions which shall to the greatest extent legally permissible, effect 
the intent of the Parties in the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, and 
(b) negotiate such changes in, substitutions for or additions to the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement as may be necessary in addition to and in 
conjunction with subsection (a) above to give effect to the intent of the 
Parties without the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision.  To the extent 
the Parties are unable to negotiate such changes, substitutions or additions 
as set forth in the preceding sentence, and the intent of the Parties with 
respect to the essential terms of the Agreement may be carried out without 
the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions, the balance of this 
Agreement shall not be affected, and this Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions did not exist. 

18.9 Venue.   The Parties agree any action or proceeding to enforce or relating 
to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in the federal court located 
in Riverside County, California or state court located in San Bernardino 
County, California and the Parties hereto consent to the exercise of 
personal jurisdiction over them by such courts for purposes of any such 
action or proceeding. 

18.10 Disputes.  If any disputes should arise between the Parties concerning the 
work to be done under this Agreement, the payments to be made, or the 
manner of accomplishment of the work, Consultant shall nevertheless 
proceed to perform the work as directed by District pending settlement of 
the dispute. 

Page 333 of 405



18.11 Cooperation.  Consultant shall cooperate in the performance of work with 
District and all other agents. 

18.12 Time of Essence.  Time shall be of the essence as to all dates and times 
of performance contained in this Agreement. 

18.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed and delivered in any 
number of counter parts, each of which, when signed and delivered, shall 
be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
  

Page 334 of 405



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

AND STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be 
executed effective as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 

DISTRICT: 
 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 

___________________________________  
John Thiel,  
General Manager 

 

___________________________________ 
 Elvia Dominguez,  

Board Secretary  
 
 
 

CONSULTANT: 
 

STANTECT CONSULTING SERVICES INC.  
 

By                             
 

Name        
 
Its ______________________________ 
 

 
By                             

 
Name ___________________________ 
 
its ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 

Page 335 of 405



EXHIBIT A 

TASK ORDER 
  

Page 336 of 405



 

TASK ORDER NO. _1__ 

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this _____ day of __________, 2023 
by and between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California 
(“District”) and _____________________ (“Consultant”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. On or about _________________, 2023 District and Consultant executed that 
certain Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”). 

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time, 
for the provision of certain services by Consultant. 

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task 
Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which 
Consultant shall render certain services to the District. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein.  

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement, District shall pay to Consultant the 
amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not 
exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional compensation is approved in 
writing by the District. 

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed 
from the District.  District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges 
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order.  As such, the terms 
and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

Page 337 of 405



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed 
effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
 
DISTRICT: 
 
 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 

 
_____________________________________  
John Thiel, General Manager 
 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
Vendor Name Here   ____________________ 
 
 
By        

 

Name        
 

Its        
 
 
 
 

 

Page 338 of 405



        EXHIBIT “1” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. __1__              
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 339 of 405



 
 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. __1__ 
 
 

COMPENSATION 
 
 
 
 

Page 340 of 405



EXHIBIT “3” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. __1__ 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
  

 

Page 341 of 405



EXHIBIT B 

KEY PERSONNEL 

 

Consultant’s designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its behalf and to 
make all decisions in connection with the performance of services under this Agreement 
are: 

 
Jeff Dunn, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Tama Snow, PE 
QA/QC Technical Advisor 
 
Roxana Carrillo 
Planning Lead 
 
Fletcher McKenzie, PE 
Hydraulic Model/Analysis 
 
Connie Adera, PE 
Regulatory Analysis (Water Quality) 
 
Vanessa Nishikawa, PE 
Regulatory Analysis (Water Conservation) 
 
Umesh Murthy, PE 
Treatment and Facility/Condition Evaluations 
 
Steven Wong, PE 
SE Storage Tank Seismic Evaluations  

   
 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 342 of 405



EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE 

 
  

Page 343 of 405



INSURANCE 

 
A. General Requirements.  Before commencing the performance of services under 

this Agreement, and at all other times this Agreement is effective, Consultant must 
procure and maintain the following types of insurance with coverage limits 
complying, at a minimum, with the limits set forth below: 

 
  Type of Insurance   Limits (combined single) 
 
  Commercial General Liability:  $1,000,000 
  Business Automobile Liability  $1,000,000   
  Professional Liability   $1,000,000   
  Workers Compensation   Statutory Requirement  
 
B. Commercial General Liability Insurance.  The amount of insurance set forth 

above must be a combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 
injury, and property damage for the policy coverage.  The insurance must be on 
an “occurrence” not a “claims made” basis. 

 
C. Business Automobile Insurance.  Automobile coverage must be written on forms 

subject to the written approval of District. 
 
D. Professional Liability Insurance.  This coverage must be on an “occurrence” 

basis, including coverage for contractual liability.  The Professional Liability 
Insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to claims 
based upon, arising out of or related to services performed under this Agreement.  

E. Workers Compensation.  Consultant must have a State of California approved 
policy form providing the statutory benefits required by law with employer’s liability 
limits of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for all covered losses, or Consultant 
must provide evidence of an approved self-insurance program. 

F. Additional Insureds.  Each Commercial General Liability Insurance policy and 
Business Auto Insurance policy must provide that the District, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents and volunteers are “additional insureds” under the terms of the 
policy, and must provide that an act or omission of one the insureds will not reduce 
or avoid coverage to the other insureds. 

G. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention.  Any deductibles or self-insured 
retentions applicable to the insurance policies required under this Agreement must 
be declared to and approved by District.  In no event may any required insurance 
policy have a deductible, self-insured retention or other similar policy provision in 
excess of $50,000 without prior written approval by District in its sole discretion.  
At the option of District, either the insurer will reduce or eliminate such deductibles 
or self-insured retentions with respect to the District’s additional insureds or 
Consultant will procure a bond guaranteeing payment of any losses, damages, 

Page 344 of 405



expenses, costs or settlements up to the amount of such deductibles or self-
insured retentions. 

H. Primary Insurance.  Each of the insurance policies maintained by Consultant 
under this Agreement must state that such insurance will be deemed “primary” so 
that any insurance that may be carried by District will be deemed excess to that of 
Consultant.  This endorsement must be reflected on forms as determined by 
District.   

I. Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements.  Prior to commencing any 
services under this Agreement, Consultant must file with the District certificates of 
insurance and endorsements evidencing the existence of all insurance required by 
this Agreement, along with such other evidence of insurance or copies of policies 
as may reasonably be required by District.  These certificates of insurance and 
endorsements must be in a form approved by the Legal Counsel.  Consultant must 
maintain current certificates and endorsements on file with District during the term 
of this Agreement reflecting the existence of all required insurance.  Each of the 
certificates must expressly provide that no material change in the policy, or 
termination thereof, will be effective except upon 30 days’ prior written notice to 
District by certified mail, return receipt requested.  The delivery to District of any 
certificates of insurance or endorsements that do not comply with the requirements 
of this Agreement will not waive the District’s right to require compliance. 

J. Insurance Rating.  All insurance required to be maintained by Consultant under 
this Agreement must be issued by companies licensed by or admitted to conduct 
insurance business in the State of California by the California Department of 
Insurance and must have a rating of A or better and Class VII or better by the latest 
edition of A.M. Best’s Key Rating Guide. 

K. Aggregate Limits.  The aggregate limits for each insurance policy required under 
this Agreement must apply separately and solely to the services performed under 
this Agreement.  If the required policies do not have an endorsement providing that 
the aggregate limit applies separately to the services being performed, or if 
defense costs are included in the aggregate limit, then the required aggregate 
limits must be increased to an amount satisfactory to District. 

L. Waiver of Subrogation Rights.  Consultant and each insurer providing any 
insurance required by this Agreement must waive all rights of subrogation against 
District, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, and each insurer 
must issue a certificate to the District evidencing this waiver of subrogation rights. 
 

M. Failure to Maintain Required Insurance.  If Consultant, for any reason, fails to 
obtain and maintain the insurance required by this Agreement, District may obtain 
such coverage at Consultant’s expense and deduct the cost of such insurance 
from payments due to Consultant under this Agreement or may terminate the 
Agreement. 

Page 345 of 405



N. Effect of Coverage.  The existence of the required insurance coverage under this 
Agreement shall not be deemed to satisfy or limit Consultant’s indemnity 
obligations under this Agreement.  Consultant acknowledges that the insurance 
coverage and policy limits set forth in this Agreement constitute the minimum 
coverage and policy limits required.  Any insurance proceeds available to District 
in excess of the limits and coverage required by this Agreement, and which is 
applicable to a given loss, must be made available to District to compensate it for 
such losses. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 346 of 405



TASK ORDER NO. 1 

Professional Service Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services Inc., for Master 
Planning Services for the Water Master Plan Update 

 

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this ___ day of _____, 2024 by and between 
West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California (“District”) and 
Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 

A. On or about                                      , 2024 District and Consultant executed that 
certain Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”). 

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time, 
for the provision of certain services by Consultant. 

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task 
Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which 
Consultant shall render certain services to the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement, District shall pay to Consultant the 
amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not 
exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional compensation is approved in 
writing by the District. 

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed 
from the District.  District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges 
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order.  As such, the terms 
and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

Page 347 of 405



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed 
effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
DISTRICT: 
 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 
 
 
 

John Thiel, General Manager 
 
 
 
 

Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

 
 
By        
 
Name        
 
Its        

 
 

By        
 
Name        
 
Its        
 

Page 348 of 405



EXHIBIT “1” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 1 
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 

Professional Services with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., for Master Planning 
Services for the Water Master Plan Update per the attached proposal dated September 
12, 2024. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 349 of 405



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

West Valley Water District 

Request for Proposals for a Water Master Plan Update 

S
ta

n
te

c
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 I

n
c

. 
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
2
, 

2
0
2
4

 

Page 350 of 405



Table of Contents  

1. Cover Letter 

2. Firm Background ................................................................. 1 

3. Statement of Understanding and Approach ..................... 3 

4. Scope of Work ..................................................................... 8 

5. Proposal Forms ................................................................. 15 

6. Additional Information ...................................................... 18 

7. Project Team Summary .................................................... 22 

8. Cost Estimates .................................................................. 26 

9. Schedule ............................................................................ 27 

10. Insurance ........................................................................... 28 

 

Appendix A - Resumes 

 

Page 351 of 405



September 12, 2024 

Purchasing/Inventory 

West Valley Water District 

855 West Baseline Road 

Rialto, CA 92376 

Reference: Proposal for a Water Master Plan Update 

Greetings Selection Committee,  

In response to West Valley Water District’s (District) Request for Proposal for a Water Master Plan Update, 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (Stantec) is pleased to provide you with our proposal. We understand that you 
are looking for an experienced consultant to prepare a comprehensive update to your 2020 Water Master Plan 
(WMP) and hydraulic water model.  This WMP Update will provide a comprehensive plan that incorporates 
recommended policies and best practices with capital improvements and costs for the orderly provisions of 
the water service within the District. Therefore, you will need an experienced, knowledgeable, and professional 
team that can successfully support the modeling and planning scope of services required.  Stantec is that 
team.  

Locally led with regional support: Stantec is well represented locally, and we bring the depth of experience that 
comes with more than 450 water resource specialists in California for more than 70 years. We pride ourselves 
in our ability to provide the resources of an international company to any local project. This ability is the result 
of strong project management and a commitment to provide the right people, with the right experience, on the 
right project, regardless of location.  

Customized team with relevant experience specific for this Project: We selected our team members based on 
their expertise and availability to successfully meet the objectives for your Project. Our team is led by Jeff 
Dunn, PE and supported by Roxana Carrillo as our Planning Lead who are intimately familiar with executing the 
scope of services proposed and together with many of our proposed team members herein have worked on 10 
water and infrastructure master planning studies in the last 5 years for clients such as Cucamonga Valley 
Water District, Irvine Ranch Water District, and Cities of Fullerton, Manhattan Beach, Orange, and Anaheim. 
Our team has the background and experience required for a successful completion to this Project.  

Hydraulic Modeling and Workshops: We are very familiar with Innovyze’s Infowater Pro modeling software and 
other tools necessary. Our experience described herewith includes experience using this software and 
updating previous models for current and accurate simulations of system operations. This familiarity not only 
provides us the advantage to efficiently work through tasks, but also an understanding of when clarifications 
and staff input may be applicable. For example, workshops with operations staff to update model settings and 
controls and review together the model’s responses and results are valuable for a trusted planning tool.  We 
are also proficient in using add-on tools such as the Pressure Zone Manager, Calibrator and Demand Allocator 
tools.  

Page 352 of 405



Proven Capital Improvement Plan priority strategy and approach: Based on our recent experience in developing 
and continually enhancing upon our approach to a strategic and prioritized capital improvement program, we 
offer an efficient and thorough approach to prioritizing capital improvements. Tailored criteria collaboratively 
established specific for the District can be established such as severity of deficiency, development or demand 
triggers, supply opportunities, or financial constraints will enable the improvement plan to be feasible for 
implementation. 

Value-Added Services: Because of our vast experience and resources available, we can provide additional 
value-added services that may benefit the District’s overall objectives for this Project. Services such as asset 
management with a thorough risk-based analysis prioritization framework and condition assessment of vertical 
assets may be discussed and negotiated as the project progresses. 

Committed Capabilities:  Your Water Master Plan Update and updates to the hydraulic model are our priority. 
We are led by a local manager and planning lead, available, and have the capacity and talent to deliver the 
services needed. We are committed to your success and to develop a strong foundation for a long-lasting 
partnership. 

We have reviewed the District’s Agreement for Professional Services, including insurance and indemnity 
requirements, and should we be selected for this work we can accept these terms.  The undersigned below 
understand the services to be provided and has binding authority on behalf of Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

Regards, 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

 

 

  

     
    
Jeff Dunn PE 
Project Manager 
Phone: 9495213110 
jeff.dunn@stantec.com 

   

Page 353 of 405



2.0 Firm Background 
Stantec is a leading provider of water resources 

planning and engineering services throughout the 

world, and we consistently rank in the Top 5 Design 

Firms for Water/Wastewater and currently are No. 2 in 

Water by Engineering News Record (2024). In 

partnership with our clients, we provide best-in-class 

solutions by leveraging strong local teams with a solid 

understanding of issues along with global expertise. 

We have planned, designed, built, and managed 

many of the largest and most technologically 

advanced projects in the world.  

Our local water resources professionals provide a 

wide variety of services throughout California, 

including integrated water resources master planning, 

recycled water and sewer collection system analyses 

and master planning, water and wastewater 

treatment, civil design, watershed management, 

operations and yield modeling, condition 

assessments, integrated ground and surface water 

modeling, hydrology and hydrogeology, aquifer 

recharge, storage and recovery, conjunctive use of 

surface water and groundwater, and database 

management. 

Our planning approaches and analyses, including 

innovative alternative solutions, have been a key 

factor in our successful planning studies. One of our 

strengths is the added value that our in-house 

resources bring to each planning project. This 

enables us to offer value-added services such as 

survey/geomatics, GIS expertise, funding and 

financial planning analyses, asset management, and 

condition assessment. 

 

 

 

 

Stantec staff offers a thorough understanding of the 

requirements, procedures, and protocols required by 

the request for proposals for the Water Master Plan 

Update. We have worked closely with regional and 

neighboring agencies over the past decade on 

several planning projects and design projects 

including water and recycled water planning studies 

and treatment systems designs. Recently our local 

staff have worked together on an Integrated Master 

Plan with Cucamonga Valley Water District and Water 

Master Plan for the City of Fullerton to name just two. 

Our Project Manager has also worked over the past 

decade with City of Ontario and Inland Empire Utilities 

Agency on many of their planning an modeling 

projects. 

A. Our Legal Name & Address 
Corporate Office 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
10160 112 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2L6 
Canada 
 
Stantec Inc. is a Corporation and 
publicly traded entities listed on the 
New York Stock Exchange (Symbol: 
STN) and the Toronto Stock 
Exchange (Symbol: STN). Stantec’s 
corporate office is located in 
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada.  

 

B. Legal Form of Company 
A New York Corporation 

 

C. Parent Company 
The parent company of Stantec 
Consulting Services Inc. is Stantec 
Inc. 

 

D. Representative Contact 
Jeff Dunn PE  |  Project Manager 
38 Technology Drive 
Irvine, CA 92618 
(949) 521-3110 
Jeff.dunn@stantec.com 

E. California Business License 
3259819 

 

Stantec Resources 
________________________ 
 
Offices 
7 in southern California 
26 total in California 
400+ companywide 
 
Water Resource Team Members 
91+ local 
229+ in California 

Page 354 of 405



2.1 Staffing  

Our proposed local team brings decades of 

experience in working together as a team on various 

planning studies and water master plans specifically. 

Our team has worked together on updating water 

master plans throughout southern California for our 

clients including City of Anaheim, City of Orange, City 

of Manhattan Beach, City of Fullerton, Cucamonga 

Valley Water District, and subarea master plans for 

Irvine Ranch Water District. 

As described in detail in our Project Team Summary, 

Section 7.0, our team is led and managed by local 

experts in water master planning and supported with 

specialists throughout the State of California as 

needed. 

Our proposed Project Manager, Jeff Dunn, PE is a 

Principal Engineer with over 30 years of experience 

and leads Stantec’s California Planning and Modeling 

Group. Jeff is locally based in the Irvine office. Our 

Quality Assurance/Quality Control and Technical 

Advisor, Tama Snow, PE is based in our San Diego 

office. Tama Snow is a Vice President overseeing our 

water team in California and has over 33 years of 

experience in water resources planning and design.  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Stantec Presence in California 

Page 355 of 405



3.0 Statement of 
Understanding and 
Approach 
The West Valley Water District (District) is pursuing 

an update on its 2020 Water Master Plan (WMP), 

which will provide the District with a comprehensive 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP), including a 

realistic implementation plan, and a long-term road 

map for successful management of the District’s 

water resources.  

Increase Sustainable and Local Water Supply  

The District meets its water demands with a 

combination of local surface water, groundwater, and 

imported water supplied from the State Water Project 

(SWP) through the San Bernardino Valley Municipal 

Water District. The District receives imported water 

through the Lytle Turnout, which is treated at the 

District’s Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility. 

According to the 2020 Upper Santa Ana River 

Watershed Integrated Regional Urban Water 

Management Plan, the District anticipates a 

population growth of 55% by 2045, resulting in a 48% 

increase in water demands. 

Since the previous 2020 WMP update, there have 

been been changes in conservation efforts, water 

resource planning, land use designations, increased 

treatment capacity at the Oliver P. Roemer Water 

Filtration Facility, increased system demands, and 

projected growth that require the plan to be updated. 

Develop Reliable and Resilient Infrastructure 

The District currently serves 

100,000 customers through 

it’s water delivery system that 

consists of 25 reservoirs with 

a storage capacity of 72.76 

million gallons (MG), 15 

booster pumping stations, 19 

active groundwater wells, a 

fluidized bed reactor treatment 

plant for groundwater, the 

Oliver P. Roemer Water 

Filtration Facility, over 415 

miles of water mains, and over 

25,000 service connections 

spread across 8 pressure 

zones which are divided into a 

northern and southern system 

with the area in between 

served by the City of Rialto. A water system of this 

complexity requires an experienced team to conduct 

the Water Master Plan Update so the District can be 

confident in the capital improvements that will be 

necessary over the next 5 years. 

3.1 Technical Approach 
We understand the District’s primary objectives in the 

WMP Update is identifying needed water system 

improvements that incorporates current water 

conservation efforts and projected water quality 

regulatory programs, and have a comprehensive 

understanding of the estimated costs to implement 

the Capital Improvements that will be necessary to 

support the projected growth. Stantec will produce a 

contemporary water master plan that recommends 

policies and best practices, capital improvements and 

other measures for the proper management of the 

water service within the District. Orderly provisions for 

proper management of the water system will focus on 

optimum reliability and resiliency, while meeting 

regulatory requirements. To meet these objectives, 

we have tailored our approach to provide the District 

with the following: 

• Water Supply and Demand Analysis to 

support the District with the goal of reliable, 

local, and sustainable supplies to meet the 

anticipated demands. 

• A fully calibrated hydraulic model, that 

provides a reliable planning tool to evaluate 

the useful life of the District’s water 

distribution system due to aging as well as 

performing analyses for water supply, fire flow 

storage capacity, and 

pump station capacity. 

• Comprehensive CIP 

that will include an 

implementation strategy 

that prioritizes projects 

taking into consideration 

improvements driven by 

capacity deficiencies and 

level of risk based on the 

condition of existing 

facilities. Each capital 

improvement identified 

and recommended will 

include a project 

description, cost, initiation 

triggers, and anticipated 

construction timeline. 

Page 356 of 405



• Regulatory Analyses evaluating current, new, 

or anticipated regulations including water 

conservation, drought planning, and water 

quality (arsenic, chromium-6, PFAS, etc.) in 

addition to seismic freeboard evaluation 

based on sloshing wave height requirements 

in accordance with AWWA. 

Reliable Planning Tool 

The District has several ongoing capital improvement 

projects including reservoir rehabilitation, groundwater 

treatment plant expansion, Oliver P. Roemer Water 

Filtration Facility expansion, pump station 

construction, and others. As the District progresses 

through implementation of its CIP, it will be important 

to have a hydraulic model that will allow for the 

flexibility to plan for the rapid growth that will impact 

the water distribution system. Our experience has 

demonstrated that an appropriately setup hydraulic 

model with organized scenarios and datasets 

establishes the foundation for these types of updates. 

Answering the needs of future developments by 

simple updates to the model and its scenarios is 

critical for using the model as a planning tool moving 

forward. 

Model Accuracy 

For improved accuracy, the hydraulic model will 

incorporate the following: 

• Detailed review of as-builts and recent 

operational data will be used to update the 

hydraulic model (using InfoWater Pro) to reflect 

the current physical and operational conditions 

provided by the District. 

• Working with District operations staff, Stantec 

will use SCADA data and fire flow field data to 

calibrate and verify the new hydraulic model. 

For proper system evaluation of supply reliability, 

system optimization, and for any future water age 

analyses to be conducted, an accurate hydraulic 

model calibration will be required that represents the 

water systems field conditions. Stantec will work to 

achieve a model calibration accurate to within 10% 

between the model and field measured results. Our 

approach will be to calibrate the model for both 

pressure and flow conditions. A pressure-based 

calibration will be conducted using steady-state 

simulations to validate the model against field data 

from various hydrant flow tests throughout the system 

that stresses it enough to provide adequate hydraulic 

results for the model. A workshop will be held with the 

District operations staff to determine the best fire flow 

test locations. Following the workshop, Stantec will  

prepare a flow testing plan. 

Our subconsultant, SoCal Flow Testing, will perform 

hydrant flow tests and Stantec will provide field 

coordination. Ideally, to fully stress the system, testing 

and calibration is performed during the summer peak 

demand months. However, the proposed schedule for 

this project will require this activity to occur in late 

winter or early spring. Rather than pushing the entire 

schedule out six months, we propose to increase the 

flow from the hydrants to be tested by opening two or 

more hydrants at a time as opposed to a single 

hydrant. We also can request any historical hydrant 

flow or testing information that may have been done 

during the peak demand months to use for validating 

the model against maximum day demands (MDD). 

We will also use historical SCADA as available. 

Workshops will be held with operations staff to verify 

extended period simulation (EPS), maximum day 

operation, and system performance conditions. 

For each of the flow test locations, it is recommended 

to stress the system by strategically located tests, 

opening two fire hydrants as needed, or adjusting 

pumping and supply operations to the zone. Stantec 

will need to communicate with operations staff to 

coordinate testing locations and for any 

recommendations for operational adjustments for the 

tests. Flow calibration will be performed using SCADA 

information with an EPS MDD conditions model 

calibration scenario. A system operating controls 

workshop will be conducted prior to EPS model 

calibration. We will meet with operations staff to 

review/obtain facility control data including pressure 

regulating valve set points, pump station start/stop set 

points, flow control valve settings, tank level controls, 

and other operations pertaining to EPS calibration. 

Dependable Water Demand and Supply Analysis 

Stantec recognizes water demand trends change over 

time based on a variety of factors including 

population, current demand management measures 

implemented, high efficiency fixtures, economic, and 

climate changes. As water suppliers project future 

water demands, factors applied to water demands 

need to be adaptable to the ever-changing 

environment. Recent studies have evaluated demand 

projections of urban water suppliers and determined 

water suppliers have been overestimating demands.1 

Overestimation has been due to a variety of factors 

including inaccurate population projections and recent 

successful water conservation efforts. As shown on 

the Urban Water Demand Projections figure, 

demands in the lower range consider high 

Page 357 of 405



conservation efforts and low population growth. 

Demands in the high range assume low conservation 

efforts and high population growth. This range in 

demands will paint a better picture of future water 

needs for the District and allow for trigger-based 

supply planning. 

For your master plan to be a useful planning tool, 

accurate estimation of demand projections plays an 

important role. Projecting for future conditions will 

require additional considerations such as using 

appropriate forecasting methods, water conservation, 

and changing water consumption patterns. In our 

approach, we will develop factors and demand 

projections that are consistent with the District’s 

current Urban Water Management Plan, as well as 

using population, land use factors, and a linear 

regression analysis based on historical data to 

develop accurate factors. 

Capital Improvement Strategy 

Capital improvements are significantly important in 

meeting the District’s overall goals, particularly 

knowing when the improvements and funding are 

needed. We will synthesize findings from the existing 

and future potable water system analyses and 

hydraulic modeling into a detailed, prioritized, and 

phased CIP. The CIP will identify projects and facility 

needs, including an opinion of probable construction 

costs that accounts for design, construction, and 

construction management for each recommended 

project. The opinion of probably construction costs will 

be a level V cost estimate accurate to within – 20% to 

+50% which is typical for planning level construction 

cost estimates.  

The project costs will be provided in five-year 

increments for each capital improvement, and sub 

categorized by infrastructure type (pipe, pump, etc.). 

This information will be clearly presented in narrative, 

tabular, and graphic form in the final master plan and 

categorized by planning horizon, improvement type, 

and cost.  

In addition to a prioritized CIP, we will use data 

provided by the District and estimate the CIP 

incremental rehabilitation and replacement costs. This 

is accomplished by estimating the cost to replace the 

system in kind from supplied information, and then 

fractionalizing the cost to a yearly total based on 

factors such as useful life, pipe material, and pipe 

break history. This is incredibly useful in planning for 

the full cost of capital improvements and system 

maintenance and Stantec has been performing similar 

analyses for other Southern California clients.  

If the District is interested in a CIP prioritization 

strategy, a Risk Based Project Prioritization 

Framework is offered as an optional additional 

service.  

 Urban Water Demand Projections 

Page 358 of 405



Regulatory Experience 

Our team is up to date with drinking water regulations 

and water quality parameters that affect public water 

systems. We understand that the USEPA and 

California State Water Resources Control Board 

(State Water Board) is continuously updating 

regulations such as Hexavalent Chromium, 

Microplastics, Lead and Copper Rule (LCR), PFAS, 

and emerging contaminants. 

Our approach will include identifying and discussing 

new drinking water regulations impacting the District’s 

water distribution system since the previous WMP 

update in 2020. We will also verify the District is in 

compliance with these regulations and provide a 

summary of the groundwater quality, treated water 

quality, and water quality in the District’s distribution 

system.  

In addition, the changing climate requires Californians 

to adopt permanent changes to make water 

conservation a way of life, using water more wisely to 

prepare for more frequent periods of limited water 

supply. The State Water Resources Control Board 

has established water conservation regulations based 

on Senate Bill 1157 that mandates reducing the per 

capita indoor residential water use to 47 gpcd by 2025 

and 42 gpcd by 2030. Stantec can provide an 

overview of existing drought and conservation 

regulations to ensure the regulations are being met by 

the District.  

Storage Evaluations 

 Our storage evaluations will include a sloshing wave 

height and seismic analysis to determine the 

recommended freeboard for each reservoir and will 

be compared against the freeboard provided. Any 

available condition assessment reports would also be 

of value if the District has these available. If previous 

condition assessments have not been conducted, 

Stantec can perform a condition assessment as an 

optional additional service.  

For thorough evaluation of storage capacity and 

impacts to any freeboard adjustments, we will conduct 

a storage analysis for each reservoir and storage 

service zone. We will develop the storage 

requirements by creating Storage Zones from GIS 

parcel demands, diurnal demand patterns and 

pumping supply analyses, and take into consideration 

time of use pumping. Additionally, we will verify 

through the hydraulic model zones with more than one 

tank, and if multiple tanks can supply the entire 

storage zone. 

Using the GIS parcel base, we will create storage 

zones from overlaying the water system and tank 

facilities with the pressure zone polygons. These 

parcels, which will contain water demand information 

based on the parcel land use and duty factors, will 

then be exported to a spreadsheet for storage 

calculations. 

Successful Project Management Methods 

Our systematic approach to managing projects is the 

Project Management Framework (Framework) —

aligned with the Project Management Institute’s 

Project Management Body of Knowledge and used 

continuously throughout Stantec’s projects 

successfully.   

It provides a structure that incorporates work efforts, 

schedule, financial controls, quality assurance/control 

(QA/QC), and ultimate project delivery.  

Project manager Jeff Dunn will perform project 

management activities using the Framework. Jeff has 

GIS Parcel Base to Storage Zone Analysis Approach 

 

Reliable and 

Resilient System 

CIP 
Strategy 

Modeling 

Page 359 of 405



expertise in managing and developing water master 

plans for local cities and public agencies, including 

recent Water Master Plan Updates for the City of 

Fullerton, City of Orange, City of Anaheim, and the 

Cucamonga Valley Water District. 

Workshops with Operational Staff 

We propose conducting workshops at key stages of 

the project as described in our scope herein where we 

feel it would be important to:  

• Present findings and/or exchange ideas for 

key decision making during the project. 

• Obtain important feedback to more effectively 

complete the calibrations, analyses and 

recommendations. 

• Discuss with Engineering and Operations 

staff regarding the water system controls, 

settings, and other constraints that are 

needed for accurate modeling. 

These workshops will bring your staff and our team 

together for the sharing of our ideas and analyses to 

provide opportunity for improved input and direction. 

Efficient Quality Assurance/Control (QA/QC) 

Program  

The high quality of our team’s work depends on the 

competence and capabilities of individual staff 

members and blending of their talents to meet specific 

project requirements. Stantec has proposed a 

talented team to deliver your planning documents and 

values the necessity for a sound technical approach 

to delivering final work products. There are three 

components to our team’s quality management, 

Quality Planning, Quality Assurance, and Quality 

Control. 

We have made a significant investment in our overall 

quality management process to ensure we are 

providing high quality deliverables to our clients.   

Adherence to Stantec’s quality management 

procedures is an integral and inseparable part of our 

basic project management activities. Our practice 

places great emphasis on prevention (QA), while 

maintaining checks and balances for inspection (QC). 

  

Page 360 of 405



4.0 Scope of Work 
The proposed scope of work for the WMP Update and 

hydraulic model update identifies improvements to the 

District’s water treatment and distribution system to 

support future growth while ensuring the District 

provides adequate services to their customers.  

4.1 Comprehensive Plan 
The comprehensive WMP Update will include a table 

of contents, list of tables, list of figures, glossary of 

terms, appendices, and chapters for each of the 

following items based on the District’s RFP: 

4.1.1 Executive Summary 
Stantec will provide an executive level summary of 

the WMP providing an overview of the report and 

briefly describing each highlight.  

4.1.2 Introduction 
In the Introduction, we will include a brief background 

of the District’s potable water distribution system, 

outline of objectives, summary of relevant reports, 

and the need for the WMP update.  

4.1.3 Planning Area Characteristics 
Stantec will provide a discussion of the District’s 

service area, land use, and population based on the 

review of various City and County General Plans as 

well as the District’s Urban Water Management Plan. 

The service area will include a description of the north 

and south service areas, as well as any sub-areas 

identified in the General Plans. Land use will be 

defined by classification and summarized based on 

existing and future acreage outlined in the General 

Plans. Historical and future population will be 

discussed based on data provided by the District and 

publicly available information. The service area, land 

use, and population will be evaluated based on 

existing conditions as well as 5-year and buildout 

projections. The buildout year will be based on the 

City and County General Plans and will be finalized 

with the District.  

A workshop may be needed to coordinate with the 

City and County planning or public works department 

to discuss the General Plans.  

4.1.4 System Performance and 
Design Criteria 
Planning and evaluation criteria provide a means by 

which the hydraulic performance and reliability of an 

existing system can be evaluated, and for planning of 

facilities to meet future system conditions and 

demands. Criteria will be recommended based on 

established criteria by the District as well as American 

Water Works Association (AWWA) guidelines for 

potable water system planning. 

Stantec will describe the design criteria required for: 

• Supply criteria (based on historical water use 

trends) 

• Water distribution system criteria (such as 

pipeline diameter, velocities, pressures, etc.) 

• Storage criteria (including emergency, 

operational, and fire flow emergency storage) 

• Fire flow criteria (based on land use) 

Unit factors and peaking factors will be established in 

the Water Demands and Supply Characteristics 

section. 

4.1.5 Existing Domestic Water 
Facilities 
Based on our review of the background data and 

discussions with staff, Stantec will include a chapter in 

the WMP providing a description of the District’s water 

distribution system incorporating the following: 

• Provide general description of the water 

distribution system including supply sources, 

pressure zones, transmission and distribution 

mains, and all facilities. 

• Prepare a Water System Hydraulic Profile 

Schematic, illustrating hydraulic grades for 

each of the eight pressure zones including 

the supply, storage, and pumping facilities. 

• Develop inventory tables with detailed design 

and operating information for the pressure 

reducing valves/stations, booster pump 

stations, reservoirs, wells, interagency 

emergency connections, and turnouts.  

4.1.6 Water Demands and Supply 
Characteristics 
Stantec will include a description of the existing 

sources of water supply, including regulatory, 

Page 361 of 405



contractual, and policy framework that allows for 

these supplies. Water demand projections will 

consider future development and conservation efforts.  

The total water demand will be estimated based on 

the supply production data in conjunction with the 

billing data to determine demands by land use and 

spatial allocation for modeling purposes. The demand 

is defined as the consumption data plus the water 

loss component. The water loss will be estimated 

based on the difference between the consumption 

data and total production data from the District’s 

supplies. 

We will identify the demand for each of the following 

sub-categories based on the available data. 

• Residential (Single and Multiple Family) 

• Commercial (Office, Retail) 

• Industrial 

• Landscaping (Golf Course, Parks) 

• Institutional (Schools, Municipal) 

“Duty factors” will be established for each 

subcategory to allow forecasting of future water usage 

and modeling of the system based on the land use 

methodology. Units for these duty factors will be 

verified with the District. In addition to the duty factors, 

we will determine water usage patterns to determine 

the hourly diurnal pattern for purposes of the EPS 

model analyses. SCADA information in 15-minute 

intervals, or as available, from each of the supply 

facilities, pump stations, tanks and any pressure 

regulating stations that may be equipped with 

SCADA. SCADA and billing data will also be reviewed 

determine MDD and peak hour demand (PHD) 

factors. 

Stantec will project future water demands for the 

Near-Term (5-year) and Long-Term (buildout) 

planning horizons to coincide with the hydraulic 

analyses described below. The demand projections 

will include and consider the following: 

• Projections will be consistent with other 

planning documents, including the District’s 

Urban Water Management Plan. General 

Plans and any specific planning documents 

will be reviewed and used for developing land 

use information. 

• The population and housing growth that could 

result from Regional Housing Needs 

Allocation (RHNA) requirements and Senate 

Bill 9 – the California Housing Opportunity 

and More Efficiency (HOME) Act. 

• The long-term water conservation anticipated 

to result from implementation of SB 606 and 

AB 1668 requirements (Making Water 

Conservation A California Way of Life). 

• The potential effects of hydrological 

conditions, economic conditions, behavioral 

and social changes in water usage. 

• The constraints for groundwater and surface 

water sources as well as impacts from water 

quality.  

4.1.7 Hydraulic Model Update & 
Calibration 
The District’s existing hydraulic model uses 

Innovyze’s InfoWater software, Stantec recommends 

a new hydraulic model using Innovyze’s InfoWater 

Pro software. The following activities are proposed for 

this task: 

• Review existing hydraulic model (InfoWater) 

and recommend an efficient approach for 

incorporating the existing model data into the 

new InfoWater Pro.  

• Obtain latest, since previous 2020 model 

update, water system GIS database and 

operational data for water lines and water 

facilities (pumps, pump stations, tanks, and 

wells) and update the parameters for facilities 

and control structures. We will then identify if 

additional data gaps in the model and collect 

any additional necessary information from the 

District. 

• Incorporate physical and operational 

attributes of major system components 

including, but not limited to, all 4” and larger 

pipelines, wells, tanks, pump stations, 

regulating valves, system valves, hydrants, 

and turnouts. 

• Update demand nodes with the updated 

average day demand (ADD) and a MDD to 

the appropriate model nodes utilizing the 

District’s billing data, assuming data is 

complete and accurate.  

• Calibrate hydraulic water model for pressure 

and flow using both steady-state conditions 

and EPS for as close to MDD conditions as 

possible to adequately stress the system. 

Page 362 of 405



 

Hydrant Flow Testing 

For the steady-state calibration, we will use the data 

from the fire hydrant flow tests.  It is recommended to 

use the monthly historic billing data to determine the 

month at or near maximum water usage, which could 

be between June and August. 

Prior to the field flow testing, we will provide flow test 

sheets for your review. We will then conduct a brief 1-

hour Field-Testing Procedures Workshop which will 

have operations staff present. We will discuss and 

review number of potential hydrant tests, their 

locations, equipment installation needs, and pressure 

loggers. At the workshop, we will show maps that can 

be marked up for potential testing locations. Locations 

will be reviewed for traffic concerns and the best 

potential for stressing the water system for 

determining the calibration attributes. 

We assume SCADA data can be provided for supply 

facilities including pressure and flow information at the 

wells and pump stations, water level at the tanks, flow 

from import connections, and potential interagency 

connections. Ideally, and SCADA through pressure 

reducing stations is preferred to calibrate the sub-

zones. 

Our subconsultant, SoCal Flow Testing, will perform 

hydrant testing using a calibrated pressure transducer 

at the static/residual (“test”) hydrant paired to a radio 

transmitter. At the flow hydrant, another calibrated 

pressure transducer will report the flowing pitot 

pressure, and a radio receiver that displays both 

values. For each test location, more than one test 

may be conducted with pumps on or off at key 

facilities. Pressure loggers will also be installed at 

various locations within the pressure zone being 

tested. 

Steady State Calibration 

Results of the field tests will be combined with the 

available SCADA for the time of each test. This 

combined field data set will be used to compare 

against the modeling results. The model will be 

calibrated until the field measurements and model 

results are as close as possible to field 

measurements. Pipe roughness coefficients (c-

factors) will be adjusted based on age, diameter, and 

material to match measured pressures. The goal is to 

calibrate the model within 10% of the field 

measurements. 

EPS Calibration 

The EPS calibration will be for MDD and consist of 

adding/modifying operational controls to meet SCADA 

data and calibration criteria for tanks, pump stations, 

control valves, and production facilities/boundary 

connections. Calibration will include review of storage 

facility fill times, drain times, operating range and 

overall diurnal patterns; pump pressure and flow 

rates; boundary connection pressure and flow rates. 

Hydraulic modeling output data will be presented in 

graphical format with corresponding SCADA data, so 

that model results can be visually compared. 

Stantec will hold a Calibration Workshop with District 

Staff to review the model. Once the initial calibration 

is complete, we will conduct a workshop with 

engineering and operations staff to review the field, 

SCADA, modeling results, and accuracy achieved. At 

the workshop, we will open the model to show input 

and resulting conditions, and request operations staff 

to comment on accuracy of model settings, controls, 

and general behavior in predicting real system 

conditions. After this workshop, we will finalize 

calibration of the model based on any adjustments 

and input provided by District engineering and 

operations staff. 

Training 

We will provide training workshops and a training 

manual to District staff on how to run the model to 

demonstrate various flow and system configuration 

scenarios including but not limited to: 

• Conducting single and multiple hydrant fire 

flow evaluations. 

• Creating basic pipe alignment networks.  

• Loading new potable water and fire flow 

demands. 

• Running various system scenarios such as 

closed valves, ADD, MDD, MDD plus fire 

flow, etc.   

Hourly rates to provide subsequent training during the 

term of the agreement are based on the Rate 

Schedule included with our Fee Proposal bound 

separately.  

4.1.8 Evaluation and Propose 
Improvements 
As we prepare the model scenarios and datasets in 

the model and perform the water system evaluations 

including recommendations for any improvements, we 

will consider the following: 

Page 363 of 405



• Inputs from the District’s Water Engineering 

and Operations staff. 

• The expected outcome of its implementation, 

including effectiveness for increasing 

resiliency. 

• Water quality considerations. 

• Treatment improvements based on capacity 

and other needs with familiarity to the 

Roemer Facility. 

• Technological advances, especially in water 

treatment, identifying the potential 

advantages and disadvantages. 

• Consistency with infrastructure plans laid out 

in the WMP. 

• Capital and O&M costs. 

• Regulatory framework, including federal, 

state, and local regulations, codes, standards, 

policies, permit requirements, etc. that may 

support or hinder implementation. 

• Other implementation challenges. For 

example, address outside entity cooperation 

required for each of the options, as 

applicable. 

• Vulnerabilities due to climate change.  

• System aging based on installation year and 

maintenance records.  

We will utilize the calibrated hydraulic model to 

complete the following tasks: 

• Create appropriate data sets and scenarios to 

analyze, evaluate, test and plan upgrades for 

the water system under normal demand 

conditions, which are assumed to be ADD, 

MDD, PHD, and EPS.  

• Create appropriate datasets, scenarios, and 

facility sets to analyze the current and build 

out conditions to determine capacity and 

deficiencies within the existing water system 

in near-term (5-year) and long- term (buildout) 

planning horizons. 

• For each demand and planning horizon 

scenario, we will analyze the distribution 

system, wells, reservoirs, and booster pump 

stations to determine if they are adequate to 

meet the District’s facility sizing criteria and to 

determine storage required for operational, 

emergency, and fire flow conditions. These 

efforts may include, but not be limited to: 

o Identify areas of deficient 

serviceability pressure and velocity. 

o Identify pipelines that should be 

replaced due to insufficient fire flow 

pressure and/or fire flow velocity. 

o Determine the adequacy of the PRVs 

based on fire flow and deficient flow 

pressure. 

o Identify deficiencies in storage. 

o Identify deficiencies in booster pump 

capacity. 

o Recommend capacity and quantity of 

production wells for water supply 

deficiencies. 

• Mitigation of a deficiency or improvement 

recommendation may have alternative 

solutions. Therefore, we will analyze water 

system improvement alternatives, which may 

include alternatives for improving the 

transmission mains, storage, pumping and 

distribution system improvement needs. 

These alternatives will be evaluated as the 

initial improvement recommendation is 

developed. Alternatives will be reviewed and 

discussed with the District at a system 

evaluations workshop. 

• Conduct desktop evaluation of treatment 

facility expansion needs based on demand 

increases from rapid growth projections. 

Current seismic freeboard requirements will also be 

summarized in the WMP. Existing available condition 

assessment reports will be reviewed to evaluate if the 

existing system storage capacity meets the seismic 

freeboard requirements. If a condition assessment 

has not been conducted for the water system, Stantec 

can perform these services as an added service 

outlined in Section 6.0 of this proposal. 

4.1.9 Capital Improvement Program 
Stantec will develop a 5-year (near-term) and a 

buildout (long-term) capital improvement plan (CIP) 

based on the results of the existing and future system 

hydraulic analyses to identify hydraulic deficiencies 

and make recommendations on proposed 

improvements and where and when replacement or 

rehabilitation is needed. 

Page 364 of 405



Our recommendations for improvements to the water 

distribution system pipelines, groundwater wells, 

imported water connections, pump stations, storage 

facilities, and treatment facilities, will consider cost 

effectiveness of capital improvements as well as 

minimizing annual operation and maintenance costs. 

Cost impacts related to the reduced storage capacity 

due to seismic freeboard requirements will also be 

included.  

When evaluating improvements, and depending upon 

the locations and general constraints, we will also 

consider construction methodologies and innovative 

technologies, installation methods (e.g., trenchless), 

and materials that can or should be incorporated with 

the recommended improvements. These 

methodologies will be considered at a high planning 

level with the assumption that further preliminary 

design and planning analyses will be performed for 

each recommendation. Stantec will also consider rate 

payer vs capacity funded CIP projects and possible 

collaboration with other agencies or stakeholders.  

We will develop planning level unit cost estimates to 

be used for the quantities determined for each CIP 

project recommended. The unit costs will be based on 

total project estimates including design, construction, 

construction management, administrative/legal, and 

other contingencies. Our Cost Estimator specialist will 

assist our team in developing the unit costs to use for 

this project based on recent construction bids for 

similar construction in and around the District and tied 

to the latest ENR index. 

4.1.10 Regulatory Analysis 
The State Water Resources Control Board has 

established water conservation regulations that 

requires Californians to adopt permanent changes to 

make water conservation a way of life. To address the 

District’s water conservation efforts, Stantec will: 

• Develop “conservation factors” to project 

future water demands, meeting the new water 

conservation legislation (Senate Bill 1157) 

passed by the State of California in 

September 2022 that mandates reducing the 

per capita indoor residential water use to 47 

gpcd by 2025 and 42 gpcd by 2030. 

• Evaluate and recommend feasible strategies 

for the District to encourage its customers to 

use water more wisely and eliminate water 

waste. 

• Provide drought planning to strengthen local 

drought resiliency and overall improve water 

use efficiency while meeting regulations. 

Stantec will include a section in the WMP discussing 

the quality of the District’s water supplies including the 

following items: 

• A discussion of drinking water regulations and 

water quality parameters that affect the wells 

and the system. We understand that the 

USEPA and State Water Resources Control 

Board have new regulations related to 

Hexavalent Chromium Microplastics, Lead 

and Copper Rule (LCR), and Cross 

Connection Control.  

• In addition to the PFAS regulations and other 

known contaminants, a discussion on 

emerging contaminants that may affect the 

District’s water supply will be included. 

• We will prepare a range of water quality and 

regulatory constraint scenarios that result in 

differing levels of groundwater availability and 

treatment requirements. We will review the 

District’s water quality data and sampling 

locations to prepare a table and comparison 

with the MCL or MCLG limits for the 

groundwater sources. Stantec will also review 

the District’s Operation and Maintenance 

programs that may impact the water quality in 

the system. 

• Based on our review of the regulations and 

emerging contaminants we will provide a 

general description of the District’s future 

water treatment needs.  

4.2 Project Management, 
Meetings, and Workshops 
Stantec will compile, review, and analyze the reports 

and data on the existing water system provided by the 

District, including the District’s 2020 Water Facilities 

Master Plan, General Plans, the Division of Drinking 

Water compliance requirements under the Permit to 

Operate, GIS files, utility billing data, SCADA records, 

water supply agreements and contracts, etc. These 

items will be coordinated for receipt at the project 

kickoff meeting.  

As part of the collection process, we will prepare a 

data collection tracking log that lists the data 

requested including the date of the request, 

description of the data, expected format of the data, 

Page 365 of 405



date received, and general description of the 

condition of the data. 

We propose conducting workshops at key stages of 

the project as described in our scope herein where we 

feel it would be important to:  

• Present findings and/or exchange ideas for 

key decision making during the project. 

• Obtain important feedback to more effectively 

complete the calibrations, analyses and 

recommendations. 

• Discuss with Engineering and Operations 

staff regarding the water system controls, 

settings, and other constraints that are 

needed for accurate modeling.  

• These workshops will bring your staff and our 

team together for idea sharing and to provide 

the opportunity for improved input and 

direction. 

We recommend that these workshops be attended by 

District senior members of our staff and your 

operations and engineering staff. We will need to 

discuss operational parameters, controls, and settings 

that will enable the model to be run accurately. In 

addition, the operations staff can comment on areas 

where the model results may be intuitive. Meetings 

and workshops will include:  

• Kickoff Meeting 

• Monthly Progress Meetings (or as needed) 

• Planning Coordination Workshop(s) with City 

and/or County Public Works Department(s) 

• Modeling and Calibration Workshops 

o Model Update and Facility Controls 

Workshop  

o Preliminary Calibration Workshop 

o Final Calibration Workshop 

• Water System Evaluation Workshops 

o Model Scenario and Preliminary 

System Evaluations Workshop 

o System Evaluation 

Recommendations and Alternatives 

Workshop 

 

 

4.3 Report and Deliverables  
We will provide the following electronic deliverables in 

Microsoft Word and Adobe PDF at different stages of 

the project: 

• Meeting agenda: three business days before 

meeting 

• Meeting minutes: three business days 

following meeting 

• Project schedule: monthly 

• List of additional data/information required: 

provided at the start of the project 

• Data reviewed and/or referenced: as needed 

We propose that draft chapters be provided as 

electronic deliverables in Microsoft Word and Adobe 

PDF throughout the progress of the WMP. The 

following chapters will be submitted for review, 

comment, and approval: 

• Chapters 1 to 4: Introduction, Planning Area, 

Design Criteria, and Existing Domestic Water 

Facilities 

• Chapter 5: Hydraulic Model Update and 

Calibration 

• Chapter 6: Evaluation and Proposed 

Improvements 

• Chapter 7: Capital Improvement Program 

• Chapter 8: Regulatory Analysis 

The chapters will be complied together at the end for 

a comprehensive WMP Update report, which will also 

include an executive summary, and will be delivered 

as an electronic document. 

Stantec will also provide an updated hydraulic model 

fully calibrated using Innovyze’s InfoWater Pro 

software to include: 

• InfoWater Pro configuration 

• Input and export files 

• Any other files needed to successfully run the 

model 

The following table provided a proposed Table of 

Contents for the main chapters anticipated for the 

Water Master Plan Update report. 

 

 

Page 366 of 405



 

Chapter Description 

 Executive Summary 

1 Introduction 

2 Planning Area 

3 Design Criteria 

4 Existing Domestic Water Facilities 

5 Hydraulic Model Update & Calibration 

6 Evaluation & Proposed Improvements 

7 Capital Improvement Program 

8 Regulatory Analysis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 367 of 405



5.0 Proposal Forms 

Proposer Identification Form 

 
1. Legal name of Proposer:  Stantec Consulting Services Inc.  

 

2. Proposer's Street Address:  38 Technology Drive, Suite 200, Irvine California 92618   

 

3. Proposer’s Mailing Address: 38 Technology Drive, Suite 200, Irvine, California 92618  

 

4. Proposer’s Business Telephone: (949) 923-6000  

5. Proposer's Fax Number: (949) 923-6121  

6. Proposer’s E-mail Address [All requests will be sent to this location]: jeff.dunn@stantec.com  

7. Type of Proposer: 

 Sole Proprietor  Partnership x Corporation*  Other If 

corporation, indicate State where incorporated: 

8. Contractor’s License Number: Type of License:  Business  

Number:  3259819  Issuing State:  California  

9. Proposer Federal Tax Identification Number:  11-2167170  

 

10. Proposer's Project Manager:   Jeff Dunn, PE  

 

11. Number of licensed CA Registered Professional Engineers and/Architect on staff (if any): 

Within Stantec we have 229 staff in our Water Resources business line throughout California 
approximately 81 staff that are CA licensed professional engineers. Resumes of the 
individuals proposed for this project and provided in the Appendix contain registration 
information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 368 of 405



 
OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE 

of 
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

A NEW YORK, CORPORATION 
 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that: 
 
1. I am the duly elected and acting Corporate Counsel of Stantec Consulting 
Services Inc., a New York corporation (the “Corporation”). 
 
2. On April 1, 2024, the following resolution was adopted by the Corporation’s 
Board of Directors: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 

1. the Corporation hereby adopts the Signing Authority Policy, as modified or 
amended from time to time, of Stantec Inc. 

2. execution of any documents for and on behalf of the Corporation shall be 
governed by the Signing Authority Policy, as modified or amended from time to 
time, of Stantec Inc.; 

3. the Secretary or any of the Corporate Counsels of the Corporation be authorized, 
empowered and directed from time to time as required to facilitate the execution 
of contracts or submission of proposals, to sign, and to seal with the Corporate Seal, 
Certificates of the foregoing action evidencing the authority delegated in the 
Signing Authority Policy, as amended from time to time, of Stantec Inc. 

 
Jeff Dunn is a Principal and Tama Snow is a Vice President of the Corporation, 

and in that capacity are duly authorized to sign proposals and contracts in 
accordance with the Corporation’s Signing Authority Policy in connection with the 
following project: 
 

West Valley Water District 
Water Master Plan Update 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the 
Corporation, this 11th day of September, 2024. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David T. Archer, Corporate Counsel 
 
Corporate Seal 

Page 369 of 405



RESOLUTIONS OF THE DIRECTORS OF
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE DIRECTORS
THIS 1ST DAY OF APRIL, 2024

The undersigned, being all the directors of Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (the 
“Corporation”), hereby consent to the adoption of the following resolutions in lieu of 
holding a regular Board of Directors’ meeting.

WHEREAS, from time to time the Corporation is required to provide evidence that certain 
individual employees have been authorized and empowered by the Board to sign 
contracts or proposals on behalf of the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation and its affiliated companies have developed, published and 
operate utilizing the Signing Authority Policy, as modified and amended from time to 
time, of Stantec Inc., which includes authority to sign contracts and proposals on behalf 
of the Corporation.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. the Corporation hereby adopts the Signing Authority Policy, as modified or 
amended from time to time, of Stantec Inc.;

2. execution of any documents for and on behalf of the Corporation shall be 
governed by the Signing Authority Policy, as modified or amended from time to 
time, of Stantec Inc.; and

3. the Secretary or any of the Corporate Counsels of the Corporation be authorized, 
empowered and directed from time to time as required to facilitate the execution 
of contracts or submission of proposals, to sign, and to seal with the Corporate 
Seal, Certificates of the foregoing action evidencing the authority delegated in 
the Signing Authority Policy, as amended from time to time, of Stantec Inc.

This action may be signed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original and all of which shall constitute one instrument. Each director may execute 
this resolution in electronic format, either by facsimile or portable document format (PDF) 
and delivery of such executed document shall be proof of execution by the director 
thereto. This action shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of 
Directors and shall be effective as of the date set forth above.

THE UNDERSIGNED, being all of the directors of the Corporation entitled to attend and 
vote at a meeting of the directors of the Corporation, do hereby consent to and approve 
of the foregoing resolutions in writing as evidenced by their signatures hereto on the day 
and year first above written.

STUART E. LERNER

JEFFREY P. STONE

nced bbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbby yyyyyyyyyyyyy their signatures h

STTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTUAUAUAUAAAUAUAUAAAAAAAUAUAAAUAUAAAAUAUAAUUAUAAUAAAUAAUUAAUAAUAAUUUUUUUUUU RT E. LERNER

Page 370 of 405



 

Proposer’s References 
COMPANY ADDRESS TELEPHONE CONTACT TYPE OF WORK 

Cucamonga Valley 
Water District  
 

10440 Ashford Street 
Ranch Cucamonga, CA 
91730 

(909) 360-6914 Amanda Coker, PE 
Engineering Manager 
 

Integrated Master Plan 
• Updated and Calibrated 

Water Model, Innovyze 
InfoWater Pro 

• Land Use and ADU 
development projections 

• Conservation 
considerations 

• Prepare prioritized and 
integrated CIP 

 
 

City of Fullerton  303 W. Commonwealth Ave 
Fullerton, CA 82832 

(714) 738-6895 Gar Huang, PE 
Engineer 

Water Master Plan  
• Created a New Model, 

and Calibrated Water 
Model, Innovyze 
InfoWater Pro 

• Land Use and ADU 
development projections 

• Water Quality and 
Regulatory Analysis  

• Prepare prioritized and 
integrated CIP 

• Condition Assessment 
and Asset Management 
Program 

 
City of Orange  
Public Works Dept-
Water Division 

189 S Water Street 
Orange, CA 92866 

(714) 288-2497 Sonny Tran, PE 
Assistant Water 
Manager 
 

Water Master Plan 
• Updated and Calibrated 

Water Model, Innovyze 
Infowater Pro 

• Land Use and ADU 
development projections 

• Water Quality analyses 
and regulations 
considerations 

• Prepare prioritized and 
integrated CIP 

 

 

 

Page 371 of 405



List Of Subcontractors 

 

Name of Proposer:   

 

In accordance with RFP, we are indicating the subcontractor who will perform work on the Project that are 

required to be listed by Public Contract Code Section 22160, et seq., and the “Subletting and Subcontracting 

Fair Practice Act” set forth in Public Contract Code Section 4100, et seq.  

 

Subcontractors 

Name 

Address of 

Main Office 

 
Description of Work 

SoCal Flow Testing  3741 Rose Drive, 
 Yorba Linda, CA 92886 

  Perform Hydrant Flow Testing, including installation of pressure loggers, testing 
equipment, diffusers, pitot gauges, digital testing and pressure results 

 

  

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 

Page 372 of 405



6.0 Additional Information 

6.1 Project Experience 

 

Integrated Master Plan 

Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Project Duration: 2022-Present 

Description: 

Stantec is managing the Integrated Master Plan for 
Cucamonga Valley Water District’s (CVWD’s) potable 
water, sewer, and recycled water systems. In addition to 
the potable water model updates and calibration, system 
reliability scenarios were evaluated for increased 
groundwater sustainability. The Integrated CIP 
incorporated combing CIP improvements for the water, 
sewer, and recycled water systems based on prioritizing 
analyses involving criteria such as condition, risk 
analyses, costs, funding, project vicinities, and other 
factors. 

Team Members: 

Jeff Dunn, Roxana Carrillo, Fletcher McKenzie, Sophia 
Barron, Tongxing Hu, Connie Adera, Jim Loucks  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Master Plan and On-
Call Modeling Services 

City of Fullerton 

Project Duration: 2022-Present 

Description: 

The City hired Stantec to update its Water Master Plan 
(WMP) to address water supply, water demands, 
facilities planning, water quality and regulatory concerns, 
and a prioritized capital improvement program (CIP). To 
meet these objectives, Stantec provided the following:  
• A fully calibrated hydraulic model, water distribution 
system performance and water age analysis, as well as 
performing analyses for water supply and fire flow 
capacity storage  
• Water Supply and Demand Analysis to support the City 
with the goal on increasing local water supply portfolio  
• Asset Management and Rehab and Replacement 
Program, providing life expectancy assessment of the 
City’s water storage, pumping, and conveyance 
infrastructure  
• Comprehensive CIP Implementation strategy, providing 
prioritized projects considering improvements driven by 
capacity deficiencies and level of risk based on the 
condition of facility.  
Team Members: 

Jeff Dunn, Roxana Carrillo, Fletcher McKenzie, Sophia 
Barron, Tongxing Hu, Connie Adera, Adam Butler, Jim 
Loucks 

  

Page 373 of 405



 

Water Master Plan Update 

City of Orange 

Project Duration: 2019-2021 

Description: 

Stantec updated the Water Master Plan and hydraulic 
model while meeting the City’s objectives including 
Calibrating the model with hydrant flow testing program; 
Analyzing water demand and supply projections; 
Evaluating optimization of supply facility operation and 
distribution system maintenance program; Providing a 
phased CIP with cost estimates; Investigating water 
quality issues; and identifying any deficiencies and 
“bottle necks” in water system. 

Team Members: 

Jeff Dunn, Roxana Carrillo, Sophia Barron, Connie 
Adera, Jim Loucks 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Master Plan Update 

City of Anaheim 

Project Duration: 2019-2021 

Description: 

The Stantec team worked with Anaheim to provide a 
roadmap for long-term capital improvements and water 
resources planning. The objectives for the Water Master 
Plan Update (WMPU) were to address the City's ability to 
provide a reliable water supply to Anaheim’s customers. 
For the transmission and distribution systems, a Risk 
Based Pipeline Prioritization methodology was used as 
an estimation of Likelihood of Failure (LoF) based on 
available information and the pipeline’s potential 
Consequence of Failure (CoF) based on proximity to 
other critical assets. These two factors combined to 
calculate the risk score for each asset.  
A priority-based Capital Improvement Program (CIP) was 
then developed based on both the hydraulic model and 
risk assessment analyses. The CIP identified the 
proposed improvement projects, the estimated costs, 
and developed a timetable or prioritization for 
implementing the improvements over the next 20 years, 
establishing a comprehensive picture of the 
improvements based on system hydraulic needs and a 
risk assessment of aging infrastructure. Total capital 
improvements totaled approximately $250 M. 

Team Members: 

Jeff Dunn, Roxana Carrillo, Connie Adera, Jim Loucks 

 

  

Page 374 of 405



 

Water Master Plan Update 

City of Manhattan Beach 

Project Duration: 2019-2021 

Description: 

To continually improve the community, Stantec worked 
with the City to update their 2010 Water System Master 
Plan. This project addresses the City’s water supply, 
water demands, facilities planning, condition assessment 
of the pumping and storage facilities, water quality and 
regulatory concerns, and will include a prioritized capital 
improvement program (CIP).  
To define a water supply that meets current and future 
demands, and applicable regulations related to health, 
environment, and water quality, project goals include: 
Delivery of adequate flows and pressures for peak 
demands and fire protection, redundancy for service 
reliability with diversified water supply sources, and 
operation at the highest efficiency and lowest costs. 

Team Members: 

Jeff Dunn, Roxana Carrillo, Jim Loucks, Connie Adera 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Various Sub Area Master Plans 

Irvine Ranch Water District: 
Project Duration: 2002-Present 

Description: 

Stantec has completed almost two dozen SAMPs and 
updates/addendums for IRWD throughout the past 
several decades assisting IRWD as their District has 
expanded. Services have included hydraulic modeling, 
along with design and engineering for potable water, 
sewer, and recycled water facilities.  
The most recent SAMP or SAMP Update prepared was 
for the PA 51 or Great Park Neighborhoods. This SAMP, 
due to its large service area connecting the southern 
water systems with the northern water systems required 
hydraulic modeling of the entire District water system. 
The water model, which was created for IRWD for 
developing existing and future system analyses, required 
several corrections and updates before being able to run 
it properly for this project. The hydraulic model contains 
over 40,000 pipes with numerous pressure zones, 
storage tanks, pump stations, prv’s, and imported water 
connections. Our analysis investigated future system 
conditions looking into various phasing, system demand 
and fire flow alternatives, pumping and storage 
verifications, and adjustments to the supplies between 
imported and groundwater.  

Project Team: 

Jeff Dunn, Roxana Carrillo, Tama Snow, Jim Loucks 

  

Page 375 of 405



6.2 Optional Value-Added 
Services 
Risk Based Project Prioritization Framework 

Given the different age of the pipes, pipe materials, 

external and internal stresses, limited pipe condition 

information, and budget limitations, determining 

“which pipes to replace when” is a challenge faced by 

most utilities. A Risk Based Project Prioritization 

Framework will help realize the District’s goals of a 

comprehensive, best-practice asset management 

implementation strategy that builds on all of the things 

that the District is doing well and enhances those 

priority areas in need of improvement. This will truly 

be a collaborative effort, and the result will be a 

deliverable that your staff will own and operate with 

minimal support from outside consulting staff. 

For progressive utilities “risk” is the most important 

concept of evaluating a system. By quantifying and 

assessing the risks posed by the failure or inability of 

its assets to meet their overall levels of service, the 

District can identify operating and maintenance 

procedures, as well as identifying and prioritizing 

capital rehabilitation and replacement projects to 

mitigate the risks. Risk-based prioritization framework 

assists decision makers in achieving a reliable 

management strategy for the system to maintain the 

level of service. This prioritization is based on a 

typical risk equation (risk = probability or likelihood × 

consequences) to arrive at a severity index which 

serves to rank the asset relative to the other assets. 

This is usually conducted in a workshop format, 

where participants assess the likelihood of failure of 

the asset within a certain time‐frame. The 

consequence of this failure is also assessed, from an 

environmental, safety and economics standpoint. 

Since different participants are from across the utility, 

especially, engineering, operations, maintenance, 

planning, etc. there is very little disagreement about 

the priority of the recommendation. 

The severity index puts the recommendations in 

order, so it is quite clear which are the highest priority 

recommendations. This process will help to focus the 

entire utility on those deficiencies that represent the 

greatest risk with the result that less time and money 

is spent correcting items that have a low risk, allowing 

these savings to be used to reduce the higher risks.  

The scoring in the risk prioritization for likelihood is 

related to the physical condition, capacity and 

utilization, water quality, and functionality. For the 

consequences, it is related to environmental impact, 

loss of service, health and safety implications, 

regulatory compliance, water loss, community 

disruption, public image, workforce stress, damage to 

property, loss of revenue, and service agreements. 

The Risk Based Project Prioritization Framework will 

empower District staff to optimize pipeline 

replacement through an understanding of pipeline risk 

to the District, the replacement costs, and value over 

time for each pipeline.  

Condition Assessment 

Stantec’s condition assessment team will review the 

as-builts and perform site visits with City Water 

Operation staff and conduct a visual assessment of 

condition of City water facilities, including their 

structural, mechanical, and electrical conditions. 

Based on issues noted on the site visit, further 

evaluation of the facilities (e.g., seismic evaluation) 

may be recommended. Budget and scope for these 

additional evaluations is not included and will be 

determined at that time, and may consist of materials 

testing by a subconsultant, or contracted separately 

by the City. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 376 of 405



7.0 Project Team Summary 

7.1 Organizational Chart 

 

 

 

  

By defining the roles and responsibilities of everyone involved in project delivery, Stantec can set clear 

expectations for performance. Team leaders can hold – both individually and collectively – people accountable for 

achieving performance, which ultimately improves our success in project delivery. We have chosen our project 

team members based on their experience working together on similar projects throughout southern California. Our 

proposed Team’s Organization Chart is provided below. 

Page 377 of 405



7.2 Project Team  
 

 

Jeff Dunn 
PE 

Project Manager 

30 years of experience 

Jeff has 30 years of experience in working with 
public water agencies throughout Southern 
California. He has managed facilities planning and 
design of infrastructure for potable water, recycled 
water, and sewer collection facilities. Jeff has 
prepared system master planning studies, including 
asset management analyses and hydraulic model 
evaluations for facility planning, feasibility, and 
preliminary design studies. He is also an expert 
hydraulic modeler, having calibrated and analyzed 
nearly two dozen models using InfoWater modeling 
software. His master plans have included 
preparations of prioritized capital improvement 
programs (CIP) incorporating results from hydraulic 
analyses, operation and maintenance programs, 
condition assessments, and risk priority 
assessments. 
 

 

Project Role: 

As our Project Manger, Jeff will be fully involved 
and in control of the work effort and the project’s 
details on a day-to-day basis. Jeff will manage the 
project to maintain the schedule, budgets, and 
deliverables. He will communicate with you on a 
regular basis and be able to discuss specific 
aspects of the project. He will prepare the regular 
status reports, attend meetings, maintain project 
schedule, and update you on financial conditions. 
 

 

 

 

 

Tama Snow 
PE 

QA/QC Technical Advisor 

33 years of experience 

For over 30 years she has been planning and 
executing projects that improve water resources 
management capabilities for public, private, and 
regulatory clients. Well respected in the industry, 
she is known as someone who pays close attention 
to details, is responsive to client needs and doesn’t 
lose sight of the big picture. And over the years, 
having seen how intensive public scrutiny to 
innovative water projects in California have delayed 
and even prevented project implementation, she 
has become an expert in public outreach and 
communications. Tama is responsible for building 
our water resources practice group. In addition to 
client development, she will be helping young 
engineers become strong communicators, 
influential thought leaders, and strategic thinkers. 
Passionate about teaching and mentoring, Tama 
embraces this role. 

 

Project Role: 

Tama will overview the project and work closely 
with Jeff Dunn and other leadership with Stantec to 
ensure the outstanding services to be provided and 
proper resources are allocated for project success. 
She will lend her expertise to offer advisory 
services to the team and oversee the Quality 
Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) reviews and 
procedures to provide quality deliverables. 

 

Page 378 of 405



 

 

Roxana Carrillo, EIT 
Planning Lead 

9 years of experience 

Roxana is a civil engineer in 
training in Stantec’s Water 
group, leading our planning 
and modeling projects 
consisting of facilities 
analyses, hydraulic modeling, 
and assisting with technical 
design of projects including 
water distribution systems and 
sewer networks. Her work 
experience has involved 
hydraulic model updating and 
calibrating, water demand and 
supply analysis, fire flow 
analysis, and master planning. 

 

 

Project Role: 

She will lead master planning 
tasks, including assisting Jeff 
will all communications with 
the team.  She will lead the 
effort in preparation of the 
master plan report, CIP, and 
workshops and presentations. 

 

 

 

 

 

Fletcher McKenzie, PE 
Hydraulic Model/Analysis 

15 years of experience 

Fletcher has experience in 
water planning creating and 
updating hydraulic models for 
the analysis of distribution 
systems, including model 
calibration, fire flow analysis, 
unidirectional flushing (UDF), 
as well as extensive 
experience in hydraulic 
transient analysis. He has 
worked on pump selection, 
control valve design, external 
pipeline load analysis, master 
planning, as well as open 
channel hydraulics.  

 

 

Project Role: 

He will lead the hydraulic 
modeling effort including 
updating and calibration the 
model and conducting the 
hydraulic analyses in 
development of the system 
improvements for the CIP. He 
will also lead modeling 
operation and calibration 
workshops. 

 

 

 

 

 

Connie Adera, PE 
Regulatory Analysis  

11 years of experience 

Connie is an environmental 
engineer focusing on water 
treatment design and water 
quality studies and analysis, 
including plant-scale 
renovation feasibility studies 
and water quality studies.  She 
has worked on several master 
planning studies evaluating 
water quality data and 
providing recommendations 
related regulatory compliance. 

 

 

 

 

Project Role: 

Connie will lead the portion of 
the master plan addressing 
water quality and related 
regulations impacting the 
District’s operations. 

  

Page 379 of 405



 

Vanessa Nishikawa, PE 
Regulatory Analysis (Water 
Conservation) 

30 years of experience 

Vanessa has experience in 
the development and 
implementation of 
multidisciplinary water 
resources projects throughout 
California. She served as 
project manager, technical 
lead, and engineer for 
numerous multi-objective 
water resources planning 
studies of surface and 
groundwater systems. Her 
broad planning experience 
also includes comprehensive 
flood management studies, 
water transfers and associated 
laws and regulations, recycled 
water studies and projects, 
conjunctive water 
management, computer 
modeling of surface water 
hydrology and project 
operations, watershed 
management, data collection 
and analysis, permitting, and 
grant writing 

 

Project Role: 

She will lead master planning 
tasks, including assisting Jeff 
will all communications with 
the team.  She will lead the 
effort in preparation of the 
master plan report, CIP, and 
workshops and presentations. 

 

 

 

 

Umesh Murthy, PE 
Treatment and Facility/Condition 
Evaluations 

32 years of experience 

Umesh brings experience 
specializing in project and 
program management--from 
planning to engineering to 
construction, operations, 
maintenance, and 
commissioning. Prior to joining 
Stantec, he worked for the 
Chino Basin Municipal Water 
District/IEUA for six years, and 
the OCSD for 22 years. By 
anticipating potential gaps and 
challenges early, Umesh can 
mitigate risks and resolve 
conflicts with contractors, 
consultants, management, 
and/or stakeholders. His 
approach adopts clear and 
concise communication with 
stakeholders to regularly 
consult, obtain approval, share 
information, and provide 

reports as needed. 

 

 

 

Project Role: 

Umesh will lead our 
evaluations related to wells, 
pump, and treatment facilities 
operated by the District and 
provide review of condition 
and improvements 
recommendations to be 
included in the CIP. 

 

 

 

Steven Wong, PE, SE 
Storage Tank Seismic Evaluations 

9 years of experience 

Steven specializes in the 
structural design and analysis 
of various water/wastewater 
treatment plant structures, 
pump stations, and other 
specialized structures. His 
design experience includes 
reinforced concrete, reinforced 
masonry, steel, stainless steel, 
and aluminum. Additionally, 
Steven has designed and 
analyzed steel reservoir tanks, 
modifications to treatment 
plant structures and regularly 
creates finite element models 
for structural analysis. Beyond 
structural design, he has 
experience with concrete 
culvert inspection/observation, 
FEMA damage assessments, 
and engineering construction 
support. 

 

 

 

 

Project Role: 

He will conduct the seismic 
sloshing wave height 
calculations and address 
freeboard requirements and 
impacts on the tank and 
storage capacity. 

 

Page 380 of 405



8.0 Cost Estimates of Consulting Fee 
 

 

  

Page 381 of 405



9.0 Schedule 

 

 

Page 382 of 405



10.0 Insurance 

 

  

As shown in the sample insurance certificate, Stantec will provide current insurance certificates upon selection that 

meet the insurance requirements of the District and described in the RFP. 

Page 383 of 405



 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

Page 384 of 405



Jeff has 30 years of experience in working with 

public water agencies throughout Southern 

California. He has prepared and managed master plan 

projects including facility planning and design of 

infrastructure for potable water, recycled water, and 

sewer collection facilities. Jeff has prepared system 

master planning studies that have consisted of asset 

management analyses and condition assessment 

developing prioritized CIPs in addition to many 

hydraulic model evaluations for facility planning, 

feasibility, and preliminary design studies. He is also 

an expert hydraulic modeler, having calibrated and 

analyzed over two dozens models using InfoWater 

Pro modeling software. 

EDUCATION 

BS in Civil Engineering, California Polytechnic University, 
Pomona, California, United States, 1995 

REGISTRATIONS 

Professional Engineer #58455, State of California 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Integrated Master Plan | Cucamonga Valley Water 
District (CVWD) | Rancho Cucamonga, California | 
Project Manager 

Jeff is managing the Integrated Master Plan for the 
CVWD’s potable water, sewer, and recycled water 
systems.  In addition to the potable water model updates 
and calibration, system reliability scenarios were 
evaluated for increased groundwater sustainability. The 
Integrated CIP incorporated combing CIP improvements 
for the water, sewer, and recycled water systems based 
on prioritizing analyses involving criteria such as 
condition, risk analyses, costs, funding, project vicinities, 
and other factors. 

Water System Master Plan | City of Orange | Orange, 
California | Project Manager 

Jeff is managing the water master plan to update the 
current hydraulic model which included calibrating the 
model with hydrant flow testing program, analyzing water 
demand and supply projections, evaluating optimization 
of supply facility operation, and providing a phased 
priority-based CIP with cost estimates. Water quality 
issues were addressed including water age analyses, 
identifying any deficiencies, and improving water 
circulation and redundancy within the system. 

City of Anaheim Water Master Plan Update | Anaheim, 
California, United States | Water System Planning Lead 

The WMP focused on updating water demands and use 
factors, calibrating the existing distribution model, and 
preparing an asset management program. Jeff analyzed 
scenarios addressing supply variability between 
groundwater and imported between the east and west 
service areas, including impacts to PFAS issues. The goal 
was to develop an updated plan for capital planning 
through 2040 planning horizon. 

City of Fullerton Water Master Plan Update and On-Call 
Modeling with Asset Management Program | Fullerton, 
California | Project Manager 

Prepared a Water Master Plan Update to provide a 
roadmap for long-term capital improvement and water 
resource planning for the City of Fullerton, comprising of 
condition assessments for asset management risk 
analyses, including On-Call Modeling Services. 
Evaluations were focused on the City’s groundwater water 
supply and water quality to meet various water demand 
projections, including maximizing existing groundwater 
supplies. In addition, the project developed an Asset 
Management Program based on risk analyses prioritizing 
a 20-year capital improvement plan.  

Water Master Plan | City of Manhattan Beach | Manhattan 
Beach, California | Project Manager 

Jeff managed the water master plan update, which 
included near- and long-term water supply demands, 
delivery of adequate flows and pressures for peak 
demands and fire protection, redundancy for service 
reliability with diversified water supply sources, and 
highest efficiency and lowest cost of operation. The 
master plan included hydrant flow testing and calibration 
of the City of Manhattan Beach’s hydraulic model in 
InfoWater. 

Water Resources Master Plan Update (WRMP) | Irvine 
Ranch Water District | Irvine, California | Project Manager 

Jeff prepared an update of the water supply, demands, 
and storage chapters of IRWD’s 2017 WRMP. The 
WRMP Update revised water demand projections to be 
consistent with the recent water conservation measures 
with updated demand factors for each land use. The water 
supply chapter was revised to include their recent 
recycled water expansion projects. 

 

Page 385 of 405



Fire Flow and Hydraulic Model On-Call Services | 
Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) | Perris, 
California | Project Manager 

Jeff has managed our fire flow hydraulic modeling on-call 
tasks for new developments to determine appropriate 
improvements and service pressures for the additional 
demands on the existing water distribution system. 

On-Call Modeling Services | Orange County Water 
District (OCWD) | Fountain Valley, California | Project 
Manager/Lead Modeler 

Jeff managed and performed several hydraulic modeling 
tasks including model updates and calibration Talbert 
Barrier Well system and analyses, the Groundwater 
Replenishment System (DWRS) hydraulic modeling 
including scenario analyses for their basins recharge, 
and their Green Acres Project (GAP) recycled water 
system. 

On-Call Hydraulic Modeling | Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency (IEUA) | Chino, California | Project Manager 

Jeff managed and performed hydraulic modeling services 
for the Agency's recycled water model using the 
InfoWater software.  Hydraulic modeling was performed 
to support the Recycled Water Program Strategy and 
preparation of technical memorandums such as for the 
WRCWRA supply options, and City of Ontario’s Euclid 
Ave expansion project. 

Potable Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Sub-Area 
Master Plans | Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) | 
Various Cities, California | Project Manager 

Since the mid-1990s, Jeff has prepared SAMPs for 
IRWD’s potable water, sewer, non-potable water, and 
telemetry systems. To complete the SAMPs, Jeff 
performed local and regional hydraulic modeling with 
extended period simulations, phasing studies, and 
regional storage analyses. Recently, a SAMP update was 
performed for the Portola Springs service area for flow 
monitoring and calibration of the sewer model. 

Water System Master Plan | City of La Habra | La Habra, 
California | Modeler 

Hydraulic analyses and report preparation for the Water 
System Master Plan. The hydraulic analysis was 
performed using the H2ONET modeling software. The 
entire existing distribution system was modeled resulting 
in a network analysis of approximately 550 pipes, 
including 50 PRV stations, 13 pumps, and three reservoir 
tanks. The model was calibrated to field-testing data. 
Other responsibilities included coordinating with the client 
for collection of data and facilities information, hydraulic 
model creation, demand calculations, hydraulic modeling 
analyses for existing and future distribution systems, and 
report preparation. 

Water System Master Plan | Mesa Water District | Costa 
Mesa, California | Associate Engineer 

Hydraulic analyses and report preparation for the Water 
System Master Plan. The entire existing distribution 
system was modeled resulting in a network analysis of 
approximately 700 pipes, including six FCV stations, two 
pump stations, nine wells, and two reservoir tanks. The 
model was calibrated to field-testing data. Responsibilities 
included coordinating with the client for collection of data 
and facilities information, hydraulic model creation, 
demand calculations, model calibration, hydraulic 
modeling analyses for existing and future distribution 
systems, and report preparation. 

Water System Master Plan | City of Brea | Brea, California 
| Modeler 

Hydraulic analyses and report preparation for the Water 
System Master Plan. The existing distribution system was 
modeled resulting in a network analysis of approximately 
1,800 pipes, including 72 PRV stations, five pump 
stations, and five reservoir tanks. The model was 
calibrated to field testing data. Responsibilities included 
extensive client coordination for the collection of data and 
facilities information, hydraulic model creation, demand 
calculation, hydraulic modeling analyses for existing and 
future distribution systems, and report preparation. 

Water Master Plan Update | Laguna Beach County Water 
District | Laguna Beach, California | Modeler 

Computer hydraulic water modeling and analysis of the 
District's entire distribution system. Three steady-state 
demand scenarios were analyzed to determine pressure 
deficiencies and to make recommendations for pipe 
diameter upgrades. Two extended-period simulation 
scenarios were performed for storage and pumping 
analyses using a seven-day period for MWD supply 
outage and a firestorm fire flow of 35,000 gpm. Other 
tasks included the calculation of demands, peaking 
factors, demand projections, population projections, and 
cost analysis, as well as report writing and preparation of 
exhibits. 

Vellano Domestic, Reclaimed, and Sewer Systems 
Master Plans | Chino Hills, California | Project Manager 

Planning, design, and computer network analyses of the 
proposed domestic, reclaimed, and sewer collection 
systems. The modeling analysis was used to determine 
pipe diameters, PRV locations, and pump station 
locations and requirements, as well as to perform a 
storage analysis. Other tasks involved establishing the 
pressure criteria and pressure zones; distribution system 
pipeline alignments and demand calculations; as well as 
preparing final reports, exhibits, and maps. 

Page 386 of 405



Reservoir Storage Analysis | Irvine Ranch Water District | 
Irvine, California | Project Engineer 

Jeff provided a water storage analysis for IRWD’s potable 
and non-potable water systems to update their current 
Water Resources Master Plan. Coordination was 
required to incorporate IRWD’s GIS data which included 
demands and water facility information. Tasks included 
overlaying the water system and USGS information to 
identify pressure-zone service areas for use in 
developing storage service areas. For each water 
system, the demands were calculated and totaled by 
storage areas in five-year increments to 2025. Surpluses 
and shortfalls were analyzed to determine 
recommendations for new storage or operational 
adjustments. Updated tables and exhibits were created 
for use in preparing a revised Chapter 5 of the Water 
Resources Master Plan Update. 

Desert Springs Resort Water Supply Assessment | 
Imperial County, California | Project Engineer 

An SB 610 Water Supply Assessment was prepared by 
Stantec for the Desert Springs Resort project. The project 
is a motor sports resort community covering 1,105 acres 
on property which has historically been used solely for 
agriculture purposes. The resort includes 1,475 
residential units of various types, raceway facilities, 
commercial elements, and recreational facilities such as 
road raceway and four lakes for water sports. No 
domestic water provider serves the area so the project 
will be served by a private water utility company who will 
operate private water and wastewater facilities. Non-
potable, or raw, water supply will be provided by Imperial 
Irrigation District. 

Reclaimed Water Model | Moulton Niguel Water District | 
Laguna Niguel, California | Project Engineer 

Jeff provided a computer network analysis of the 
District’s reclaimed water distribution system using 
Cybernet software. The analysis included modeling the 
complete existing and proposed reclaimed water 
distribution system for steady-state peak demand and 
maximum-day, 24-hour, extended-period simulation. The 
steady-state simulations were used to analyze pressure 
and pipeline deficiencies. The extended-period simulation 
was used for the pumping and storage analyses. 

Recycled Water Program Strategy | Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency | Various, Calilfornia | Ongoing | Project 
Engineer 

Jeff has prepared a program strategy for IEUA’s future 
recycled water system to incorporate their member 
Agency’s demands plus maximizing recycled water 
recharge to their spreading basins. A basin 
implementation strategy was developed along with 
system model analyses out to year 2035. A 20-year CIP 
was developed in 5-year increments. 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) - 1630 West 
Recycled Water Pump Station Surge Protection | Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency | Ontario, California | Project 
Manager 

To resolve surging and pump failure problems in the 1299 
Zone and the 1630 West Pump Station, Jeff performed 
hydraulic model services to evaluate the system 
operation, system, surge and risk of pipeline failures. He 
prepared a technical memorandum that recommended a 
new surge tank, including BCE evaluation of alternatives 
and risk management analysis. 

Regional Recycled Water System Analysis | Irvine Ranch 
Water District | Irvine, California | Project Manager 

Jeff prepared a hydraulic model analysis and pump 
station feasibility analyses for the IRWD’s northern 
recycled water distribution system. The District’s 
calibrated model, of their whole system was utilized for 
the analysis. Recycled water demands were estimated for 
various demand and operating scenarios to determine 
future facility layout, sizing, and capacities. Pump design 
analysis was performed to verify pump curves for their 
Multi-Zone Pump Station. Several alternatives for a pump 
station layout were evaluated, with recommendations and 
project costs provided. 

Southwest Distribution System Hydraulic Model | Golden 
State Water Company | Various Locations, California | 
Project Manager 

Jeff updated and calibrated Golden State Water 
Company’s (GSWC) Southwest Distribution System 
hydraulic model in InfoWater. The GSWC Southwest 
Distribution System serves the southwestern area of Los 
Angeles County, City of Gardena, City of Lawndale, and 
portions of Carson, Compton, El Segundo, Hawthorne, 
and Inglewood. The existing model, which was previously 
created for only steady-state analyses, was updated and 
calibrated as an extended period simulation (EPS) model 
with high level accuracy for subsequent water quality 
analyses to be performed by Stantec. The model itself 
consists of three pressure zones, with close to 9,000 pipe 
links and several pumps and pressure reducing valves. 
The project also required using GIS Gateway to update 
InfoWater model with GIS features. 

1158 Zone Pump Station Upgrades and RP-4 1158 Zone 
Outfall Pipeline Feasibility Study, Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency | Inland Empire Utilities Agency | Chino, California 
| Project Manager 

Jeff is managing feasibility and surge protection analyses 
for the proposed upgrades to the RP-1 1158 Pressure 
Zone effluent pump station. The upgrades to the pump 
station are a recommendation of the current RWPS and 
the Agency requires better definition of the pumps 
capacity, and design recommendations, and feasibility of 
the improvements in conjunction with the existing 
facilities. Additionally, Stantec is evaluating the possible 
causes of leaks occurring in the 42-inch RP-4 1158 Zone 
Pipeline, and providing recommendations. A surge 
analysis is also being performed for recommendations to 
the existing surge tank and future surge protection needs. 

 

Page 387 of 405



For over 30 years Tama has been planning and 

executing projects that improve water resources 

management capabilities for public and private clients. 

Tama is known as someone who pays close attention 

to details, is responsive to client needs and doesn’t 

lose sight of the big picture. Tama seeks to improve 

the balance between human and environmental water 

needs—to serve the greater good. She loves helping 

clients develop strategic and sustainable solutions to 

their challenges. And over the years, having seen how 

intensive public scrutiny to innovative water projects in 

California have delayed and even prevented project 

implementation, she has become well versed in public 

outreach and communications.  

 

EDUCATION 

Masters of Engineering, Cal-Poly Pomona, Pomona, CA, 
2001 

Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering, University of 
California at Irvine, Irvine, CA, 1991 

Bachelor of Arts in Mathematics, University of California 
Riverside, Riverside, CA, 1988 

REGISTRATIONS 

Engineer #C 056934, State of California, 1997 

Water Augmentation Feasibility Study | Palmdale Water 
District | Palmdale, California | Project Manager 

Palmdale Water District retained Stantec to prepare a 
water augmentation feasibility study to utilize 5 million 
gallons per day of recycled water. Alternatives evaluated 
included surface water augmentation at Palmdale Lake 
and groundwater injection. Multiple alternatives were 
evaluated considering regulatory requirements, 
conveyance and infrastructure needs, acquisition of 
property for construction of full-scale facility and a level 5 
cost estimate was completed.   

Pure Water Antelope Valley | Palmdale Water District | 
Palmdale, California | Program Manager 

Stantec was retained by the Palmdale Water District to 
manage and provide planning services for the Pure Water 
Antelope Valley Recycled Water Program. Services being 
provided under this program include preparation of twelve 
technical memorandums that have included background 
review and conducting a data gap analysis, conveyance 
routing and infrastructure needs, recycled water quality 
analysis, evaluation of delivery methods for multiple 
construction projects, design of a 200 gallon per minute 
advanced water treatment demonstration facility, 
groundwater modeling, equipment procurement, 
estimating construction costs, obtaining regulatory 
approval, and stakeholder engagement. The Pure Water 
Antelope Valley Program will utilize 5 million gallons per 
day of recycled water from the Los Angeles County 
Sanitation District’s Palmdale Water Reclamation Plant. 
The recycle water will be advanced treated utilizing 
microfiltration, reverse osmosis, and ultraviolet advanced 
oxidation and injected into the groundwater basin.   

Lake Forest Zone B to C Pump Station | Irvine Ranch 
Water District | Lake Forest, California | Principal-in 
Charge 

Stantec was retained by the Irvine Ranch Water District to 
prepare construction plans and specifications for a new 
recycled water pump station. The project included 
preparing a surge analysis, preparing plans and 
specifications for decommissioning of an existing recycled 
water pump station and abandoning an existing 
groundwater well, preparing a preliminary design report, 
60 percent, 90 percent and 100 percent plans and 
specifications for a new recycled water pump station.  

Recycled Water and Stormwater Harvesting Study | Port 
of Long Beach | Long Beach, California | QA/QC 

The Port of Long Beach (PoLB) retained Stantec 
Consulting Services, Inc. (Stantec) to evaluate the 
feasibility of implementing a recycled water program to 
reduce potable water demands at the PoLB. The recycled 
water study was an effort to prioritize planning for 
improvements to conserve water, ensure water reuse for 
existing and future port operations, and to protect the 
environment. The study identified and evaluated the 
source of recycled water supply, potential recycled water 
customers, demands, infrastructure requirements and 
cost to implement.   

  

Page 388 of 405



El Centro Generation Station Zero Liquid Discharge 
Project | Imperial Irrigation District | El Centro, California | 
Principal in Charge / QAQC 

The Imperial Irrigation District (IID) retained Stantec to 
prepare a feasibility study to evaluate water treatment 
requirements to remove Thallium and selenium at their El 
Centro Generating Station. A water quality analysis was 
completed, and 8 alternatives were developed. 
Subsequently, IID hired Stantec to complete the 
construction plans, specifications  and engineer’s 
estimate of probable construction costs for the water 
treatment plant and brine ponds.  

Water Master Plan (WMP)* | Indio Water Authority | 
Indio, California | QAQC 

Tama reviewed all deliverables prior to submitting to 
client. The 2018 WMP was prepared as an update to the 
Authority's 2012 Water Master Plan Update. The 
Authority typically performs a comprehensive update of 
its WMP every five years to capture changes in water 
conveyance infrastructure, service population, water 
demands, planned developments, and water-related 
regulations to update their capital improvement program 
(CIP). As the City of Indio continues to grow amid 
increasingly restrictive water supply conditions, water 
master planning has become even more vital for the 
Authority to address system deficiencies, improve 
operations and efficiency, and develop the necessary 
supply to meet future demands. 

Hydraulic Modeling On-Call Services* | Otay Water 
District | Spring Valley, California, United States | 2017-
2019 | Project Manager 

Utilizing the District’s existing hydraulic model and data 
from its GIS and SCADA systems, Tama oversaw steady 
state and extended period dynamic modeling analyses of 
the existing and future potable water and recycled water 
systems and pressure surge analyses for pressure zones 
or pipelines. The team also identified improvements and 
recommendations to remedy system deficiencies to meet 
future conditions and conducting fire-flow analyses. 

Johnson Utilities Comprehensive Planning Study* | 
EPCOR/Johnson Utilities | San Tan Valley, Arizona, 
United States | Project Manager 

Tama prepared an Integrated Water, Wastewater, 
Reclaimed Water and Water Resources Comprehensive 
Planning Study (CPS) to provide the utility with a capital 
improvement plan to address the numerous pressing and 
immediate needs, including water quality and water 
pressure issues and sanitary sewer overflows and 
determining best reuse of the recycled water of different 
qualities produced at three wastewater treatment plants. 
Improvements needed to the water, wastewater and 
recycled water systems were identified to address current 
issues, as well as prepare the Utility for future growth 
over 3-year, 5-year, 10-year, and build-out planning 
horizons. Best use of recycled water included 
groundwater recharge, identifying recycled water 
customers and conducting a cost feasibility analyses.  

Buena Yard Facility Improvements * | Buena Sanitation 
District | Vista, California, United States | Project Manager 

Tama conducted a comprehensive Facility Planning Study 
and preliminary design to repurpose the Buena Sanitation 
District’s Buena Yard (previously Shadowridge Water 
Reclamation Plant) as an emergency wastewater storage 
and satellite maintenance facility. This Study and the 
preliminary design included conducting a condition 
assessment of existing assets, preparing an evaluation of 
emergency wastewater storage capabilities, hydraulic 
analysis, hazardous materials study, and preparing a 
facility plan to bring the complex up to current building 
codes and evaluate the use of space to repurpose the 
existing building. A detailed opinion of cost estimate and 
construction implementation plan was also prepared. 

Professional Engineering Design for Five Potable Water 
Pipeline Replacements* | City of Spring Valley | Spring 
Valley, CA | Principal-in-Charge 

For Otay Water District, Tama is providing engineering 
services to replace five potable water pipeline segments 
within the District’s service area. Key project issues 
included an accelerated design and construction schedule 
to beat County of San Diego repaving moratoriums. The 
project is currently underway. 

Offsite Pipelines for the Irvine Lake Pipeline North 
Conversion Project* | Irvine Ranch Water District | 
Orange, CA | Project Manager 

The project entailed preparation of a preliminary design 
report, construction plans and specifications for the design 
of 5 miles of 42-inch CML&C recycled water pipelines on 
Santiago Canyon and Jamboree Roads for the Irvine 
Ranch Water District. The project required extensive 
coordination with the City of Orange and particular 
attention to traffic control due to the high volume of traffic 
in the project areas.  Tama provided assistance during 
bidding and engineering services during construction. 

Asset Management As-Needed Services Contract* | Otay 
Water District | Spring Valley, California | Project Manager 

As part of Otay Water District’s (OWD) Asset 
Management On-Call Contract, an asset management 
data gap analysis was conducted and a data gap closure 
strategy was developed. Benefits derived from the 
consolidation of the assets owned and managed by OWD 
in a centralized asset register included improved quality of 
asset information for operational and strategic asset 
management decisions, enhanced business process 
efficiency, improved customer service in providing 
accurate asset information, reduced capital and 
maintenance costs by effectively managing infrastructure 
assets. 

Page 389 of 405



Roxana is a civil engineer in training in Stantec’s 

Water group, assisting with planning, hydraulic 

modeling, and technical design of projects including 

water distribution systems and sewer networks. Her 

work experience has involved hydraulic model 

updating and calibrating, water demand and supply 

analysis, fire flow analysis, and master planning. 

 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science, University of California, Irvine, 
Irvine, California, United States, 2012 

CERTIFICATIONS & TRAINING 

Engineer in Training (EIT) Certification, California Board 
for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and 
Geologists, Irvine, California 

MEMBERSHIPS 

Past President, Current Publicity Chair, Professional 
Development Conference Committee Member, Society of 
Women Engineers, 2014 - Present 

K-12 Outreach Committee Member, American Society of 
Civil Engineers, 2018 – Present 

Member, Orange County Water Association, 2019 – 
Present  

Current Campaign Co-Lead, Local Office Champion, 
Water For People, 2019 – Present  

 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Fullerton Water Master Plan | City of Fullerton | Fullerton, 
California | Planning Support 

Roxana prepared the report and hydraulic evaluations for 
the Water Master Plan Update to provide a roadmap for 
long-term capital improvement and water resource 
planning for the City of Fullerton. Evaluations were 
focused on the City’s groundwater water supply and 
water quality to meet various water demand projections, 
including maximizing groundwater under extreme dry 
demand conditions. In addition, the project developed an 
Asset Management Program based on risk analyses 
using and a 20-year capital improvement plan. 

Integrated Master Plan | Cucamonga Valley Water District 
(CVWD) | Rancho Cucamonga, California | Project 
Manager 

Assisting with the Integrated Master Plan for the CVWD’s 
potable water, sewer, and recycled water systems, 
Roxana provides hydraulic modeling support. In addition, 
potable water system reliability scenarios were evaluated 
for increased groundwater sustainability. The Integrated 
CIP incorporated combing CIP improvements for the 
water, sewer, and recycled water systems based on 
prioritizing analyses involving criteria such as condition, 
risk analyses, costs, funding, project vicinities, and other 
factors. 

Water System Master Plan | City of Orange | Orange, 
California | Project Manager 

Roxana updated the water master plan as well as the  
hydraulic model for the City of Orange. The hydraulic 
model update included calibration based on the hydrant 
flow testing program, analyzing water demand and supply 
projections, evaluating optimization of supply facility 
operation, and providing a phased priority-based CIP with 
cost estimates. Water quality issues were addressed 
including water age analyses, identifying any deficiencies, 
and improving water circulation and redundancy within the 
system. 

Water Master Plan | City of Manhattan Beach | Manhattan 
Beach, California | Project Manager 

Prepared the water master plan update and established 
near- and long-term water supply demands, evaluated 
delivery of adequate flows and pressures for peak 
demands and fire protection, and analyzed redundancy 
for service reliability with diversified water supply sources. 
Roxana conducted hydrant flow testing and calibrated the 
City’s hydraulic model in InfoWater. 

Engineering Services for Water Master Plan Update | City 
of Anaheim, CA | Anaheim, California | Hydraulic 
Modeling/Planning Support 

Roxana provided hydraulic analyses and report 
preparation for the Water Master Plan Update to provide a 
roadmap for long-term capital improvement and water 
resource planning for the City of Anaheim. Stantec 
evaluated the system’s water supply, water quality, water 
demand projections, and water resources/improvement 
planning. In addition, Stantec developed an Asset 
Management Program using InfoMaster and a 20-year 
capital improvement plan. 

Page 390 of 405



Great Park SAMP Update | Irvine Ranch Water District | 
Irvine, California, United States | Planning Support 

Roxana prepared a Sub-Area Master Plan update for 
domestic water, wastewater, and non-potable water 
systems to serve a proposed 3,565-acre Great Park and 
Great Park Neighborhoods in the City of Irvine. The 
project evaluated the proposed infrastructure and 
impacts to the existing infrastructure for potable water, 
sewer, and nonpotable service as well as demands 
projections for the Great Park lake.  

SAMP Report for the URP Phase 9 Student Housing 
Project | Irvine Ranch Water District | Irvine, California, 
United States | Hydraulic Modeling Support 

Stantec prepared a Sub-Area Master Plan for domestic 
water, wastewater, and non-potable water systems to 
serve a proposed 2,800-bed student housing community 
with multiple buildings, fitness/leasing center, 
study/market center, and parking structures. Stantec 
evaluated the proposed infrastructure and impacts to the 
existing infrastructure for potable water, sewer, and 
nonpotable services. 

Fire Flow & Hydraulic Modeling | Eastern Municipal 
Water District | Perris, California, United States | 
Hydraulic Modeling Support 

Perform hydraulic modeling and fire flow testing of the 
Eastern Municipal Water District water distribution 
system. Stantec provided as-needed engineering 
services in order for the District to continue delivering 
water services to more than 800,000 users throughout 
Riverside County. 

Hydraulic Model Update and 770 Pressure Zone Analysis 
| Walnut Valley Water District | Walnut, California, United 
States | Hydraulic Modeling Support 

Stantec updated and evaluated the 770 Pressure Zone in 
the hydraulic model of the Walnut Valley Water District 
potable water distribution system to reflect changes since 
2012. The updated model was then used to analyze the 
impacts to the 770 Zone removing existing pressure 
regulating stations. Additionally, a new source of supply 
was included from Cal Domestic that directly supplied the 
770 Zone. 

Safe and Affordable Funding for Equity and Resilience 
(SAFER) Administrator Program | California State Water 
Resources Control Board | California, USA | Administrator 
Lead 

Roxana is part of a broad Stantec team selected by the 
State of California to serve as Administrators within the 
Safe and Affordable Funding for Equity and Resilience 
(SAFER) Program, a multi-billion-dollar effort to ensure 
the human right to water is achieved across the state. In 
this role, Stantec can be appointed by California to accept 
full operational responsibility for a failing or at-risk drinking 
water system for a period of two to four years during 
which Stantec will work directly with the community 
served by the system, its existing staff and leaders, and 
with state staff to identify and overcome challenges facing 
the system. Roxana provides technical support for a 
failing water system in eastern San Diego County. In this 
role, Roxana coordinates engineering design plans, 
addresses water quality issues, and provides insight on 
planning needs for a water distribution system.  

 

Page 391 of 405



Mr. McKenzie has over 15 years of experience in 

water and wastewater engineering. He has been part 

of project teams creating hydraulic models for the 

analysis of distribution systems, including model 

calibration, fire flow analysis, unidirectional flushing 

(UDF), as well as extensive experience in hydraulic 

transient analysis.  He has worked on pump selection, 

control valve design, external pipeline load analysis, 

master planning, as well as open channel hydraulics, 

and gravity pipeline design.  Mr. McKenzie has been 

the lead transient engineer in studies ranging from 

gravity systems to 200 MGD pump stations, as well as 

analyzing Francis reaction turbines. 

 

EDUCATION 

Masters of Science, Michigan Technological 
University/Civil Engineering, Houghton, Michigan, United 
States, 2011 

Bachelors of Science, Colorado State University/Civil 
Engineering, Fort Collins, Colorado, United States, 2006 

Bachelors of Arts, Colorado State University/Spanish, 
Fort Collins, Colorado, United States, 2006 

CERTIFICATIONS & TRAINING 

New Miner, MSHA, Denver, Colorado, United States, 
2016 

Hydraulic Transient Modeling, Innovyze InfoSurge, 
Broomfield, Colorado, United States,  

Hydraulic Transient Modeling, Applied Flow Technology 
(AFT) Impulse, Denver, Colorado, United States,  

HAZWOPER, OSHA, Denver, Colorado, United States,  

Hydraulic Transient Modeling, KYPipe KYSurge, Denver, 
Colorado, United States,  

REGISTRATIONS 

Professional Engineer #PE.0049479, Colorado 
Department of Regulatory Agencies 

PRESENTATIONS 

Acceptance of Cavitation in Hydraulic Transient Analysis 
of Pipeline Systems. RMWEA / RMSAWWA - Joint 
Annual Conference, 2018. 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Integrated Master Plan | Cucamonga Valley Water District 
(CVWD) | Rancho Cucamonga, California | Potable Water 
Modeling Lead 

Fletcher is the lead modeler for the potable water system 
evaluations for the Integrated Master Plan for the CVWD’s 
potable water, sewer, and recycled water systems.  In 
addition to the potable water model updates and 
calibration using Infowater Pro, system reliability 
scenarios were evaluated for increased groundwater 
sustainability. The Integrated CIP incorporated combing 
CIP improvements for the water, sewer, and recycled 
water systems based on prioritizing analyses involving 
criteria such as condition, risk analyses, costs, funding, 
project vicinities, and other factors. 

City of Fullerton Water Master Plan Update and On-Call 
Modeling with Asset Management Program | Fullerton, 
California | Modeler 

Fletcher was part of the modeling team for the Master 
Plan Update to provide a roadmap for long-term capital 
improvement and water resource planning for the City of 
Fullerton, comprising of condition assessments for asset 
management risk analyses, including On-Call Modeling 
Services. Evaluations were focused on the City’s 
groundwater water supply and water quality to meet 
various water demand projections, including maximizing 
existing groundwater supplies. In addition, the project 
developed an Asset Management Program based on risk 
analyses prioritizing a 20-year capital improvement plan.  

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority - Imported 
Water Pipeline Hydraulics | Indian Wells Valley 
Groundwater Authority | California City, California, United 
States | 2023-Present | Hydraulic Engineer 

Mr. McKenzie served as the hydraulic engineer in charge 
of model construction for a proposed Imported Water 
Pipeline which aims to take water from a tank farm and 
deliver the water over 50 miles of 24-inch pipeline with 
three booster pump stations lifting the water up to a 
regulating reservoir, where it will then flow by gravity down 
to a blending tank for distribution. The project involved 
identifying a servicing strategy, locating the booster pump 
stations, sizing the pumps for three different flow 
conditions, ranging from 6 up to 14 cfs, locating pressure 
reducing stations, as well as doing a hydraulic transient 
analysis of the system to evaluate surge mitigation 
equipment needed. The transient analysis sized 
hydropneumatic surge tanks to mitigate transient 
conditions due to a power failure at the pump stations. 

Page 392 of 405



2018 Comprehensive and Water Distribution Master 
Plans Update | Arcadis US, Inc. | Columbus, Ohio, United 
States | Hydraulic Transient Analyst 

The City’s model is composed of 3,370 miles of pipe, 
about 21,000 nodes, 15 service districts, 27 pump and 
booster stations, 38 water storage tanks and serves a 
population of 1.2 million with an average day demand of 
140 MGD. As part of the Master Plan, Stantec is 
completing a hydraulic transient analysis on four of the 
City’s pump stations, the largest of which has a 90 MGD 
capacity, to determine transient pressures within the 
service districts served by each pump station. Fletcher 
worked on a modeling plan, which included 
recommendations to skeletonize the model for the 
transient analysis. The modeling plan also listed key 
assumptions such as boundary conditions, performance 
criteria (minimum and maximum transient pressures), 
and identified the transient analysis scenarios to be 
completed. Fletcher then executed the modeling plan and 
incorporated it into a final report documenting the 
transient analysis and recommendations. 
Recommendations included some follow-up testing at 
key locations with high-speed pressure transmitters; and 
depending on the results, considering adding air 
chambers and surge-suppression combination air 
vacuum valves at key locations in the system.  

Thornton Integrated Master Plan* | City of Thornton | 
Thornton, Colorado | Lead Modeler 

Served as task lead for the water distribution system 
master planning part of the integrated master plan, 
looking at raw water, water treatment, water distribution, 
and wastewater collection from 2018-2065 (buildout).  
Responsibilities included hydraulic model review, defining 
the performance criteria of the system, projecting 
minimum day, average day, and maximum day demands 
for four different planning periods, and finally creating 
proposed capital improvement projects in order to plan 
for system improvements through buildout.  The analysis 
also looked at three different supply scenarios each with 
up to three emergency conditions simulating treatment 
outages.  This analysis intended to find the most effective 
solution to expand the system taking into account the full 
life cycle, from raw water, treatment, distribution and 
wastewater collection.   

City of Aurora Wastewater Master Plan* | City of Aurora | 
Aurora, Colorado | Project Engineer 

Assisted with development of a system wide all pipes 
hydraulic model using InfoSewer.  The evaluation 
included analyzing the impacts and needed system 
upgrades to accommodate future planned growth; as well 
as existing system evaluation, unit cost development, 
and timing recommendations for future CIP projects. 

 

Antelope Valley-East Kern (AVEK) Water Agency High 
Desert Water Bank Project | Antelope Valley-East Kern 
Water Agency | Palmdale, California | Hydraulics Engineer 

The proposed system is planned to consist of two modes 
of operation: a Delivery mode in wet years to supply 
recharge basins from the East Branch and a Return mode 
in dry years to pump water back to the East Branch, 
utilizing a common backbone of piping for both modes. 
The purpose of this hydraulic analysis was to confirm pipe 
and pump sizes, flow rates, pipe velocities, as well as 
pressure rating for the HDWB Delivery and Return 
Systems. Additionally, a preliminary hydraulic transient 
analysis (HTA) was done looking at power failure 
conditions resulting in pump trips, as well as normal 
startup and shutdown events. The preliminary transient 
recommendations were to utilize a standpipe or surge 
suppression combination air vacuum valve at the high 
point of the system and select a piping material capable of 
withstanding full vacuum pressure.  

San Fernando Groundwater Remediation Project - 
Hydraulic Transient Analysis | Los Angeles Department of 
Water & Power | Transient Analyst 

Fletcher served as the hydraulic transient analyst for the 
Tujunga and North Hollywood Treatment Plants, which 
are comprised of various wells that pump to a treatment 
plant, which is going to be upgraded. The project was 
being executed as a design build in partnership with 
Kiewit Corporation, and was therefore on an accelerated 
schedule to begin construction. Mr. McKenzie's analysis 
found that during a power failure event with all wells 
operating, negative pressures could exceed the 
manufacturer's recommended limits for some of the 
treatment equipment. He then sized and located a bladder 
style air chamber, including specifying an initial gas pre-
charge pressure and tank connection size, to mitigate the 
downsurge from a pump trip event and maintain positive 
pressure at the equipment of interest. 

Potable Water System Hydraulic Model and Master Plan 
Update, City of Henderson, Nevada | City of Henderson | 
Henderson, Nevada | Hydraulics and Transient Engineer 

This project consisted of conducting a hydraulic transient 
screening analysis for the City of Henderson's Potable 
Water Distribution System.  The existing potable water 
system is an Innovyze InfoWater model consisting of over 
80,000 pipes and nearly 30 pump stations, which was 
calibrated to the existing conditions..  In addition to the 
hydraulic transient screening, Mr. McKenzie performed 
hydraulic modeling to assess water age conditions in the 
City of Henderson water distribution system. The study 
objective was to evaluate water age across the City 
distribution system under average and minimum day 
demand conditions, in which increasing water age is a 
proxy for an increase in trihalomethanes (THMs). 
Recommendations included seasonal adjustments to 
reduce storage volume, such as reducing the low set point 
of the tanks in lower demand periods (while maintaining 
minimum fire flow volumes) in order to increase the tank 
turnover; THM aeration, and bottle tests to confirm unique 
THM reaction rates and formation potential. 

Page 393 of 405



Connie is an environmental engineer and project 

manager with 11 years of experience. Connie focuses 

on water and wastewater treatment design, pump 

station and conveyance design, and water quality 

studies and analysis. As a project engineer and 

project manager for Stantec, Connie works with the 

water and wastewater treatment group on drinking 

water, wastewater, water recycling, and water reuse 

studies and treatment design, pump station designs, 

plant-scale renovation feasibility studies and water 

quality studies. Connie is internationally experienced, 

working on projects in Peru and Ethiopia as well as in 

the United States. 

 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science,  Environmental Science, Iowa State 
University, Ames, Iowa, 2007 

Master of Science, Civil Engineering, University of 
Colorado at Boulder, Boulder, Colorado, 2013 

CERTIFICATIONS & TRAINING 

ENV SP, Envision Specialist, Institute for Sustainable 
Infrastructure 

REGISTRATIONS 

Registered Civil Engineer #0053874, State of Colorado 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Orange Grove Boulevard Pipeline Design | Pasadena 
Water and Power | Pasadena, California | Project 
Engineer 

As project engineer, Connie was involved in this a 
pipeline alignment project to maintain pressure and a 
water balance between two different pressure zones in 
the city.  This design replaces an 8”, 12” and 24” water 
line on a main thoroughfare in Pasadena.  

Various Metropolitan Water District Task Orders | 
Metropolitan Water District  | Los Angeles, California | 
Process Engineer 

Connie is a process engineer managing various task 
orders to identify nitrogen management alternatives, cost 
phasing, and updating capital costs for MWD’s potential 
150 mgd full-scale advanced water treatment facility. 

Water System Master Plan | City of Orange | Orange, 
California | Water Quality Engineer 

Connie assisted the master planning team with several 
evaluations of the water distribution systems current water 
quality and future impacts, including analysis of sampling 
stations and source water quality constituents. Water 
quality issues were addressed including water age 
analyses, identifying any deficiencies, and improving 
movement of water from wells and other sources. 

Water System Master Plan | City of Fullerton | Fullerton, 
California | Water Quality Engineer 

Connie assisted the master planning team with several 
evaluations of the water distribution systems current water 
quality and future impacts, including analysis of sampling 
stations and source water quality constituents. Water 
quality issues were addressed including water age 
analyses, identifying any deficiencies. Regulatory 
evaluations and impacts were conducted to consider 
future supply source improvements that may be needed. 

Water Master Plan Update | City of Manhattan Beach | 
Manhattan Beach, California | Project Manager 

Connie assisted the master planning team with several 
evaluations of the water distribution systems current water 
quality and future impacts, including analysis of sampling 
stations and source water quality constituents. Water 
quality issues were addressed including water age 
analyses, identifying any deficiencies. Regulatory 
evaluations and impacts were conducted to consider 
future supply source improvements that may be needed 

Graves Reservoir and Wellhead Water Treatment 
Engineering Services During Construction | City of South 
Pasadena | South Pasadena, California | Project Engineer 
and Project Manager 

Connie is managing, coordinating, and providing review of 
submittals and requests for information for the Contractor 
as well as managing the budget. Construction of the 
project is currently approximately 30% complete. 

Water Supply Master Plan | Casitas Municipal Water 
District | Oakview, California | Project Engineer 

Connie is developing potential water supply projects to 
increase the portfolio of water sources for CMWD as well 
as the flow rate in order to reduce overuse of water from 
Lake Casitas. One project entails converting an area of 
homes on septic tanks to sewer while the other involves 
routing desalinated water from Santa Barbara to the 
Casitas Service Area. 

Page 394 of 405



Wastewater Treatment Plant Master Plan | City of Arvin | 
Arvin, California | Project Engineer and Project Manager 

Connie was the project manager and project engineer for 
a master plan to upgrade the wastewater treatment plant 
to remove nitrogen. The recommendation included 
converting an Orbal to a membrane bioreactor and 
disposing the effluent in ponds on site. This project 
completed on time and on budget. 

 

Fecal Sludge Treatment Reference Book | Bill and 
Melinda Gates Foundation | Southeast Asia | Process 
Engineer 

Connie worked as a process engineer as a contributing 
author to produce a reference book on the selection and 
design of fecal sludge treatment processes for a global 
audience. The book covers planning, operational 
consideration, process fundamentals, and process 
design. 

Fecal Sludge Management Knowledge Exchange 
Twinning Program | Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation | 
Southeast Asia | Deputy Program Manager 

Connie was the deputy program manager for a 
knowledge exchange program funded by the Gates 
Foundation, benefitting the countries of India, Nepal, 
Bangladesh, and Indonesia. The program sent 
participants from these countries to learn from successful 
FSM programs in various countries in South Asia in order 
to advance sustainable FSM programs through 
collaborate, knowledge-sharing, and action-oriented 
partnerships. Connie assisted in overseeing the 
organizing committee for the program and working on the 
budget. 

Enlozada Wastewater Treatment Plant at Cerro Verde 
Peru | Freeport McMoran | Arequipa, Peru | Project 
Engineer 

The WWTP utilizes primary clarification, trickling 
filter/solids contact, secondary clarification, and effluent 
disinfection. Connie translated drawings and documents 
between English and Spanish, reviewed manufacturer 
and construction phase submittals, participated in client 
meetings, prepared permitting documents, revised 
calculations, and prepared the O&M manual. 

CC Williams Wastewater Treatment Plant | Mobile Area 
Water and Sewer Service | Project Engineer 

Connie worked on the pre-design for the primary clarifiers 
for this project consisting of a pre-design to the 
headworks and primary clarifiers at the wastewater 
treatment plant. The pre-design included coordination 
with the concurrent master planning activities which 
included site and facility planning. The work also involved 
alternatives analysis for bar screens, grit removal 
technologies, primary clarifiers, and a primary effluent 
pump station.  

Springwood Booster Pump Station | California American 
Water | Newbury Park, California | Project Engineer and 
Project Manager 

Connie was the project manager and project engineer for 
a neighborhood booster pump station design. This project 
had many challenges and ultimately did not go forward 
due to lack of space and electricity at the pump station 
location. 

WRP 10 Secondary Effluent Pump Station | Coachella 
Valley Water District | Coachella Valley, California | 
Project Engineer and Project Manager 

Connie is a project engineer and the project manager for 
the engineering services during construction of a 
secondary effluent pump station to store and convey 
secondary effluent for percolation as well as tertiary filter 
backwash for treatment. Connie is managing, 
coordinating, and providing review of submittals and 
requests for information for the Contractor as well as 
managing the budget. Construction of the project is 
currently approximately 10% complete. 

White Water River channel Replenishment Ponds | 
Coachella Valley Water District | Coachella Valley, 
California | Project Engineer and Project Manager 

As project engineer and project manager, Connie is 
involved in the design of three replenishment ponds and 
conveyance to percolate Colorado River water into the 
White Water River Channel. 

Well 7991 Arsenic Removal Alternatives Analysis | 
Coachella Valley Water District | Palm Desert, California | 
Process Engineer 

Connie is a process engineer working on the evaluation of 
various alternatives to remove arsenic from the well water 
in the southeastern portion of the CVWD service area. 
The study evaluates rehabilitation of the ion exchange 
treatment system, blending with other water sources, 
abandonment of the well, or replacement of the treatment 
system with a new adsorption or ion exchange system. 
The evaluation includes a life cycle cost analysis. 

Page 395 of 405



Vanessa has experience in the development and 

implementation of multidisciplinary water resources 

projects throughout California. She served as project 

manager, technical lead, and engineer for numerous 

multi-objective water resources planning studies of 

surface and groundwater systems. Her experience 

includes management and development of integrated 

water resources management plans and programs, 

including integration and prioritization of regional 

projects for flood management, water supply, 

ecosystem restoration, and related objectives. She 

has specialized expertise in the operation and 

management of the State’s major water resource 

projects, including Sacramento and San Joaquin 

Valley flood control systems, the Central Valley 

Project (CVP), and the State Water Project (SWP). 

Her broad planning experience also includes 

comprehensive flood management studies, water 

transfers and associated laws and regulations, 

recycled water studies and projects, conjunctive water 

management, computer modeling of surface water 

hydrology and project operations, watershed 

management, data collection and analysis, permitting, 

and grant writing. 

 

EDUCATION 

MS, Civil Engineering, University of California Davis, 
Davis, California, 1994 

BS, Biomedical Engineering, Northwestern University, 
Evanston, Illinois, 1991 

REGISTRATIONS 

Professional Engineer #C57514, State of California 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Regional Water Reliability Plan (RWRP) and 
WaterSMART Regional Drought Contingency Plan 
(RDCP) | Regional Water Authority | California | Project 
Manager 

The Regional Water Authority's (RWAs) 2013 strategic 
plan called for development of the Regional Water 
Reliability Plan (RWRP) to identify the most promising 
regional opportunities to improve long-term water supply 
reliability. This effort included a vulnerability assessment, 
development of mitigation and response actions, 
characterization of the conjunctive use potential in the 
North and South American River groundwater basins, 
development of a high-level framework for conjunctive use 
opportunities, conduct of stakeholder and public 
involvement activities, preparation of the RWRP, and 
project management. RWRP development includes 
concurrent development of the WaterSMART-funded 
RDCP that covers portion of the RWRP study area for 
some of the RWRP activities. 

 

South County Recycled Water Master Plan Update | 
Santa Clara Valley Water District | San Jose, California | 
Project Manager 

Vanessa led the study update to improve management of 
surface water and groundwater resources within the 
District’s wholesale service area and potentially outside its 
current service area through collaboration, consolidations 
or other actions improve its water supply reliability. This 
effort included development of a screening methodology 
and criteria; identification of potential water management 
options; both a high-level evaluation and screening of 
those options and a refined evaluation of retained options; 
development of the scope for the next phase of work 
(feasibility study); outreach; and project management. 

Sacramento Valley Water Management Program (Phase 
8) | Yuba County Water Agency | California | Project 
Engineer 

Vanessa worked with Yuba County Water Agency 
(YCWA) to implement its Groundwater Production Pilot 
Project. The objective of the Pilot Project is to develop the 
yield necessary for YCWA to meet its commitment under 
the Sacramento Valley Water Management Agreement. 
She assisted YCWA in formation of a Yuba County Water 
Advisory Committee and development of the Yuba County 
Groundwater Management Plan. 

Page 396 of 405



American River Basin Regional Conjunctive Use 
Program (ARBCUP) | American River Basin Regional 
Conjunctive Use Program (ARBCUP) | California | 
Project Manager 

Vanessa oversaw the Proposition 13 grant application for 
the Regional Water Authority (RWA) American River 
Basin Regional Conjunctive Use Program (ARBCUP). 
She coordinated and participated in the data gathering, 
technical (including engineering, water source and 
supply, and hydrogeology), and economic analyses, 
documentation of environmental compliance, document 
development, and document production. This application 
resulted in an award of $21.67 million from the DWR. 

American River Basin Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan | Regional Water 
Authority/Sacramento County Water Agency/U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers | Sacramento, California |  Project 
Manager 

Vanessa actively assisted with the American River Basin 
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (ARB 
IRWMP)—a logical extension of the planning efforts 
previously conducted in the region. An IRWMP is a 
comprehensive planning document prepared on a region-
wide scale that identifies priority water resources projects 
and programs with multiple benefits. Vanessa assisted 
with specific and focused local and sub-regional planning 
efforts for its foundation, and helped investigate a broad 
spectrum of water resources issues. These issues 
included water supply, flood management, water quality, 
environmental restoration, environmental justice, 
stakeholder involvement, and far-reaching community 
and statewide interests. She participated in ARB IRWMP 
plan updates designed to address evolving regional 
issues and needs, as well as the ARB IRWMP 
implementation of the 2013 plan update. 

Lower Yuba River Accord & Supporting Efforts | Yuba 
County Water Agency | Yuba County, California | Project 
Manager 

Vanessa oversaw Yuba County Water Agency's 
(YCWAs) Accord process. She coordinated and 
supported a strategic management team, and tracked 
schedules, budgets, and work projects. Vanessa 
coordinated with CEQA/NEPA lead agencies, 
responsible agencies, and public involvement efforts. 
She also participated in other accord-related activities 
(e.g., technical, legal, policy, management, public 
involvement, environmental, regulatory compliance, and 
conjunctive use program activities). 

Purified Water Feasibility Project | Confidential Client | 
California |  Project Manager 

Vanessa oversaw a feasibility study of indirect potable 
reuse. She  conducted the feasibility study, and produced 
technical memoranda and a summary report. The topics 
evaluated included: projected water supplies and 
demands, groundwater injection and extraction capability, 
purified water facilities, environmental and regulatory 
considerations, public acceptance, potential purified 
water supply, opinions of probable cost, and future 
reassessment of purified water. 

Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA), 
Programmatic Environmental Impact Statement (PEIS) | 
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation | Mid-Pacific Region, 
California | Project Engineer 

Vanessa conducted surface water hydrology modeling. 
She participated in the Programmatic Environmental 
Impact Statement (PEIS) analysis of the October 1999 
final decision on implementation of section 3406(b)(2) of 
the CVPIA. This included the final accounting method for 
the water dedicated under (b)(2), and a policy for use of 
the water. Vanessa assisted in the development of a 
process for the PEIS analysis, developed a document 
describing the process and schedule, conducted the 
analysis, and presented the results. She also participated 
in the refinement of alternatives. Vanessa co-authored 
several sections of the administrative draft, draft, 
supplement to the draft, and final PEIS documents and 
technical appendices. She also coordinated production of 
these documents including incorporating agency 
comments; coordinating document revisions with authors; 
supervising a staff composed of engineers, scientists, 
technical editors, graphic artists, and word processors; 
and document reproduction. 

California Water Plan Update 2018 | DWR | California, 
United States | Project Manager 

Vanessa supported DWR with development of the 
Sustainability Outlook (Outlook) as part of the Update 
2018 effort. The Outlook will be a framework for using 
data (indicators) to help assess progress toward achieving 
desired results (intended water and related resource 
outcomes) and may be used by water management 
decision makers to foster greater understanding of how 
California manages water resources and better inform 
actions to be taken. This effort included gathering and 
evaluating existing and available information on 
sustainability indicators and associated data, drafting 
Outlook descriptions for inclusion in Update 2018, and 
determining next steps for Outlook development. 

 

2015 Integrated Regional Water Management 
Implementation Grant Application Regional Water 
Authority | Southern California, California, United States | 
Project Lead 

Vanessa was the project lead for the preparation of a 
funding proposal under the DWR 2015 Integrated 
Regional Water Management Implementation Grant 
Solicitation. This grant proposal included 4 projects to be 
implemented by 4 local agencies with $3.5 million in total 
project costs. Project types included a raw water intake 
with increased reliability, hexavalent chromium treatment 
for a drinking water well, increase production and energy 
efficiency for a groundwater well, and regional water 
conservation measures. This application resulted in an 
award of $1.8 million from DWR. 

Page 397 of 405



Umesh brings experience specializing in project and 

program management--from engineering to 

construction, operations, maintenance, and 

commissioning. Prior to joining Stantec, he worked for 

the Chino Basin Municipal Water District/Inland 

Empire Utilities Agency for six years, and the Orange 

County Sanitation District (OCSD) for 22 years. Based 

on his project management and wastewater process 

experience, he is a catalyst for creative team 

collaboration, focusing on the health of the project. In 

addition to managing project schedules, costs, quality, 

and scope he will address and resolve change orders 

quickly to minimize project impact. By anticipating 

potential gaps and challenges early, Umesh is able to 

mitigate risks and resolve conflicts with contractors, 

consultants, management, and/or stakeholders. His 

approach adopts clear and concise communication 

with stakeholders to regularly consult, obtain approval, 

share information, and provide reports as needed.  

Umesh will proactively facilitate management and 

project teams in the decision-making process, to avoid 

project delays. He is committed to fair negotiations 

with contractors and consultants to address changes 

or deviations and resolve procurement issues with 

vendors as these arise.  

 

EDUCATION 

MS, Civil/Environmental Engineering, Texas Tech 
University , Texas, United States, 2021 

BS, Civil Engineering, Bangalore University, Bengaluru, 
2021 

REGISTRATIONS 

Registered Civil Engineer #55916, California Board for 
Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and Geologists, 
1996-07-26 

Certified Air Permitting Professional ## A1608, South 
Coast Air Quality Management District 

Project Management Professional (PMP)® #54873, 
Project Management Institute 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Roemer WFF Expansion Project | West Valley Water 
District 

Umesh is part of the team for the progressive design build 
project for the Roemer plant capacity expansions project 
from 14 mgd to over 21 mgd. 

Digester Ferric Chloride Rehabilitation at Plant 2* | 
Orange County Sanitation District  | Orange County, 
California | Lead Project Manager 

The design and construction for this ferric chloride feed 
system to the primary and secondary sludge feed to the 
digesters included the ferric chloride tanks, concrete pads, 
chemical distribution system, and pumps. Umesh 
optimized usage of chemicals used in the primary 
clarifiers and the sludge feed and reduced usage of ferric 
chloride in the plant. 

Sludge Dewatering and Odor Control at Plant 1* | Orange 
County Sanitation District | Orange County, California | 
Lead Project Manager 

By using a wall instead of a tunnel, Umesh implemented a 
$6 million cost savings during design to support major 
piping, restore an existing bleach station, and construct a 
partition wall to keep the east perimeter road open. 

Rehabilitation of Digesters at Plant 1 and Plant 2 * | 
Orange County Sanitation District | Orange County, 
California | Lead Project Manager 

The project scope encompassed rehabilitating seven 
digesters at Plant 2 and 14 digesters at Plant 1. Project 
elements included digester cleaning, and replacement of 
mixing pumps, piping, heat exchangers, control panels, 
and MCCs. Umesh prepared construction sequencing 
plans to reduce construction delays and minimize 
operational and regulatory issues. He also prepared and 
implemented a change management plan to manage 
corrosion-related concrete and steel repairs and 
minimized change orders. Construction cost was $35 
million. 

Secondary Effluent Pump Station at WRP 10 | Coachella 
Valley Water District | Coachella Valley, California | Lead 
Project Manager 

Umesh is providing engineering services during 
construction for this project that consists of a 7-MGD 
pump station to pump secondary effluent to the 
reclamation ponds. 

Page 398 of 405



On-Call Agreement Task Orders | Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California |  California | Lead Project 
Manager 

Provide engineering assistance as needed to advanced 
water treatment operations and maintenance. 

Filtrate Pump Station Improvements | City of Palm 
Springs | Palm Springs, California | Lead Project 
Manager 

This project involved the design and construction of a 
filtrate pump station that includes flows from the sludge 
drying beds, DAFT, and centrifuges. 

Headworks Improvements at Plant 2* | Orange County 
Sanitation District | Orange County, California | Lead 
Project Manager 

The construction of this new headworks facility included 
odor control facilities, screening facility, grit washers and 
compactors, electrical building, the chemical feed 
facilities, and relocating incoming trunk lines. Umesh 
improved coordination with contractors, thus reducing the 
commissioning time by one year. The project received 
the 2014 CMAA achievement award in the practice of 
construction management. 

Effluent Pump Station Annex at Plant 2* | Orange County 
Sanitation District | Orange County, California | Lead 
Project Manager 

This project included the design and construction of a 
300-MGD pump station. Project elements included the 
influent channels, pump station, electrical rooms, and the 
standby power facility. Umesh prepared and 
implemented a commissioning plan to reduce the 
construction duration by six months. 

Asset Management Projects* | Orange County Sanitation 
District | Orange County, California | Program Manager 

Umesh managed 45 small projects, in the range of 
$50,000 to $8 million, to resolve operations and 
maintenance issues and to defer construction of capital 
improvement projects. Project locations include the liquid 
streams, solids processes, odor control units, pump 
stations, and the energy recovery facilities.  

Diamond Bar Pump Stations | Los Angeles County 
Department of Public Works | Los Angeles County, 
California | Lead Project Manager 

For the design and construction of the Fountain Springs 
Pump Station and the Indian Creek Pump Station in the 
City of Diamond Bar, Umesh is working on a daily basis 
with the County’s O&M staff. 

Bypass Plans for OCSan Pump Stations** | Orange 
County Sanitation District | Orange County, California | 
Lead Project Manager 

As an Engineering Supervisor for OC San, Umesh and 
his team prepared flows, flow patterns, and emergency 
bypass plans for all pump stations in the service area 
during power outages or mechanical failures. Umesh 
collaborated with the collections’ manager, supervisor, 
and staff to accomplish this task. 

Effluent Pump Station Annex (EPSA) at Plant 2 | Orange 
County Sanitation District (OC San)  | Orange County, CA 
| USD 35M | Lead Project Manager 

This $35 million project included the design and 
construction of a 300-mgd pump station for the secondary 
effluent in the City of Huntington Beach. Project elements 
include the wet-well, influent channels, pump station, 
electrical rooms, and the standby power facility. Umesh 
prepared and implemented a commissioning plan to 
reduce the construction duration by six months. 

15th Street and A Street Pump Stations | Orange County 
Sanitation District (OC San)  | Newport Beach, CA | 
USD 12M | Lead Project Manager 

Umesh was responsible for the $12-million design and 
construction of two wastewater pump stations on the busy 
stretch of Balboa Boulevard. This work included a dry 
well, wet well, and electrical rooms for the pumps. 
Challenges encompassed working with the neighbors, 
city, and schools, as well as issues such as dewatering, 
soil contamination, and settlement during construction. 
The pump stations met all NFPA requirements and had 
minimum impact to the residents and businesses in the 
community. 

Replacement of Critical Valves at Main Street Pump 
Station and Bypass Valves at McArthur Pump Station | 
Orange County Sanitation District (OC San) | Orange 
County, CA | Program Manager 

Two pump stations with capacities ranging from 8-MGD to 
30-MGD had issues with major valves (12-inch to 24-inch) 
that needed replacement. Umesh strategized construction 
methods, bypass methods, and coordinated with 
stakeholders to complete the project without setbacks or 
delays. 

Headworks Improvements at Plant 2 | Orange County 
Sanitation District (OC San) | Orange County, CA | 
USD 200M | Lead Project Manager 

The construction of this $200 million new headworks 
facility included the main headworks pumping station (200 
MGD), odor control facilities, screening facility, grit 
washers and compactors, electrical building, the chemical 
feed facilities, and relocating incoming trunk lines. Umesh 
improved coordination with contractors reduced the 
commissioning time by one year. The project received the 
2014 CMAA achievement award in construction 
management. 

Pump Stations | Los Angeles Department of Public Works 
| Diamond Bar, CA | Lead Project Manager 

Umesh led the design and construction of the Fountain 
Springs Pump Station and the Indian Creek Pump Station 
in the City of Diamond Bar. He is working routinely with 
the County’s O&M staff to resolve current issues and in 
the pre-design of the new pump stations. 

Page 399 of 405



Steven specializes in the structural design and 

analysis of various storage tank facilities, 

water/wastewater treatment plant structures with 

previous experience in the design of ozone 

contractors, filter structures, secondary clarifiers, 

pump stations, and other specialized structures. His 

design experience includes reinforced concrete, 

reinforced masonry, steel, stainless steel, and 

aluminum. Additionally, Steven has designed and 

analyzed modifications to treatment plant structures 

and regularly creates finite element models for 

structural analysis. Beyond structural design, he has 

experience with concrete culvert 

inspection/observation, FEMA damage assessments, 

and engineering construction support. 

 

EDUCATION 

BS, University of California, Berkeley, Berkeley, 
California, United States, 2011 

MS, University of California, Berkeley, Berkeley, 
California, United States, 2013 

CERTIFICATIONS & TRAINING 

ATC-20 Certified, Cal OES Safety Assessment Program, 
Cal OES, USA California, United States, 2016 

REGISTRATIONS 

Professional Engineer #C85554, California Board for 
Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and Geologists,  

Professional Structural Engineer #S7109, California 
Board for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, and 
Geologists 

MEMBERSHIPS 

Member, Structural Engineers Association of Southern 
California 

Project Team Member, Engineers Without Borders, USA 

PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Rinconada Residuals Remediation Project | Valley Water 
| Los Gatos, CA | 2021 | Structural Design Lead 

Design structural modifications to the existing solids 
handling system, including evaluating reuse of the 
existing belt press building, design of permanent 
platforms to support screw conveyors, and design of new 
reinforced concrete mixing tanks. 

City of Fullerton Water Master Plan Update | Fullerton, 
California | Project Manager 

As part of the Water Master Plan Update Steven 
performed a visual inspection of the storage tanks, pump 
stations, and well facilities including preparation of a 
condition assessment report and evaluation used for 
comprising of condition assessments for asset 
management risk analyses for the asset management 
program and establishing a prioritized CIP.  

Forest Lawn 2.0 MG Steel Storage Tank | Forest Lawn | 
Hollywood Hills | Structural Design Engineer 

Steven was the structural lead in preparing seismic 
analysis and sloshing wave height analyses for the 
proposed tank. Preliminary and final design of foundation 
was provided. 

Canyon Hills 1.0 MG Steel Storage Tank | Whitebird 
Development | Los Angeles | Structural Design Engineer 

Steven was the structural lead in preparing seismic 
analysis and sloshing wave height analyses for the 
proposed tank. Preliminary and final design of foundation 
was provided. 

Delta Coves Reservoir and Pump Station* | Diablo Water 
District | Oakley, California | Structural Designer 

Mr. Wong assisted in the design of the 1.6 MG partially-
buried strand-wound prestressed concrete tank. The tank-
within-a-tank design sought to provide redundant storage 
options in a compact footprint. He conducted finite 
element analysis on the tank slab to take into account the 
effect of the inner tank, significant flood uplift forces, and 
tie-downs on the design. Mr. Wong also coordinated with 
the geotechnical engineer to design the reinforced 
concrete tie-downs to resist buoyant flood forces. 

Lindley Reservoirs | City of Escondido | Escondido, 
California | Structural Design Engineer 

Steven designed two buried 1.5-2.0MG prestressed 
concrete reservoirs on a hillside. The design included high 
seismic loads and significant differences in grade between 
the uphill and downhill sides of the reservoirs. He 
incorporated shear keys/blocks to prevent sliding of the 
tank for various fill conditions of the tank. 

Page 400 of 405



 

Randall-Bold Water Treatment Plant Chemical Storage 
Improvements | Contra Costa Water District | Oakley, 
California | Lead Structural Engineer 

Steven evaluated and detailed seismic retrofits for the 
horizontal steel chemical tanks at the Randall-Bold WTP 
tank farm. The retrofit design will allow for the chemical 
tank supports to resist current code-level seismic forces 
and added ductility if the supports get over-stressed. 

Plant Capacity Expansion Project | South County 
Regional Wastewater Authority | Gilroy, California | 
Structural Design Engineer 

Steven designed the two-story expansion to the solids 
handling building, containing two 20,000-pound screw 
presses on the second floor and designed of concrete 
shear walls in one direction and steel moment frames in 
the other. The design of the building was constrained by 
the layout and geometry of the existing building 
immediately adjacent to it. Steven also designed the two-
story concrete blower/electrical building. The design of 
the blower/electrical building included accommodating 
the high torsional loads due to the multitude of large 
louver openings required. 

Bollman Water Treatment Plant Chemical Storage 
Improvements | Contra Costa Water District | Concord, 
California, United States | Lead Structural 

East Cherry Creek Valley Northern Water Treatment 
Plant Phase II Expansion* | East Cherry Creek Valley 
Water and Sanitation District | Colorado | 2018 | 
Structural Designer 

Mr. Wong designed the reinforced masonry chemical 
storage building that included several separated 
containment areas for the various treatment chemicals. 
The design included extensive drainage trenches in the 
concrete mat slab and multi-directional joist layout. 

Del Valle Water Treatment Plant Ozonation Project* | 
Livermore, California | 2017 | Structural Design Engineer 

Steven designed the reinforced concrete ozone contactor 
structure. Design included analyzing hydrodynamic 
loading in the complicated geometry of the dual-
treatment-train structure with multiple under- and over-
flow baffle walls. 

Patterson Pass Water Treatment Plant Ozonation 
Project* | Livermore, California | 2018 | Structural Design 
Engineer 

Steven designed the new filter structure and attached 
electrical and blower rooms. Design included analyzing 
hydrodynamic loading within the filter cells and in the 
applied water channel above the filter gallery. The 
structure incorporated various changes in elevation 
throughout its length and width, with the filter gallery, filter 
cells, waste washwater channels, electrical room, and 
blower room all at unique elevations but directly 
connected in the structure. 

Chemical Storage Safety Improvements Project | EBMUD 
| Various WTPs | 2018-Present | Structural Design 
Engineer 

Mr. Wong provided structural design and analysis of roof 
modifications, which included 3 new large openings, sized 
to remove large chemical storage tanks out, overhead by 
crane. He also analyzed the existing tank anchorages and 
the supporting elevated concrete slabs for feasibility of 
tank replacement and meeting more stringent building 
code requirements. 

New Maintenance Facility Project  | South County 
Regional Wastewater Authority | Gilroy, California | 
Structural Design Engineer 

Steven helped design the various structural retrofits to the 
existing reinforced masonry building that were necessary 
to allow for an old equipment building to be used as a 
plant maintenance building. The retrofit design included 
thickening shear walls, adding steel collector elements, 
and drilled pier foundations. 

Water Treatment Plant Retrofit Progressive DB - Seismic 
Assessment and Retrofit | City of Lewiston | Lewiston, ID | 
2021 | Structural Retrofit and Design Engineer 

Following a preliminary structural evaluation (ASCE 41, 
Tier 1) to determine potential deficiencies in the combined 
clearwell and finished water pump station structure, 
Steven analyzed each identified risk to determine the 
extent of retrofit required, if needed. His efforts resulted in 
a report outlining which deficiencies posed a risk to the 
structure and recommended retrofit options. 

East Cherry Creek Valley North and South Booster Pump 
Stations Phase II Expansion* | East Cherry Creek Valley 
Water and Sanitation District | Boulder, Colorado | 2017 | 
Structural Designer 

Mr. Wong designed the new reinforced masonry pump 
stations at both the north and south booster pump station 
sites. One site consisted of poor soil conditions and 
required a deep foundation system of grade beams and 
concrete piles, and the other was founded on a concrete 
mat. Each of the structures contained a pump process 
room and an electrical room with differing roof heights and 
the potential for high snow drift loads. 

Los Angeles World Airport North Central Outfall 
Interceptor* | Los Angeles World Airport | Los Angeles, 
California | 2016 | Structural Design Engineer 

Steven designed a new pump station that was 
constructed at the bottom of a detention basin and a 
buried junction structure at a new connection from the 
detention basin into an existing 10ft diameter concrete 
outfall sewer pipe. The junction structure was designed to 
minimize load transfer into and modifications of the 
existing outfall pipe due to the unknown condition of the 
pipe. 

Meridian Pump Station Upgrade | City of Beaverton | 
Beaverton, OR | USD 2.7M | Structural Design Engineer 

Steven designed the reinforced masonry pump station 
building that housed three vertical turbine pumps. The 
building was founded on poor soil conditions and the 
foundation design included detailing micropile supports 
around the pump cans and other subgrade piping. 

Page 401 of 405



 

 

 

Stantec is a global leader in sustainable 

architecture, engineering, and environmental 

consulting. The diverse perspectives of our 

partners and interested parties drive us to 

think beyond what’s previously been done on 

critical issues like climate change, digital 

transformation, and future-proofing our cities 

and infrastructure. We innovate at the 

intersection of community, creativity, and 

client relationships to advance communities 

everywhere, so that together we can redefine 

what’s possible. 

Page 402 of 405



EXHIBIT “2” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 1  
 

COMPENSATION 
 
 

Per the attached Fee proposal 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 403 of 405



 QA/QC Lead and 

Technical Advisor 
 Project M

anager 

 Planning Lead 

 Hydraulic Model 
Analyses 

 Planning Support S
taff 

 Regulatory Analysis 

(Water Q
uality) 

 Regulatory Analysis 

(Conservation) 
 Treatment/Facility

 

Evaluations 
 Seismic Storage 

Evalautions 

 Cost Estim
ator 

 Other D
irect Costs 

 Hydrant Flow Testing - 

SoCal Flow Testing 

 N
am

e 
 S

no
w

, T
am

a 
 D

un
n,

 J
ef

f 
 C

ar
ril

lo
, 

R
ox

an
a 

 M
cK

en
zi

e,
 

Fl
et

ch
er

 
 A

de
ra

, 
C

on
ni

e 
 N

is
hi

ka
w

a,
 

Va
ne

ss
a 

 M
ur

th
y,

 
U

m
es

h 
 W

on
g,

 
St

ev
en

 
 L

ou
ck

s,
 

Ja
m

es
 

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
ill

in
g 

R
at

e 
$2

90
$2

80
$2

10
$2

22
$1

96
$2

31
$2

31
$2

63
$2

10
$2

80
 T

ot
al

 H
ou

rs
 

18
21

0
45

6
28

4
24

0
34

32
8

0
8

 F
ee

  
$5

,2
20

$5
8,

80
0

$9
5,

76
0

$6
3,

04
8

$4
7,

04
0

$7
,8

54
$7

,3
92

$2
,1

04
$0

$2
,2

40
$2

50
$0

 T
as

k 
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 
 H

ou
rs

 
 L

ab
or

 
 O

D
C

 
 S

ub
s 

 T
ot

al
 

1.
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y
8

16
24

$5
,6

00
$0

$0
$5

,6
00

2.
 In

tr
od

uc
tio

n
8

24
32

$7
,2

80
$0

$0
$7

,2
80

3.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Ar
ea

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s

8
38

72
11

8
$2

4,
33

2
$0

$0
$2

4,
33

2

4.
 S

ys
te

m
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 D

es
ig

n 
C

rit
er

ia
4

4
8

16
$3

,7
36

$0
$0

$3
,7

36

5.
 E

xi
st

in
g 

D
om

es
tic

 W
at

er
 F

ac
ili

tie
s

10
28

16
54

$1
2,

23
2

$0
$0

$1
2,

23
2

6.
 W

at
er

 D
em

an
ds

 a
nd

 S
up

pl
y 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s

16
40

24
60

14
0

$2
9,

96
8

$0
$0

$2
9,

96
8

7.
 H

yd
ra

ul
ic

 M
od

el
 U

pd
at

e 
&

 C
al

ib
ra

tio
n

20
32

10
0

24
25

0
17

6
$3

9,
22

4
$2

50
$0

$3
9,

47
4

8.
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pr

op
os

ed
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
12

36
80

4
13

2
$2

9,
73

2
$0

$0
$2

9,
73

2

9.
 C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

12
38

24
16

4
8

10
2

$2
3,

09
6

$0
$0

$2
3,

09
6

10
. R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
An

al
ys

is
8

8
24

24
64

$1
5,

00
8

$0
$0

$1
5,

00
8

11
. P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
M

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 W

or
ks

ho
ps

2
64

36
16

8
2

0
0

0
12

8
$3

1,
64

2
$0

$0
$3

1,
64

2

12
. P

re
pa

re
 R

ep
or

t a
nd

 D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s
16

40
15

6
16

60
8

8
0

30
4

$6
7,

60
8

$0
$0

$6
7,

60
8

1,
29

0
$2

89
,4

58
$2

50
$0

$2
89

,7
08

O
PT

IO
N

AL
7.

 F
ie

ld
 H

yd
ra

nt
 T

es
tin

g 
Su

bc
on

su
lta

nt
10

,0
10

0
$0

$0
$1

0,
01

0
$1

0,
01

0
8.

 S
tr

uc
tu

ra
l E

va
lu

at
io

ns
 o

f S
to

ra
ge

 T
an

ks
12

10
6

11
8

$2
5,

41
6

$0
$0

$2
5,

41
6

11
8

$2
5,

41
6

$0
$1

0,
01

0
$3

5,
42

6

 P
ro

je
ct

 T
ot

al
s 

 H
ou

rs
 

 O
pt

io
na

l T
as

ks
 

R
EV

IS
ED

 F
EE

 E
ST

IM
AT

E 
-W

at
er

 M
as

te
r P

la
n 

U
pd

at
e

Page 404 of 405



EXHIBIT “3” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 1 
 

SCHEDULE 
  

 

Schedule to be determined by District staff. 

 

Page 405 of 405


	AdjournedRegularBoardMeeting-2024-11-15.pdf
	October 3, 2024 BOD Minutes.pdf
	October 17, 2024 BOD Minutes.pdf
	Item 2. .pdf
	Staff Report - Consider TO4 with MBI for Pump Station 7-2.pdf
	Item 3. .pdf
	Attachment A - WICA.pdf
	WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
	INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT

	Exhibit C - Cost Estimate.pdf
	Exhibit C - Standards for Domestic Water Facilities - Including Standard Drawings.pdf
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.pdf
	855 W. Baseline
	Beverly Smith, Vice President   
	V
	VI
	VII
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail
	W-23   Conductor Tube



	IX
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN PREPARATION AND PLAN CHECK
	WATER NOTES

	 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN CHECK INFORMATION SHEET



	WORKERS COMPENSATION CLAUSE
	REQUIRED LICENSE CLASSIFICATION
	SECTION 2.3

	BID
	SECTION 2.4
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.6
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.7
	SECTION 2.9
	Field Change Order
	ESCROW AGRREMENT FOR
	SECURITY DEPOSITS IN LIEU OF RETENTION
	GENERAL CONDITIONS

	SCHEDULES, REPORTS AND RECORDS
	INSPECTION AND TESING
	SECTION 3.21
	CONTRACT SECURITY
	ASSIGNMENT AND BANKRUPTCY
	INDEMNIFICATION
	SEPARATE CONTRACTS
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ENGINEER’S AUTHORITY
	LAND AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY
	GUARANTY
	SECTION NOT USED

	TAXES
	CONFLICT
	RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
	LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY
	REMOVAL, RELOCATION OR PROTECTION
	ANTITRUST CLAIMS
	CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS
	RESPONSIBILITY OF JOB SITE CONDITIONS
	SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	EARTHWORK

	CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION
	CONDUCTOR PIPE
	EROSION CONTROL
	REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PAVED SURFACES
	CRITERIA FOR THE SPERATION OF
	WATER QUALITY SAMPLE STATION
	WATER SERVICE
	PIPE, FITTINGS AND INSTALLATION
	WATER PIPELINE TESTING AND DISINFECTION
	FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLIES
	FLUSH-OUT AND BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES
	VALVES, VALVE BOXES AND COVERS
	AIR VALVES ASSEMBLIES
	CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS AND BLANKETS
	BACKFLOW PREVENTERS
	CHAIN LINK FENCE AND GATE
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail


	Air Valve Installation (3)

	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	ERSC - Change Order No.1.pdf
	ERSC Standard Hourly Billing Rates  1.1.20.pdf
	Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates
	Effective January 1, 2020


	Exhibit A - Aerial Map.pdf
	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	Exhibit B - WICA Agreement.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4





	D20017 - Water System Infrastructure Agreement with Richland Developers, Inc (Monarch Hills Lytle Creek Backbone).pdf
	WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
	INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT

	Exhibit C - Cost Estimate.pdf
	Exhibit C - Standards for Domestic Water Facilities - Including Standard Drawings.pdf
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.pdf
	855 W. Baseline
	Beverly Smith, Vice President   
	V
	VI
	VII
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail
	W-23   Conductor Tube



	IX
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN PREPARATION AND PLAN CHECK
	WATER NOTES

	 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN CHECK INFORMATION SHEET



	WORKERS COMPENSATION CLAUSE
	REQUIRED LICENSE CLASSIFICATION
	SECTION 2.3

	BID
	SECTION 2.4
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.6
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.7
	SECTION 2.9
	Field Change Order
	ESCROW AGRREMENT FOR
	SECURITY DEPOSITS IN LIEU OF RETENTION
	GENERAL CONDITIONS

	SCHEDULES, REPORTS AND RECORDS
	INSPECTION AND TESING
	SECTION 3.21
	CONTRACT SECURITY
	ASSIGNMENT AND BANKRUPTCY
	INDEMNIFICATION
	SEPARATE CONTRACTS
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ENGINEER’S AUTHORITY
	LAND AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY
	GUARANTY
	SECTION NOT USED

	TAXES
	CONFLICT
	RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
	LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY
	REMOVAL, RELOCATION OR PROTECTION
	ANTITRUST CLAIMS
	CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS
	RESPONSIBILITY OF JOB SITE CONDITIONS
	SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	EARTHWORK

	CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION
	CONDUCTOR PIPE
	EROSION CONTROL
	REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PAVED SURFACES
	CRITERIA FOR THE SPERATION OF
	WATER QUALITY SAMPLE STATION
	WATER SERVICE
	PIPE, FITTINGS AND INSTALLATION
	WATER PIPELINE TESTING AND DISINFECTION
	FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLIES
	FLUSH-OUT AND BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES
	VALVES, VALVE BOXES AND COVERS
	AIR VALVES ASSEMBLIES
	CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS AND BLANKETS
	BACKFLOW PREVENTERS
	CHAIN LINK FENCE AND GATE
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail


	Air Valve Installation (3)

	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	ERSC - Change Order No.1.pdf
	ERSC Standard Hourly Billing Rates  1.1.20.pdf
	Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates
	Effective January 1, 2020


	Exhibit A - Aerial Map.pdf
	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	Exhibit B - WICA Agreement.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4






	EXHIBI~2.PDF
	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	Exhibit B - WICA Agreement.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4


	Project Areas.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	D21012 - Water System Infrastructure Installation Agreement.pdf
	WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
	INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT

	Exhibit B - Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with Richland Develoers, Inc.pdf
	WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
	INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT

	Exhibit C - Cost Estimate.pdf
	Exhibit C - Standards for Domestic Water Facilities - Including Standard Drawings.pdf
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.pdf
	855 W. Baseline
	Beverly Smith, Vice President   
	V
	VI
	VII
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail
	W-23   Conductor Tube



	IX
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN PREPARATION AND PLAN CHECK
	WATER NOTES

	 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN CHECK INFORMATION SHEET



	WORKERS COMPENSATION CLAUSE
	REQUIRED LICENSE CLASSIFICATION
	SECTION 2.3

	BID
	SECTION 2.4
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.6
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.7
	SECTION 2.9
	Field Change Order
	ESCROW AGRREMENT FOR
	SECURITY DEPOSITS IN LIEU OF RETENTION
	GENERAL CONDITIONS

	SCHEDULES, REPORTS AND RECORDS
	INSPECTION AND TESING
	SECTION 3.21
	CONTRACT SECURITY
	ASSIGNMENT AND BANKRUPTCY
	INDEMNIFICATION
	SEPARATE CONTRACTS
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ENGINEER’S AUTHORITY
	LAND AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY
	GUARANTY
	SECTION NOT USED

	TAXES
	CONFLICT
	RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
	LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY
	REMOVAL, RELOCATION OR PROTECTION
	ANTITRUST CLAIMS
	CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS
	RESPONSIBILITY OF JOB SITE CONDITIONS
	SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	EARTHWORK

	CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION
	CONDUCTOR PIPE
	EROSION CONTROL
	REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PAVED SURFACES
	CRITERIA FOR THE SPERATION OF
	WATER QUALITY SAMPLE STATION
	WATER SERVICE
	PIPE, FITTINGS AND INSTALLATION
	WATER PIPELINE TESTING AND DISINFECTION
	FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLIES
	FLUSH-OUT AND BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES
	VALVES, VALVE BOXES AND COVERS
	AIR VALVES ASSEMBLIES
	CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS AND BLANKETS
	BACKFLOW PREVENTERS
	CHAIN LINK FENCE AND GATE
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail


	Air Valve Installation (3)

	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	ERSC - Change Order No.1.pdf
	ERSC Standard Hourly Billing Rates  1.1.20.pdf
	Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates
	Effective January 1, 2020


	Exhibit A - Aerial Map.pdf
	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	Exhibit B - WICA Agreement.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4





	D20017 - Water System Infrastructure Agreement with Richland Developers, Inc (Monarch Hills Lytle Creek Backbone).pdf
	WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
	INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT

	Exhibit C - Cost Estimate.pdf
	Exhibit C - Standards for Domestic Water Facilities - Including Standard Drawings.pdf
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.pdf
	855 W. Baseline
	Beverly Smith, Vice President   
	V
	VI
	VII
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail
	W-23   Conductor Tube



	IX
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN PREPARATION AND PLAN CHECK
	WATER NOTES

	 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN CHECK INFORMATION SHEET



	WORKERS COMPENSATION CLAUSE
	REQUIRED LICENSE CLASSIFICATION
	SECTION 2.3

	BID
	SECTION 2.4
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.6
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.7
	SECTION 2.9
	Field Change Order
	ESCROW AGRREMENT FOR
	SECURITY DEPOSITS IN LIEU OF RETENTION
	GENERAL CONDITIONS

	SCHEDULES, REPORTS AND RECORDS
	INSPECTION AND TESING
	SECTION 3.21
	CONTRACT SECURITY
	ASSIGNMENT AND BANKRUPTCY
	INDEMNIFICATION
	SEPARATE CONTRACTS
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ENGINEER’S AUTHORITY
	LAND AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY
	GUARANTY
	SECTION NOT USED

	TAXES
	CONFLICT
	RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
	LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY
	REMOVAL, RELOCATION OR PROTECTION
	ANTITRUST CLAIMS
	CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS
	RESPONSIBILITY OF JOB SITE CONDITIONS
	SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	EARTHWORK

	CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION
	CONDUCTOR PIPE
	EROSION CONTROL
	REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PAVED SURFACES
	CRITERIA FOR THE SPERATION OF
	WATER QUALITY SAMPLE STATION
	WATER SERVICE
	PIPE, FITTINGS AND INSTALLATION
	WATER PIPELINE TESTING AND DISINFECTION
	FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLIES
	FLUSH-OUT AND BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES
	VALVES, VALVE BOXES AND COVERS
	AIR VALVES ASSEMBLIES
	CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS AND BLANKETS
	BACKFLOW PREVENTERS
	CHAIN LINK FENCE AND GATE
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail


	Air Valve Installation (3)

	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	ERSC - Change Order No.1.pdf
	ERSC Standard Hourly Billing Rates  1.1.20.pdf
	Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates
	Effective January 1, 2020


	Exhibit A - Aerial Map.pdf
	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	Exhibit B - WICA Agreement.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4







	Exhibit C - Cost Estimate.pdf
	Exhibit C - Standards for Domestic Water Facilities - Including Standard Drawings.pdf
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT.pdf
	855 W. Baseline
	Beverly Smith, Vice President   
	V
	VI
	VII
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail
	W-23   Conductor Tube



	IX
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	DESIGN CRITERIA
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN PREPARATION AND PLAN CHECK
	WATER NOTES

	 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	PLAN CHECK INFORMATION SHEET



	WORKERS COMPENSATION CLAUSE
	REQUIRED LICENSE CLASSIFICATION
	SECTION 2.3

	BID
	SECTION 2.4
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.6
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	SECTION 2.7
	SECTION 2.9
	Field Change Order
	ESCROW AGRREMENT FOR
	SECURITY DEPOSITS IN LIEU OF RETENTION
	GENERAL CONDITIONS

	SCHEDULES, REPORTS AND RECORDS
	INSPECTION AND TESING
	SECTION 3.21
	CONTRACT SECURITY
	ASSIGNMENT AND BANKRUPTCY
	INDEMNIFICATION
	SEPARATE CONTRACTS
	SUBCONTRACTING
	ENGINEER’S AUTHORITY
	LAND AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY
	GUARANTY
	SECTION NOT USED

	TAXES
	CONFLICT
	RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE
	LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY
	REMOVAL, RELOCATION OR PROTECTION
	ANTITRUST CLAIMS
	CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS
	RESPONSIBILITY OF JOB SITE CONDITIONS
	SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS
	WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
	EARTHWORK

	CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION
	CONDUCTOR PIPE
	EROSION CONTROL
	REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF PAVED SURFACES
	CRITERIA FOR THE SPERATION OF
	WATER QUALITY SAMPLE STATION
	WATER SERVICE
	PIPE, FITTINGS AND INSTALLATION
	WATER PIPELINE TESTING AND DISINFECTION
	FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLIES
	FLUSH-OUT AND BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLIES
	VALVES, VALVE BOXES AND COVERS
	AIR VALVES ASSEMBLIES
	CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS AND BLANKETS
	BACKFLOW PREVENTERS
	CHAIN LINK FENCE AND GATE
	W-1   Typical Trench Detail


	Air Valve Installation (3)

	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	ERSC - Change Order No.1.pdf
	ERSC Standard Hourly Billing Rates  1.1.20.pdf
	Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates
	Effective January 1, 2020


	Exhibit A - Aerial Map.pdf
	EXHIBI~1.PDF
	Exhibit B - WICA Agreement.pdf
	1
	2
	3
	4






	D24006 - Water System Infrastructure Installation Agreement - Final.pdf
	D22026 - Exhibits A to D.pdf
	D22019 - Water System Infrastructure Installation Agreement.pdf
	WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
	INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT


	D22026 - Water System Infrastructure Installation Agreement.pdf
	WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
	INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT





	Item 4. .pdf
	Exhibit A - Sourcewell Bid and Evaluation Documents.pdf
	RFP_011723_Heavy_Construction_Equipment
	Addendum_1_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP 011723
	Question 1:
	Answer 1:

	Addendum_2_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
	RFP Amendment:

	Addendum_3_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
	Question 1:
	Answer 1:
	Question 2:
	Answer 2:

	Addendum_4_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
	Question 1:
	Answer 1:
	Question 2:
	Answer 2:

	Addendum_5_Heavy_Construction_Equipment_RFP_011723
	Question 1:
	Answer 1:
	In the competitive process, Sourcewell will not advise a proposer on the content of the proposal. It is left to the discretion of each proposer to determine the information necessary to best demonstrate their ability to serve Sourcewell participating ...
	Question 2:
	Answer 2:

	3-Proof of Publication-Heavy Const. 011723.pdf
	NYSCR
	DJC
	Oklahoma
	The State
	USA TODAY 11.18.22
	RMA
	Public Purchase
	Sourcewell portal
	Sourcewell website
	Biddingo
	Merx

	1-Caterpillar Contract 011723.pdf
	Caterpillar Contract 011723
	B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Supplier with valid tax-exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-exempt entity.

	Caterpillar Contract 011723
	Caterpillar Contract 011723
	ADP7F12.tmp
	Table 148: Depth and 8readth of Offered Equipment Products and Services
	Table 14C: Required Offering of Equipment
	Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications Form
	Only those Proposer Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications that have been accepted by Sourcewell have been incorporated into the contract text.


	Caterpillar 011723-CAT Trademark License Addendum 5-1-2023
	SOURCEWELL TRADEMARK LICENSE ADDENDUM
	This Addendum is by and between SOURCEWELL, 202 – 12th Street NE, PO Box 219, Staples, Minnesota 56479 (“Sourcewell”) and Caterpillar Inc., having its principal place of business at 5212 N. O’Connor Blvd., Suite 1100, Irving, TX 75039, and offices at ...
	The Parties maintain a contractual relationship for Vendor to provide equipment, products, or services to Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts as follows:
	Sourcewell Contract 011723 – CAT (Solicitation Number:  011723)
	ARTICLE I: GRANT OF LICENSE
	ARTICLE II: TERM, TERMINATION, AND MISCELLANEOUS.




	Exhibit B - QUINN CAT Riverside Contract Pricing.pdf
	Item 5. .pdf
	Exhibit A - Employee Travel Policy.pdf
	Exhibit B - Employee Expense Report.pdf
	Exhibit C - Per Diem Rates For Meals and Incidentals.pdf
	Exhibit D - Benchmarking Presentation.pdf
	Item 6. .pdf
	Exhibit A - 2024 September Treasurer Report.pdf
	Item 7. .pdf
	Exhibit A - 2024 September Cash Disbursements Board Report.pdf
	Exhibit A.pdf
	2024 September Cash Disbursements Board Report.pdf

	Exhibit B - 2024 September Cash Disbursements Payroll.pdf
	Exhibit B
	2024 September Cash Disbursements Payroll Board Report

	Item 8. .pdf
	Exhibit A - 2024 September Monthly Rev  Exp Report.pdf
	Exhibit A
	2024 SEP Montly Revenue & Expenditures Report

	Exhibit B - 1st Quarter Report FY2024-25.pdf
	Exhibit B
	1st Quarter Report FY25 (10.09.24)
	Report Final


	Item 9. .pdf
	Exhibit A - 2024 September Transfer Form.pdf
	Exhibit A
	Transfer Form SEP 2024

	Item 10. .pdf
	5511.pdf
	Exhibit A
	September 2024 PO Report

	Item 1. .pdf
	Exhibit A  - PCL Construction Inc. Change Order No. 6.pdf
	Exhibit A Title Sheet.pdf
	Scanned from Irvine Xerox 02.pdf
	CO #6v2.pdf

	Item 2. .pdf
	Item 3. .pdf
	JVS  WVWD Internship MOU 2024-2511.2024.pdf
	Attachment A
	Intern 1 Name: TBD
	Agency Name: West Valley Water District
	JVS Point of Contact: Scott Goodell
	Internship Start Date:
	Internship End Date:
	Internship Schedule:
	Hours per week (max 30 hrs.):
	Wage: $21.61/hr.
	Employer of Record: Signature Staffing

	Attachment A
	Intern 2 Name: TBD
	Agency Name: West Valley Water District
	JVS Point of Contact: Scott Goodell
	Internship Start Date:
	Internship End Date:
	Internship Schedule:
	Hours per week (max 30 hrs.):
	Wage: $21.61/hr.
	Employer of Record: Signature Staffing

	Attachment A
	Intern 3 Name: TBD
	Agency Name: West Valley Water District
	JVS Point of Contact: Scott Goodell
	Internship Start Date:
	Internship End Date:
	Internship Schedule:
	Hours per week (max 30 hrs.):
	Wage: $21.61/hr.
	Employer of Record: Signature Staffing


	Item 4. .pdf
	Exhibit A - PSA - 2024.pdf
	Exhibit A
	2024 - PSA - 10.24.2024.pdf
	2024 - PSA - Stantec


	Task Order No. 1.pdf
	Task Order No. 1 - 2024.pdf
	Task Order No. 1 - PBK 09.2024.pdf
	Stantec_Proposal_WMPUpdate
	4.0 Scope of Work
	4.1 Comprehensive Plan
	4.1.1 Executive Summary
	4.1.2 Introduction
	4.1.3 Planning Area Characteristics
	4.1.4 System Performance and Design Criteria
	4.1.5 Existing Domestic Water Facilities
	4.1.6 Water Demands and Supply Characteristics
	4.1.7 Hydraulic Model Update & Calibration
	4.1.8 Evaluation and Propose Improvements
	4.1.9 Capital Improvement Program
	4.1.10 Regulatory Analysis

	4.2 Project Management, Meetings, and Workshops
	4.3 Report and Deliverables


	Stantec_Water_Master_Plan_Fee_Summary_Table_rev1

	Stantec_Proposal_WMPUpdate
	Table of Contents
	2.0 Firm Background
	2.1 Staffing

	3.0 Statement of Understanding and Approach
	3.1 Technical Approach

	4.0 Scope of Work
	4.1 Comprehensive Plan
	4.1.1 Executive Summary
	4.1.2 Introduction
	4.1.3 Planning Area Characteristics
	4.1.4 System Performance and Design Criteria
	4.1.5 Existing Domestic Water Facilities
	4.1.6 Water Demands and Supply Characteristics
	4.1.7 Hydraulic Model Update & Calibration
	4.1.8 Evaluation and Propose Improvements
	4.1.9 Capital Improvement Program
	4.1.10 Regulatory Analysis

	4.2 Project Management, Meetings, and Workshops
	4.3 Report and Deliverables

	5.0 Proposal Forms
	Proposer Identification Form
	Proposer’s References
	List Of Subcontractors

	6.0 Additional Information
	6.1 Project Experience
	6.2 Optional Value-Added Services

	7.0 Project Team Summary
	7.2 Project Team

	8.0 Cost Estimates of Consulting Fee
	9.0 Schedule
	10.0 Insurance
	Appendix A
	SCSI Officers Cert_2024 - West Valley Water District Master Plan Update (2024 09 11).pdf
	OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE


	Stantec_Water_Master_Plan_Fee_Summary_Table_rev1




